
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Please ask for: Katey Johns, Democratic Support Officer  
T: 01752 307815 E: katey.johns@plymouth.gov.uk 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Date:    Monday 27 June 2011 
Time:   10am 
Venue: Warspite Room, Council House 
 
Members: 
Councillor Dr. Mahony, Chair 
Councillor Stevens, Vice Chair 
Councillors Evans, Stark and Thompson. 
 
Independent Members: 
Mr Clarke and Mr Stewart, plus one vacancy. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
Members and officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting. 
 
Please note that unless the chair of the meeting agrees, mobile phones should be switched off 
and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used in meetings. 
 
 
Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
 
17 June 2011 

Public Document Pack



 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. TO NOTE CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR    
  
 The committee will be asked to note the chair and vice chair appointed at the Annual 

General Meeting held on 20 May 2011.  
  
2. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 
  
4. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
  
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 25 March 2011. 
  
5. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
6. RECRUITMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER    
  
 To note progress on the recruitment of additional Independent Members. 
  
7. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11   (Pages 9 - 56) 
  
 The Council’s internal auditor will submit the Annual Report 2010/11. 
  
8. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2010/11   (Pages 57 - 80) 
  
 The Director for Corporate Support will submit the Annual Governance Statement 

2010/11. 
  
9. OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE 

REPORT   
(Pages 81 - 92) 

  
 The Director for Corporate Support will submit a report. 
  



 

10. RISK MANAGEMENT - ANNUAL REPORT   (Pages 93 - 102) 
  
 The Director for Corporate Support will submit a report. 
  
11. ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

ACTIVITIES FOR 2010/11   
(Pages 103 - 138) 

  
 The Director for Corporate Support will submit the Annual report on Treasury 

Management Activities for 2010/11. 
  
12. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/2011    
  
 The Director for Corporate Support will provide a verbal update. 
  
13. INTERIM REPORT AND UPDATE TO FINANCIAL 

AUDIT PLAN 2010/2011   
(Pages 139 - 158) 

  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report. 
  
14. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS REPORT   (Pages 159 - 160) 
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report. 
  
15. VFM REVIEW OF THE PROCURE TO PAY PROJECT   (Pages 161 - 190) 
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report. 
  
16. AUDIT COMMISSION    
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will provide a verbal update. 
  
17. POSITION STATEMENT - DIVISION OF CHILDREN 

FROM CARE - EFFICIENCY THEME   
(Pages 191 - 192) 

  
 The panel will be provided with a position statement on the division of children from 

care.  
  
18. AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PLAN 

2011/12   
(Pages 193 - 196) 

  
 The Committee will note its work plan for the forthcoming year. 
  
19. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph(s) ….. of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
 



 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 

 
AGENDA 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of 
the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL. 
  
 



��������		���

��������������������

��������		���

�
�

�������������������
�

���������
�
����������	
�����	��	���	������	
����������	�����	����	������	
�����������	������	�����	���	���������	
	
�����������	������ 	��	�����	
	
!����"���	#��	������� 	��	�������	$�����������	������%	
	
!���	��	���������� 			����������	
�����	�������	������	#��	&������	'�������	'�����	
���	(���������	)����	*������	+���	�#	&������	���	,����	!��������	+���	�#	)����	
!����	'����������	����	+�����"	+���	�#	���������	-���	���	���������	.����	+�����"	
-���	����"�����	���	���������	/##����	
�����	������	���	0���	.�##�����	(����	
��������	-������	,���#����	���������	��#��������	����"��	�������	���������	'�����	
���	'������"	/##����	���	-���	.�"�	)���������	�������	/##�����	
	
���	������"	�������	��	12�22	��	���	#�������	��	13�24	���	
	
���
�����������
�	

��������
���		���

������������
����
�������������
�
������	����
���
�����
��	���
���� 
����������
!��"�
�
���
�#���
�	����
���������	

��������������	�
��
��
����
�
�	����
���$
��

��	
��
�!	
	

53�	 ��������� ��� �������������
	
�	
� ��!��
���"�!��

��#$
���
�
%�!� �!�
�
%��

����������	�����	 56�	��������	!����	
'���	
	

������	(�������	 '�������	

��	�����	 56�	��������	!����	
'���	
	

������	(�������	 '�������	

	
57�	 ���&������

	
!"����	���	�������	�#	���	������"	����	��	���	31	.������	3211�	
	

58�	 �'���(��&�)����*&���������
� �
�����	
!���+��!�
,
!�
!���
	#
���	
� �
� ��	���	��������	��	���	)���������	�������	/##����	����	���	�����������	�������	#��	

�	���	�����������	������	���	��"���"�		
	 	

	
	

Agenda Item 4Page 1



��������		���

��������������������

54�	 ������)������-���)������.�� ��� ���)���� �����
	
���	)�������	#��	���������	�������	���������	��	������	��	�������	�#	/����������	-���	
����"������	��	����������	��	�������	���	������	���	���	+���	�#	���������	-���	���	
���������	���	�������	����	9	
	

��	 ���	������	��������	�	�������	�#	���	������	#�����	���������"	�:������	
���������	#��	���	����	��"�����;	

	
��	 ���	������	�#	������"��	�����	��������	���	�������	#���	78	��	73�	/��	

���	����	���	����	�����	���	���	���	����	�������	���	#������	����	
���	����	���"��	����	����	�������	87	���	<=;	

	
��	 ���	������	�#	���	�����	��	���	���##��	��"��	�������	���	�������	#���	

����	��	��:;	
	

��	 ����"����	#���	�#	���	������	��"���"����	���	�������	�#	���	3212	
�����������"	�����	'�������	���	��������	��	�����	�����"�	�����	
����	��������	��	���	�����	127	����	��������	

	
��	��������	��	>��������	#���	�������	�#	���	���������	��	���	��������	����?	
	

��	 ����	��"���	��	���	�����������"	����	@��������	����	�������	���	������	
���	�������	�#	����������	����������	������		���	�����;	

	
#�	 ���	������	�����	��	���	'�������	>������������	���	����	��"���	��	

�����������	������"�	'���������	���	�������������	���#�������	
����������	��������	�������"��	��"��#�����	������������;	���	
�����������"	�:������	������	��	���	"���	"���������	���	���	�#	
���������	���	�������	������	���	������������;	

	
"�	 �#	���	127	�����������	������	���	�����������"	����	���	����������	

�����������	����	����	������	����	���	����	#��	��	'��������	(���	
������"�	�����	������	�##������	�������	���	��A�	�#	���	����������	

	
!"����	��	����	���	�������	���	�������	��������	����	��"���	��	���	������"��	-���	-�"������	
	

5<�	 ���-��'���� ��&������.����/������ ���'�����������0 &�)��� ������
	
���	'�����	���	'������"	����"��	$��������B�	��������%	����������	�	������	��	����"��"	
����	��	��������	#��	��������	���	����"	������	��	���	��������	����	9	
	

��	 ���	�����	������	���	�������	���	���������	������	�����	���	�������	���	
�:���������	 ��	 ����"��"	 ����	 ���	 ���	 ����	 ���������	 ����������	 ��	
�����	�����	����	��"���"����	��	���	������;	

	
��	 �����	����	�#���	��"���"����	��	�����������	����	��"������	��	��������	��	

�����	���	��������	������������	����	��	���	C
���	'B	���	C@�����	����B	
���������;	

	

Page 2



��������		���

��������������������

��	 ���	�������	�#	������#���"	���	����"��"	����	���	���������	��	���	C����	
��������B	 ��	 ���D�������	 ����	 ���	 ��������	 �������	 ����"���	 ���	
���������	 ���������	 ���	 ��������	 ��	 �����������	 ����	 ����"�����	
������";	

	
��	 ���	�������	���	��������	���	��"���	�##	��	 ���	)�������	�#	��������	

#��	 ��������	 ���	 E���"	 '�����	 ���	 �	 ��?������	 ������������	
����"�����	����	������";	

	
��	 �����	����	��"���	�:���������	����"���	��	���	�������	�����	����	����	

����	��	������#�	����	���	�������	��������"��	��#���	����	���	��	������	
��	#��������	

	
��	��������	��	>��������	#���	�������	�#	���	���������	��	���	��������	����;	
	

#�	 ����	 ����"�����	 ���	 ��������	 ��	 ���	 ����������	 ��D��	 ��������	
���������	����	��	C
���	'B	����	���	����������	�����������	����	����	
�������	 ���	 ����"����	 �������"	 �:������	 F�����	 ������G	 ���"��	 ���	
�������	�	������	�#	 �������	��	���	��	�������	��	��	����"����	���	
���	 �������	 ���	 ������"	 ��	 ���	 ��	 #������	 ��������	 ���	 �����	 �����	
�����"	��	����"����	���������;	

	
"�	 ��"�����"	 ���	 ���������	 �#	 �������	 �#	 ��������	 ��	 ����	 �����	 ���	

����"����"	 ����	 ��"���"	 ��	 �������	 ����	 ���	 #������	 ��#��������	 �����	
��	 ��������	 �������	 �#	 ���	 ������"�	 ���	 ���������	 ���"��	 �����	 ��	
�������	��	���	>��������	.����	'��#�������	���	&������	������;	

	
��	 ����	 ���	����	��������	 ��	 ���	���������	 ��"�����	 �#	 ���	�������	��������	

#���	����	���	����	������	��	��	����"��	��	�	��"���	������	���	+���	�#	
���������	 -���	 ���	 ���	 ���������	 ����"�����	 ����	 ��������	
��������	 ���	 �������"�	 ����	 ��"����	 ��	 ��������"	 ����	 �����	 ���	
������������	����	��"������;	

	
��	 ��	 ������	 ��	 ����	 ��������	 �����	 ��	 ���������	 ��	 �������	��	 ���	 36	

�����	3211	���	���	/�������	���	��������	����"�����	
����	��	���	
<	!����	3211	��"�����"	!�������	��������	)��������	

	
!"����	����;	
	

$1%	���	������	���	�����;	
	

$3%	�	��������	���������	��"�����"	���	���������	�#	��������	��	����	���	���	
������������	 �#	 #������	 ��	 ���	 ���"��	 �����	 ��	 ���������	 ��	 ���	 ��:�	
������"	�#	���	����������	

	
55�	 ���&����&������������1�����

	
���	����	�������B�	�:������	�������	(����	��������	���������	���	!�����	!����	#��	������	
���#�����"	���	�����	����	���	#���	#��	3211?3213�	��	���	��������	����	�����	���	����	�	12	
���	����	���������	��	�����	#���	#��	�������	�����������	�����	��#������	��	��#���������	

Page 3



��������		���

��������������������

��������	��	3211?3213	�	���������	��	�����	#���	��������"	#���	���	���	��������	��	�����	
�����	#��	�����	�����	����	���	�	���������	��	�����	�����	#���	�#	7H	��#������"	�����	
��"���"	�����	�#���	�����������"	�������������	&��������	-�������"	����������	
	
!"����	����	�������	�#	#���	���	����������	�����	�����	��:	�����	��	��������	��	���	
���������	#��	���	�����	3226?3212	3212?3211	���	3211?13�	
	

5=�	 �&�������������1����� )�������� �����
	
���	����	�������B�	�:������	�������	(����	��������	��������	�	������	������	��	���"����	
�"�����	���	�����	����	#��	3212?3211�	��	���	��������	����	9	
	

��	 ���	�������	���	 ������#���	�	������	�#	����	�������	 ��	 ��������	 ��	 ���	
�������������	 &��������	 -�������"	 ����������	 ����	 #�"����	 ���	 ����	
#��������	���	71	�����	3226	�������	������	����	���	��	��	��������;	

	
��	 �����	 ���	 �	 ������	 �#	 #�:��	 �����	 ��������#��������	 ���	 ��"���"	

�����������	 ����	 ��"���	 ��	 "����	 ���������	 !	 ������	 �����	 ��	
#��������	��	���	.���	������"	�#	���	���������;	

	
��	 �������	�����	���	��	���"����	���	�����	��	��������	��	���	���������	

��	.���;	
	

��	 ���	 �����	 #��	 �����	 ���"�����	 �#	 ����	 ���	 ����	 ��������	 ���	
�����������	 ������	 �����	 ��	 ���	 #����	 �����	 �#	 ����	 ���������	 ���	
�����	 ��	 ��������	 ��	 ���	 ���������	 ��	 .����	,���	 �������	 ����	 �����	
�����	 ����������	 ����	 ���	 �������	 ���	 #������	 ����	 �����	 ����	 �����	
����	���	�������	

	
56�	 ����������&�������������1�����

	
���	���������	����	�#	)����	!����	'����������	$)!'%	���������	���	��������	�����	����	
3211	9	3213�	���	-�����	9		
	

��	 ��������	��#��������	��	���	��"��������	��>���������	#��	�����	�����������	
��	�������	���	 ��������	!����	�������	 ��	����������	����	 ���	��������	
���	�����	��"��������	322<;	

	
��	 ���������	��	 ���	��������	�#	 ���	��������	 ��������	�����	 ���������	��	

)����	!����	'����������	$)!'%;	
	

��	 ���������	 ��	 ���	 ��������	 �����	 ���������	 ���������	 ��	 ����	 #������	
���	 3211?3213	 ����	 �������	 �#	 ���	 �����#��	 �����	 �������	 ��	 ��	
����������	���	���	������	�#	����	��>�����	#��	����	�����	

	
��	��������	��	>��������	������	��	���	��������	����	9	
	

��	 ���	���������	����	���	��>�����	��	����	��������	�����	���	)!'	����	
�������"	����	����	�#	�����	��	���	�����	����	���	���������	����	����"	
��������	������	���	�������"����"	�����	�������	#��	�����	�����	�����;	

Page 4



��������		���

��������������������

	
��	 �����	���	�	����	��	����	�#	��������	�#	����	�������	�������	��	���	#��	

�������	 ������	 )!'	 ���	 ��������	 ������"	 ����������	 ��������	 ��	
����"���	����	����;	

	
#�	 "���	 #�������	 ���	 ����	 ��������	 ��	 )!'	 ��	 �����	 ����	 ���	 ������	

�������"�	 ����	 ��"���	 ��	 ���	 @�#�	 ������	 ���	 ���	 �����	 ,���	 )����	
,����	'�����������	

	
!"����	����	?	
	

$1%	���	��������	�����	����	#��	3211?	3213	��	��������;	
	

$3%	�	 ������	 ��	 ���	 ������	 �#	 �������	 ��	 ���"��	 ����"	 )!'	 #��	 ��������	
�����	��	��������	��	���	.���	����������	

	
=2�	 ��������� ����������������� ����)�����������2����3�.��� )�����

��� �����
	
���	+���	�#	&������	��������	�	������	���"����	������	��	�������������	&��������	
-�������"	���������	$�&-�%�	��	���	��������	����	9	
	

��	 ���	��������	#��	���	#����	#���	���	�#	�&-�	���������	#��������	����������	
�����	����	���	���������	��������	�#	72	.���	3211;	

	
��	 ������������	 �#	 ���	 �&-�	 ����	 ����"	 ����������	 ��	 ���	 �������	 �#	 ���	

���������B�	��������;	
	

��	 �����	����	����	 �����	 ��	������	 ����	 �&-�	�������"�	���	������	���	
��������	 ���	 ��������	 ��	 ���	 ���������	 ��	 ������	 "���	 #��������	
��������"	��	#�����	�����;	

	
��	 ���#�	��������	�����	��	��������	#��	 ���	72	.���	3211	��������	���	

���	 ��>�����	 ��	 ����	 ���"�	 �������	 �����	 �������	 ����	 ���	 �����	���	
��������;	

	
��	 �&-�	�����		������	���"�	���	�����	���������	��	���	�������	������;	

	
#�	 '�������	����	�������	����	���	��	��������	��	�������	���	����	C��	

�����B	����	"���	"�����	����	��	������	
	
!"����	
	

$1%	����	�	������	��	���	����	�#	���	F!��	�����	!�������G	���D���	#��	.������	
&�������	 ���	 �����	 3211	 ���	 ���	 #�"����	 #��	 ���>��	 ��"�	 ����	 ��	
��������	��	���	��:�	������"	�#	���	���������;	

	
$3%	����	�	�������"	�������	�����	��	��������	��	�������	��	�������������	

&��������	-�������"	����������	
	

Page 5



��������		���

��������������������

=1�	 �&����� ��������� �4����4 �-��������
	
!"����	����	���	!����	���������	#������	����	���"�����	��	���������	
	

=3�	 ��� ����� ��) /����������
	
���	���������	��#��������	����"��	��������	�	������	������	��	���	��#��������	
����"�����	����������	����	����"	��������	�����"����	���	��"����������	��	���	��������	
����	�����	���	����	#���	����	�������	?		
	

��	 ��	 ��#��������	 ����	 ��������	 ���	 ���������	 ��	 ����	 �����������	 ��	
�����	��#��������	��������	������	������	���	���������;	

	
��	 ���	����	���������	����	�����	��	��������	�	��������	��	��#��������	

����"�����	����	#��	�����	�����������	���	�������	�����	��	���������	��	
������	3211;	

	
��	 �	 ��������	 �����	 ��	 ��������	 ���	 ��	 ���	 ����#	 ��������	 �##����	 #���	

�������#��	 ���	 ��������	 �����	 �������	 �:�������	 ���	 ��#��������	
��"�����"	��������	�����	�����	����	��������"	��	��"����������	������	
���	�������;	

	
��	 ���##	 ���������	 �����	 ��	 �����"������	 ����	 ����	 �������	 ��������	 ��	

��#��������	 ����"�����	 ���	 ���##	 �������������	 �����	 ����	 ��	
���������	

	
=7�	 �5�����*&���������

	
!"����	����	�����	�������	122$!%$8%	�#	���	@����	(���������	!��	1653	���	�����	���	
������	��	�:������	#���	���	������"	#��	���	#�������"	�����	�#	��������	��	���	"������	
����	����	�������	���	������	����������	�#	�:����	��#��������	��	��#����	��	����"����	7	�#	
'���	1	�#	��������	13!	�#	���	!��	��	�������	��	���	&������	�#	��#��������	!��	3222�	
	

=8�	 ��� ����� ��) /��������2�63���
	
��	��������	��	>�������	#���	���	���������	��	���	��������	����	9	
	

��	 '�������	����	�������	�������	����	���	�������	����	���������	���	���	
�������	 ����	 ����	 ���	 ���������	 ����	 ����"	 ���������	 �������	 ����	
����	��������	����	������	��	�������	�����	�������;	

	
��	 ����	�#	���	�������	������	#���	�������	���	����	���������;	

	
��	 +���#��������	 �������	 ���	 ��������	 �	 #���	 ��	 ���	 ��"�����������	

�����"������	 ��"�����"	 ��#��������	 "���������	 ����	 ���	 ��������	 ��	
�����	����	�������	��	�����	���	�#	�������	���	#�:��;	

	
��	 ��	���	 ����������	 ��	������	 ������	122	���	����	������	 ���	���	���	

����	��	���������	�#	 ��#��������	��������	���	��������	��	���	 ������	
�#	���	���������;	

Page 6



��������		���

��������������������

	
��	 �	 ����	 #��	 ���	 ��������	 ��	 ��#��������	 ��������	 ���	 ���	 ���	 ����	

���#������	
	
	
	
	
	
	 	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  1 

 
CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

 
Subject:    Internal Audit – Annual Report 2010/11 

Committee:    Audit Committee 

Date:    27 June 2011 

Cabinet Member: Cllr Ricketts 

CMT Member: Director for Corporate Support  

Author: Martin Gould, Head of Devon Audit Partnership/  

 Sue Watts, Asst Head, Devon Audit Partnership 

Contact:    Tel:  01803 207320 / 01752 306710 
 e-mail: martin.gould@devonaudit.gov.uk, / 

sue.watts@devonaudit.gov.uk  

Ref:    AUD/SW 

Key Decision:   No 

Part: I   
 
Executive Summary:  
 
This report summarises the work undertaken by Devon Audit Partnership during 2010/11, 
reviews the performance and effectiveness of the Internal Audit service, and provides an audit 
opinion on the adequacy of internal controls. The report is particularly relevant, therefore, to the 
preparation of the Authority’s Annual Governance Statement which is required under the 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 
         
Corporate Plan 2011-2014:   
 
The work of the Section assists the Authority in maintaining high standards of public accountability 
and probity in the use of public funds.   The Section has a role in promoting high standards of 
service planning, performance monitoring and review throughout the organisation, together with 
ensuring compliance with the Council’s statutory obligations. 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
None 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment etc. 
 
The work of the Audit Service is an intrinsic element of the Council’s overall corporate 
governance, risk management and internal control framework. 
 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 7Page 9



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  2 

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action: 
 
It is recommended that:- 

1) the report be noted 
2) the Audit Committee endorse the adequacy and effectiveness of Plymouth’s internal 

audit for the year ended 31 March 2011. 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
None, as failure to maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit would contravene 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 
 
 
Background papers: 
   
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2010/11 
 
 
Sign off:   
 
Head 
of Fin 

AB 
8/6/
11 
MC 
8/6/
11 

Head 
of Leg 

 Head 
of HR 

 Head of 
AM 

 Head 
of IT 

 Head of 
Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member: Sue Watts, Asst Head, Devon Audit Partnership 
 

 
 
 

Page 10



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  3 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Audit Committee, under its Terms of Reference contained in Plymouth City Council’s 
Constitution, is required to consider the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report, to review and 
approve the Internal Audit programme, and to monitor the progress and performance of Internal 
Audit. 
 
1.2 The Internal Audit plan for 2011/12 has already been presented and approved by Audit 
Committee on 25 March 2011.  The following report and appendices, therefore, set out the 
background to audit service provision, reviews work undertaken in 2010/11, and provides an 
opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control environment. 
 
1.3 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 confirm the requirement that all 
Authorities need to carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of its internal audit, and need 
to consider the results of that review as part of its consideration of the system of internal control 
which is incorporated into their Annual Governance Statement (AGS) accompanying the annual 
Statement of Accounts. 

2    BACKGROUND 

2.1   Service Provision 
 
2.1.1 The Internal Audit (IA) Service for Plymouth City Council is delivered by the Devon Audit 
Partnership (DAP).  This is a shared service arrangement between Devon County Council, Torbay 
Council and Plymouth City Council constituted under section 20 of the Local Government Act 
2000; the Partnership was formed on 1st April 2009. The Partnership undertakes an objective 
programme of audits to ensure that there are sound and adequate internal controls in place across 
the whole of the Council. It also ensures that the Council’s assets and interests are accounted for 
and safeguarded from error, fraud, waste, poor value for money or other losses.   
 
2.1.2 In carrying out its responsibilities Internal Audit liaises with all Directorates of the 
Authority.  The Service consults with Departments in compiling its audit plans and meets regularly 
with Council Officers to review and monitor progress on recommendations arising out of audits 
and investigations.  There is also close liaison with external agencies eg the external Auditors and 
the Police. 
 
2.2   Regulatory Role 
 
2.2.1 There are two principal pieces of legislation that impact upon internal audit in local 
authorities:  
 

Ø Section 6 of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 which states that:- 
 “…….a relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its 
accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper 
practices in relation to internal control ……” 
“…….a larger relevant body must, at least in each year, conduct a review of the 
effectiveness of its internal audit ……” 

 
Ø Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which requires every local authority to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. 
 

Page 11



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  4 

2.2.2 There are also professional guidelines which govern the scope, standards and conduct of 
Internal Audit, including CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government and the 
Institute of Internal Auditors’ Standards and Guidelines. 
 
2.2.3 In addition, Internal Audit is governed by policies, procedures, rules and regulations 
established by the Authority.  These include standing orders, schemes of delegation, financial 
regulations, conditions of service, anti-fraud and corruption strategies, fraud prevention 
procedures and codes of conduct, amongst others.   
 
2.2.4 The Internal Audit Strategy sets out how the service will be provided and the Internal 
Audit Charter describes the purpose, authority and principal responsibilities of the audit function.   

3    OBJECTIVES AND SCOPE 
 
3.1 The original and updated Internal Audit Plans for 2010/11 were submitted to, and agreed 
by, the Audit Committee on 26 March and 15 November 2010 respectively. 
 
3.2 This report now compares the work carried out with the work that was planned; presents 
a summary of work undertaken; includes an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control environment; and summarises the performance of the Internal Audit 
function against its performance measures and other criteria. The report outlines the level of 
assurance that we are able to provide, based on the internal audit work completed during the 
year.  
 

4 INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE 2010/11 
 
4.1 Delivery Against Plan 
 
4.1.1 The following chart shows the proportion of direct audit days provided in the year ended 

31 March 2011, by type of audit.  Appendices 1 and 2 show, respectively, delivery of actual 
reviews and schools’ audits against the original plan.  It is pleasing to report that 94% of the 
2010/11 audit plan was delivered in terms of reviews undertaken, which was achieved with 
greater efficiencies than in previous years and with a consequential reduction in resources 
deployed. 

 

Systems/Procurement/Projects
ICT

Establishments
Anti-fraud
Consultancy / Advice

Corporate / Strategic
Other Chargeable

 
 

Page 12



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  5 

4.2 Systems / Procurement Reviews / Projects 
 
4.2.1 Systems audits accounted for the largest element of the audit plan for the year and these 
are summarised in Appendix 1.  Further details are provided in Appendix 4, together with 
individual audit opinions for each review undertaken. 
 
4.2.2 As mentioned above, the majority of the 2010/11 planned work programme was 
completed by 31 March, or was in progress at the end of the year.  It was necessary to defer three 
reviews due to resource issues; whilst six additional reviews or unplanned pieces of work were 
added to the year’s audit programme.  Three systems reviews were deferred or cancelled at the 
clients’ request. 
 
4.2.3 Devon Audit Partnership has continued to attend and support a number of Project Boards 
and Project Teams set up to oversee significant and high profile procurement, construction, or 
system / service implementation projects. Projects include major procurements such as the South 
West Devon Waste Partnership, Plymouth Life Centre and Leisure Management, the construction 
of Tor Bridge High (the former Estover College) and Highview schools.  During the year, Internal 
Audit was invited to join the Corporate Accommodation Strategy project. 
  
4.2.4 Throughout the year, we have been asked to review and provide advice on these projects, 
in particular to emphasise the importance of good project governance, risk management as well as 
the compliance with robust procurement practices and procedures, careful definition and 
agreement of contracts and regular, robust monitoring of contracts throughout their duration.  All 
of these are essential to protect the interests of the Council, its staff and taxpayers. 
 
4.2.5 During 2010/11 Internal Audit continued to support the South West Devon Waste 
Partnership Waste PFI project as it progressed through Competitive Dialogue.  This culminated in 
the submission of final tenders at the beginning of November and their subsequent evaluation over 
the following weeks, leading to the announcement of a preferred bidder in January.  Internal Audit 
was present at the opening of the two bids and the numerous bid evaluation meetings, to witness 
that procedures were followed correctly.  We then verified the evaluation scores and reviewed 
the evaluation process prior to the approval of the preferred bidder.  Internal Audit was able to 
report to the Project Executive Board that the bids were received and opened in accordance with 
recognised procedures, that the evaluation process had been carried out in line with the agreed, 
published criteria and methodology and the overall scores reported to the Board and Joint 
Working Committee were correct. 
 
4.2.6 With regard to the letting of the Leisure Management contract, Devon Audit Partnership 
have been engaged throughout the Competitive Dialogue process to ensure that each stage of the 
procurement was undertaken efficiently, effectively and transparently.  We were present at the 
opening of bids submitted as part of the Invitation to Submit Outline Solutions (ISOS) and Call for 
Final Tender (CFT) stages of the procurement process.  Audit can give assurance that the bid 
opening process was followed correctly on both occasions and DAP continued to provide support 
during the discussions with the preferred bidder up to the signing of contracts in May. 
 
 
4.3 ICT (Computer Audit) 
 
4.3.1 The 2010-11 ICT audit plan was created in accordance with the partnership’s approach to 
risk based audit planning and allows us to review the Council’s business-critical systems in a 
systematic and structured manner. The planning approach responds to emerging risks, priorities 
and projects and builds on our previous work.  

Page 13



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  6 

 
4.3.2 We completed reviews of information management, information security, business 
continuity and the new data centre proposals that form part of the Council’s Accommodation 
Strategy. We have followed up our previous work on the OLM Carefirst application and reviewed 
the SAP HR Payroll application.  
 
4.3.3 Our concerns in relation to corporate information management arrangements have been 
previously reported to Audit Committee (November 2010). We found that although an apparently 
sound framework of information governance arrangements exists, effective and reliable 
information management practices have not yet been embedded throughout the organisation and 
the Council is not managing its information assets effectively at present.  
 
4.3.4 Our work on information security management provides a similar picture in that effective 
arrangements at the corporate level are not embedded throughout the organisation. The 
arrangements for the security and eventual disposal of electronic information are of a good 
standard and compare favourably with the Information Commissioner’s top six most frequently 
found causes of security breaches and remedial actions. On the other hand, this review has 
identified a number of weaknesses in the present arrangements for the security of the Council's 
physical information assets eg paper records.  
 
4.3.5 Business continuity arrangements are of a good standard. The limitations imposed on ICT 
infrastructure resilience and recovery by having a single data centre have already been reported to 
the Head of Policies, Performance and Partnerships for consideration as part of the ongoing 
corporate business continuity planning process. The issue of a second data processing centre has a 
wider significance through its role in the Council’s Accommodation Strategy and the issues 
associated with the future of the Civic Centre building. The Council’s decisions regarding the 
future of the Civic Centre and Windsor House therefore impact both on the future business 
continuity arrangements and the progress of the ICT projects associated with the Accommodation 
Strategy.  
 
 
4.4 Establishment Audits  
 
4.4.1 Internal Audit fulfilled 100% of the schools’ audit plan in 2010/11 by completing 34 schools’ 
audits in the year. The requirements to meet the challenges of Financial Management Standard in 
Schools (FMSiS) were significant for schools in their first attempt; however the majority of schools 
met the standard prior to its abolition in November 2010.  The FMSiS will be replaced by a 
simpler standard in September 2011 (the Schools Financial Value Standard) which will be applicable 
to all maintained schools but, now, not independent schools or academies. 
 
4.4.2 We have been part of the DfE pilot study on the Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS) 
which has, in general, received positive comment from the pilot schools. Comments have been 
restricted to procedural aspects of its completion and the need for training and support. We have 
fed back similar comments and the need for LA’s to positively engage with the schools following 
review of their SFVS self-assessments. 
 
4.4.3 Based on our work to date, systems and controls in schools are of a “Good to High 
Standard” and generally mitigate the risks identified.    
 
The three key matters arising from schools’ audits are the: 
 

• demonstrable financing of school improvement plans; 

Page 14



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  7 

• non-compliance with CRB checking and incomplete database records;  
• incomplete and ineffective inventories. 

 
4.4.4 Recommendations have been made to reduce risks to relevant schools; and, in other cases, 
recommendations have been made to strengthen what are reasonably reliable procedures.  
 
4.4.5 One primary and eleven secondary schools have now become academies.  Closure audits 
have been completed for two of these schools and reported issues were provided to the 
Department for Services to Children & Young People (as requested), and to the schools for 
action.   
 
4.4.6 DAP are in the process of marketing and bidding for internal audit provision to academy 
schools across Devon.  It is considered that retention of the internal audit for these schools would 
be beneficial to both the schools and the audit service as a whole. 
 
 
4.5 Special Investigations and Anti-Fraud Work 
 
4.5.1 Throughout the year, Internal Audit have been informed of instances of possible fraud or 
irregularities which have either led to advice being given to management on courses of action and 
improvements to controls, or auditors conducting formal investigations into the allegations. 
 
4.5.2 In 2010/11, Internal Audit received 29 matters requiring investigation which came from 
officers and members of the public. Investigations into 21 of those concerns have now been 
completed and investigations are on-going in respect of the remaining cases. 
 
4.5.3 Examples of the type of irregularities investigated include:- 
 

• Misuse of Council resources 
• Misuse of IT 
• Breaches of the Council’s Code of Conduct 
• Financial irregularities 

 
Results of the investigations included two members of staff resigning and five other employees 
receiving disciplinary sanctions. 
 
4.5.4 Co-ordination of the work associated with the 2010/11 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
exercise has continued.  The exercise, which is run every two years by the Audit Commission, 
requires all councils to provide data for cross-matching with information supplied by other 
organisations, such as the Department for Works and Pensions and the NHS, to identify potential 
cases of fraud and error.  In October 2010, the Council provided data for areas such as payroll, 
creditors, care homes, various types of licences as well as parking permits and blue badges. 
 
4.5.5    In February this year, the Council received a total of 14,548 data matches as a result of the 
above exercise.  Of these matches, the Audit Commission categorised 2,723 as the highest 
priority.  Since that time, Devon Audit Partnership has engaged with the departments affected and 
agreed action plans to deal with the matches received, and this work remains ongoing.  
 
4.5.6 The Whistleblowing Policy, which was revised during 2010/11 and approved by the Audit 
Committee on 23 July 2010, aims to encourage staff to raise any legitimate concerns they have in 
relation to the Council's activities. The policy, which supports the Council's Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy makes it clear that legitimate concerns can be raised without fear of reprisals. 

Page 15



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  8 

 
A total of three Whistleblowers have come forward during 2010/11 of which: 
 
• A departmental investigation into allegations regarding the personal use of hire cars led to a 

member of staff being issued with a written warning and a management review of associated 
procedures being undertaken; 

 
• An Internal Audit investigation into allegations regarding the disposal of a Council asset found 

no substance to the allegations made.  However, recommendations were made to tighten 
associated procedures; 

 
• A departmental investigation into the alleged inappropriate promotion of 3rd party services 

concluded that there was no substance to the allegations made. 
 
4.6 Consultancy / Advice 
 
4.6.1 Internal Audit was consulted by all sectors of the Authority on many and varied topics 
including, for example, interpretation of financial regulations/standing orders, VAT, reclamation of 
funding, commercial catering controls, transfer of land to schools educational trusts, document 
retention, tenders etc. 
 
4.6.2 The pro-active involvement of Internal Audit in control issues relating to new systems and 
changes, assists in protecting the Authority from loss, fraud and abuse. This early involvement is 
also intended to prevent unnecessary criticism when a formal audit review is undertaken and 
Departments are actively encouraged to seek advice at the outset of any changes.    
 
 
 
5 ADDED VALUE   
 
5.1 Devon Audit Partnership is committed to providing value for money to the Council and its 
stakeholders and, where possible, to identifying examples of specific, tangible benefits achieved 
through its work.  Appendix 6 attached lists several examples of such benefits achieved by internal 
audit during 2010/11, but the following highlights just a couple:- 
 
5.2 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim   
 
5.2.1 Internal Audit played a significant role in working with the Housing Benefit Team and 
Finance to mount a successful challenge to the DWP in respect of the 2008/09 Housing Benefit 
(HB) subsidy claim. Following qualification of the claim, the Secretary of State proposed to recover 
£540k from the Authority but, as a result of this collaborative working, this has subsequently 
reduced to £127,763 a saving of £412k.  
 
5.2.2 As a result of observations made during the challenge exercise, Internal Audit identified a 
framework to mitigate the risk of the department failing to maximise its HB subsidy in the future. 
This was distributed to key staff from Housing Benefits and Finance who are most closely involved 
in the subsidy claim process to act as a check list upon which they can gain assurance that the 
claim process is robust in the future. 
 
5.2.3 On receiving confirmation from the DWP of the revised figure, the Revenues and Benefits 
Service Manager emailed “this is fantastic news.  A big thank you to all of you for the hard work 

Page 16



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  9 

you put into this to 'make it right', it was a difficult claim and we have certainly learned a lot from 
this experience”. 
 
5.3 NI 179 Value for Money  
 
5.3.1 National Indicator 179 related to the total net value of ongoing cash-releasing value for 
money gains and the Council was required to submit it’s efficiency savings to DCLG for 2009/10 
by 22 July 2010. Once the savings for the year had been submitted by the various service areas to 
the Finance Dept, Internal Audit carried out a review of the arrangements in place to report on 
the savings achieved. Some weaknesses in the system were identified and Internal Audit worked 
closely with Finance officers to ensure that the Council had a robust framework in place for 
effectively identifying, recording and reporting efficiency savings achieved. In addition to driving 
improvements in business processes, Internal Audit also identified additional efficiency savings of 
£600k.  
 
5.3.2 Whilst central government advised in October 2010 that the collection and submission of 
NI179 value for money gains was ending with immediate effect, the Council still has to make 
efficiency savings and the work carried out by Internal Audit supports this ongoing requirement.  

6 REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 2010/11  
 
6.1 Staffing 
 
6.1.1 Devon Audit Partnership operated throughout 2010/11 with an approved total 
establishment of 41.6 FTE. These resources were distributed throughout all clients of the 
partnership and staff were utilised at more than one client. Due to ongoing vacancies the 
partnership has not operated at full establishment during the year although, where appropriate, 
agency staff have been employed on a temporary basis.  Arrangements are currently in hand to 
recruit additional auditors on fixed-terms contracts. 
 
6.2  Audit Service Quality 
 
6.2.1. The service we provide is designed to ensure compliance with the standards for internal 
audit published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in its Code 
of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK. The latest Code of Practice was 
published in December 2006, and Devon Audit Partnerships’ processes continue to comply with 
the professional standards required. 
 
6.2.2 Within the Devon Audit Partnership we have comprehensive procedures to ensure that all 
audits are conducted to the required standard. In particular, the scope of audit and audit brief are 
approved, before site work commences, by the appropriate Audit Manager, who also reviews each 
draft and final report before it is issued to ensure that all key controls have been properly 
evaluated and that adequate audit evidence has been obtained to support the findings. In addition, 
our work is subject to annual review by the Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton, who 
continue to rely on our work to support their audit opinion.  
 
6.2.3 The Partnership continues to participate in the Audit Benchmarking Club administered by 
CIPFA. This has facilitated a comparison of our practices, coverage and costs with other council 
internal audit services. The most recent comparisons continue to show that we deliver a cost-
effective service with a very high level of compliance with “good practice”.  
 

Page 17



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  10 

6.2.4 During the year we have continued to include a “client satisfaction survey” with audit 
reports, for a confidential response to the Head of the Devon Audit Partnership. The vast 
majority of those returned have continued to be very positive about the audit service received, 
the audit report, and the conduct of the audit by our team members, and this is a tribute to their 
professional conduct of the audits.  
 
6.2.5. Based on the responses received, 98% of the responses covering all areas of the audit were 
“satisfactory” or “very satisfactory”, and for a number of audits (39%) every single response was 
“very satisfactory”. The analysis of responses for this year shows that very high standards have 
been maintained, which is a very commendable achievement by the team. 
 
6.3 Performance  
 
6.3.1. There are no national Performance Indicators in existence for Internal Audit, but the 
Partnership does monitor the following Local Performance Indicators (LPI’s): 
 

Local Performance Indicator (KPI) 2010/11 2010/11 

 Target Actual 
Percentage of Audit Plan Completed 90% 94% 
Percentage of fundamental / material systems reviewed annually 100% 84% 
Customer Satisfaction  - % satisfied or very satisfied as per feedback 
forms 

90% 98% 

Draft Reports produced within target number of days (currently 15 days) 90% 72% 
Final reports produced within target number of days (currently 10 days) 90% 97% 
Average level of sickness absence  2% 3% 
Percentage of staff turnover  5% 0% 
 
6.3.2 As mentioned in para 4.1.1 above, the percentage completion of the audit plan for 2010/11 
was above target, and was delivered in a fewer number of days than originally planned.  Efficiencies 
from the DAP partnership are now being realised through, for example, the use of audit 
management software, sharing of auditor experience and expertise between offices, functional 
team structures etc. 
 
6.3.3 As is the norm, some material systems’ reports had not been issued by the end of year, but 
work was substantially complete and there were no matters of serious concern to be reported.   
 
6.3.4 The customer satisfaction results derive from questionnaires completed after each audit, 
and the results continue to demonstrate the very high regard placed on the service by all parts of 
the Authority. 
 
6.3.5 Timeliness of issuing both draft and final reports is an area which is kept under constant 
review.  The below target draft report PI is largely due to some reports being delayed in the first 
half of the year because of timing issues around schools’ holidays. 
 
 

7. REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT BY EXTERNAL AUDIT 
 
7.1 Internal Audit is obliged under the Accounts and Audit Regulations to meet the standards 
specified in CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government.  These standards 

Page 18



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  11 

set out specific essential requirements of an Internal Audit department which include eg 
independence, staffing and training, planning, recording, performance and effectiveness etc.   
 
7.2 External Auditors use CIPFA standards as a model against which to regularly assess and 
report on the competency and effectiveness of Internal Audit, to enable them to place reliance on 
Internal Audit’s work as part of the ‘managed audit’ arrangements. 
 
7.3 The External Auditors have recently completed a review of the Internal Audit 
arrangements and have stated in their Interim Report to Audit Committee today that “overall, we 
have concluded that the Internal Audit service continues to provide an independent and 
satisfactory service to the Council and that we can take assurance from their work in contributing 
to an effective internal control environment at the Council”. 
 
8 INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 
 
8.1 The Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide the Council with an assurance on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in the 
Council.  In giving our opinion it should be noted that this assurance can never be absolute. The 
most that the internal audit service can provide to the Council is reasonable assurance, based on 
risk-based reviews and sample testing, that there are no major weaknesses in the system of 
control. 
 
8.2 A summary of Internal Audit’s opinion on the individual reviews carried out during the year 
is included in Appendix 3, with more details provided in Appendix 4. 
 
8.3   In carrying out systems and other reviews, Internal Audit assesses whether key, and other, 
controls are operating satisfactorily within the area under review, and an opinion on the adequacy 
of controls is provided to management as part of the audit report.   
 
8..4  All final audit reports also include an action plan which identifies responsible officers, and 
target dates, to address control issues identified during a review. Implementation of action plans 
are reviewed during subsequent audits or as part of a specific follow-up process. 
 
8.5    Directors have been provided with details of Internal Audit’s opinion on each audit review 
carried out in 2010/11 to assist them with compilation of their individual annual governance 
assurance statements.  If significant weaknesses have been identified in specific areas, these have 
been considered by the Authority in preparing its Annual Governance Statement which will be 
accompanying its published Statement of Accounts for 2010/11.   
 
8.6 Overall, and based on work performed during 2010/11, Internal Audit is able to provide 
reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 
environment.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.7 Significant Issues  
 
8.7.1 In September 2010, the Internal Audit Service issued a report which concluded that 
fundamental weaknesses existed in the Council's corporate information management 

Page 19



\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\000IAAnnualReport201011Jun11v50.doc  12 

arrangements. The findings of that report were accepted by the Council's Chief Information 
Officer and Corporate Information Manager and were discussed at Audit Committee in 
November 2010. 
 
8.7.2 The report included an 'Action Plan' which is now being progressed. The Corporate 
Information Manager attended Audit Committee, in March 2011, to update them on the positive 
steps that are being taken to embed information management principles throughout the 
organisation and other key actions are being taken to formalise responsibilities and improve staff 
training and awareness. 
 
8.7.3 Information management is a far reaching and complex process and many of the issues 
raised in the report are dependant upon one another. It is therefore essential that the 
recommendations are implemented in the correct sequence, in order to ensure that the required 
improvements are achieved. 
 
8.7.4 The Audit Service has now completed a follow-up exercise to establish the extent of 
progress made towards implementing the recommendations contained within the report and this 
review has confirmed that the agreed actions are being taken in a logical and orderly fashion. 
Progress will continue to be monitored and reported on a regular basis.  A summary of the 
weaknesses identified in the initial review and results of the recent follow-up is attached at 
Appendix 5. 
 
9. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that: 
1) the report be noted 
2) the Audit Committee endorse the adequacy and effectiveness of Plymouth City Council’s 

system of internal audit for the year ended 31 March 2011. 

Page 20



A
U

D
IT

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

 -
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
01

0/
11

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1

S
ys

te
m

 R
ev

ie
w

In
D

ef
er

re
d

N
o

te
s

D
ra

ft
(D

)
D

at
e

p
ro

g
re

ss
to

 
F

in
al

(F
)

31
/0

3/
11

20
11

/1
2

M
at

er
ia

l S
ys

te
m

s

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

 1
0/

11
!

C
re

di
to

rs
 1

0/
11

F
3-

F
eb

-1
1

M
ai

n 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
S

ys
te

m
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ud

ge
ta

ry
 c

on
tr

ol
 0

9/
10

F
8-

Ju
l-1

0
M

ai
n 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

S
ys

te
m

 1
0/

11
D

31
-M

ar
-1

1
C

ar
eF

irs
t -

 C
hi

ld
 In

de
pe

nd
en

t P
la

ce
m

en
ts

 0
9/

10
F

4-
A

ug
-1

0
C

ar
eF

irs
t -

 C
ar

e 
Le

av
er

s 
(C

Y
P

S
) 

10
/1

1
D

1-
M

ar
-1

1
C

ar
eF

irs
t -

 R
es

id
en

tia
l C

ar
e 

P
ay

m
en

ts
 (

C
om

m
 S

er
v)

 1
0/

11
!

H
R

 / 
P

ay
ro

ll 
S

ys
te

m
 0

9/
10

F
24

-M
ay

-1
0

P
ay

ro
ll 

10
/1

1
D

31
-M

ar
-1

1
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 1

0/
11

D
31

-M
ar

-1
1

F
in

al
 R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d 

18
 M

ay
 2

01
1.

Lo
an

s 
an

d 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 0

9/
10

F
29

-J
un

-1
0

Lo
an

s 
an

d 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 1

0/
11

D
28

-M
ar

-1
1

C
ap

ita
l A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 0
9/

10
F

13
-J

an
-1

1
N

N
D

R
 1

0/
11

F
14

-F
eb

-1
1

D
eb

to
rs

 1
0/

11
F

25
-M

ar
-1

1
C

as
h 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

09
/1

0
F

26
-A

pr
-1

0
C

as
h 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

10
/1

1
F

31
-M

ar
-1

1
S

up
po

rt
in

g 
P

eo
pl

e 
09

/1
0

F
20

-A
pr

-1
0

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

10
/1

1
!

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 R
en

ts
 0

9/
10

 (
F

ol
lo

w
-U

p)
F

22
-J

un
-1

0
C

ar
eF

irs
t -

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t P
la

ce
m

en
ts

 0
9/

10
 (

F
ol

lo
w

-U
p)

!
In

su
ffi

ci
en

t r
es

ou
rc

es
C

ar
eF

irs
t –

 D
om

 C
ar

e 
09

/1
0 

(F
ol

lo
w

-U
p)

F
18

-O
ct

-1
0

S
in

gl
e 

P
oi

nt
 o

f C
on

ta
ct

 H
el

p-
D

es
k

!
U

np
la

nn
ed

 -
 S

P
O

C
 IC

T
 H

el
pd

es
k 

ta
ki

ng
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 m
id

 y
ea

r 
fo

r 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 k

ey
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ys
te

m
s.

G
ra

n
ts

N
ew

 G
ro

w
th

 P
oi

nt
s 

G
ra

nt
 0

9/
10

F
8-

Ju
n-

10
S

up
po

rt
in

g 
P

eo
pl

e 
G

ra
nt

 0
9/

10
F

20
-A

pr
-1

0
N

at
io

na
l S

tr
ok

e 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

G
ra

nt
 0

9/
10

F
3-

Ju
n-

10
U

rb
an

 B
us

 C
ha

lle
ng

e 
G

ra
nt

 0
9/

10
F

27
-J

ul
-1

0
U

np
la

nn
ed

N
ew

 B
ur

de
ns

 G
ra

nt
F

28
-J

un
-1

0
U

np
la

nn
ed

O
th

er
 S

ys
te

m
s 

- 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
&

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
 D

ir
ec

to
ra

te

P
C

H
 M

on
ito

rin
g

!

P
ly

m
ou

th
 M

ar
ke

t
!

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t t

o 
up

da
te

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s.
 F

ul
l r

ev
ie

w
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 fo
r 

20
11

/1
2.

C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 F

ar
es

 0
9/

10
F

24
-J

un
-1

0
C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 F
ar

es
 0

9/
10

 F
ol

lo
w

-U
p

F
31

-M
ar

-1
1

P
ar

ks
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

– 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t S
to

re
 0

9/
10

 F
ol

lo
w

-U
p

F
25

-O
ct

-1
0

H
ou

si
ng

 R
et

ai
ne

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
C

ho
ic

e 
B

as
ed

 L
et

tin
gs

 0
9/

10
F

11
-O

ct
-1

0
H

ou
si

ng
 R

et
ai

ne
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
– 

C
ho

ic
e 

B
as

ed
 L

et
tin

gs
 0

9/
10

 F
ol

lo
w

-U
p

F
31

-M
ar

-1
1

R
ep

o
rt

 is
su

ed

C
:\D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 S
et

tin
gs

\r
ic

km
an

h.
P

LY
M

C
C

\L
oc

al
 S

et
tin

gs
\T

em
po

ra
ry

 In
te

rn
et

 F
ile

s\
O

LK
10

6\
A

pp
 1

- 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t p

la
n 

10
-1

1 
- 

m
on

ito
rin

g.
xl

s

Page 21



A
U

D
IT

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

 -
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
01

0/
11

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1

S
ys

te
m

 R
ev

ie
w

In
D

ef
er

re
d

N
o

te
s

D
ra

ft
(D

)
D

at
e

p
ro

g
re

ss
to

 
F

in
al

(F
)

31
/0

3/
11

20
11

/1
2

R
ep

o
rt

 is
su

ed

O
th

er
 S

ys
te

m
s 

- 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

u
p

p
o

rt

S
A

P
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

!

Li
fe

cy
cl

e 
of

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t
O

rig
in

al
ly

 d
ef

er
re

d 
to

 1
0/

11
 b

y 
de

pt
 b

ut
 n

ow
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
as

 S
A

P
 s

ys
te

m
 to

 b
e 

de
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

.
G

ov
er

na
nc

e/
M

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e

F
30

-M
ar

-1
1

C
R

B
 D

is
cl

os
ur

e 
C

he
ck

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 0

9/
10

 
F

13
-A

ug
-1

0
C

R
B

 &
 In

de
pe

nd
en

t S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

(in
c 

C
R

B
 0

9/
10

 R
ev

ie
w

 F
ol

lo
w

-U
p)

D
30

-M
ar

-1
1

C
us

to
m

er
 R

el
at

io
ns

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (

C
R

M
)

!
D

ra
ft 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t i
ss

ue
d 

9 
M

ay
 2

01
1

T
el

ep
ho

ny
!

D
ra

ft 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t i

ss
ue

d 
9 

M
ay

 2
01

1
R

ev
en

ue
s 

&
 B

en
ef

its
 C

he
qu

e 
P

ay
m

en
ts

F
10

-S
ep

-1
0

U
np

la
nn

ed
 r

ev
ie

w
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 b
y 

D
ire

ct
or

 fo
r 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

up
oo

rt

20
08

/0
9 

H
B

 S
ub

si
dy

n/
a

28
-F

eb
-1

1
Jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 H

B
 to

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
th

e 
20

08
/0

9 
S

ub
si

dy
 C

la
im

 le
ad

in
g 

to
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 c

irc
a 

£4
00

k 
in

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f s

ub
si

dy
to

 b
e 

re
pa

id
 to

 D
W

P

O
th

er
 S

ys
te

m
s 

- 
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

S
tr

et
ch

 T
ar

ge
t 6

 (
D

ru
gs

)
In

iti
al

 w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
ef

or
e 

de
ci

si
on

 ta
ke

n 
by

 c
lie

nt
 n

ot
 to

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l i

nd
ic

at
or

 c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

LA
A

 -
 N

at
io

na
l I

nd
ic

at
or

 S
et

 0
9/

10
 (

G
en

er
al

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k)

F
13

-S
ep

-1
0

LA
A

 -
 N

I1
79

 0
9/

10
F

20
-J

ul
-1

0
LA

A
 -

 N
at

io
na

l I
nd

ic
at

or
 S

et
 1

0/
11

 (
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ew
ar

d 
G

ra
nt

)
F

19
-J

an
-1

1

O
th

er
 S

ys
te

m
s 

– 
C

ro
ss

 C
u

tt
in

g
 R

ev
ie

w
s

M
an

ag
em

en
t o

f P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
F

18
-N

ov
-1

1
C

ar
bo

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
!

D
C

al
 (

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

te
st

in
g)

 0
9/

10
 F

ol
lo

w
-U

p
D

17
-M

ar
-1

1
F

in
al

 R
ep

or
t I

ss
ue

d 
6 

A
pr

il 
20

11

O
th

er
 S

ys
te

m
s 

- 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

D
at

a 
Q

ua
lit

y
F

20
-O

ct
-1

1
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

A
du

lts
!

D
ef

er
m

en
t -

 in
su

ffi
ci

en
t r

es
ou

rc
e.

In
di

vi
du

al
 B

ud
ge

ts
!

O
n-

go
in

g 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f s

ys
te

m
 c

on
tr

ol
s

M
t E

dg
cu

m
be

 –
 E

nd
 o

f Y
ea

r 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

09
/1

0
F

14
-J

un
-1

0
T

ra
de

 W
as

te
 0

9/
10

 F
ol

lo
w

-U
p

D
17

-M
ar

-1
1

F
in

al
 R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d 

6 
A

pr
il 

20
11

F
le

et
 a

nd
 G

ar
ag

e 
09

/1
0

F
24

-M
ay

-1
0

F
le

et
 a

nd
 G

ar
ag

e 
09

/1
0 

F
ol

lo
w

-U
p

D
17

-M
ar

-1
1

F
in

al
 R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d 

6 
A

pr
il 

20
11

M
t E

dg
cu

m
be

 T
ra

di
ng

F
25

-M
ar

-1
1

N
ew

 D
ea

l A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 0

9/
10

 (
D

ev
on

po
rt

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

- 
D

R
C

P
)

F
26

-J
ul

-1
0

D
ire

ct
 P

ay
m

en
t F

in
an

ci
al

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
- 

F
ol

lo
w

-U
p 

09
/1

0
F

12
-M

ay
-1

0

O
th

er
 S

ys
te

m
s 

- 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

D
at

a 
Q

ua
lit

y 
- 

C
ap

ita
 O

ne
 E

M
S

F
30

-M
ar

-1
1

Le
ar

ni
ng

 S
ki

lls
 C

ou
nc

il 
tr

an
sf

er
In

iti
al

 w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
ef

or
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 a

bo
lis

h
C

on
ta

ct
P

oi
nt

F
1-

Ju
l-1

0
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
C

er
tif

ic
at

e 
is

su
ed

 J
ul

y 
20

10
. S

ys
te

m
 c

lo
se

d 
do

w
n 

by
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t.
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f L
oc

al
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
B

oa
rd

 (
LS

C
B

) 
09

/1
0 

F
ol

lo
w

-U
p

F
9-

M
ar

-1
1

C
:\D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 S
et

tin
gs

\r
ic

km
an

h.
P

LY
M

C
C

\L
oc

al
 S

et
tin

gs
\T

em
po

ra
ry

 In
te

rn
et

 F
ile

s\
O

LK
10

6\
A

pp
 1

- 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t p

la
n 

10
-1

1 
- 

m
on

ito
rin

g.
xl

s

Page 22



A
U

D
IT

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

 -
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
01

0/
11

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1

S
ys

te
m

 R
ev

ie
w

In
D

ef
er

re
d

N
o

te
s

D
ra

ft
(D

)
D

at
e

p
ro

g
re

ss
to

 
F

in
al

(F
)

31
/0

3/
11

20
11

/1
2

R
ep

o
rt

 is
su

ed

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
/ C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
A

u
d

it

B
S

F
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 S

ch
oo

l C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ro
je

ct
s

!
O

n-
go

in
g 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ad

vi
ce

 o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t P
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
S

tr
at

eg
ie

s
!

A
dv

ic
e 

on
 r

ev
is

io
n 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
t S

ta
nd

in
g 

O
rd

er
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ro
ce

du
re

s
Li

fe
 C

en
tr

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 L

ei
su

re
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
on

tr
ac

t
!

O
n-

go
in

g 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

P
ro

cu
re

 to
 P

ay
 P

ro
je

ct
 (

P
2P

)
!

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t -
 S

W
D

W
P

 (
W

as
te

 P
F

I)
!

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
, o

n-
go

in
g 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ad

vi
ce

 o
n 

pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

an
d 

C
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

- 
A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

!
D

ef
er

m
en

t -
 in

su
ffi

ci
en

t r
es

ou
rc

e.
S

ch
oo

ls
 P

F
I C

on
tr

ac
t M

on
ito

rin
g 

09
/1

0 
R

ev
ie

w
 -

 F
ol

lo
w

-U
p

F
1-

S
ep

-1
0

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t -
 In

te
rim

 S
ol

ut
io

n 
09

/1
0 

R
ev

ie
w

 -
 F

ol
lo

w
-U

p
F

2-
Ju

n-
10

S
ec

ur
ity

 C
on

tr
ac

t 0
9/

10
F

3-
S

ep
-1

0
S

ec
ur

ity
 C

on
tr

ac
t 0

9/
10

 R
ev

ie
w

 -
 F

ol
lo

w
-U

p
!

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
A

m
ey

 C
on

tr
ac

t
F

3-
S

ep
-1

0
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

A
m

ey
 C

on
tr

ac
t 0

9/
10

 R
ev

ie
w

 -
 F

ol
lo

w
-U

p
!

IC
T

 A
u

d
it

M
at

er
ia

l S
ys

te
m

s 
IT

 R
ev

ie
w

 0
9/

10
F

5-
M

ay
-1

0
M

at
er

ia
l S

ys
te

m
s 

IT
 R

ev
ie

w
 1

0/
11

D
24

-M
ar

-1
1

F
in

al
 R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d 

12
 M

ay
 2

01
1.

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

G
ov

er
na

ce
 -

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

on
ne

ct
 0

9/
10

F
13

-M
ay

-1
0

C
ar

ef
irs

t 5
 S

ys
te

m
 R

ev
ie

w
!

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t p
en

di
ng

, o
ng

oi
ng

 w
at

ch
in

g 
br

ie
f

C
ar

ef
irs

t 6
 (

C
hi

ld
re

n)
/ P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
B

oa
rd

/F
ol

lo
w

 u
p

F
28

-J
un

-1
0

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 S
in

gl
e 

S
ig

n-
O

n
!

O
n-

go
in

g 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

C
or

po
ra

te
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
F

30
-S

ep
-1

0
F

ile
 S

to
ra

ge
 (

In
cl

ud
es

 S
:\ 

&
 F

:\ 
D

riv
es

)
N

o 
lo

ng
er

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
as

 p
er

 A
ss

t D
ire

ct
or

 IC
T

.
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
S

ec
ur

ity
F

3-
M

ar
-1

1
P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ys

te
m

 (
P

M
G

)
!

B
rie

fin
g 

N
ot

e 
is

su
ed

C
or

po
ra

te
 B

us
in

es
s 

C
on

tin
ui

ty
D

16
-M

ar
-1

1
F

in
al

 R
ep

or
t I

ss
ue

d 
14

 A
pr

il 
20

11
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 W

or
ki

ng
 (

IC
T

 S
ys

te
m

s)
!

B
rie

fin
g 

N
ot

e 
is

su
ed

H
R

/P
ay

ro
ll 

/ S
A

P
D

31
-M

ar
-1

1
N

ew
 D

at
a 

C
en

tr
e

D
2-

M
ar

-1
1

A
dd

iti
on

al
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

t r
eq

ue
st

 o
f A

D
 fo

r 
IC

T
 -

 F
in

al
 R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d 

26
 M

ay
 2

01
1.

F
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

of
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

w
or

k
!

W
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 2

01
0/

11
.

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
C

on
su

lta
nc

y 
on

 IT
 Is

su
es

 / 
P

ro
je

ct
s 

/ P
ol

ic
y

!
W

or
k 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 2
01

0/
11

.

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

/S
tr

at
eg

ic
 In

it
ia

ti
ve

s

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

!

C
A

A
N

o 
lo

ng
er

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
B

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

!

P
ol

ic
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 A

dv
ic

e
!

E
xt

er
na

l A
ud

it
!

W
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g

!

A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t
!

C
:\D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 S
et

tin
gs

\r
ic

km
an

h.
P

LY
M

C
C

\L
oc

al
 S

et
tin

gs
\T

em
po

ra
ry

 In
te

rn
et

 F
ile

s\
O

LK
10

6\
A

pp
 1

- 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t p

la
n 

10
-1

1 
- 

m
on

ito
rin

g.
xl

s

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



1 APPENDIX 2

SCHOOLS ESTABLISHMENT AUDITS - PROGRESS AGAINST INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2010/11

ESTABLISHMENT Deferred Notes
Draft (D) Date to
Final (F) 2011/12

Primary Schools

FMSiS Assessment Only
Thornbury Primary F Jul-2010
Plympton St Mary C of E Infant F Dec-2010

FMSiS Re-Assessments

Salisbury Road Primary F Nov-10
Whitleigh Community Primary F Nov-2010

Combined Routine Audit and FMSiS Assessment
Estover Primary School F Sep-2010
Manadon Vale Primary School F Sep-2010
Compton C of E Primary School F Feb-2011
Leigham Primary School F Oct-10
St Joseph's Catholic Primary School F Feb-2011
Pomphlett Primary School F Nov-11
High Street Primary School F Dec-10
Hooe Primary School F Nov-2011
High View Primary School F Jan-11
Goosewell Primary School F Dec-2010
Holy Cross Catholic Primary School ! Deferred Summer to 2011at schools request
Old Priory Junior School F Mar-2011
Widey Court Primary School F Mar-2011
Hyde Park Infant School F Mar-2011
Plympton St Maurice Primary School F Apr-2011 Work completed in Mar-11
Ford Primary ! Deferred Summer to 2011at schools request
Morice Town Primary School D Mar-11
Ernesettle Primary School ! Deferred Summer to 2011at schools request
Mayflower Community School D Mar-11
Shakespeare Community School D Apr-11 Work completed in Mar-11

Special Schools
Combined Routine Audit and FMSiS Assessment
Longcause Community Special School F Sep-10
Courtlands School D Feb-11
Mill Ford School D Mar-11

Secondary Schools
Routine Audits Only
Tamarside Community College F Jun-2010
John Kitto Community College D Jun-2010

Combined Routine Audit and FMSiS Assessment
Coombe Dean F Apr-2010
St Boniface F May-2010
Lipson Community College D Jul-2010
Devonport High School for Girls D Oct-2010
Ridgeway School F Mar-2011
Stoke Damerel Community College F Jan-2011
Devonport High School for Boys D Apr-2011 Work completed in Mar-11

Plymouth Tuition Service
Centre For Young Parents – Wood View C D May-11 Work completed in Mar-11

Reports Issued

App 2 V1 Schools progress against plan 10-11.xls

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 -

 E
N

D
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

01
0 

- 
11

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 O
F

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

 A
N

D
 A

U
D

IT
 O

P
IN

IO
N

S

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
S

ys
te

m
 R

ev
ie

w
D

ra
ft

  -
 D

D
at

e
O

p
in

io
n

in
 P

la
ce

F
in

al
 -

 F
C

ap
ita

l A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 0

9/
10

F
13

-J
an

-1
1

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

!

C
ar

eF
irs

t -
 C

ar
e 

Le
av

er
s 

(C
Y

P
S

) 
10

/1
1

D
1-

M
ar

-1
1

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

C
ar

eF
irs

t -
 C

hi
ld

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t P

la
ce

m
en

ts
 0

9/
10

F
4-

A
ug

-1
0

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

!

C
ar

eF
irs

t 6
 (

C
hi

ld
re

n)
/ P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
B

oa
rd

/F
ol

lo
w

 u
p

F
28

-J
un

-1
0

N
/A

!

C
ar

eF
irs

t -
 D

om
 C

ar
e 

09
/1

0 
(F

ol
lo

w
-U

p)
F

18
-O

ct
-1

0
N

/A
N

/A
C

as
h 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

09
/1

0
F

26
-A

pr
-1

0
G

oo
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

d
!

C
as

h 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
10

/1
1

F
31

-M
ar

-1
1

H
ig

h 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

!

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 R
en

ts
 0

9/
10

 (
F

ol
lo

w
-U

p)
F

22
-J

un
-1

0
N

/A
N

/A
C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 F
ar

es
 0

9/
10

F
24

-J
un

-1
0

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 R
eq

ui
re

d
!

C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 F

ar
es

 0
9/

10
 (

F
ol

lo
w

-U
p)

F
31

-M
ar

-1
1

N
/A

!

C
on

ta
ct

P
oi

nt
F

1-
Ju

l-1
0

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

Is
su

ed
N

/A
C

or
po

ra
te

 B
us

in
es

s 
C

on
tin

ui
ty

D
16

-M
ar

-1
1

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

C
or

po
ra

te
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
F

30
-S

ep
-1

0
F

un
da

m
en

ta
l W

ea
kn

es
se

s
!

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 1
0/

11
D

31
-M

ar
-1

1
G

oo
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

d
C

R
B

 D
is

cl
os

ur
e 

C
he

ck
s 

09
/1

0
F

13
-A

ug
-1

0
G

oo
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

d
!

C
R

B
 &

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
(in

c 
C

R
B

 0
9/

10
 R

ev
ie

w
 F

ol
lo

w
-U

p)
D

30
-M

ar
-1

1
G

oo
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

d
C

re
di

to
rs

 1
0/

11
F

3-
F

eb
-1

1
G

oo
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

d
!

D
at

a 
Q

ua
lit

y 
(C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s)
F

20
-O

ct
-1

0
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 R

eq
ui

re
d

!

D
at

a 
Q

ua
lit

y 
(C

Y
P

S
) 

F
30

-M
ar

-1
1

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 R
eq

ui
re

d
!

D
C

al
 0

9/
10

 F
ol

lo
w

-U
p

D
17

-M
ar

-1
1

N
/A

N
/A

D
eb

to
rs

 1
0/

11
F

25
-M

ar
-1

1
G

oo
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

d
!

D
ev

on
po

rt
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 0

9/
10

F
26

-J
ul

-1
0

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

!

D
ire

ct
 P

ay
m

en
t F

in
an

ci
al

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
- 

F
ol

lo
w

-U
p 

09
/1

0
F

12
-M

ay
-1

0
N

/A
!

R
ep

o
rt

 Is
su

ed

C
:\D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 S
et

tin
gs

\r
ic

km
an

h.
P

LY
M

C
C

\D
es

kt
op

\A
pp

 3
  3

a 
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

O
pi

ni
on

s 
 O

pi
ni

on
s 

D
ef

ns
 M

ar
11

.x
ls

Page 27



IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 -

 E
N

D
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

01
0 

- 
11

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 O
F

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

 A
N

D
 A

U
D

IT
 O

P
IN

IO
N

S

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
S

ys
te

m
 R

ev
ie

w
D

ra
ft

  -
 D

D
at

e
O

p
in

io
n

in
 P

la
ce

F
in

al
 -

 F

R
ep

o
rt

 Is
su

ed

F
le

et
 a

nd
 G

ar
ag

e 
09

/1
0

F
24

-M
ay

-1
0

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 R
eq

ui
re

d
!

F
le

et
 a

nd
 G

ar
ag

e 
09

/1
0 

(F
ol

lo
w

-U
p)

D
17

-M
ar

-1
1

N
/A

N
/A

G
ov

er
na

nc
e/

M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
10

/1
1

F
30

-M
ar

-1
1

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

!

H
ou

si
ng

 R
et

ai
ne

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
C

ho
ic

e 
B

as
ed

 L
et

tin
gs

 0
9/

10
F

11
-O

ct
-1

0
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 R

eq
ui

re
d

!

H
ou

si
ng

 R
et

ai
ne

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
C

ho
ic

e 
B

as
ed

 L
et

tin
gs

 0
9/

10
 (

F
ol

lo
w

-U
p)

F
31

-M
ar

-1
1

N
/A

N
/A

H
R

 / 
P

ay
ro

ll 
S

ys
te

m
 0

9/
10

F
24

-M
ay

-1
0

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

!

H
R

 / 
P

ay
ro

ll 
S

ys
te

m
 (

in
c 

IT
 r

ev
ie

w
) 

10
/1

1 
D

31
-M

ar
-1

1
H

ig
h 

S
ta

nd
ar

d
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
(G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
on

ne
ct

) 
09

/1
0

F
13

-M
ay

-1
0

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 R
eq

ui
re

d
!

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
ec

ur
ity

F
3-

M
ar

-1
1

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 R
eq

ui
re

d
!

LA
A

 -
 N

at
io

na
l I

nd
ic

at
or

 S
et

 0
9/

10
F

13
-S

ep
-1

0
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 R

eq
ui

re
d

!

LA
A

 -
 N

at
io

na
l I

nd
ic

at
or

 S
et

 (
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ew
ar

d 
G

ra
nt

t)
F

19
-J

an
-1

1
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 G
iv

en
N

/A
Lo

an
s 

an
d 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 0
9/

10
F

29
-J

un
-1

0
G

oo
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

d
!

Lo
an

s 
an

d 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 1

0/
11

D
28

-M
ar

-1
1

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

Lo
ca

l S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

hi
ld

re
ns

 B
oa

rd
 0

9/
10

 (
F

ol
lo

w
-U

p)
F

9-
M

ar
-1

1
N

/A
N

/A
M

ai
n 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

S
ys

te
m

 0
9/

10
F

8-
Ju

l-1
0

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

!

M
ai

n 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
S

ys
te

m
 1

0/
11

D
31

-M
ar

-1
1

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ai

n 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
S

ys
te

m
 IT

 R
ev

ie
w

 0
9/

10
F

8-
Ju

l-1
0

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

!

M
an

ag
em

en
t o

f P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
F

18
-N

ov
-1

1
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 R

eq
ui

re
d

!

M
at

er
ia

l S
ys

te
m

s 
IT

 R
ev

ie
w

 0
9/

10
F

5-
M

ay
-1

0
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 R

eq
ui

re
d

!

M
at

er
ia

l S
ys

te
m

s 
IT

 R
ev

ie
w

 1
0/

11
D

24
-M

ar
-1

1
G

oo
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

d
M

t E
dg

cu
m

be
 –

 E
nd

 o
f Y

ea
r 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
09

/1
0

F
14

-J
un

-1
0

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

!

M
t E

dg
cu

m
be

 T
ra

di
ng

 1
0/

11
F

25
-M

ar
-1

1
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 R

eq
ui

re
d

!

N
at

io
na

l N
on

 D
om

es
tic

 R
at

es
 1

0/
11

F
14

-F
eb

-1
1

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

!

C
:\D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 S
et

tin
gs

\r
ic

km
an

h.
P

LY
M

C
C

\D
es

kt
op

\A
pp

 3
  3

a 
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

O
pi

ni
on

s 
 O

pi
ni

on
s 

D
ef

ns
 M

ar
11

.x
ls

Page 28



IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 -

 E
N

D
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

01
0 

- 
11

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 O
F

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

 A
N

D
 A

U
D

IT
 O

P
IN

IO
N

S

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
S

ys
te

m
 R

ev
ie

w
D

ra
ft

  -
 D

D
at

e
O

p
in

io
n

in
 P

la
ce

F
in

al
 -

 F

R
ep

o
rt

 Is
su

ed

N
at

io
na

l S
tr

ok
e 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
G

ra
nt

 0
9/

10
F

3-
Ju

n-
10

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 G

iv
en

N
/A

N
ew

 B
ur

de
ns

 G
ra

nt
 0

9/
10

F
28

-J
un

-1
0

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 G

iv
en

N
/A

N
ew

 G
ro

w
th

 P
oi

nt
s 

G
ra

nt
 0

9/
10

F
8-

Ju
n-

10
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 G
iv

en
N

/A
P

ar
ks

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
– 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t S

to
re

 0
9/

10
 (

F
ol

lo
w

-U
p)

F
25

-O
ct

-1
1

N
/A

N
/A

R
ev

en
ue

s 
&

 B
en

ef
its

 C
he

qu
e 

P
ay

m
en

ts
F

10
-S

ep
-1

0
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 G
iv

en
!

S
ch

oo
ls

 P
F

I C
on

tr
ac

t M
on

ito
rin

g 
09

/1
0 

R
ev

ie
w

 -
 F

ol
lo

w
-U

p
F

1-
S

ep
-1

0
N

/A
N

/A
S

ec
ur

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
on

tr
ac

t 0
9/

10
F

3-
S

ep
-1

0
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 R

eq
ui

re
d

!

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

09
/1

0
F

20
-A

pr
-1

0
H

ig
h 

S
ta

nd
ar

d
!

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

G
ra

nt
 0

9/
10

F
20

-A
pr

-1
0

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 G

iv
en

N
/A

T
ra

de
 W

as
te

 0
9/

10
 (

F
ol

lo
w

-U
p)

F
2-

Ju
n-

10
N

/A
N

/A
U

rb
an

 B
us

 C
ha

lle
ng

e 
G

ra
nt

 0
9/

10
F

27
-J

ul
-1

0
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 G
iv

en
N

/A
W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t -

 In
te

rim
 S

ol
ut

io
n 

09
/1

0 
R

ev
ie

w
 -

 F
ol

lo
w

-U
p

F
2-

Ju
n-

10
N

/A
N

/A

C
:\D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 S
et

tin
gs

\r
ic

km
an

h.
P

LY
M

C
C

\D
es

kt
op

\A
pp

 3
  3

a 
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

O
pi

ni
on

s 
 O

pi
ni

on
s 

D
ef

ns
 M

ar
11

.x
ls

Page 29



IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 -

 S
IX

 M
O

N
T

H
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

00
9 

- 
20

10
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 3

a
A

u
d

it
 A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 O

p
in

io
n

 D
ef

in
it

io
n

s

T
he

re
 a

re
 fo

ur
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

 u
se

d 
to

 fo
rm

 a
n 

op
in

io
n 

on
 a

 s
ys

te
m

.

T
he

se
 a

re
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
:

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

D
ef

in
it

io
n

H
ig

h 
S

ta
nd

ar
d.

T
he

sy
st

em
an

d
co

nt
ro

ls
in

pl
ac

e
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

m
iti

ga
te

ex
po

su
re

to
th

e
ris

ks
id

en
tif

ie
d.

T
he

sy
st

em
is

be
in

g
ad

he
re

d
to

an
d

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

re
lia

nc
e

ca
n

be
pl

ac
ed

up
on

th
e

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
in

pl
ac

e.
W

e
ha

ve
m

ad
e

on
ly

m
in

or
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
ai

m
ed

at
fu

rt
he

r
en

ha
nc

in
g

al
re

ad
y 

so
un

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

.

G
oo

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d.

T
he

sy
st

em
s

an
d

co
nt

ro
ls

ge
ne

ra
lly

m
iti

ga
te

th
e

ris
k

id
en

tif
ie

d
bu

t
a

fe
w

w
ea

kn
es

se
s

ha
ve

be
en

id
en

tif
ie

d
an

d
/

or
m

iti
ga

tin
g

co
nt

ro
ls

m
ay

no
t

be
fu

lly
ap

pl
ie

d.
T

he
re

ar
e

no
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

m
at

te
rs

ar
is

in
g

fr
om

th
e

au
di

t
an

d
th

e
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
m

ad
e

se
rv

e
to

st
re

ng
th

en
w

ha
t a

re
 m

ai
nl

y 
re

lia
bl

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
d.

T
he

re
ar

e
a

nu
m

be
r

of
in

st
an

ce
s

w
he

re
co

nt
ro

ls
an

d
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

do
no

t
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

m
iti

ga
te

th
e

ris
ks

id
en

tif
ie

d.
E

xi
st

in
g

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
ne

ed
to

be
im

pr
ov

ed
in

or
de

r
to

en
su

re
th

at
th

ey
ar

e
fu

lly
re

lia
bl

e.
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
ha

ve
be

en
m

ad
e

to
en

su
re

th
at

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
re

 n
ot

 p
ut

 a
t r

is
k.

F
un

da
m

en
ta

l
W

ea
kn

es
se

s 
Id

en
tif

ie
d.

T
he

ris
ks

id
en

tif
ie

d
ar

e
no

t
be

in
g

co
nt

ro
lle

d
an

d
th

er
e

is
an

in
cr

ea
se

d
lik

el
ih

oo
d

th
at

ris
ks

co
ul

d
oc

cu
r.

T
he

m
at

te
rs

ar
is

in
g

fr
om

th
e

au
di

ta
re

su
ffi

ci
en

tly
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

to
pl

ac
e

do
ub

to
n

th
e

re
lia

bi
lit

y
of

th
e

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
re

vi
ew

ed
,

to
an

ex
te

nt
th

at
th

e
ob

je
ct

iv
es

an
d

/
or

re
so

ur
ce

s
of

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

m
ay

be
at

ris
k,

an
d

th
e

ab
ili

ty
to

de
liv

er
th

e
se

rv
ic

e
m

ay
be

ad
ve

rs
el

y
af

fe
ct

ed
.

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
of

th
e

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
is

 a
 p

rio
rit

y.

C
:\D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 S
et

tin
gs

\r
ic

km
an

h.
P

LY
M

C
C

\D
es

kt
op

\A
pp

 3
  3

a 
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

O
pi

ni
on

s 
 O

pi
ni

on
s 

D
ef

ns
 M

ar
11

.x
ls

Page 30



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

INTERNAL AUDIT – END OF YEAR PROGRESS REPORT 2010 / 2011 
AUDIT OPINION ON SYSTEM REVIEWS COMPLETED 
 
General Notes 
 
The following Audit Opinions are based on control weaknesses identified at the time of 
the reviews.  In most cases action plans have been agreed for responsible managers to 
implement audit recommendations or suitable alternative controls; implementation of 
action plans will be reviewed as part of Internal Audit’s routine follow-up procedures. 
 
Business Continuity Management Arrangements 2010/11 
 
A tremendous amount of very good work has been done in respect of business continuity 
planning in recent years and the arrangements in place for managing the corporate business 
continuity planning process were found to be of a “Good Standard”. The Council is now well 
placed to deal with the immediate effects of a disruption of services and then to recover to a 
position of ‘business as usual’ in a controlled and well managed way. The recommendations 
made in this report only serve to strengthen what are already reasonably reliable procedures. 
 
Capital Accounting 2009/10 
 
The consistent application of internal controls ensured that the Capital Accounting System 
(Fixed Asset Register) has continued to operate to a “Good Standard”. The Council has a 
Corporate Asset Management Plan and Capital Strategy in place and the operation of the 
fixed asset register was in accordance with accounting standards and the Council’s Financial 
Regulations. Acquisitions and disposals were identified, recorded and authorised, whilst 
periodic reconciliations contribute to the accuracy and reliability of information held on the 
register for capital assets. 
 
Care Leavers 16+ Service 2010/11 
 
The Service was found to be managed to a “Good Standard” on both on the care and clerical 
sides. The processes for providing services and payment of allowances and accommodation 
through the corporate systems have been embedded in the administrative support systems of 
the Service and the Child Payments Team.  
 
Efforts are being made to reduce the amount of cash required to pay weekly allowances by 
encouraging more young people to have their money paid into bank accounts. However, 
there appears to be a reluctance by the banks to provide bank accounts for these young 
people as they are potentially deemed to a be high risk.  
 
A major concern for the Service is the Southwark Judgement made in May 2009 which 
determined that council’s have a duty to provide accommodation to homeless 16 and 17 
year-olds whose family support networks have disintegrated. This placed additional pressure 
on the budget but the review found that the situation was being closely monitored by the 
Service and the supporting accountants.  
 
 
 
 
 
Cash Collection 2009/10 

Page 31



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

 
The Cash Office is a key front line service whose objective is to provide an effective and 
efficient service to the Council’s paying customers. It also plays a pivotal role in ensuring 
income is collected and recorded accurately and correctly; and banked promptly. Our 
observations, enquiries and tests have shown that these objectives are being achieved and 
maintained to a “Good Standard”.  
 
Cash Collection 2010/11  
 
In addition to providing an over the counter payment service which ceased on 31 March 
2011, the Cashiers Section also supports the corporate function by receiving, receipting, 
allocating and banking all of the Council's income. 
 
Internal control arrangements operating within the Cash Receipting System were found to be 
operating to a “High Standard”. A stable and experienced work force, together with well 
embedded systems and procedures, has ensured that standards are maintained. 
  
In recognition of the consistently high level of service that they provide to their customers, 
the Cashiers Team was awarded the Customer Service Excellence (CSE) accreditation in 
2010.  
 
Child Independent Placements (CIPS) 2009/10  
 
The review found that, in the main, internal controls within CIPS was operating to a “Good 
Standard”. This was evidenced by accurate recording of panel decisions, as well as good 
administration of the Needs and Outcomes Statements, Options Appraisals and individual 
contracts that is carried out in the Commissioning for Children’s Services Team. Good 
processes were found to be in place for the payment, monitoring and reconciliation of the 
fortnightly payments which is, at present, carried out by the Admin Support Manager (ASM) 
Fostering and the Assistant Accountant within the Finance Team.   
 
Choice Based Lettings 2009/10 
 
The opinion formed was that improvements are required due to the need for better 
partnership wide governance. However, the audit provides assurance that PCC has taken 
appropriate steps to ensure that data migrated from the old Plymouth Housing Register to 
the new Abritas system remained accurate and that bandings reflected applicants’ personal 
circumstances. Furthermore, where governance and security weaknesses were identified, 
PCC staff have continued to take a robust stance to ensure that issues are resolved as early 
as practicable. 

There are many factors directly associated with partnership working that potentially 
undermine the good work that has been conducted locally by PCC staff. Of most concern is 
that data processing standards are not consistent and of a high enough standard throughout 
the whole partnership. This is almost certain to impact upon the fair and consistent 
processing of applications and increase the risk of data security breaches.  

 
 
 
 
Concessionary Fares 2009/10  

Page 32



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

 
Since April 2008, it became mandatory for the Council to provide free off peak travel on local 
bus services to eligible residents of the Council. Approximately 59,000 residents, including 
about 6,700 disabled people, have been issued with free bus passes under the Scheme.   
The scheme has been promoted well in Plymouth and has been successful in achieving its aim 
of giving eligible residents the opportunity for greater freedom and independence to travel 
around Plymouth. However, there are some concerns surrounding the administration of the 
scheme which include the accuracy and reliability of records maintained by the bus operators 
and the potential for fraudulent or incorrect use of passes and the opinion formed was 
“Improvements Required”.  
 
Corporate Information Management 2010/11 
 
At the time of the audit review it was found that there were a number of fundamental 
weaknesses in the current information governance arrangements that would continue to 
restrict the Council’s ability to manage its information assets securely and effectively, unless 
the role of the SIRO was implemented effectively and the approved Information Management 
Principles embedded throughout the organisation. 
   
Those weaknesses if not addressed could result in poorly informed decisions at any level of 
the organisation and could have an adverse impact on the provision of frontline services, the 
effectiveness of partnership working, the completeness and accuracy of the Authority’s annual 
accounts and the performance of the Council as a whole. Failure to comply with statutory 
requirements was also a significant risk. 
 
The Audit Service has maintained a watching brief and has recently undertaken a follow-up 
exercise to establish the extent of the progress made towards implementing the 
recommendations made. This review has confirmed that the Director for Corporate Support 
has taken on the role of SIRO and that the other agreed actions are being implemented in a 
logical and orderly fashion, providing an improved level of internal control. 
 
Council Tax 2010/11  
 
2010/11 was a challenging year set against continuing economic problems and payment issues 
experienced by customers of Santander, contributory factors which did result in Council Tax 
collection rates being below target set. However, although the target was not achieved, the 
consistent application of internal controls and sound debt recovery practices did result in an 
0.9% increase on collection rates when compared to 2009/10.  Performance was regularly 
monitored and a number of initiatives developed to further improve collection rates. Overall 
the system was found to be operating to a “Good Standard”. 
 
CRB Disclosure Checks 2009/10  
 
Overall the Council was found to have policies and procedures in place, which in the main, 
appeared to be in line with the guidance published by the Criminal Records Bureau. However, 
conflicting guidance has been issued by the Department of Health and Ofsted in relation to 
the roles which may be subject to a CRB disclosure check.   
 
 
 
Clarification is required to ensure that managers/officers understand the roles and criteria 
which indicate the need for a CRB disclosure check.  Other areas requiring action include 

Page 33



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

clarification of the Council’s position on CRB portability and improving access to policies for 
School’s including communication of their publication.  Overall the opinion formed was 
“Good Standard”. 
   
CRB and Independent Safeguarding 2010/11 (draft) 
 
The audit review found that the systems and procedures operated by the central CRB Team 
are of a “Good Standard”. Policy and guidance documents were found to be up to date, easily 
accessible and informative.  The transfer of CRB records to the SAP system appeared to have 
been systematically undertaken, ensuring that CRB data is properly managed and utilised 
effectively.   
 
Completed forms are received by the CRB Team for processing from many different sources 
and the quality of the data received was found to vary greatly.  However, it was evident from 
the work carried out centrally in processing the forms prior to submission to the Criminal 
Records Bureau that the Team are aware of the information to check to ensure that delays 
are minimised.  These checks along with the QA process help to ensure that the data now 
maintained in the SAP system is accurate.   
 
The CRB Code of Practice clearly shows the expected requirements of registered bodies.  
Comparison of the processes in operation to the information contained within the Code of 
Practice showed significant compliance.  Where non compliance was identified the work 
required to resolve the issues is minimal. 
 
Creditor System 2010/11 
 
The audit review has found that the internal control environment continues to operate to a 
“Good Standard”. Changes during the year, including the requirement that only suppliers 
registered via Sell2Plymouth are used, means that greater control can be exercised over the 
management of suppliers and value for money is obtained. 
 
Staff awareness has been raised to ensure that controls to prevent duplicate payments are not 
bypassed. ‘Fiscal Duplicate Payment Finder’, software which facilitates the identification of 
potential duplicate payments was installed in December 2010.  
 
Data Quality  - Capita ONE 2010/11 
 
Capita ONE is a multi user database comprising of approximately 14 modules with input to 
the system carried out in a number of teams. Testing identified some generic issues and the 
opinion formed was “Improvements Required”.  Staff were aware of the importance of data 
quality, but with limited resources and staff shortages found it difficult to continue with 
important validation checks on the system to verify data received from 3rd parties. An action 
plan has been agreed to address the issues identified. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Data Quality – Government Returns 2010/11 
 
There are a number of statutory returns which are completed within Community Services 

Page 34



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

but this audit concentrated on the quality of data for three of these returns: 
 
• The Referrals, Assessments and Packages of Care Collection (RAP); 
• Adult Social Care Combined Activity Return (ASC-CAR); 
• Personal Social Services Expenditure Return (PSS EX1). 
 
Internal controls on the completion of the returns were found to be of a “Good Standard”, 
with staff having a good understanding of the significance of the returns and the importance of 
accuracy. 
 
Debtors 2010/11 
 
The Council has continued in its drive to improve the debt collection rate and provide 
an efficient debt collection system which is operating to a “Good Standard”. Service areas are 
encouraged to collect payments in advance wherever possible, a tactic which appears to have 
significantly improved collection rates on Trade Waste. In addition, the Central Recovery 
Team take pro-active measures to collect income prior to the due date by making contact 
with customers before formal non-payment reminders are generated.   
 
The responsibility for dealing with returned and rejected direct debits has been 
allocated to the Cashiers Team and controls over returned direct debits have been tightened. 
Other changes include the referral of debts between £200 and £500 to a private firm of 
solicitors. This method of recovery is in its infancy, although early indications are encouraging. 
 
Devonport Regeneration Community Partnership (DRCP) 2009/10  
 
The audit review focussed on the DRCP Succession Strategy which has been developed by 
DRCP in consultation with its key partners, to sustain the improvements delivered through 
the New Deal grant programme beyond the ten year lifetime. The strategy was found to be of 
a “Good Standard”. 
 
Fleet Management 2009/10  
 
The systems and procedures operated by Fleet Management are currently not as robust as 
they could be and the audit has identified some key issues which if addressed, would assist the 
service in becoming more competitive. Although the opinion formed was “Improvements 
Required” the staff reaction to the audit was positive, advice and suggestions that were made 
were taken on board and in some cases implemented immediately. 
 
Governance and Monitoring of the Capital Programme 2010/11 
 
Overall the governance and monitoring of the Capital Programme was found to be of a 
“Good Standard”. Proactive measures have been taken promptly by the Council to respond 
to the challenges arising from the current economic downturn and the change in 
Government, following the general election in May 2010. The capital programme is under 
constant review and the Council’s ability to fund capital investment is considered through 
continuous monitoring and reporting of calls on funding streams.  
At the time of the review, work to clarify the impact of the October 2010 Comprehensive 
Spending Review decisions was on-going with regular updates reported to the Capital 
Delivery Board (CBD), Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Members. 
 

Page 35



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

The introduction of the Invest to Save scheme where capital resources are used to 
reduce the cost of delivering services and improve the quality and effectiveness of 
services will deliver on going savings for the Council. 
 
HR/Payroll System 2009/10  
 
Consistent application of internal controls have ensured that PCC employees have been paid 
accurately, on time and in accordance with their contract of employment. The system 
continues to operate to a “Good Standard” and further efficiencies may be achieved through 
improved utilisation of the e-HR SAP system and review of payroll processes, together with 
the roll-out of Managers Online (MOL) which was due to be piloted from April 2010.  
 
HR/Payroll System 2010/11 (inc IT review) (draft) 
 
A “High Standard” has been achieved in respect of the Payroll Material Systems audit, with no 
recommendations being made in this area. Working processes are now highly evolved and 
there is little room for further efficiencies under current arrangements due to limiting factors 
such as, the diversity of employment contracts, the complexity of the SAP application and the 
prohibitive cost of enhancement, and other operational issues outside of the control of HR/ 
Payroll.  
 
The maintenance of the SAP application and database remains costly and relies upon a range 
of both internal and external expertise and resources. Governance arrangements for 
administering the computer application remain complex and there is some room for 
continued improvement to communication and database monitoring processes. This becomes 
more and more crucial as key hardware components will operate outside of a maintenance 
contract from November 2011, and demand upon all system components increases as the 
database grows.  
 
Information Governance (Government Connect) 2009/10  
 
The Government Connect system (Gov Connect) provides a robust and secure means of 
sending and receiving communications between approved local and central government 
bodies. Whilst the arrangements in place within the ICT department for managing the 
Council’s use of the Government Connect system and for ensuring compliance with the Code 
of Connection (CoCo) were found to be of a good standard, a number of issues were 
identified that could threaten the continued availability of the system as a result the overall 
opinion formed was “Improvements Required”. 
 
Information Security 2010/11 
 
The review found that although the Council has a sound framework of information security 
arrangements in place at a corporate level, “Improvements are Required”. 
The risks associated with information security are well understood and a formal procedure 
has been established for reporting, monitoring and investigating any security breaches that do 
occur. 
 
Key roles and responsibilities have been clearly assigned and a comprehensive set of 
information security policies and guidelines have been approved and published in the intranet 
document library. However, many of these important documents were created in 2007/8 and 
they have not been reviewed in accordance with the approved time scales. 
 

Page 36



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

At present ongoing information security awareness training is not being provided for all 
members of staff and in the absence of such training, individual staff actions could put the 
Council at risk of an information security incident. An action plan to improve this situation 
has been agreed and the first information security awareness training was delivered by a 
Microsoft Security Advisor to elected Members, CMT and Team Plymouth on 26 May. 
 
LAA - Data Quality – National Indicator Set 2009/10  
 
Data quality arrangements were considered as part of the Use of Resources (UoR) 
assessment and a sample of 10 national indicators were reviewed. It was found that overall, 
Plymouth City Councils data quality arrangements are of a good standard and provide the 
structure by which performance management processes can be carried out in a robust and 
comprehensive manner.  However further action is required to strengthen and fully embed 
arrangements throughout the organisation and the opinion formed was “Improvements 
Required”.   
 
A dedicated piece of work was also undertaken on National Indicator 179 which related to 
the total net value of ongoing cash-releasing value for money gains and Internal Audit 
identified additional efficiency savings of £600k for reporting to the DCLG. 
 
LAA – Data Quality – National Indicator Set (Performance Reward Grant) 
2010/11 
 
Overall, it was found that the systems for recording, reporting and publishing the LAA 
performance indicators were of a ”Good Standard”. Reward grant claimed was £3.066m of 
which 50% was payable, following regulation changes in May 2010.  
 
Loans and Investments 2009/10  
 
The Treasury Management (TM) Team continue to provide an effective service with 
cash flow maintained at an appropriate level and demonstrating compliance with 
CIPFA’s Code of Practice. Internal controls continue to operate to a “Good Standard” 
with the TM Board continuing to meet on a regular basis to discuss, review and approve 
investment and borrowing decisions.  
 
Loans and Investments 2010/11 (draft) 
 
The review found a robust policy framework within which the Treasury Management 
activity takes place and the overall opinion was a “Good Standard”. The Audit 
Committee provides independent scrutiny of the Treasury Management Policy and 
Procedures and a TM board comprising senior officers and members meets regularly 
and receives regular updates of trading activity. Forecasting is accurate, enabling cash 
flow to be managed effectively. 
 
 
 
Main Accounting System 2009/10 
 
The consistent application of internal controls ensures that the Main Accounting System 
(including budgetary control) continues to operate to a “Good Standard”. It was noted that 
budget forecasting during the current year has continued to improve, demonstrated by a lack 
of the significant swings in forecasts as experienced in previous years with reasons for budget 

Page 37



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

variations being clearly laid out in the bi-monthly joint finance and performance reports to 
Cabinet. 
 
Main Accounting System 2010/11 
 
The consistent application of internal controls ensures that the main accounting system 
continues to operate to a “Good Standard”. Information contained in the Joint Finance and 
Performance reports continues to develop and the process of challenging significant budget 
variations has become embedded within the culture of the organisation. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board have again provided robust challenge and 
review of the proposed budget for 2010/11. 
 
Main Accounting System IT Review 2009/10  
 
The Civica General Ledger (MAS) application is well managed, with clear governance and 
communication arrangements in place to ensure that it operates as required by the Finance 
Service. However, some concerns exist with regard to the number of users with “Full 
Access” to the computer system and with some of the privileges that Civica application 
support have been allocated on the corporate computer network. 
 
Management of Partnerships 2010/11  
 
Plymouth City Council is involved in many partnerships to enable the delivery of its 
Corporate Priorities and the associated outcomes for local people.  
 
The Council's overall arrangements for managing its involvement in partnerships requires 
further improvement to ensure a consistent robust approach is adopted across the authority 
that will mitigate the associated risks. 
 
Material Systems IT Review 2009/10  
 
This review has confirmed that, as in previous years,  the majority of the common processes 
and procedures, undertaken within the ICT department in respect of the Council’s material 
systems, are carried out in a secure, well-managed and professional manner and are now of a 
good standard. During the past year, significant progress has been made in a number of key 
areas but the exercise has also highlighted other areas in which improvements are still 
required in order to raise the standards still further. 
 
The overall audit opinion of “Improvements Required” is based on an assessment of the 
individual risks in ‘normal circumstances’. However, when considered together, the combined 
potential impact of some of the risks identified, does raise concerns regarding the Council’s 
ability to ensure the continued availability of its material systems, in the event of a major 
disaster. (i.e. where the probability of the event occurring is unlikely but its impact on the 
business of the Council would be significant.) 
Material Systems IT Review 2010/11 (draft) 
 
The evidence obtained during the course of this review confirms that the majority of the 
processes and procedures in place within the ICT department in respect of the Council’s 
material systems, are of a “Good Standard”. The department has continued to refine its 
organisational structure and working practices in order to establish a service that is better 

Page 38



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

placed to respond to the business needs of the organisation in a well organised and 
professional manner. 
 
Mt. Edgcumbe Accounts 2009/10 
 
In accordance with Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 Devon Audit 
Partnership has carried out a review of the Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee’s financial 
accounting systems and internal control arrangements in place during 2009/10 financial year. 
The opinion formed was that in all significant respects the control objectives were being 
achieved throughout 2009/10. 
 
However, it was noted that as at the 31 March 2010 Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee 
reported a £300K deficit and nil reserves. 
 
Mt. Edgcumbe Trading 2010/11 
 
There are three powerful factors that create specific difficulties in the running of successful 
and profitable retail trading activities at Mount Edgcumbe. They are the geographic position, 
the location of the trading outlets within the country park and the current staffing 
arrangements. 
 
In terms of the controls in place mitigate trading risks, there are weaknesses in stock control 
procedures and “Improvements are Required” in the areas of Governance, Cash Collection 
and Accountancy and Budgetary Control.  
 
National Non Domestic Rates (Business Rates) 2010/11 
 
The Revenues & Benefits service has developed a three year business plan with the following 
four key priorities; 
 
• Improved collection rate for Council Tax and Business Rates; 
• Improved processing times for Housing Benefit assessments; 
• Reducing the cost of service delivery; 
• Improving customer satisfaction with service delivery. 

 
Consistent application of internal controls and effective debt recovery practices resulted in 
the NNDR collection rates exceeding targets up to the end of February 2011 despite the 
continuing difficulties posed by the economic climate. There was however a shortfall of 0.20% 
at the end of March but this was as a result of the credits carried due to the government 
deferral scheme* being posted to 2011/12. 
 
Proactive use of benchmarking data by Revenues & Benefits management is underway, striving 
to improve the service's performance and cost effectiveness further. The overall opinion 
formed was of a “Good Standard”. 
 
*   On 31 March 2009 the government announced that business ratepayers would 
be able to defer 60 per  
     cent of their 2009/10 rates bill increase. This would be paid back over 2010/11 
and 2011/12. 
 
OLM CareFirst System 2009/10 

Page 39



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

 
In October 2009, the Audit Service issued a draft report which concluded that “fundamental 
weaknesses” existed within the Carefirst system. The findings of the report were accepted by 
the CareFirst Programme Board, now chaired by the Assistant Chief Executive on behalf of 
the Corporate Management Team.  This has ensured that appropriate resources have been 
allocated to address the weaknesses identified in all four control areas reviewed, namely, 
Compliance and Governance, Information and Data Security, Change Management and 
Operational Procedures.  
 
The Audit Service has maintained a watching brief and has recently completed a high level 
follow-up exercise to establish the full extent of the progress made. The follow-up review 
found significant improvements in the governance arrangements in CareFirst’s administration 
which has a positive influence upon all areas of internal control. As a result of this, better 
resourcing, and improvements made in the three other control areas covered, the overall 
audit opinion has improved from “Fundamental Weaknesses” to “Improvements Required”.  
 
Revenues & Benefits Cheque Payments 2009/10 
 
Following negative publicity arising from the issue of a misprinted refund cheque, the Director 
for Corporate Support commissioned Devon Audit Partnership to undertake a review of the 
adequacy of the systems deployed in the production of Council Tax refund cheques. For 
completeness, the review was expanded to include Non Domestic Rate refunds and Housing 
Benefit payments. 
 
The review found that overall, the systems and procedures were operating to a good 
standard but there appeared to be an intermittent fault in the Academy System which when it 
occurred, resulted in cheque details being wrongly aligned for Council Tax and NNDR but 
not for Housing Benefit cheques. The fault has been reported to the software supplier and 
manual checks have been put in place pending resolution of the problem.  
 
Security Services Contract Monitoring Review 2009/10  
 
The review identified a lack of robust monitoring processes for six of the seven security 
contracts that the City Council had entered into since April 2008. As a result an opinion of 
“Improvements Required” was formed.  The review could not find direct evidence that rates 
paid were being applied consistently, in accordance with those quoted in the contracts. In 
addition, there was a lack of one main point of contact for each contract within the Council 
although this has subsequently been rectified.  There was limited monitoring of performance 
and achievement of service standards in accordance with the contracts, undertaken.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting People 2009/10 
 
The Supporting People Services’ operational procedures continue were found to be 
administered to a “High Standard”. Recent password quality and data security improvements 
made to the CareFirst computer application have assisted in improving the level of assurance 
in the area of data security. 

Page 40



Appendix 4 
 

\\plymcc.local\directorates\Apps\ModGov\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00048313\App4v2SummaryofAuditOpinion0.doc 

 
 
 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5 

App5v4FundWeaknessesCorpInfMgt0.doc     Page 1 of 10 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 
 

High Priority Weaknesses Identified 

Client Director for Corporate Support (Senior Information Risk Officer) 

System Corporate Information Management (2010-2011) – Final Audit Report issued September 2010 

Matter Arising Recommendation Responsible Officer / 
Target Date 

Information Governance is not recorded consistently as a risk 
across the Authority. 

It is identified as a ‘Medium’ risk in the Council’s Strategic Risk 
Register and in the ICT department’s Operational Risk Register. 
However, although various information-related issues are 
included in other departmental Risk Registers, information 
governance itself is not considered to be a risk and does not 
appear in any of them. 

The Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) 
should ensure that this issue is addressed 
through the Operational Risk Management 
Group and that Information Governance 
becomes a mandatory inclusion in every 
department’s operational risk register. 

Head of Corporate Risk 
and Insurance 

 

Target Date: 11/11/10 

 

Management Response to Audit Report issued September 2010 

Recommendation agreed. A way forward in raising the profile of the risk issues would be to make Information Governance a mandatory risk 
for inclusion in all directorate/departmental Operational Risk Registers - this would then promote regular monitoring in line with well-
established existing processes to DMTs, CMT and Members of Audit Committee. 

The Council’s Corporate Information Manager attended a meeting of the Operational Risk Management Group (ORMG), on 15th October 
2010, to take them through the key issues in order to achieve consistency in the way that risks are recorded and monitored. This will be 
followed up by more detailed guidance at the next meeting of the ORMG in December 2010. 

Update as at May 2011 

‘Information Governance’ is now included in all departments’ Operational Risk Registers. 

In March 2011, the Council’s insurance brokers (Heath Lambert) provided an Information Governance training workshop for Risk Champions, 
to clarify what their role was and what action they needed to take. 

A standard risk assessment template has now been developed to assist Risk Champions in assessing the specific risks within their areas and 
once this template has been completed, it will be used to identify issues for inclusion in the departmental operational risk registers. The 
template is scheduled to be completed by the end of June 2011. 

P
age 43



Appendix 5 

App5v4FundWeaknessesCorpInfMgt0.doc     Page 2 of 10 

Matter Arising Recommendation Responsible Officer / 
Target Date 

The topic of Information Management lacks a sufficiently high 
profile within the Council. i.e. There is no regular monitoring 
of progress on information management issues at Committee 
level. 

The SIRO should seek to formalise Member and 
Committee reporting arrangements for the 
management and oversight of information 
management across the organisation, in a 
manner similar to that already in place for topics 
such as Risk Management and RIPA reporting 
procedures. 
 

Head of Corporate Risk 
and Insurance 

 

Target Date: 

Process to commence 
from 11/11/10 

Management Response to Audit Report issued September 2010 

Recommendation agreed. Once Information Governance has been included in every department’s operational risk register, it will be managed 
through the existing Risk Management process, which includes regular reports to Audit Committee. 

 

Update as at May 2011 

The Audit Committee already receives regular Risk Management reports which now include both strategic and operational information 
governance issues. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 44



Appendix 5 

App5v4FundWeaknessesCorpInfMgt0.doc     Page 3 of 10 

Matter Arising Recommendation Responsible Officer / 
Target Date 

Other than the identified ‘Caldicott Guardians’ in the Adult 
Health and Social Care and the Children and Young People 
areas, there are no Information Lead Officers in any of the 
Council’s other directorates. 
 
 

The Corporate Information Manager should take 
action to ensure that: 

a. An Information Lead Officer is identified in 
each directorate and that their 
responsibilities are incorporated into their 
Role Profiles and linked to their Staff 
Appraisal Objectives. 

 
b. Assistant Directors identify all information 

management roles within their directorates 
and include them in the relevant Role 
Profiles and Staff Appraisal Objectives. 

 

 

Corporate Information 
Manager 

Target Date: 31/12/10 

 

Corporate Information 
Manager 

 

Target Date: 31/12/10 

Management Response to Audit Report issued September 2010  

Recommendation agreed. The need to identify departmental Information Lead Officers is set out in the Council’s approved Information 
Management Strategy and the Corporate Information Manager will pursue this issue as agreed. 

 

Update as at May 2011 

The SIRO has written to all Directors, asking them to appoint Information Lead Officers (ILOs), within their service areas, to contribute to a 
corporate Information Management steering group and also to identify their staff that have a specific role in relation to information systems in 
use. 

Work has already commenced on this major task and it is expected that further significant progress will be made throughout the current year.  

The Corporate Information Manager will agree the ‘role’ of the ILOs with them at the inaugural meeting of the Information Management 
Steering Group and ensure that the details are included in their role profiles. 

 

 

Matter Arising Recommendation Responsible Officer / 
Target Date 

P
age 45



Appendix 5 

App5v4FundWeaknessesCorpInfMgt0.doc     Page 4 of 10 

There is no corporate steering group in place to manage the 
changes needed in order to implement the requirements of 
the Council’s Information Management Strategy and embed its 
Information Management Principles. 

The Corporate Information Manager should 
instigate the formation of an Information 
Management Steering Group, comprised of the 
nominated Information Lead Officers from each 
directorate (See section 1.4 above) and with 
formal Terms of Reference, to manage the 
implementation of the Council’s Information 
Management Strategy and the embedding of its 
approved Information Management Principles 
throughout the organisation. 

 

Corporate Information 
Manager 

 

Target Date: 31/12/10 

 

Management Response to Audit Report issued September 2010  

Recommendation agreed. The group will be convened once the directorate Information Lead officers have been identified. 

 

Update as at May 2011 

The existing Management Information Security Forum (MISF) will become the wider Management Information Steering Group and will include 
the directorate ILOs as well as other officers who are involved in information governance and security issues. The steering group will also be 
attended by the Assistant Director for ICT. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Matter Arising Recommendation Responsible Officer / 
Target Date 

P
age 46



Appendix 5 

App5v4FundWeaknessesCorpInfMgt0.doc     Page 5 of 10 

The principles of the Council’s approved Information 
Management Strategy have not yet been fully embedded 
throughout the organisation. 
 

 

The Corporate Information Manager should 
ensure that the Action Plan, attached to the IMS, 
is updated and should then gain the approval and 
commitment of CMT for the allocation of the 
corporate and directorate budgets (and other 
resources) needed in order to ensure its 
completion. 
 

Corporate Information 
Manager 

 

Target Date: 30/4/11 

 

Management Response to Audit Report issued September 2010  

Recommendation agreed. The action plan will be updated and approval sought. 

 

Update as at May 2011 

New target dates for the Action Plan will need to take into account the results of the departmental information risk assessment exercise, 
which is currently underway. Once this exercise has been completed, at the end of June 2011, the Corporate Information Manager will then 
update the Information Management Strategy Action Plan. 

A number of budget and resource allocations have already been agreed for 2010/11 and 2011/12, examples of which are shown below: 

The Corporate Accommodation Strategy – including the provision of a new data centre.  

Investment in Carefirst – including improved system administration. 

Improvements in data management e.g. HR/Payroll and Housing systems. 

The new telephone and ‘hot desking’ technologies. 

 

 

 

 

Matter Arising Recommendation Responsible Officer / 
Target Date 

P
age 47



Appendix 5 

App5v4FundWeaknessesCorpInfMgt0.doc     Page 6 of 10 

Information Management is not covered as a specific topic in 
the Council’s corporate induction process and there are no 
formal training courses available in-house in respect of 
information management (except for the e-learning course for 
Government Connect email users, which is only taken by a 
limited number of staff). 

 

The SIRO should ask the Assistant Director for 
HR and Organisational Development to amend 
the corporate induction programme to include 
coverage of the aims, objectives and 
requirements of the Council’s Information 
Management Strategy. 

This issue will need to be 
actioned by the Assistant 
Director for HR and 
Organisational 
Development and a 
target date agreed. 

Management Response to Audit Report issued September 2010  

The Assistant Director for ICT and the Corporate Information Manager both agree that the recommended action is necessary and important 
but its implementation has not yet been confirmed by the Assistant Director for HR and Organisational Development. This issue will be 
pursued and an update provided to the next Audit Committee. 

 

Update as at May 2011 

The corporate induction programme is currently being reviewed with the aim of improving its content, the way in which it is delivered and its 
overall effectiveness. The Assistant Director for HR and Organisational Development has agreed that the subject of information management 
will be addressed as part of this process. 

The new procedure will commence in July 2011 after which, the results of the trial will be assessed and any required changes will be reported 
to CMT for approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Matter Arising Recommendation Responsible Officer / 
Target Date 

P
age 48



Appendix 5 

App5v4FundWeaknessesCorpInfMgt0.doc     Page 7 of 10 

Comprehensive written policies, procedures, instructions and 
user guidance notes, covering all aspects of information 
management, are readily available to all computer users via the 
Document Library on Staffroom. However, they are not so 
readily available to non-computer users who may also handle 
equally valuable physical forms of information. 

Furthermore, staff do not acknowledge receipt and 
understanding of Council policies and procedures, etc 

 

The SIRO should ask the Assistant Director for 
HR and Organisational Development to ensure 
that all departmental induction programmes are 
amended to include a section covering of the 
aims, objectives and requirements of the 
Council’s Information Management Strategy and 
of the Council’s information management policies 
and guidelines, etc. e.g. the Information Security 
Policy. 

This issue will need to be 
actioned by the Assistant 
Director for HR and 
Organisational 
Development and a 
target date agreed. 

Management Response to Audit Report issued September 2010 

The Assistant Director for ICT and the Corporate Information Manager both agree that the recommended action is necessary and important 
but its implementation has not yet been confirmed by the Assistant Director for HR and Organisational Development. This issue will be 
pursued and an update provided to the next Audit Committee. 

 

Update as at May 2011 

The departmental induction programmes are currently being reviewed with the aim of improving their content, the way in which they are 
delivered and their overall effectiveness. The Assistant Director for HR and Organisational Development has agreed that the subject of 
information management will be addressed as part of this process. 

The new procedure will commence in July 2011 after which, the results of the trial will be assessed and any required changes will be reported 
to CMT for approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

Matter Arising Recommendation Responsible Officer / 
Target Date 

P
age 49



Appendix 5 

App5v4FundWeaknessesCorpInfMgt0.doc     Page 8 of 10 

Although PCC acknowledges that information is its second 
most important asset, the Authority does not know what 
information it actually holds or where it is all stored. 

Although there are long established inventory procedures in 
place for recording and controlling physical assets, there is no 
approved system for recording information assets. 

As things stand, the Council cannot be sure that it holds an up 
to date ‘single version of the truth’ and it cannot ensure that its 
information assets are being used to their full potential. 

 

The SIRO should initiate the introduction of 
corporate Records Management capabilities, 
throughout the organisation, by asking the 
Corporate Information Officer/Manager to 
prepare appropriate recommendations for 
approval, together with proposed timescales for 
their implementation. 

Corporate Information 
Officer/Manager 

 

Target Date: 31/3/11 

 

Management Response to Audit Report issued September 2010  

Recommendation agreed. The Corporate Information Manager will prepare a report for the SIRO. 

 

Update as at May 2011 

The Council’s ICT Strategy already acknowledges the need to implement corporate records management systems. 

The Corporate Information Manager’s report to the SIRO will need to address any records management issues that are identified as a result of 
the information risk assessment exercise that is currently underway and it will therefore be compiled after this exercise has been completed at 
the end of June 2011. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Matter Arising Recommendation Responsible Officer / 
Target Date 

P
age 50



Appendix 5 

App5v4FundWeaknessesCorpInfMgt0.doc     Page 9 of 10 

Although responsibility for the security and appropriate use of 
information assets is clearly set out throughout the Council’s 
Financial Regulations, the general concept of ‘Information 
Ownership’ has not yet been embedded throughout the 
organisation. 

 

 

The SIRO should write to all Chief Officers to 
formally remind of their specific responsibilities 
in respect of information management and 
security and asking them to identify all of their 
information systems and pass these details on to 
the Corporate Information Officer, together 
with the name of the ‘Owner’ of each of them. 
 

Corporate Information 
Officer/Manager 

 

Target Date: 1/12/10  

 

Management Response to Audit Report issued September 2010  

Recommendation agreed. The Corporate Information Officer/Manager will draft the communication on behalf of the SIRO. 

 

Update as at May 2011 

The SIRO has written to all CMT members reminding them that “All Directors are responsible for information as a Council asset” and a 
briefing session has also been arranged, for Councillors and senior officers, to raise their awareness of the security risks that the Council faces 
today. 

Work is underway to identify all of the Council’s information systems and to assign an ‘owner’ to each of them. This is a lengthy task and it is 
anticipated that further significant progress will continue to be made throughout the current financial year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Matter Arising Recommendation Responsible Officer / 
Target Date 

P
age 51



Appendix 5 

App5v4FundWeaknessesCorpInfMgt0.doc     Page 10 of 10 

Section D.1.20 of Financial Regulations sets out the 
responsibility of Chief Officers “To ensure that, where 
appropriate, computer based and other operational systems 
containing relevant information are registered in accordance 
with the Data Protection and related legislation, and that staff 
are aware of their responsibilities under the legislation.” 

However, there is no formal process in place to enable them to 
do this and this exposes the Council to the risk of ‘Failure to 
comply with statutory requirements’. (See Item R46 on the 
Strategic Risk Register) 

 

The SIRO should initiate the introduction of a 
formal Data Protection Act registration system, 
throughout the organisation, by asking the 
Corporate Information Manager to prepare an 
appropriate procedure document, together with 
proposed timescales for its implementation. 
 

Corporate Information 
Manager 

 

Target Date: Ongoing. 

(It will not be possible to 
implement an effective 
system until an initial 
information audit has 
been completed.) 

Management Response to Audit Report issued September 2010  

Recommendation agreed. However, this recommendation cannot be implemented until an Information Management Steering Group has been 
established and a full information audit has been carried out. It will then be possible to collate and maintain the data protection registration 
details from the initial information audit and any subsequent changes to it. 

 

Update as at May 2011 

The Information Management Steering Group is being established and work will then begin on an information audit and the implementation of a 
formal Data Protection Act registration system. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 52



Appendix 6 

DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP ADDED VALUE FOR PLYMOUTH CITY 
COUNCIL 2010/11 
 
Devon Audit Partnership is committed to providing value for money to the Council and its 
stakeholders and, where possible, to identifying examples of specific, tangible benefits achieved.  
The following are examples of recent benefits delivered by Internal Audit:- 
 
 
Challenge to 2008/09 HB Subsidy    
 
Internal Audit played a significant role in working with the Housing Benefit Team and Finance to 
mount a successful challenge to the DWP in respect of the 2008/09 Housing Benefit (HB) 
subsidy claim. Following qualification of the claim, the Secretary of State proposed to recover 
£540k from the Authority but, as a result of this collaborative working, this has subsequently 
reduced to £127,763 a saving of £412k.  
 
As a result of observations made during the challenge exercise, Internal Audit identified a 
framework to mitigate the risk of the department failing to maximise its HB subsidy in the 
future. This was distributed to key staff from Housing Benefits and Finance who are most 
closely involved in the subsidy claim process to act as a check list upon which they can gain 
assurance that the claim process is robust in the future. 
 
On receiving confirmation from the DWP of the revised figure, the Revenues and Benefits 
Service Manager emailed “this is fantastic news.  A big thank you to all of you for the hard work 
you put into this to 'make it right', it was a difficult claim and we have certainly learned a lot 
from this experience”. 
 
 
Data Quality 
 
 Robust performance information based on good quality data is critical to supporting the 
strategic decisions needed to effectively manage services, deliver shared priorities and achieve 
outcomes for the people of Plymouth. Internal Audit were engaged to examine and comment 
on the adequacy of the arrangements in place to accurately and effectively report performance.  
 
Within Community Services, auditors worked alongside Policy and Performance Officers to 
provide independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of management and 
operational arrangements for the collection of data and completion of the Government returns.  
The accuracy, validity and timeliness of the RAP (Referrals, Assessment & Packages of Care), 
ASC-CAR (Adult Social Care Combined Activity) and PSSEX (Personal Social Services 
Expenditure) returns were also reviewed.   
 
Feedback received from Community Services was that they appreciated the ‘objective eye’ to 
their approach and that our report was valuable in improving their methods and lent weight to 
their own vision for improvement.  Auditors are currently in the process of repeating this 
exercise for the current RAP and ASC-CAR returns. 

Page 53



Appendix 6 

 
 
NI 179 Value for Money  
 
National Indicator 179 related to the total net value of ongoing cash-releasing value for money 
gains. Prior to the submission of the Council’s efficiency savings for 2009/10 Internal Audit 
reviewed the arrangements in place to report on the savings achieved for the year. Some 
weaknesses in the system were identified and Internal Audit worked closely with Finance 
officers to ensure that the Council has a robust framework in place for effectively identifying 
and reporting efficiency savings achieved in the future. In addition to driving improvements in 
business processes, Internal Audit also identified additional efficiency savings of £600k.  
 
Whilst central government no longer requires this information to be reported to them in the 
future, the Council still has to make efficiency savings and the work carried out by Internal 
Audit supports this ongoing requirement.  
 
Standards & Good Practice Guide for Revenues Staff 
 
Internal Audit have played a primary, pro-active role, working with managers of the Revenues 
Division, in the setting up and rolling out of a Standards and Good Practice Guide for Revenues 
staff. This included a series of presentations to staff and followed investigations into the use of 
partnership organisations’ I.T. systems by Council employees.  The aim of the presentations was 
successfully achieved by improving awareness of what staff in the Division can and cannot do in 
relation to data held by the Council and its partners, and positive feedback was received with 
regard to the value added. 
 
Internal Audit / External Audit Relationship 
 
Devon Audit Partnership considers that strong working relationships have been forged between 
Devon Audit Partnership and Grant Thornton. This conviction was supported by the recently 
departed Grant Thornton Audit Manager who expressed her appreciation of the depth of 
knowledge and skills the internal audit team possess and the way in which the team had helped 
her to develop an understanding of how Plymouth City Council works.  
 
Positive Feedback Received from Clients 
 

• Following an audit of a Plymouth school prior to changing to Academy status, the Senior 
Education Advisor responded “an object in swift and effective audit practice. Getting this 
final report out so quickly will help enormously”. The Business Manager of this same 
school thanked the auditor both for the report and the way he dealt with the process. 
At the time, the school administration was under considerable pressure due to the 
change in school status and expressed appreciation that due to the approach the auditor 
adopted he had not “made life much worse”. 

 
 
 

Page 54



Appendix 6 

• The Business Manager of another secondary school stated that the auditor “has a great 
understanding of the pressures facing the financial administration in schools and offers 
pragmatic and sensible solutions which always improve our processes.  I am extremely 
grateful for his help during the audit and as an advisor at other times.” 

 
• Following achievement of the standard in financial management in schools (FMSIS), the 

Business Manager of a primary school responded as follows “thank you, this is really 
great news. Can I say a personal thank you for all your help and patience over the last 
few months in guiding this new boy through the process.” 

 
• After a complex and lengthy irregularity investigation carried out by Internal Audit which 

followed complaints received from members of the public, those local citizens wrote a 
letter to formally thank the Auditors involved for their help.  The letter stated that 
Auditors “grasped the situation very quickly and took our concerns seriously from the 
beginning.  We appreciated the way you kept us informed and were always there to 
answer all our questions.  You undertook your role in a professional manner, yet still 
remained approachable.” 

 
• Comments from the Education Advisor for ICT and E-Learning following the review of 

Capita ONE was that the verbal feedback and discussion was particularly useful and the 
report timely, coming at a point where decisions on the future of Capita ONE and the 
functionality it provides are being reviewed by Children’s Services in the light of the 
capacity of the Council and future needs of the department. 

 
• Following the review of the corporate management arrangements for business 

continuity, the Civic Protection Officer commented on how beneficial the report was 
and on the courtesy, understanding and very good advice provided by the auditor. 

 
• The Headteacher of one of the City’s new primary schools confirmed that they found 

“the whole process was a very useful audit tool, which enabled us to rally focus on what 
we needed to do to improve our systems. It was also good to know we were doing so 
much right. This was a great confidence builder.” 

 
• “An independent overview is always appreciated” (Strategic Procurement Manager 

commenting on our review of Security Services Contract) 
 

• Devon Audit Partnership’s work and robust challenge on the following projects, the 
Plymouth Life Centre, Leisure Management and South West Devon Waste Partnership, 
has received good feedback from management and Members.  The Project Boards and 
Teams have welcomed Audit’s input and assurance. 

 
 
 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
 
Subject:    Annual Governance Statement 2010/11 
 
Committee:    Audit Committee 
 
Date:     27 June 2011 
 
Cabinet Member:   Councillor Ricketts 
            
CMT Member:   Director for Corporate Support 

Author:    Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance 
       
Contact:    Tel: 01752 304967 
     Email: mike.hocking@plymouth.gov.uk 
Ref:     CRM/MJH     
Key Decision:   No 

Part:     I  
  
 
Executive Summary:  
 

                      Regulation 4(3) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 requires all relevant 
bodies to prepare an Annual Governance Statement  (AGS). 

 
  The purpose of the AGS is to provide evidence of a continuous review of the Council’s 

internal control and risk management processes, to provide assurance as to their 
effectiveness and to identify actions being taken or planned to address any key weaknesses 
identified. 

 
  The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 also introduced a 

requirement to include an annual review of the effectiveness of the internal audit system.  
   

  This report outlines the process followed in order to produce the AGS for 2010/11 and 
recommends approval of the Statement prior to signature by the Leader, the Chief 
Executive and the Director for Corporate Support. 

 
  The report also provides an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal audit system for the 

same period. 
   
  The proposed Statement for 2010/11 is attached to the report. 

 
Corporate Plan 2011/14: 
 
Maintaining sound systems of internal control and risk management enables the Council to 
monitor and review the key risks that may prevent it from achieving its corporate 
objectives.           
 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications: 

Agenda Item 8Page 57



Including finance, human, IT and land: 
None arising specifically from this report. 
    
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc: 
 
The Risk Management Strategy specifically supports the processes which underpin the 
production of the Annual Governance Statement. 
   
Recommendations  & Reasons for recommended action: 
The Audit Committee is recommended to : 
 

a) Note the processes adopted for the production of the 2010/11 Annual Governance 
Statement. 

 
b) Endorse the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal audit. 

 
c) Approve the Annual Governance Statement prior to signature by the Leader, Chief 

Executive and Director for Corporate Support. 
  
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Not applicable. 
  
Background papers: 
 
Accounts and Audit (Amendment)(England) Regulations 2006 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 
 
Sign off: 
 
Fin SW Leg D.S. 

 
 

HR  Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member: Assistant Director for Democracy and Governance 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



 
 
 
 

Report of Director for Corporate Support to Audit Committee 
27 June 2011 

 
Annual Governance Statement 2010/11  

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1   This report outlines the background to the statutory requirement to produce an 

Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and describes the process followed in producing 
the AGS for 2010/11 for publication with the Annual Statement of Accounts.  

 
2.     The Council’s Statutory Responsibility 
 

 2.1     Regulation 4(3) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 requires all 
 relevant bodies to prepare an Annual Governance Statement). 
 
2.2  There is also a requirement under the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) 

Regulations 2006 for the AGS to include a review of the effectiveness of the internal 
audit system. 

  
2.3   The purpose of the AGS process is to provide a continuous review of the effectiveness 

of an organisation’s internal control and risk management, in order to give assurance 
as to their effectiveness and/or to produce a management action plan to address 
identified weaknesses in either process. 

 
2.4   The AGS is required to be approved at a committee of the Council and this sits most 

comfortably with Audit Committee, as its terms of reference include both internal 
control and risk management.  

 
2.5   The proposed Annual Governance Statement for 2010/11 is attached to this report. 
 
3.    Effective Review and the Control of Risk 
 
3.1 The statutory responsibility to publish an Annual Governance Statement       requires 

the Council to review its key risks, and to identify and publish the actions that it 
intends taking to improve or resolve those risks.  

 
3.2 These risks primarily relate to the achievement of the Council’s core objectives and 

strategies and, therefore, the AGS provides an opportunity to formally review 
governance structures and processes that underpin their delivery. 

 
 
 
4.    Scope of the AGS 
 
4.1   The AGS spans the whole range of local authority activities and includes those 

controls designed to ensure: 
 

Page 59



• the authority’s policies are put into practice 
• the organisation’s values are met 
• laws and regulations are complied with 
• required processes are adhered to 
• financial statements and other published information are accurate and reliable,  
• governance arrangements are in place for significant partnerships 
• human resources and other resources are managed efficiently and effectively 

 
4.2    In establishing and defining the system of internal control the AGS provides a 

mechanism by which the authority can maintain, review and keep up to date its 
control environment.  It links internal audit findings, external audit and inspection 
reports and the risk management process and provides an effective review of the 
Council’s risk management and control mechanisms. 

 
4.3   The Council’s control environment is managed through a number of core processes 

and procedures which are defined within the body of the AGS. 
 
4.4   The AGS has been compiled by carrying out an annual review of the control 

environment which has involved researching and formally recognising and recording 
the processes already in place across the Authority.  

 
4.5   Recognising that preparation of the AGS is a wide-ranging and corporate issue that 

should not be owned by any one department, a Working Group of key officers was 
established to oversee the process. This Group comprised: 

 
• Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance 
•  Assistant Director of Democracy and Governance 
• Audit Manager, Devon Audit Partnership 
• Head of Finance 
•  Policy and Planning Manager 
•  Head of Legal Services 

 
4.6   The Working Group is responsible for producing the AGS which is then approved by 

the Corporate Management Team and Cabinet Planning prior to ratification by the 
Audit Committee. 

 
 
 
4.7   The Council’s external auditors will consider the arrangements in place to enable 

preparation of the AGS, including the degree to which the Council recognises and can 
demonstrate corporate ownership of its governance arrangements.  

  
5.    The Assurance Gathering process 
 
5.1   Those with responsibility for signing the AGS need to feel confident that the 

information used to review the control environment is complete and accurate.  The 
AGS is therefore required to be signed by the most senior officer and the most senior 
member (ie the Chief Executive and the Council Leader).  It is also signed by the 
Director for Corporate Support as the officer responsible for overseeing the 
production of the AGS. 

 

Page 60



5.2   Although the production of the AGS is required by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations, and the AGS is included with the Statement of Accounts, the 
responsibility for securing effective internal control does not rest solely with   Finance 
staff. 

 
5.3   Preparation of the AGS has therefore involved a variety of people charged with 

delivering corporate governance: 
 

• Directors, Heads of Service and managers assigned with the ownership of risk 
and the delivery of services 

• the Chief Financial Officer who is responsible for the accounting control systems 
and records and the preparation of the statement of accounts 

• the Monitoring Officer in meeting his statutory responsibilities 
• Elected Members (e.g., through Audit or Scrutiny Committees) 
• others responsible for providing assurance (e.g. Internal Audit and Risk          
Management) 

 
5.4   The primary source of information which informs the content of the AGS comes  

  from Assurance Questionnaires completed by Directors, Heads of Service and other 
senior managers covering key questions around the internal control and   governance 
framework.  

 
5.5   When completing these questionnaires respondents are asked to review a     number 

of sources where internal control/governance weaknesses may be identified: 
 

• Risks identified in Strategic and Operational Risk Registers 
• Issues arising from Internal Audit Reviews completed in 2010/11 
• Issues arising from external inspections 
• Audit Commission Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 

 
6.  Code of Corporate Governance Self-Assessment/Annual Review 
 
6.1 In accordance with the CIPFA/SOLACE framework document Good Governance in Local 

Government, the Council has adopted a local Code of Corporate Governance which 
was approved by Audit Committee on 31st March 2008. 

 
6.2   The framework recommends that the Council carries out annually a self-assessment of 

the extent to which it complies with the six core principles of good governance set 
out in the Code. 

 
6.3 The AGS Working Group has carried out this annual review and is satisfied that the 

governance framework described more fully in the Governance Statement attached to 
this report satisfies the compliance requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE model Code. 

 
7. Review of Internal Audit System 
 
7.1   Continuous review of the effectiveness of the Council’s internal audit system is 

conducted by the Audit Committee whose terms of reference (paragraph 2.2) include, 
specifically, inter alia: 

 
• To agree the annual Internal Audit Plan 

Page 61



• To monitor the progress and performance of Internal Audit 
• To consider the Chief Auditor’s annual report, and comment annually on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems within the Council 

 
7.2 The Chief Auditor’s annual report is being considered at the same time as this  report 

and invites Members to endorse the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of 
internal audit for the year ending 31st March 2011. 

 
7.3 It is recommended that this endorsement forms part of the Annual Governance 

Statement for 2010/11. 
 
8. Partnerships Governance 
 
8.1 The Council has drawn up a register of partnerships which are assessed for 

significance. 
 
8.2 The most significant partnerships have their own risk registers and manage risk as a 

routine part of performance management. 
 
 
 
 
8.3 A draft Code of Good Practice for partnership management has been produced and is 

due to be consulted upon and will be used to improve consistency and provide a 
standard approach to managing partnerships and, in particular, managing risk and 
sharing good practice. 

 
9.    Identifying control weakness significant for the purpose of the AGS 
 
9.1   Whilst there is no absolute definition of the term, the following indicators (provided 

by CIPFA) have been used to help in considering whether or not an issue is significant 
enough to be reported on in the AGS: 

 
• it seriously prejudices or prevents achievement of the principal objective of the 
authority; 

• it has resulted in the need to seek additional funding to allow it to be resolved, 
or has resulted in significant diversion of resources from another aspect of the 
business; 

• it has led to a material impact on the accounts 
• the Audit Committee advises it should be considered significant for this purpose; 
• the Head of Internal Audit reports on it as significant, for this purpose, in the 
annual opinion on the internal control environment; 

• the issue, or its impact, has attracted significant public interest or has seriously 
damaged the reputation of the organisation; 

• the issue has resulted in formal action being undertaken by the Chief Financial 
Officer and/or the Monitoring Officer 

 
10.    Conclusion 
 
10.1 The attached AGS identifies the outcome of the review of the effectiveness of 

Plymouth City Council’s governance arrangements, covering internal audit, internal 

Page 62



control and risk management systems and also identifies significant governance issues 
together with details of actions being taken to address them. 

 
11.    Recommendations 
 
11.1 Members of the Audit Committee are recommended to: 
 

a) Note the processes adopted for the production of the 2010/11 Annual 
Governance Statement.  

 
b) Endorse the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal audit. 
 
c) Approve the Annual Governance Statement prior to signature by the Leader, 

Chief Executive and Director for Corporate Support. 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



�

� � ���

��������	
���	
���
��	
	

����	�������
�	��������	���������	
�
�����	��	���������� �!"	
	
������	
���	����������������������������������	
�	��	������������������	�����
������������	
�	
�����������������	�����������	
�	�������������������������������
��������������	�����������������������������������	�����������	�������
�
�
��������������
�������	�������	
���������������	���	��   �	����!����������	��
	�����������	���������������	���	
�������	�����	���������"���������
������������	��
��������	��������������������������������	��������
�
#�����
������	
����������������������	���������	
���	�����������������������������		�����
���������������������	������	
���������������	�����������������	�	���	
�������	����
�"����������	
��������$�����	���������
��
�����������������	������	
���������	�
������!��
�
������	
���	���������
�������������������	��������������������	�������������
��
�
��������	�	���	
�	
���������������	
���#�%�&'(���)�%�������!�����������	
���	

��������	��	����	
����������	����������	
���������������������	�������
*���	�	�	��+��
�
�
�����������������'	�	���	��"������
���	
���������
��������������	
�	
�������
��������
����	����	��	
����,������	�����-�����	���./01����	
�������	���������	�
/)����1�-�����	����23����
	
�#�	�$%����	��	!#�	��&�%�'���	(%')�*�%+	
�
�
�������������������!�����������	
�����	������������������������	�������
������������
��
�	
����	
���	����������	��������	�����������	����	���	����	
����
��
��
��	�
�����	��	������������	
����������	
��������	���#	��������	
����	
���	��	�����	���	
��
��
������	�����	���	��	�������4��	��������	�����������
�	
���	
������4��	�����
��������
	��	
�����������������������	������	5�����	��������������

�
�
�����	�������	�������	�����������������	����	����	
�	���������!���������������	��
���������!�	���������������������#	����	�������	���������!������������	����
���������������
����������4��	�����������	
����������������������������������	�������	��
�����������������	����������
�
�
�����	�������	�������	���������������������������������������	�����	�������
������	����	
�����!��	��	
����
������	����	
��������$����������������������4��	������	��
������	��	
����!���
�������	
�������!�������������������	
�������	��
�����	
������
�������������	��������	
����������	���������	�����������������������
�
�
�������������������!�
����������������	�������	
���	�������������	
������������
0��	�6���
�23���������	��	
����	�����	
��������������	
�������-����	����'	�	���	����
�����	���

�
�#�	��&�%�'���	(%')�*�%+	
�
�
���	�������	�����������	���������������	
��������������������������������������
	
����������������������������	
����������#	��������������	
�	
���	�	�����7�

Page 65



�

� � �2�

�
•� ��	�����
���������	�����	
����
������	����	
��������$����4��	�����
•� ������	�	�����������������������!���
•� �������������������	
���	�����
���������������������������������������	����
•� ���	�����������������������������!��	
�	�	
���	��	
��������������	
��

��	
���	�$����4��	�����
•� �������	
������������������	��������������	�����������������������������

��	���������������	���	
���������
��
�	
����	
���	�$�����	���������"��������
•� ������������������	��������������	���	
���������	�����������

�������	������!��
•� ���������������	��������������������	�������	
����	
���	��
•� ���������������������	
����	
���	����������,��	������	���

�
�
����������������������������	
��!��������	�����������	
���	��������$����	����
�������	���#	�����	����	�	������"
���	������	������	�������	
����	���������	������	
��
������������	����	������������4��	������
���������
�������������������������������
	����	�����
�������	����	��!�������������4��	��������	��������	
�	�	
�����������������
������������	
������4��	����������	���������������������������	��������������	������
�
������	
�
������	����������	���������������)�����$������	�����	������	���	�����	�
��	������
��������	�	�����,����	��������������4������������������
��������������������
*������	
�2323+�8�	
���������	��	��������	���
�������������������	�����	
�������	�������
����������������	�����	
��'��	�������������	��'	��	����2339523����
��
���	�������
��������!�	������������������������	��	��	�������������������������������������		���
��5�����	���������	�������������
�
�
�����	���
���
��������,��	�����������	
��������	
�-����	��
��
������������
������
������������������������������	����	
����	����������	
�������	��������
�������	������������������	�����
��
���������������
������������	
����	�$�������7�
�
n� :�����������	
�
n� -�����������	����
n� -��������,����	��
n� ������������������������	����
�
�
��������������	���������������������	��������������	������	���������������
�
��
�
���������������������������	
�����	���
����������	
�2323�����������	
��
��������������!����	�
����	��������������	
�	
��'��	�������������	��'	��	�������	
��
�����'	��	�������	
��������:��������	�%�������!���
�����	�	
�������	�������������	��
��,������	����	
�����������;������
�������	������!����	��������������
���������	
�����
23��50���	���
��
��	
����	��	��������������������
�
�
��������������������
�%��%'!�	� '���
��
���	����	��
�����	�����������	���
��������
�������	��������	
���"	�	
����������������	���	��	����������	
���������	����
������������	������"�����������!�������������������������	����	���	��	
�������
�
�����������	�����
�
�
���������	������23��823�.��������������������������%��������23��������	����	�
	
��������$���	��	����������	�����
��������
�������������������	
���������������	���
�������	�����������	�������	����	���������	��	����	
���������	�������	���������
������	������
�

Page 66



�

� � �0�

�
����������	�����������	
���������������	������(�����������'���	���������	����	
��
�������	��6������	��������������������������	�������"����	����������	�����
��������������������	��������	
��
�����������������������������
�
�
���������	��������������������	
����������!��������������	��	��������������	
����
,$������	� '����
��
���	�����
�������	���	
����
������	������4��	������	������������
	�����������
�
�
�����������	����#����	�����		���/<��������233 1������	
�	�	
���������
��������
��������	��������������������������������������������������	
����	����������	����
�����������������������������
��������$���������	�������������	����������
	
�	��	�����������������	
�	�������������������	���������	���������
����������
���	
�	��	�
���	
���������
����������	�������������	���	������	������������	����
���������	����
����	
����	����������������������������������
�����������
��������	�����	
�������	����!�������	���
���	����������������������������
�
�
��
���!�!$!���������	
�����������������	����	
����	
���	����������������	������
(��'���' 	��-$ '!���������!'�.��-	�%.�%�/��
��
�������	����	��������������������
�������������������������������	���	
�������������	
����������
�
)������	
��������������������	
��'*	'�.	��-$ '!����	�����	���	����	
�������������	�����
	
�������	�	�:����	��������������	��'�����	�/:��������������������1���
�����	
��
������$���	�	�	����6��	�����(�������������������������	�����������������	����������
������������������
�
#�6���
�233=�	
�������������	�����
�.�	��	
�%��%'!�	��&�%�'���	�����������	�
����	����������������������#�%��/�
���
��	�����#�	�	�	������������%��������
�����	���1����'(���)�/�
��'����	�������������	
���	���
����)"���	����1���
�������
�������������������������	����	
���������	������	
������������'	�	���	��
	
�
��(��'���' 	�'�'-�)��!����	
����������������������������5����������	���	����8�	
��
'	�	�	����%�����(���������������	����	
�	
��:����	��������������	��'�����	���	
���>�������
%����������	���	��	
�������	�	�:����	�������%����������	�����)��������������%�����
6��������������������
������	��	���
�
�
��������������	�6��������	
������������	������%������
�����	��������������	
�	
��
:����	��������������	��'�����	��-����������	��������	�������������
������	
����
�
:����	������	
��:����	��������������	��'�����	��
�
-��������	���	���������	��������
������	����	
��:����	��������������	��'�����	����	
��
�����	�	�:����	�������%�����������������������������
����	���	
���������	�
	�������������	��	����������������������������	��������������������
�
��!��������	�����$.-�!'%"	���!%� ����	
���$.-�!	)���!�%��-	�%�������%���23�3&�����	�
	
���	��	�������
���	
��%�������������������	��	��������������	��	�����������	�
����������
������������������	�	
���"	�:����	��	�6������	���������	������
������������������������	���	�!��������������	����������������	
������	�����
*���������+������	��	��	
���������	��6������	�������%������,���	�����4��	�%�����
�������������������	�����	��	
���������	��6������	������������	����	�������
	��	
��(��������?�6������	�'���	����������
����������	��������23��&�2���
�
�
��%�����6������	������/%6�1�����������	
��%�����6����������>�������
%��������	����	��
	���	��������	
��������������	�����������������������		�����

Page 67



�

� � �.�

�
�
���������
�������	��������
�)��!���"	(%')�*�%+�����������������������������	�
����	�������	��	�	��������	
�	�	
�����������������	�����	�������	
�	���������	
��
��������������
������������!��!������������!���������	���	����	��
����	
�����������������
�	�����������	
��!���������	������	
���������	�������
	
�#�	�'�'-�)��!	��	���+		
�
�
������������������!���������������!���������	��	������	
������������������75�
�
6��	��������-��������������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

�������	������
�
:����	��	���
#��������	�
���
:��������	�
�����
�
(	
���
#��������	�
�����������
������	
�����
%����������	����
������	
�-����	�
-��!�?�),����	��
#����	��
����	���'	��	����
����	�
6������	�
����
�
:����	��	���
;������������
�
�����
���������
'	�	���	�

�
'	��	�����-��!�-����	���

(����	�����-��!�
-����	����

�

#	���������	�

�������	��
6��	�����

�������	��-��!�
6������	�������
/�6�1�

�'���	���

)"	���������	����
#����	���

����	������		���

�����	�������

��'.	��	
�%��%'!�	���+	'�.	
���$%'���	
	

�%��%'!�	���+	�'�'-�)��!	
�%�$�	
	
���%'!���' 	���+	�'�'-�)��!	
�%�$�	
	
���+	
#')������

Page 68



�

� � �@�

��*	!#�	
�$��� 	����!�%�	���+	

�
������������	����'	��	��������(����	�����-��!�-����	����	���������������	���
��������������	�	
��!������!���
��
�	
���	��	
��������$���������	�������������
��4��	������-����	�����������������	����
����	
�������!�����	������
��
���������������
�����������������	��������	�������	�����	���
����	
����	�����������	����	��������
��	�������	������������������������!���	�������������

(�4��	��������	�������������	�����������;���������������������!���
�������������	��	��
	
���������	������	��������	
�	����
�'�������������	�����
�����	���	����	���	��	
��
������������	
��������$��!����	��	�����������
�
�
�������������	����������	������������	��	
���������	�������!�	
����
�'	��	�����
���(����	�����-��!�6������	�����������-��!�6������	�'	��	��������������
'	�	���	�
�����������������������!������	�����������	����������	
���������	��
������������������	����	�����������������������������	�����!��	��;������������
���!�������������������	�������
�
-����	���������	�����������	�����������	����������������	��������������	���
�����	��	������������	
����
����	�������	
��'	��	��������(����	�����-��!�
6������	����������	
�6���������	��	������	���������������,��	���	�����	���
�	�����	������		����
�
(����	�����-��!�-����	���������������	��	��	�����	�����	�	�������!��	
�	�����	
���	��
	
��������������	
��������������4��	��������	��������	�������!�	��	
���	��	���������������
����������	
��'	��	�����-��!�-����	�������	�����������5��		������!��������	��������������	��
	
���	��	
���	��	�������4��	��������	
����������
�
(����	�����-��!�-����	�����������������������	����	�����	
�'���������4��	�����������
��	
����������������	��;���������������������	���
�
�
����	
���	����!����������	�������������	������	
��������	���������	������!��������
	�!�����	���	�����	���������	���	����	���������	��
�
�
��������$�����������	��	���A�	�������	���
�����	
�	
��������-���������%������:����
����������������������	
���!������	��������!��	�����	���������������	�	����
�������	������!����	
�������	����������������������
�
���	���
�������������
��
�
���������������������������������������������	���
���������������
���������
����������	
�	�	
�������	������!������������������	��	�����
��
������������	
���������
�����������������	���
����-����	����
��
�������������
�
���	���
�������������������
��
'�����(����������&���6���������	���	
��������������	����������	
���	��������$������
���	���
��������������������	�������	
��������	�!������	�������	���
����������&���������
��
'�������	����	���
����
����	
����������!������	����������!�������������������	������	�
���������������������	��
��
#�������	���������������	������������������	�������������
�	�����	���
�����
���	�����������	
��������	��	
���������	�������!����������	��	�����	
���������
���

Page 69



�

� � �B�

���������������	����	���
����������������	�����
��
��������������	���������	
�!���
�	�!�
���������
���������
����������������������������	��������	
���
��������
������	������!���������
��
�
����������������������	����������!����������	������������������������!���
��	���	������������������	
���	��������$��������'	�	���	���������	�����	
��
�����	��������	�	������#	���	�����%�������-����	���'	����������
��
�������������	����
��������	���������!���	�������������������,���	�����������
	
�����������������	�	���	��	�������������	������������������	��������
���������
����,���	����������������������������������	
���	�������������������
�������
���!�	���	
�����	
�	
���������������	���	���������������	�������!������������!���
�
�������	��6��	�����
�
�
������������������������	
���������	�������!�	
����
��	���	������������	�
��������������
�
�
��'	������������		������	������������������	
����
�	
���������������	�
(��������	���������������������������	�	�������	�����	�	����
�
���������	����	������
�����������������������������	����	
�������	���������	����
��	������
����
������	
���������	�����	�������������,���!���	���	�����	������������
�
�#�	�� �	��	$.�!	
�
#	���������	�
�
#	���������	�����	�!�������4��	���������������������	��	��������	
�	�	
������������
������,��	�����!��������	�����	�������	�������������������	
���
�������	
����	��
��������#	������������	��	
����	
���	���������	����������������������	
��������$��
����	������	����	������������������������	���������������������������	
�����������
�
#������	�����������	����������������������	��������	
��������������������������	��
���������������������	���������"����������!����	�����	�����	�������	�������	�5������
����	
����������	��������������������	�����
�
�
�����������#	���������	��������������������������	������������	���	��	�����
���
�������	���
������!�������	
����������	�������������������
�
#	���������	����������	���������	����	
�����!��������	��������	������	�����
��
�
�������	
�	�	
�������������	���������	���������	�������������������	
�	����,��	��
���������������������������������	
��������$���	�����������������	������	���
�����	
�
!����	�!�
���������
��
�������,������	�������	��	�������	�����������	������������
�
��	����������������	
�����,�������������	����������	
���	���������	����	������
����������	
��	��������������������	
������	������		������������������������������
�����	������	
�	������		�����������	
���
��������	��$������������	��
�
'������	�������233 ��#	���������	����������
��������������������:��������	�
���	���
���������	���
�������������������	
���	����������:�������	������������
��������������#	���������	������	��	���
�

Page 70



�

� � �9�

�
�������	�����	
�������	�������75�
�
•� �	�������������������������������������"��������������		��������	���������	
�

������������&�������
������!C�
•� �
�����������	�����	��������������	����������������������������	�!�������C�
•� �����������������������	��������������������������	��!��������
����#�����
•� ��	���	�����	C�
•� ����������������"�������������	��������
������������
���	����������	����	�����������

���������	�!�����������	
��������/�1�	
����������!�����	
�C�
•� �����������		��������	��	���������	����	�����	
�������������	
��	
���	���������	�

���	��C�
•� ��������������	��
�����������	
�������������������	�����	���������������������

�������������������!������
�
)"	���������	�
�
���	��
��	��������	�����	�����������"	���������	����������������23�3&����
���
�����������������	����������	������������������������#�����������	�����	����!�
	
������������	
�	
������������	�	�	������,������	�7�
�

•� �
������	�������������	��  =�
•� �
��������������	�����	����
•� �
���������������	���	��   �
•� �����	�����������	�-�����	����2330�

�
�
������!���	
�	
�����������	
�����������	���������������	��������	
�	�	
�����!�
	
����������������5�����	������	����	�����	
��������$��!����������������������	��
�
�
������	����������$��-���	���
���6�������������5�����	���	
�����!�����	
���
�����	����������	����	
������������
�
����	�����������
��
#������	�23�3�	
��:����	��	�����������	��������������������	�/:���1�
������������	����	��������������������	����������	���)����D���������������
����������
�
)��	������	
������	����������$�������������	���������������������������������������
����	�������	������������	
�����	
����	�	�	�������	�������������	
��������	���	���	�������	��
���������������	���������������������	�	
�	����	�	
������	�������������������
�����������
�
�
������	�����������������!�����	
�	
��:����	������������������	����������	
����
�"��	����5
���������	�����	�����	��	
�������	�����	����
�
A	���	
���������	������������	��������	
������	������������������	����	�������	�
����	����	�����������<>'��������/�"�������<>'�%����	���	���	�1�����������	
���	�������
�	
���������������������������)��������	����������	
�������!���
>���������	��������	�	��������������	���	
�����������������������	��	�����������	
��
��	��������	��������
�
����	������		���
�

Page 71



�

� � �=�

�
��������$������	������		��������������������������������	
����#������	�
6�������������	������	
��>�������%��������:��������	����	���
��$�������	�	�
>����������	���
����
�
�
�������		���
��������������	������	
�������	�	����	
�#	��������)"	���������	�����
���	����	
���	��������������������	����!������������#	��������������	��������������	�
��		������	
������	��	����������	����!������������	����	�������	�������������
	
���	����	������	
�����������	
��	���"	���������	����
�
�
������	������		���
��������������	��	�7�
�

•� ���������������	�������	���	
���������	�	��������������������������
� ���	����������������!������!�����	
���������
•� 6��	���	
��������$��������������	
��	�����������
����	�����������
� ��	������������������������������
�����	��%�������-�����	����
� ���'	�����(������
•� 6��	���	
����������������������������#	���������	�
•� ��������#	���������	$������������	���������	����������	
���
� ���,�������������	�����������	�������	�������	����
•� 6��	���	
����������������	
�����������6������	����	���
•� -����������������	
�������	�������������	
����	�	����	
��������
� ���������'	�	���	����'	�	���	���������	��
•� E�����������������������	����������������	
���	�5������'	��	����

�
#	��������)"	���������	����!���������	���	
���	����"�����������	��	���������������
��	����	
��	�������������

(�����������'���	���

�
���������
������������������������������	����	������	�����������	�����
��	�����
�����(�����������'���	���6������	�;�����	����5�����	��	
������	���
���	����

�
��;������
�����������������	��	
�������	��������������
��!����������������
�"��������4�����������������������������������������������#	�������������������
���	���������������������	����������	������������������������������
�������	
��
���������
��;���������������������������������	������	
��������'	��	��������	���
����

%����6���23���	
��;�������������������	�������5�"���	������������/�����	�����
����	�����������	�����	�1����	�����5��	����������	�	������
��
���!�������	���
�������	����	
�������	���
���
��������	
�������(�����������'���	������������
������	
����������������������	�	
�����!����	
��;������

�
�������������(�����������'���	������������
�����
��
�
����������������	����������	���
��������	���������������������������	�����
�����������������
�����	
��������$���	�	�	����
���	�����	
�������	�	������	������
���	
����	
�������������������������	���
���	���
�����F
������������	�	
��������	���	�����	
��������
����	
����	
���	��	����!�
�����	�6����������(�����������	
���������	���		������	����	��������,���	����	
��
��������
	�
��������	�	
�������!��	
�������������������������
��������������
����
�����������	
��	
��������$��������������

��&��*	��	�����!�&�����	
�

Page 72



�

� � � �

������	
���	���������
��������������	�����������	�����	�����	���������������������	
��
�����	����������	
�����	�������	�������	�������������������������	
�������	����������
	
�����	�������	���������	�������������������
	�����������������������������������
����������#	��������)"	���������	����#����	��������	������������������	���	������
���������	������������������	���������	���������	�����	
������	������		������
	
����
������������	
�!���������������
�
�
���������������4��	�	�����������������	����������	������
����
����	��������	
��
���������	�������	������	�����������	����	�������������!��������	�������������
�
���������
�������	�����
���-��!�6������	���������
�
#����������	
�������	���	�����������	�������	�������������"	������������/����	����
#����	��1���������	��������������#	���������	�
�����������������	��������	
�	���
������
��������������	����	
�������	���	�����������
���������������	
�	�����
��	�	���������������������	����!����������������������	
��	
���	�������	����
�������	��
�
:����	����������	�������������G���	����������������	
����	�����������	���	
��
	
����:����	��	����	
�������	�����	
��,���	��������
�������������	��������	
��
��������	������������	���������������������	
����������
	
��-�����'�!	��&�%�'���	���$��	
�
������	����	
������������	
�������	����������	
�����	�������	�������	����	
�����������
������������������������
���������������������������������	�����	
��������������	
���
'	�	���	7�
	
��.�$)	��%)	(��'���' 	�!%'!�-"			
�
�
��������$��6�����������%�������'	��	����/6�%'1���������	�����������	���	��
�����	����������	
��������
������'������-�������������	�����23�(�	�����
23�3�������������������	�������	
�������	����������	��
�
�
���	��	����
�������������4��	�	�����	
����������������	����	
��23��&�2���	�����������	�
�"�������������������	
��23�3&�����		�������	������������	���	�������	�9�H���
23����
�
�
��������
������'������-������/�'-1�����������
�����(�	�����23�3�����	�����

�������������������	����������	������2=I�����������	
���	�������	�������	
���"	������
��������
������������	���������	
��9I���������>���������	������������	�	��������	����
	�
�������������23��&�2���������������	����	
�������������������	
���������	�
���
�������������������������������	����	
��	
�������������	������"��������	
����
��������������������
�
�
����������6�����������%�������'	��	�����/6�%'1���������	
���������23��5�@��#	�
���	������	
����!�������	���������������	
�	�	
������������������������	�
���	
����
�����	�	
���	�����	������������������	��������	
��������������	����������������
�
�����������������������������	�������������������	
�	�	
���������������������	
��
�������	������	�����������7�
	

•� 	
��������������	�������	��������	��������������C�
•� ���������������������	����������������C�
•� �������������������
������������������C�

Page 73



�

� � ��3

•� ����������"���	�	�����������	�������	���
������!�������������������	�����
��������������!������	���C�

•� ��������	��
��	�������	
�����������	
��������$�����������C�
•� �5���	�����	���	��������	����
�

������	���������	����	
��23��&�2������	�����
������	��	�
�������������;����	�
:���������������
��
�����23��&�2�	�	���J�0�0���#	�����������	����	
�	���������������	��
�����������	����������������������	�	
����������
�
(��������	��	�������	�����������������������������������F����	����	���	�����	��
������������������������	�����	�����������4������������������������	�"��<<:-����
���������	������
��������������	����	��
����������	�����23��&�2�
�������	
���������
���!�	
�	�	
���������������	����������	����	�������	������������	��	����������	����
�����
	
����	����	���
�
�����������"��	���������������������	
�������������������������	���	��������	��	���
����#������	������
��������������	��������	������
����	
���������
��
��	����!��	��
���	�	
���
��������������
�������������	
�	��������������		���4�����������	�����
�	����	���������	
�����	�����������������������
�
�F���	����
����������	����������������	�����	��	��������������
�����������	�����
�����������	���	�����>�������	
���������
�������������������	����	���������	����
����	�����������������������	
�������	��������������	��������	���������	�������!��
�������������	�����	���������	���������
��������	���������	���������	���
�

�&��	
��!%�	���!��-		

�
�����	������	
����������	��������������##������������)����
�>���	������	�����	��
����
����	�	��������������	��������������	���	
����������

#�������	�������������������	
�������	����	
��������##����	����	
������������!�����	
�
)����
�>���	����������	�����
�	��	���	�����	����	
������������������	�������	�	����
��������
��	���	��������	
������������

%��������	
��������	������	
��4��	�)>&����%��������	��'	����	
����������������������	
�
�����������	
��(�	����������������	
��'	������������	���������������!�	����"�������
���	
��������D������
�����	����	���	
����������	�����������>��������	
����������	���
�������!��)"�������������	����	�����������������
�������������������������������
������������	���	�������������������������	
����	�"	����	
��������$����������
���������	���'	��	������������	�������	�����!�	�����	�����

����5��������!�	
�����������	�����	�������	���������������	���	
�����������
	�!������������	����	���������	
�����	���	�������	
�����	����	����	���	�����
���	
����
����	�����!���

�

�)� �"��	�� '!����	
	
�
�������������������	�	��������������	����!������	���	�����������������	���	��
��������	�����	������#	�	
�����������	�������5
��������������	�����������������
��		����������!��������	���	����������	��������������!�����
���5
��������������

Page 74



�

� � ���

������������	������
�������	
��������������,�������������	�����������������)�������	�
������������������������������	�������������	����������
�
<���������������������������������
��������������	
��	
����	
���	�D�������	����	
���
�
������	�����	��������	���
����������������������������	
���������������������	
����
�
������������������	����
�
�
��������
������'������-��������(�	�����23�3�����������������	������	�
�����	�����������	
����������
��
�
���������	�	�������4��������������	����������������
���	���
�
)"	���������	��	��������	
����������	�������	
�������A��������������!�������
����������
�����	���	�����������������	�����
�
�
��������A�����������	����	����������	�����	
���������	������������	��	���
����������������������	����
����������	������	���������������'������������������	����	
��
�������	����������	���
�
�
��������$����������	�������������������"���	���	�������	����������	����������������
23��&�2��������������������������������������������������	�������������	����������	���
����	
�����	��������������������	
�����������	���������������������	���	�������
��������	����	���������	����	
��������������������	
	
��' !#	���0$' �!���	
	
>���	
���,����	����
�����������	��������	
��������	
�-����	����	
�����	���������
�,����	����������������	����
���
�������	����������	��������������������"���	������	����
�������	�<���
����
����������	�����������������
��
#�������	����������	
����	
���������
������!�����	
�������	
�2323����	����	����	�	����	��
	��������	
�����������	�������	������������������������	������	��!��!��	��	����!�
����������
���	
���,����	����������������������23��&�2������������������������	
��
������	
�2323����	���
�����
��
�
���������������!���	�����������������	��������>���	
�?�F����;����;������
��
������
��������	
�����������
���	
���,����	����������	��������	
����
���H��	�'	��	�����<�����
��������	���
��������������������!��������������	
��	�����������������>���	
������	
��
�����������������	�	��	
�����������
��
������������	�	
������������
	

'%���%�!	
	
#	����������	���	��	
��H���23�3�����	������		���	
�	�K'�����6������	�
���
�����	��	����	�����������
������	�!�����������	
������������	
��233 &�3�����	�
����������	�!�������	���������	������	���	����������	
���������������K���
���������	���
���������	��������������	�������	
�	
��������	�������%���	���������������	
��
������������������"���	�������������	
	
�
����������	��������	�������������	������!�������������������������������	����	
��
���������������������	������	
��������������	
��	
��������������	�����������
���
�������	����������	
������%���	�����������	
����
�	��	
��23�.&�@���������������
��
#��������	����	����	���������������
����	
�������!��������������	�������	��������	
��
	
��233 &�3��	���������	������	�����������������
������������	
�����������	������

Page 75



�

� � ��2

��!�����	�����	��	�������������	������	���	���������������	���������������������
���������������	����	����������	���������������'�������	����	
����
������������!���
���������	��������������	����������%���	����	
�	
���	������������
�	����������
��������������������������	��������������	
��������������������	�������	
��
�
�����������	
���
���������������
�
��	
���
����������	����������������	�������	���������������������	��������	���
��������	�����������:����	��������������	�����	����������������	��	�������	�����
���������������	�!��	����	����5�����������������	���������
�	��������������������
���������������;�	
�������������	�����
�����������	�������	���������������	�
	
��
����������	��������	����	
�	������	�����	��������	������	
�	����������	���������
	�!��	����	���������������
�
�
������	�'���������������5��������!��������!���������	�	������������������������	
�	
��
�	�����	�������	���%B�������������������	�������������������H����23����F��!�
���
����������������	
���
�����	��	��������	�	
������	�'��������������������	���
������������	
�	
������	��
�����������������!�����������������	���	
���������	��������
H����23����
�
�������������	���������������%���	��������������	
��	
�����������	
�,���	������23��&�2�
���������	
�������	����������	�'��������	���%B��	�!����	�������	�	
��!������!�����
�
������
	
1'�!�	�(��($!$%�	�'�.��  	  �*'���	�%'.��-	��#�)�	��'�� �!���	
	
�
�������	��%�����#�	��	����/�%#1����������	��
�������������5	�������	������	�������
������	���	�������	����������������	
���	���	����������6���
�23����:�����
���������	
��������������%#������	��	��	
�����4��	���6���
�23�����������	�����
���������	������
�����������23�.����4��	�	����	����������������������23��&�2���
�
�
�����4��	�����������
������	�����	������	������������	�������������	���
���H��	�
�����		�������������������������	���
������4��	�)"���	���������	���������������������
��������
����	
��	
�������������
�
�
�����4��	����!������	���
�������������
���	�����������	
�����4��	�����������
�������!��5�
	
��!������!��������	�������������������	����������������������(����	�����������
����,������
����������	���	������������������������	
��	
���%#���	���	����
��	��������	��������������������	�����	
����
��"��	�������������	���	��������
����
�������������'�/������������������������'�
���1������	��
��	�����5�
�������
��	���������������������������
��������	����������	��������	������
�
-����������	���������������������2I���23�3&���	
����
������	��	��������
����
�����������������	��	������������������������
��
�
����������	
�	�	
��������������
��������	
���	��������������������23��&�2���>��������	�����	�����������	�	
�	�	
���������
������"������	�����'�������������23�2&�0�������������	������
��������	��������'�
�����	���	���	
������%#�����	�����������������	
�����'���
�������������
����
�
�
��������D�����'��	��	�����������
���������	�����������������������	
��
�������	D��F��	��'	��	����-�������"���	����������23�����
�

'%���	��.$�!���	
�))�!)��!	���%-"	���������"	��#�)�	2
�
��3	
	

Page 76



�

� � ��0

����	������:)������������	��������	
��)������	��������	
��������-����	���
�����	��	�)�����)���������'�
����/�-�))1�����������������	�"��	��@�333����	
��
������	��������	������	
��AE���
������	�������	�"���������������23���8�6���
�23�2��
�
����J�2��������������������������	������������������	
���	������������	����
��	�"����
��"����	���6���
�23�0����	����
��
�	
��L�����������	�$�������������	��������������!�	��
��������������3I�������������
��
�����"���	���	����������	
�����	������������
��	�"�
����������23�3&��������������������23�2������	�����	���	�����J0@3�333��
�
���������	�������������������
�����(�	�����������
�������
�����	
�����	�����	�$������	��	��
�����������������	����	�����
��	
�����
������	��������	��������������(�	�����23�����
����
���	�����	������������������������	�	
���������	��	����
�����L)�������	���6�	���$����	���
���	������������	��������������������	��$�������	��	�������������������	������
���������	���������������	������������������	
������	���������������������
����������������!������L'���	�6�	���$���
�
������	
���	���������
���	�!��������������������	����	���	�������	�	
���������
����	�	�������������������!���������	�����	
�	
���-�))7�
�

•� '�		������������������������	����!�����������	
�������	��	�!�
�������
�������	
���������

•� F��!�����	
��	���������	�	��������������������
•� F��!���	��������������	�	������	
���������������	��	������#'(�.3B.��
•� #�	����	������L'���	���	���$�����������������������	�����������
�����
•� A�������������������	����	�����������������	��������������������������

��	����
�
�'%!��%�#���	
	
�
���������������������������������������������	���
���������������
���������
����������	
�	�	
�������	������!������������������	��	�����#�������	�����	
����
����	���
�������������	��������	�������	��	
�����������������������������
�����	��	����	����������	
��,����	��������������	
������������������	
��
�
-���������	
�	����
����	���
����������,�������������������������������������������
	
��������"�	�����	
���������	��	
���������
�����������������	���
����-����	����
��
�
������������
����	���
�������������������
�
'�������	����	���
����
����	
����������!������	����������!�����������	
����
�
���	���
����������������;��������������	������	����������������������	��
�
>����������������	���������������	������������������	�����������������������!�
����	
����		����������������	�������	���
�����������	������	�����������	
��������	��
���������������	�������	
���������	�������!����������	��	�����	
���������
���
���������������	����	���
����������������	�����
��
��������	����������	���������	
�!���
�	�!�
��������
	
	
	
����%)'!���	��&�%�'���	
	
#�'��	������23�3��	
��#	���������	�'���������������������	��
��
����������	
�	�
������	������!�������"��	�����	
��������D���������	��������	����������	�
��������	����
������������	
�	������	�����������	������	
��������D��'�����

Page 77



�

� � ��.

#�����	���-��!�(�����������������	��#�����	���6�������������������������	�����	�
�����		�����<��������23�3��
��
�
�������	�������������	��������
��
�������������������������
���������	��
#�����	���6������
����		���������	������		������6���
�23����	������	��	
�����	
��
����	�����	����	
�	����������	�!��	��������������	����������	�����������
	
����
��	�	
���������	�������	
���!�����	�����
��
����������	�!��	������������
�����������	����������������	����	�������������������
��
���������	��	����	
��(����	�����-��!�6������	�������
���������	
�������������
������	���������������!�������������	��	������!������	�������	
����������������	���
�����	
����"��������������������	������	���	�����	�����
��
�
������	�'�������
������������	�����������5����"�������	����	�����
�	
���"	�	����
��������������	��������������	���	
�����������	������	�������	
��	
�������	�
���	
����������
������������	
�	�	
�����������	�������������	�!�����������������
�����������
��������������������	����	��������	�������������	����������������������
	
��' !#	'�.	����' 	
'%�	����%)�	
	
�
�����������>���	
����'�����������;��������	
������������	
��<>'������	��������
�	����������	�	���������������������	�	���������	��	����������!������	
�����������
�
����������7�
�
�
����	�����
��	���������	��	���������	�����		����������	
���	��	�����������������
���
���	
����������	����	
���������������	����	�����������������	
�����������F
�	��
�������������������	
����	������������	�	���	
���"��	��������	��������������7�
�������
��������	����	���	��	
����	
������������������<>'�������	
��������	���	
������������
�
�������	
�������
�
�
����������	��������������	����	�����
������������������	����	������	�����	
��������
<>'���
������������	
�����������������	���	����������	
���������������!�	��	
���������
��	
���
�	
���������	���������	����	
�	������������������	�	
�������	���������������
�#<E'��
��
�	
��;���������������
������������������	����������������!����	
���������
������!��	��������������	������������������������������	����-��!��	��	
��������������
�����	���	���	
����
�	
�����������	�������������	
��;����������������
������������
������	�����!��	�������������	
����������>���	
F�	�
���
�
�
��	���������������������	�����	�����������	���������	
��<>'�	���������������	����
	
����	�����
��	�����������>���	
�)�����������	�	
��������������	�	�	������	�������
��������	�����������>���	
�)���������������������	�������������7����!������
��	�	���������	�
�����	
��	������������������������������	�������
�
)�	�����
��	���	
�	�������������	��������	���	
�������	��������������'	��	�����
>���	
���	
���	�������������������	������!����	
��<>'�����������	�	
���"	�	�	���
��
�
��������������������������!�����	�������������	���
��!��������	��	������	
������������
������	
������	����	�����
��������	���
������	
���������	��	�����������������
���	�������������	
����������������	�����	���������������	���	��	
��G����	��
#���	����#��������	����������	���	��/G#��1������������������	�������
�
��	������������	����	���	��	
�������!���������������������������	����������	��
��	
������������	����	�����
��������	���
���������������	������	
������	�'�����������
	��������	��������������������	��	��	����������������������	��

Page 78



�

� � ��@

�
#�����	���	��	
��<>'����������	
���	����������������������	��'��������/��'1�
����������
��������	�����������	
���	
��������	������������������	���������
��������������	
��	
���������	
�������	����	�����
�������������	������������
������	��
���	
�������������������	��������/')1���
�������	����	���
�����������	��
�������������������	�������	���
���	
�������������������	��������������������	����	
����
�
��������
	
��.$�!���	��	-�&�%�)��!	�$�.��-	��%	#�$���-	'�.	%�-���%'!���	��#�)��	
	
����������	����	
��������
������'������-�����������	����������	�������
�������
�����������93I���������������������-�	�������/�-�1�����	����������	
���������	�
����
�����������������������
��
���������	�����������	�����	��������������	�
��������
�
F
�������
�������������������������23��&�2���������	������������	��	��������	��
������	
���	
��������������������	
������'-�������	��'��	���-���������	�
�������
����	����
��
������������������	��	����������������	�����������	������	�����������

���������������	�����	�	����	��	
�����������
����������������
�
�����	���	��	
�������	����	
������
���7��
•� )��������	
����	����	���������	
��
���������!�	������	����
����������������D�

������	
���!D�	����"����������	��	���
������	���	����-�������	��������������	���
•� #���������������������	������������������
������������!�����	�����	��	��	
�������

	��������������	���������"����������	��	��	��������	
�
•� -�5����������������������	�����$������	��������	�����������������������	����&�

����	���������	�����	���
�������������	��������	�����	�	��������	
��������	��

�������	����	���������	
���"	�	����������

•� ;�����������������	
�������	��'��	��������	�����������	���������������������������
�����������	��	���	��	�
���������	
����

	
�!'!$!�%"	��)� �'���	4	��%��%'!�	'���!	)'�'-�)��!	
	
%��	
���	���
�������	
����������������	��������������	��	�������!���	��!�	����������
������	����������	������������	�������������������������������������������	���������
	�����	��������������������	
����������������	�����	������������	�������������	���
��������	��������,�����������	
���	����������
�������������������������������
����
�����	�	�������!�����	
���������	
�	������	�����������������	��������������	������������	����
����	��	��	�����!�����������	����	�������	����<�5�����������������"�����	
���������	��
	
�����!�����������	��������	���	���������������
��
F�	
����	
�����	������	�	���������	������
�������!��	
��������D�����������	����	��	����
�������	�	��������
�	���������	�����������������	�������,������	��������
�����	��	��������������������������"������������	�	�������!����������������
�
�
���������������!���	�������	����*�������	���������+�������������
��
�	
��
�����
�������������	���������������	������	������������	������������������	��
������	
�	���������������������4��	�	���"��	����������	��	��	�����	���	����
�
�.$�'!���	����%)�	
�
�
��������$������������	���	����������	��	�����
��
���������	�����:��������233=�
������������
�����	����������������������	
����	�"	����������������������	���

Page 79



�

� � ��B

��	������
�������
��������������	���
�����	
���
���������
������������������������
�����	���	������������������������	������������
��������$���	��	�����������	�	
���
�������	�����	���
�����
�
�
��������������	�23�3�
����
����������	�������	
���������
��
�'�
�����������!�
����	����������������	
������������	������	������������������
���������	�������
����������������	
����������	
����
�����������	
����	�������23���������	
�
���	
��
��
��	�
������	������������������	
�����	������9������������
����������	�����	
�	���	���
	�!���	
�����������������������	
����	��	������
�
��������	�������������	������������������������	����������������	����	���������
�������������	����
���	�����	�������������	
����������	�	���������#	����������	���	��
�6����	
��������	
�	�	
���������������	�����	
����!����	��������������������	
�����������
JB�����������<����	
������	
�������������	�	�������!�	
�	�	
����������������������	���
����������	
������	��������	�������	
�������������	�����������������������������	�����
�����	���������������	����
�����	
�	���������	
�����	��������	����
�
�����	���	��	
�������	����	
������
���7��
•� :������������������	��#����	�������	
�	���������%�������������>����

-����������������	�����)����	����������������
��
���������	
�	
��	�����������
���!������	�������	��	������	
��������	�������������	���

•� :��������������������������%����������	�	
�	����!��	��������	
������������	��
����������������	
����������	
���	������������	
�������	����	
�����������

•� F��!���	
����
�>����	���
����������	�������'>��'>���������>��	�����	���
	
���
�������	������������	
�	���	����	
�����������	�����������
���	
����	���

•� 6��	�����	
����
�������	�������'�
�����%�������	
���������������������
	������������������������
������
��
��������	
���������������	�������������
	��������	�����������
�������������	�����

�

�%!����'!���	
�
F���������������	
�������������	��	�!���	����	����������	
����������		����	�����	
���
�
�������������������������	���F��������	�������	
�	�	
�����	�����������������	
��
�����������	
������������	��	
�	���������	���������������������������	���������������
���	���	
�����������	�	�����������	���������	���������"	��������������
�
���	
�����	��������!���������	
���	�������	�����������	�����������������
���
�����	��������	������������	
��������
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
,'%%"	5�� 	 
  %	��&���	���-�  "	 .')	,%��)�	

#���	�6��$!�&�	 ��'.�%	��	!#�	
�$��� 	 7�%��!�%	��%	
�%��%'!�	�$���%!	
�
7'!�.			 	 7'!�.				 7'!�.				
�

Page 80



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
 
Subject:    Operational Risk Management Update Report 

Committee:    Audit Committee 

Date:      27 June 2011 

Cabinet Member:   Councillor Ricketts    

CMT Member:   Director for Corporate Support  

Author:    Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk & Insurance 

Contact:    Tel: 01752 304967     

     Email: mike.hocking@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:     CRM/MJH 

Key Decision:   No     

Part:     I  
  
 
Executive Summary: 
 
At the meeting of the Audit Committee on 21st January 2011, I reported that  
Services were engaged in a revision to their Operational Risk Registers in order to 
identify and align risks with their Business Plans in accordance with corporate  
guidelines on operational risk management  and business planning  

This report now outlines the continuing progress being made across Services in delivering 
Operational Risk Registers.  
 
The total number of operational risks now reported has increased from 118 to 131, comprising 2 
high (red) risks, 71 medium (amber) risks and 58 low (green) risks. 
 
Commentary on the high risk areas is included in the report together with details of control 
actions/mitigation in place. 
 
Corporate Plan 2011/2014: 
 
Operational Risk Registers are being aligned to Business Plan objectives which are in turn linked to 
the Corporate Plan and our four priorities. This ensures that appropriate links are identified with 
individual risks where control action contributes to the delivery of a key corporate objective.         
 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications: 
Including finance, human, IT and land :  
None arising specifically from this report but control measures identified in risk registers could have 
financial or resource implications.   

Agenda Item 9Page 81



 

CRM/MJH/RM Monitoring Report  7thJune 2011 2

 
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equality Impact Assessment etc: 
None arising specifically from this report but community safety and health and safety risks are taken 
into account in the preparation of risk registers.  
   
Recommendations  & Reasons for recommended action: 
The Audit Committee is recommended to note the current position with regard to operational risk 
management.  
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
Effective risk management processes are an essential element of internal control   and as such are 
an important element of good corporate governance. For this reason alternative options are not 
applicable. 
 
  
Background papers: 
Plymouth City Council Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement 
Operational Risk Registers and associated working papers 
Business Plan guidance and template 2011-2014 
Previous reports on risk management to Audit Committee  
 
 
Sign off: 
 
Head 
of Fin 

SW 
 

Head of 
Leg 

DS Head 
of HR 

 Head 
of AM 

 Head 
of IT 

 Head 
of 
Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member : Assistant Director, Democracy and Governance 
 

Page 82



 

CRM/MJH/RM Monitoring Report  7thJune 2011 3

 
Report of Director for Corporate Support to Audit Committee 

27 June 2011 
 

Operational Risk Management Update Report 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 At the meeting of the Audit Committee on 21st January 2011, I reported that Services were 

engaged in a revision to their Operational Risk Registers in  
order to identify and align risks with their Business Plans in accordance with  
corporate guidelines on operational risk management and business planning.  
 

1.2 The business plan guidance and template has been revised for 2011-2014 and departments 
have been engaged in populating their service business plan templates to cover the next 3 
year rolling plan. 

 
1.3 This report now outlines the continuing progress being made across Services in delivering 

Operational Risk Registers in line with the Council’s shared vision and priorities. 
 
1.4 The total number of operational risks now being reported has increased from 118 to 131, 

comprising 2 high (red) risks 71 medium (amber) risks and 58 low (green) risks. 
 
1.5 The increase in risks is mainly due to the addition of 13 new risks from the Assistant Chief 

Executive’s Department following a risk workshop held in March and 8 new risks from 
Finance, Assets and Efficiencies following their business plan revision. 

 
1.6 The report includes commentary on the high risk areas identified together with details of 

control actions/mitigation. 
 
2. Background 
 

2.1 Although the CAA inspection framework has been abolished, the performance drivers within 
the Use of Resources assessment remain a valid focus for the Council to continue on its 
improvement journey and, in particular, for the development of an effective risk management 
strategy. 

 
2.2 We will therefore continue to work towards fully embedding risk management in the 

Council’s core business processes in line with the original UoR Action Plan. 
 

Page 83



 

CRM/MJH/RM Monitoring Report  7thJune 2011 4

 
 
 
 
2.3 The good progress made towards achievement of this outlined in this report should provide 

Members with assurance that operational risks are now being identified effectively, mitigation 
actions put in place and Operational Risk Registers monitored routinely alongside the delivery 
of Business Plan objectives.  

 
3. Operational Risk Registers and Analysis of Risks Identified 
 
3.1 Departmental Risk Champions continue to make good progress in embedding the corporate 

risk management process to enable service level Operational Risk Registers to be brought in 
line with the business plan guidance and template 2011-2014. 

 
3.2 In drawing up their Business Plans, Assistant Directors and Heads of Service are being asked 

to identify risks that may prevent them from delivering on their key service objectives and, by 
monitoring these risks on a regular basis at management team meetings, will be tracking the 
effectiveness of mitigation controls. 

 
3.3 As the risk identification process includes quantification through a probability/impact 

assessment, Services should also be able to identify key risks and prioritise their use of scarce 
resources more effectively. 

 
3.4 All Services have therefore now either completed Operational Risk Registers or are reporting 

work in progress in line with development of their Business Plans. 
 
3.5 An update across directorates is provided below: 
 

• Children’s Services 
 

The Children’s Services risk register is divided into four divisions, Lifelong Learning, 
Commissioning, Policy and Performance, Learner and Family Support and Children’s Social 
Care in line with the Children and Young People’s Trust Plan. 
 
No red risks are currently reported and there has been a decrease in the number of amber 
risks. 

 
 
 

Page 84



 

CRM/MJH/RM Monitoring Report  7thJune 2011 5

• Development 
 

Development’s operational risk register is divided into four categories of risk and these are 
Planning Services, Economic Development, Transport & Highways and Strategic Housing.  
Whilst there has been a drop in the number of operational risks, the department is reporting 
the potential for strategic risks to increase around the Growth Agenda for the City. 
 

• Community Services 
 

Risks are monitored every six months and the Risk Champion attends senior management 
meetings to meet individual officers, review their risks and also raise awareness of the risk 
management process. 
There is a new amber risk relating to local nature reserves.  As more people are being 
encouraged to go outside and view wildlife they are experiencing  
greater use and footfall.  The risks are around budget constraints for on-going maintenance, 
particularly tree work.  A Tree Strategy is being developed and tree surveys are being 
programmed on all LNR path networks. 

 
• Assistant Chief Executive 
 

A risk workshop was held on 16th March and a revised risk register has now been developed 
alongside the Business Plan and is awaiting ratification by the senior management team. The 
register will now be monitored regularly in line with the Business Plan. 

 
• Corporate Support 
 

Finance, Assets and Efficiencies (F,A & E) has developed an over arching service plan for 
2011/12 that captures the key priority actions from Capital & Assets, Finance and Value for 
Money.  To accompany this for 2011/12 there will also be an over arching risk register for F,A 
& E consisting of the top level risks from each service area but with each service area 
continuing to have their own risk register covering all their activities. 
 
The Revenues & Benefits Business Plan is developed annually by the DMT with Team 
Managers’ input and risks identified at this stage.  Risks are then monitored and actions 
planned at monthly management meetings.   
 
The ICT business plan is being finalised following recent office moves and risks aligned 
accordingly. 
 
 

Page 85



 

CRM/MJH/RM Monitoring Report  7thJune 2011 6

Legal Services. 
 
Risks are aligned with the Legal Services Business Plan and are reviewed by the Management 
Team on a six monthly basis or sooner if a new risk is identified.   
 
Human Resources and Organisational Development 
 
All risk register monitoring dates are included in the HR & OD forward plan together with 
risk assessment monitoring dates. 
 
There is one new amber risk in relation to the reduction of sickness absence and productivity. 
 This is linked to strategic risk 36 (Management of Employee Stress) and a specific project is 
being scoped to look at the associated risks. 
 

3.6 The table below shows the total number of risks now identified in operational risk registers 
across the Council and shows the comparison with the last monitoring period: 

 
Risk Category No. of Risks – 

Jan 11 
No. of Risks – 

Jun 11 
Deleted 

Risks Jun 11 
New Risks 
Jun 11 

  Red (High) 4 2 0 1 
  Amber (Medium) 63 71 9 22 
  Green (Low) 51 58 6 5 
  Total 118 131 15 28 

 
4. Red Risks 
 
4.1 Of the four “red” risks identified in January 2011, one remains red while three have been 

reduced to amber following improvements to controls.  One new red risk has been added 
since the last report as indicated below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



 

CRM/MJH/RM Monitoring Report  7thJune 2011 7

Department Potential Risk Comments / Mitigation 
RED RISK 
 
Finance - Capital & 
Assets 

Failure to maintain trees on 
the corporate estate. 
 
Pockets of land retained by 
the Council following the 
stock transfer to Plymouth 
Community Homes now 
come under the control of 
Corporate Property.  There 
is a need to complete a 
survey and register of trees 
on this land. 

Council owned trees have 
been identified but condition 
surveys and an SLA has been 
agreed with Parks Services 
to complete the surveys and 
carry out any necessary 
remedial works with a target 
date for completion of 
Autumn 2011. 
Following this the 
management of all Council-
owned trees will be 
centralised as part of the 
“Corporate Landlord” model 
currently being developed. 
  

 
NEW RED RISK 
 
Finance, Assets & 
Efficiencies 

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy issues 

This risk is also included on 
the Strategic Risk Register. 
Robust delivery plan 
structure put in place for 
2011/12.  Progress is 
reported within quarterly 
finance and performance 
reporting. 

 
 
Department Potential Risk Comments / Mitigation 
FORMER RED RISK 
(Now amber) 
 
Children & Young People 

Inaccurate pupil number 
forecast in school admissions 

The risk has been reduced to 
amber as mechanisms have 
been devised to improve the 
way information is received 
from schools whenever 
there is a change in pupil 
numbers. 

 

Page 87



 

CRM/MJH/RM Monitoring Report  7thJune 2011 8

FORMER RED RISK 
(Now amber) 
 
Finance, Assets & 
Efficiencies 

Failure to achieve carbon 
reduction targets 

The carbon management 
plan is in place and a 
structure review is underway 
to assist in delivery. 

 
FORMER RED RISK 
(now amber) 
 
Human Resources & 
Organisational 
Development 

HM Revenue & Customs 
Compliance (Risk of 
engagement of workers on 
incorrect employment basis 
incurring unforeseen tax and 
N.I. financial liabilities) 

An audit has taken place and 
controls have been 
developed to ensure correct 
employment status is 
confirmed prior to 
engagement of staff. 

 
5. Risk Register Information 
 
5.1 Operational Risk Registers record mitigation actions and controls for all risks identified 

together with a named risk owner in each case in order to aid monitoring which is being built 
into the business plan monitoring framework in each Service.  

 
5.2 Risks scored 5 and under are considered to be managed to an acceptable level and have been 

removed from registers and archived in line with the current Risk Management Strategy. 
 
5.3 Risk information is being recorded on the corporate performance management system, 

ePerform, using the risk management reporting module until any successor system is 
implemented. 

 
5.4 More detailed information on individual Services’ risk registers can be obtained from the 

Head of Corporate Risk & Insurance, departmental risk champions or Heads of Service. 
 
6. Update of Risk Management Strategy 
 
6.1 The annual review of the Risk Management Strategy has been undertaken and revised in line 

with the Council’s four new corporate priorities and the shared vision. 
 
6.2 The updated version has now been published on the Intranet and can be downloaded from 

the Document Library 
 
7. Information Governance 
 
 

Page 88



 

CRM/MJH/RM Monitoring Report  7thJune 2011 9

7.1 In September 2010, the Internal Audit Service issued a report which concluded that 
 fundamental weaknesses existed in the Council's corporate information management 
 arrangements. The findings of that report were accepted by the Council's Senior 
 Information Risk Officer and Corporate Information Manager and were discussed at Audit 
 Committee in November 2010. 
  
7.2 The report included an Action Plan which is now being progressed. The Corporate 

Information Manager attended Audit Committee, in March 2011, to provide an update on the 
positive steps that are being taken to embed information management principles throughout 
the organisation and other key actions which are being taken to formalise responsibilities and 
improve staff training and awareness. 

 
7.3 The Director for Corporate Support, as the Council’s designated Senior Risk Information 
 Officer, has asked all Directors to appoint Information Risk Officers within their service areas 
 to establish what information systems they use and who is responsible for them. These 
 officers are forming a corporate group to act as a conduit for implementation of improved 
 and more consistent information governance across the Council. 
  
7.4 To support this objective, and as a first step, the Operational Risk Management Group 

facilitated an Information Governance training workshop for risk champions on 18th March 
2011. 

 
7.5 The workshop introduced a standard risk template for the inclusion of a common set of 

information governance risks in all departmental risk registers and the baseline information 
from this exercise will inform future mitigation actions. 

 
7.6 In addition, on 26 May the Assistant Director for ICT hosted a briefing for Members and 

Officers to raise awareness of cyber threats to our information security. 
 
8. Risks and Corporate Business Processes 
 
8.1 A key aim of the risk management strategy is to embed risk management considerations into 

core business processes such as strategic and financial planning, policy making, performance 
management, project/partnerships management and business planning. 

 
8.2 Good progress has been made in all these areas as follows: 
 

• Strategic and Financial Planning – Following analysis of the Plymouth Report, the 
council’s priority focus has been reduced from 14 Corporate Improvement Priorities to 4: 
deliver growth, raise aspirations, reduce inequalities and provide value for communities.  

Page 89



 

CRM/MJH/RM Monitoring Report  7thJune 2011 10

Delivery plans are supported by risk logs and resources are allocated according to risk –
assessed priorities so there is sustained focus on value for communities and the efficiency 
agenda. 

• Policy Making – report authors preparing papers for Member decisions are required to 
include risk considerations in the front summary sheet for all Committee reports. 

• Performance Management – the Council is looking at replacing the current Performance 
Management system – ePerform. Until the successor system is in place, risks will continue to 
be recorded in the risk management module and linked to strategic and service objectives. 
In addition, to support the development of a risk aware culture, risk management is now one 
of the five core management competencies in the Competency Framework and managers are 
therefore now routinely assessed on their performance in managing risk as part of their 
annual appraisal. 

• Project/Partnerships Management – A broad-based, city-wide review of governance 
across the whole partnership landscape is proposed for this year in light of the 
Comprehensive Spending Review and its impact on both the Council and its strategic partners 
and also in the light of structural reforms around for example the future provision of 
healthcare services. 
Project management arrangements under the control of the Corporate Property team include 
robust risk management elements. 

• Business Planning – Operational Risks are now being routinely incorporated into 
departmental business plans as outlined in Section 3 of this report. 

 
9. Conclusion 
 
9.1 The Council’s success in dealing with the risks it faces can have a major impact on the 

achievement of key promises and objectives and ultimately, therefore, on the level of service 
to the community. 

 
9.2 The Council recognises that it is operating in a climate of unprecedented financial pressure 

and that it therefore needs to be innovative, resourceful, customer focused and provide 
greater value for money.   

 
 The achievement of delivery plan actions to deliver budget savings continues  to be closely 
 monitored by Services during 2011 with regular reporting on a  risk rated basis to the 
 Corporate Management Team. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 90



 

CRM/MJH/RM Monitoring Report  7thJune 2011 11

9.3 The approach to operational risk management now being adopted is focussed on improving 
the ability of Services to manage those risks that may prevent them from delivery of their 
Business and Delivery Plans – this in turn should in time impact positively on outcomes for 
service users and, as the process becomes fully implemented as a routine business practice, 
will go a long way towards meeting the risk management requirements of effective corporate 
governance in line with external inspection and stakeholder expectations. It should also 
contribute effectively to reducing the Council’s overall budget deficit and to meeting the 
challenges of the current financial climate. 

 
9.4 One of the responsibilities of the Audit Committee is to seek and receive assurances that the 

Council has an effective internal control framework in place which includes arrangements for 
the management of risk at both strategic and operational level. 

 
9.5 This update report confirms that operational risks are now being identified across Services 

with clear links to Business Plan objectives and also confirms the good progress in embedding 
risk management in the Council’s other core business processes. 

 
9.6 The Operational Risk Management Group is continuing to work with departmental Risk 

Champions to maintain the good progress to date and to further develop consistent 
application of risk management considerations across all operations of the Council. 

 
9.7 The next progress report will be brought to Audit Committee in December 2011. 
 
10. Recommendation 
 

10.1 Members of the Audit Committee are invited to note the current position with regard to 
operational risk management. 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
 
 
Subject:    Risk Management – Annual Report 
 
Committee:    Audit Committee 
 
Date:    27 June 2011 
 
Cabinet Member:   Councillor Ricketts 
      
CMT Member:   Director for Corporate Support  

 
Author: Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk & Insurance   

    
Contact:    Tel: 01752 304967 
    Email: mike.hocking@plymouth.gov.uk 
 
Ref:    CRM/MJH     

Key Decision:   No 

Part:    I  
  
 
 
Executive Summary:  
 

                      This report summarises the work carried out during 2010/11 to develop the Council’s approach to risk 
management and covers: 

• Corporate and Operational Risk Management Groups 
• Risk Registers 
• Performance Management and Business Planning 
• Annual Governance Statement 
• Risk Management and the Competency Framework 
• Partnerships Governance 
• Intranet Risk Management Guidance 
• Information Governance 
• ALARM Benchmarking 
• Risk Management Maturity Review by Heath Lambert 
• Focus for 2011/2012 

 
 
Corporate Plan 2011/2014: 
 
Maintaining sound systems of internal control and risk management enables the Council to monitor and 
review the key risks that may prevent it from achieving its corporate and service objectives.  
          
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 93



Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications: 
Including finance, human, IT and land : 
 
None arising specifically from this report.  
   
 
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management, 
Equalities Impact Assessment, etc: 
 
The Risk Management Strategy specifically supports the Council’s overall governance arrangements. 
  
  
Recommendations  & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
The Audit Committee is recommended to note the Annual Report. 
 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Not applicable. 
 
  
 
Background papers: 
 
Strategic and Operational Risk Registers 
Previous Audit Committee reports 
 
 
Sign off: 
 
Head 
of Fin 

S.W. Head 
of Leg 

D.S. 
 

Head 
of HR 

 Head 
of AM 

 Head 
of IT 

 Head 
of 
Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member: Asst Director for Democracy and Governance  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



Report of Director for Corporate Support to Audit Committee 
27 June 2011 

 
Risk Management - Annual Report 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This report summarises the work carried out during 2010/11 to further develop the Council’s 

approach to risk management. 
 
1.2 The review covers : 
 

• Corporate and Operational Risk Management Groups 
• Risk Registers 
• Performance Management and Business Planning 
• Annual Governance Statement 
• Risk Management and the Competency Framework 
• Partnerships Governance 
• Intranet Risk Management Guidance 
• Information Governance 
• ALARM Benchmarking 
• Risk Management Maturity Review by Heath Lambert 
• Focus for 2011/2012 

 
2. Corporate and Operational Risk Management Groups 
 
2.1 Members will be aware that the risk management strategy involves a two tier approach. 
 
2.2 The Corporate Management Team (CMT) acts as the Corporate Risk Management Group (CRMG) 

with responsibility for the Strategic Risk Register and the overall risk management strategy. 
 
2.3 CRMG has met four times in the past twelve months to receive and approve monitoring reports 

and to consider strategic risk issues prior to Cabinet Planning giving approval for reports to be 
presented to Audit Committee. 

 
2.4 Directors have engaged fully in the risk management process in taking ownership of the Strategic 

Risk Register both formally at CRMG meetings and throughout the year in proposing amendments 
to the Register in line with changing circumstances and priorities for the Council. 

 
2.5 As a result the Strategic Register has now been through 18 revisions since it was first drawn up 

eight years ago which is good evidence of the dynamic nature of the risk management process and 
its embeddedness at a strategic level. 

 
2.6 Portfolio-holders at meetings of Cabinet Planning have also been engaged in considering and 

challenging risk management monitoring reports. 
 
2.7 Matters of day to day operational risk management are the responsibility of the Operational Risk 

Management Group (ORMG) which is chaired by the Head of Corporate Risk & Insurance and 
comprises Risk Champions from each Directorate and/or Service. 

 
 
 
 

Page 95



2.8 The ORMG has met every 6 – 8 weeks to review and monitor Operational Risk Registers, to 
promote and develop a consistent approach to risk management and also to consider bids from 
departments for financial assistance from the Risk Management Fund towards risk reduction 
initiatives. 

 
2.9 The Risk Management Fund is currently £50,000 per annum and is used as a pump-priming fund to 

enable departments to implement risk reduction initiatives in areas such as physical security 
improvements (fire/intruder alarms, CCTV etc), training, health and safety improvements etc. 

 
2.10 A list of those projects supported by the Fund in 2010/11 is attached for information at Appendix 

A. 
 
3. Risk Registers 
 
3.1 Both Strategic and Operational Risk Registers are the subject of formal monitoring on a six-

monthly basis with the results discussed and agreed firstly at CMT and secondly at Cabinet Planning 
prior to a monitoring report being presented to this Committee. 

 
3.2 Monitoring reports are now routinely considered at each meeting of this Committee with Strategic 

and Operational risk updates provided to alternate meetings. Reports outline the direction of travel 
for all risks identified in risk registers and provide commentary on the effectiveness of the risk 
management processes in place. 

 
4. Performance Management and Business Planning 
 
4.1 The Council is looking at replacing the current Performance Management system – ePerform. Until 

the successor system is in place, risks will continue to be recorded in the risk management module 
and linked to strategic and service objectives. 

 
4.2 Departmental Risk Champions continue to make good progress in embedding the corporate risk 

management process to enable service level Operational Risk Registers to be brought in line with 
the business plan guidance and template 2011-2014. 

 
4.3 In drawing up their Business Plans, Assistant Directors and Heads of Service are being asked to 

identify risks that may prevent them from delivering on their key service objectives and, by 
monitoring these risks on a regular basis at management team meetings, will be tracking the 
effectiveness of mitigation controls. 

 
4.4 This work is key to demonstrating further embeddedness of risk management considerations into 

the Council’s corporate business processes.  
 
5. Annual Governance Statement 
 
5.1 The system of internal control in the Council is based on an ongoing process to identify and 

prioritise the risks or threats to the achievement of policies, aims and objectives and to evaluate 
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they occur. 

 
5.2 In accordance with the CIPFA/SOLACE framework document Good Governance in Local Government, 

the Council has adopted a local Code of Corporate Governance which was approved by Audit 
Committee on 31st March 2008. 

 
5.3   The framework recommends that the Council carries out annually a self-assessment of how it 

complies with the six core principles of good governance set out in the Code. 
 

Page 96



5.4 The AGS Working Group has carried out this annual review and is satisfied that the governance 
framework described in the Governance Statement satisfies the compliance requirements of the 
CIPFA/SOLACE model Code. 

 
5.5 The monitoring processes now in place to manage risk through the Council’s approach to risk 

management is proving to be an effective tool in contributing to the delivery of this statutory 
responsibility, with the Strategic Risk Register in particular largely informing the content of the 
AGS. 

 
6. Risk Management and the Competency Framework 
 
6.1 In 2009 the Council adopted a new Competency Framework covering all employees as part of its 

commitment to ensure that there is a clear set of standards that underpins the performance, 
behaviours, work, knowledge and skills of its staff to help the Council deliver its vision and the key 
priorities in the Corporate Plan. 

 
6.2 Risk Management performance is one of five core management competencies in the Framework so 

that senior managers are now assessed on their contribution towards the delivery of the Corporate 
Risk Management Strategy as part of their annual appraisals. 

 
7. Partnerships Governance 
 
7.1 The Council is increasingly engaging in partnership arrangements to deliver its corporate objectives 

and this brings both risks and opportunities – it is therefore important that effective governance 
arrangements are in place to monitor the effectiveness of delivery mechanisms. 

 
7.2 External inspections have confirmed that the Council’s significant partnerships have effective risk 

management arrangements in place with risk registers monitored routinely by Programme and 
Project Boards. 

 
7.3 However, there is a need for a more consistent approach to governance arrangements across all 

partnership working, more particularly in the light of the current economic climate and the threat 
of funding cuts to both the Council and potentially its key partners as well. 

 
7.4 A broad-based, city-wide review of governance across the whole partnership landscape is proposed 

for this year in light of the Comprehensive Spending Review and its impact on both the Council and 
its strategic partners and also in the light of structural reforms around for example the future 
provision of healthcare services.  

 
8. Intranet Risk Management Guidance 
 
8.1 The Corporate Risk Management Team continues to develop guidance material which is available to 

managers and staff within a comprehensive risk management page on the Staff Room intranet site. 
 
8.2 Current guidance covers the following frequently asked questions: 
 

• What is a risk? 
• What is risk management? 
• Why is risk management important? 
• How do I report a risk? 
• What is the process for monitoring risks? 
• Who is my risk champion? 
• How do I apply for risk management funding? 

Page 97



• How does risk management fit with the Competency Framework? 
• How do I arrange risk management training? 

 
8.3 Information is also provided on risk management in business planning, ePerform and the Council’s 

Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
8.4 The latest version of the Strategic Risk Register, once approved by this Committee, is also 

published on the site. 
 
9. Information Governance 
 
9.1 In September 2010, the Internal Audit Service issued a report which concluded that fundamental 

weaknesses existed in the Council's corporate information management arrangements. The findings 
of that report were  accepted by the Council's Senior Information Risk Officer and Corporate 
Information Manager and were discussed at Audit Committee in November 2010. 

  
9.2 The report included an Action Plan which is now being progressed. The Corporate Information 

Manager attended Audit Committee, in March 2011, to provide an update on the positive steps that 
are being taken to embed information management principles throughout the organisation and 
other key actions which are being taken to formalise responsibilities and improve staff training and 
awareness. 

 
9.3 The Director for Corporate Support, as the Council’s designated Senior Risk Information 

Officer, has asked all Directors to appoint  Information Risk Officers within their service areas to 
establish what information systems they use and who is responsible for them. These officers are 
forming a corporate group to act as a conduit for implementation of improved and more consistent 
information governance across the Council. 

  
9.4 To support this objective, and as a first step, the Operational Risk Management Group facilitated an 

Information Governance training workshop for risk champions on 18th March 2011. 
 
9.5 The workshop introduced a standard risk template for the inclusion of a common set of 

information governance risks in all departmental risk registers and the baseline information from 
this exercise will inform future mitigation actions. 

 
9.6 In addition, on 26th May the Assistant Director for ICT hosted a briefing for Members and Officers 

to raise awareness of cyber threats to our information security. 
 
10. Benchmarking 
 
10.1 The Council joined a new national risk management benchmarking club in April 2010 which was a 

collaboration between ALARM and CIPFA. 
 
10.2 In total 103 local authorities signed up and completed a survey questionnaire based on Alarm’s 

National Performance Model for Risk Management in Public Services and designed to enable 
participants to test their organisation’s performance against the major risk management standards, 
expectations of inspection bodies and criteria that inform the risk management element of the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 
10.3 The questionnaire comprised of 117 questions in total split into 7 sections which are listed in the 

results table below.  The answers were then weighted to reflect their relative impact on 
performance and collated into a final score for each section based on the maturity level guide 
below:- 

 

Page 98



Section Heading “Enablers” Score % Level 
Leadership and management 87 Driving 
Strategy and Policy 75 Embedded & Integrated 
People 83 Driving 
Partnership, shared risks and resources 65 Embedded & Integrated 
Processes and tools 85 Driving 
Section Heading “Results” Score % Level 
Risk handling and assurance 78 Driving 
Outcomes and delivery 68 Embedded & Integrated 

 
Maturity Level Enablers Results 
Engaging <10% <10% 
Happening 10 – 30% 10 – 25% 
Working 30 – 55% 25 – 50% 
Embedded & Integrated 55 – 80% 50 – 75% 
Driving 80%+ 75%+ 

 
10.4 The survey results were reported to this Committee in March 2011. The Council achieved an 

above average score in each of the Sections of the questionnaire when compared to the other 103 
club members and this confirms that the Council’s Risk Management Framework is embedded and 
integrated in the Council’s core processes. 

 
10.5 Contact has been made with one of the highest performing authorities in the Council’s peer group 

and officers will be comparing risk management approaches to ensure that current processes reflect 
best practice, for example around partnerships governance where the Council scored lower than in 
other areas. 

 
10.6 The Council is also a member of the South West Unitaries Risk Management Group, a regional 

body set up specifically to promote benchmarking and exchange of good practice in risk 
management for single tier authorities. 

 
11. Risk Management Maturity Review by Heath Lambert 
 
11.1 The Council appointed new Risk Management and Insurance Advisors, Heath 

Lambert, on the 1 October 2010 following a tender process. As part of their 
appointment, a review of our risk management arrangements was undertaken, focusing in particular 
on the level of embeddedness of risk management in our key corporate business processes.  

 
11.2 The review reported a number of examples of “very good, even exemplary”, risk management 

practice. These included: 
 

• Clear and effective sponsorship of risk management by senior management and elected 
members (as evidenced by the proactive roles of the officer and member risk management 
champions and the Audit Committee) 

• A well defined and current risk management strategy supported by clearly defined roles and 
responsibilities 

• The provision of supplementary guidance to key stakeholders including elected members, 
risk champions and those involved in partnerships 

• Engagement with professional bodies such as ALARM (the Public Risk Management 
Association) and also with national initiatives such as the ALARM/CIPFA National 
Benchmarking Club 2010 

• Ongoing efforts to integrate risk management with other key systems such as: business 
planning; procurement; the core competencies framework; the governance and management 
of partnerships; and the Project Management System  

Page 99



• Regular and well attended meetings of the Operational Risk Management Group and the 
active participation of the Risk Champions’ network 

• Effective use of a Risk Management Fund, accessed by a well-developed bid process 
• Regular monitoring and reporting of risk management performance which clearly establishes 

the value added by risk management to corporate performance 
• Positive results arising from historical inspections under the Comprehensive Area 

Assessment (achieving a score of 3 at the final inspection, reflecting continuing 
improvement) 

• Ongoing development of communication about risk management, including use of the 
Council’s intranet 

 
12. Focus for 2011/2012 
 
12.1 Whilst the Council can demonstrate that management of risk is now a key consideration in its 

overall corporate governance arrangements, further work will be ongoing to ensure that risk 
management considerations continue to be embedded into core business processes. 

 
12.2 The focus for 2011/12 will therefore be to ensure that management of risk is further developed as 

an explicit feature in the areas of: 
 

• Strategic planning 
• Financial planning 
• Policy making and review 
• Performance Management 
• Partnerships 
• Information Governance 

 
13. Conclusion 
 
13.1 There is now good evidence of the development of a risk management culture within the Council 

with proactive engagement of Members, Directors and Heads of Service, and senior operational 
managers – this culture is now supported by a mandatory assessment of risk management 
performance as part of the Competency Framework annual appraisal process. 

 
13.2 The Council now has well-developed and proven risk management processes in place which have 

been integrated into business planning, budget, project and performance management, 
 
13.3 This Annual Report should therefore give Audit Committee members assurance as to the adequacy 

and effectiveness of the internal control arrangements and, in particular, the contribution of risk 
management to the overall governance framework. 

 
13.4 Further work is planned in 2011/12 to ensure that these arrangements continue to be developed 

and enhanced. 
 
14. Recommendation 
 
14.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the Annual Report. 
 

Page 100



APPENDIX A 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT BIDS APPROVED 2010/11 
 
 

1.Community Services (Libraries) – Fire door in staff room at St.Budeaux Library (10/01)  
 
Exit door in staff room replaced with a fire door to allow safe exit for staff in the event of a fire. 
         

            £307.50 
 
2. Corporate Property – Fencing at Honicknowle Lane footpath (10/02) 
 
To provide a barrier between the steep slope of the footpath and the road, preventing the risk of injury to 
children and other users of the path. 

                    £7,073.31 
 
3. ICT – Electrical safety training for ICT engineers (10/03) 
 
To ensure safer working conditions for engineers who have to work on equipment that cannot be 
switched off whilst being maintained. No in-house course available.  

                         £2,340.00 
 
4. Community Services – Security improvements for Schools Library Service (10/04) 
 
Upgrade of intruder alarm and installation of radio panic alarm, both connected to Police if activated. 

 £479.78 
 
5. Culture, Sport & Leisure (Plymouth West Devon Records Office) – Safer ladder for 
accessing records from high storage area (10/06) 
 
Taller ladder, including a platform to allow safer access by staff to records held on top shelves. 

                                                   
                                           £669.75 

 
6. Culture, Sport & Leisure (Plymouth West Devon Records Office) – Installation of two 
smoke detectors and alarm ringer on mezzanine level (10/07) 
 
There were previously no smoke detectors in this area which is frequently accessed by both staff and 
volunteers. 

     £501.00 
   
7. Community Services – Automatic door entry system with exit alarm at Colwill Lodge 
(10/08) 
To provide easier access to the building for people with learning and physical disabilities and prevent 
injuries to staff and visitors assisting them. 
   

                       £3,007.34 
 
 
8. Corporate Property (Facility Management) – New access control system at Prince Rock 
Depot (10/09) 
 

Page 101



A system providing direct access control at the vehicular access gate for staff and regular visitors, enabling 
security staff to concentrate on new or casual visitors and ensure they are properly signed in with site 
safety advice and direction to their destination. 

             £7,500.00 
 
9. Corporate Property – Cost of desktop exercise to identify trees in land parcels owned by 
Corporate Property (10/10) 
 
To enable a monitoring regime to be established in respect of trees identified and reduce the risk of 
damage or injury to the public. 

            £7,500.00 
 
10. Development & Regeneration (Social Inclusion Unit) – Safety measures at Bay View 
Gypsy & Traveller Site (10/11)  
 
Installation of traffic calming measures and gas bottle storage cages.   

                                                       £1,935.00 
 
11. Human Resources & Organisation Development – Iron keys to store information for 
Emergency Response & Business Continuity Plans (10/13)           
 
To ensure that essential staffing information is accessible during an emergency situation. 
    

            £168.75 
 
12. Corporate Support (Democracy & Governance) – Provision of Information Governance 
workshop and risk identification toolkit (10/15) 
 
Training and guidance for Risk Champions to assist the Council in the process of identifying risks 
associated with Information Governance and preventing penalties imposed by the Information 
Commissioner’s Office. 

                           £2,500.00 
    

13. Corporate Support (Health & Safety) – Cost of calibration of vibration equipment (10/17) 
 
To enable the Council to continue to monitor equipment and reduce the risk of injury to employees. 

                           £345.00 
 
14. ICT – Feasibility study to evaluate a new PVP service (10/14) 
 
Feasibility study for a computerised PVP – (Potentially Violent Person) register. 

         £5552.00 
 

 
Total (14)           £39,879.43 

Page 102



Subject: Annual Report on Treasury Management Activities 

for 2010/11 

Committee:  Audit Committee 

Date:     27 June 2011     

Cabinet Member: Councillor Bowyer  

CMT Member:   Director for Corporate Support 

Author: Sandra Wilson (Corporate Accountancy and 
Finance Manager)  

Contact:    Tel:  (01752) (30)4942 
    e-mail: sandra.wilson@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:    Acct/SW 

Key Decision   No 

P  art: I  

 
Executive Summary:  
 
In order to comply with the Code of Practice for Treasury Management, the Council is 
required to formally report on its Treasury Management activities for the year, 
providing information on the progress and outcomes against the Treasury Management 
Strategy. This report covers the treasury management activities for financial year 
2010/11 including the final position on the statutory Prudential Indicators.  
 
The report includes a number of benchmarking indicators for investments and using 
these indicators shows that the City Council’s investment performance compares 
favourably with other Unitary Authorities.  
 
The Council’s external loan borrowing at 31March 2011 stood at £286.383m. The 
borrowing strategy for the year was to reduce the Council’s underlying level of 
borrowing and investments should market conditions allow. Long term borrowing has 
reduced by £1.511m during the year. This is less than originally anticipated, due mainly 
to the movement in interest rates and gilts which made early repayment of debt 
expensive in terms of premature redemption penalties. The Council continued to 
maximise the use of short term borrowing at favorable rates to meet cash flow 
requirements, which has led to an overall increase in total borrowing of £19.824m at 
year end. Short term borrowing is generally taken for periods of less than 1month.  
 
The use of short term borrowing has also led to an increase in investments at year end 
of £8.918m, leaving total investments of £165.802m. Of this amount £65.600m was 
invested in instant access call accounts and could be withdrawn without penalty should 
circumstances require.   
 

1

Agenda Item 11Page 103



In terms of the impact against the revenue budget, an overall favorable variance of 
(£1.437m) was achieved in the year. This is mainly as a result of savings in interest 
payable from taking the Devon pre re-organisation debt in house and longer term 
investments being taken at above target rate.  
 
In line with the recommendations in the Revised Code of Practice, this report is 
submitted to Audit Committee as the Committee responsible for scrutiny of the 
Treasury Management function.  
 
This report is required to be submitted to full Council.  
        
 
Corporate Plan 2011-2014:   
 
Treasury Management activity has a significant impact on the Council’s activity both in 
revenue budget terms and capital investment and is a key factor in facilitating the 
elivery against a number of corporate priorities. d    

 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Into the medium and longer term the Council is facing significant pressures due to the 
national economic situation, which has led to a reduction in resources for local 
authorities over the Government’s latest spending period.  Effective treasury 
management will be essential in ensuring the Council’s cash flows are used to effectively 
support the challenges ahead.  
 

 
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, 
Risk Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
  
There is an inherent risk to any Treasury Management activity. The Council continues 
to manage this risk by ensuring all investments are undertaken in accordance with the 
approved investment strategy, and keeping the Counter party list under constant 
review.  

  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
1. Audit Committee note the Treasury Management report for 2010/11. 
 
2. The report be referred to Full Council as required by the CIPFA Treasury 

Management Code of Practice (TMP note 6). 
 
3. Audit Committee approve the changes to the Treasury Management Practices as 

outlined at Appendix 5.   

2

Page 104



 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
None- requirement to report to Council on the Treasury Management activities for the 
year.   
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers: 
 
! Treasury Management Strategy report to Audit Committee 5 February 2010 
! 2010/11Budget Papers – presented to Full Council 1 March 2010 
! Mid Year Review report to Audit Committee 15 November 2010  
! Joint Finance and Performance report for 2010/11 to Cabinet  7 June 2011 

 
Sign off:   
Fin DJN 

1112.002 
Leg/ 
Dem&
Gov 

TH0018 HR n/a Corp 
Prop 

n/a IT n/a Strat 
Proc 

n/a 

Originating SMT Member: Malcolm Coe 

3

Page 105



Annual Report on Treasury Management Activities for 2010/11 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 
 

1.1 Treasury Management in Local Government is underpinned by the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services (The Code) 
and in this context is the “the management of the Council’s investments and cash 
flows, its banking, money market and its capital market transactions; the effective 
control of the risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks”. 

 
1.2 The Treasury Management Code requires public sector authorities to 

determine an annual Treasury Management Strategy, and as a minimum, 
formally report on their treasury activities and arrangements to Full Council at 
least twice a year- mid-year and after the year-end.  These reports enable 
those tasked with implementing policies and undertaking transactions to 
demonstrate they have properly fulfilled their responsibilities and enable those 
with ultimate responsibility/governance of the treasury management function 
to scrutinise and assess its effectiveness and compliance with policies and 
objectives.      

 
1.3 This report outlines the Treasury Management activities in 2010/11, providing 

information on progress and outcomes against the approved strategy, and 
builds on the mid year report presented to Audit Committee and Full Council 
in November 2010.  

 
1.4 The responsibility for implementing and monitoring Treasury Management 

polices and practices and for the execution and administration of Treasury 
Management decisions is delegated by the Council to its Section 151 Officer – 
the Director for Corporate Support, and is overseen by a Treasury 
Management Board consisting of senior officers within Finance, Assets and 
Efficiencies and the portfolio Member for Finance, Property and  People.   

 
1.5 The day to day operation of the treasury management activity is carried out in 

accordance with detailed Treasury Management Practices (TMP’s). These are 
required to be updated annually. The TMP’s applicable to 2010/11 were 
approved by Audit Committee at its meeting of 15 November 2010.  

 
1.6 The Council works closely with its treasury management advisors Arlingclose 

who assist the Council in formulating views on interest rates when determining 
the Treasury Management Strategy, regular updates on economic conditions 
and interest rate expectations, and advice on specific borrowing and 
investment decisions.  

 
1.7 This report:  

a) is prepared in accordance with the revised CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and the revised Prudential Code; 

b) presents details of capital financing, borrowing, debt rescheduling and 
investment transactions for the year 2010/11;  

c) provides an update on the risk inherent in the portfolio and outlines 
actions taken by the authority during the year to minimise risk; 

d) gives details of the outturn position on treasury management transactions 
in 2010/11; 

4

Page 106



e) confirms compliance with treasury limits and Prudential Indicators (PI’s) 
and outlines the final position on the PI’s for the year. 

 
1.8 In accordance with TMP note 6, the report is required to be presented to Full 

Council.  
 
1.9 The Treasury Management Practices for 2011/12 have been updated and the 

changes are outlined at Appendix 5. These now require approval by Audit 
Committee. The full document is available as follows: 
 

 TM Practices update 11-12 at 01-04-11.doc 
 
2. The Economy and Events in 2010/11 

 
2.1 Before reviewing the Council’s performance for the year it is appropriate to 

outline the national and economic background within which Council Officers 
operated during 2010/11: 

! The economy grew by 1.3% in calendar year 2010. 

! Higher commodity, energy and food prices and the increase in VAT to 20% 
pushed the February 2011 annual inflation figure to 4.4%.  

! The Bank Rate was held at 0.5%.  

! Significant reductions were made to public expenditure, in particular local 
government funding. 

! Credit ratings of European banks were downgraded. 

! The sovereign rating of Spain was also downgraded but remained in the 
‘double-A’ category. 

! 5-year and 10-year gilt yields fells to lows of 1.44% and 2.83% respectively. 
However yields rose in the final quarter across all gilt maturities on 
concern that higher inflation would become embedded and greatly diminish 
the real rate of return for fixed income investors.  

! Following the Chancellor’s announcement on the Spending Review on 20 
October 2010, HM Treasury instructed PWLB to Increase the average 
borrowing rate on all new loans to an average of 1% above UK 
Government Gilts to take effect immediately. 

2.2 A more detailed review has been provided by the Council’s advisors, 
Arlingclose, and is attached at Appendix 1.  

2.3 Appendix 2 outlines the various Interest rates in force during the year.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5

Page 107



3. The Council’s Strategy for 2010/11 
 

3.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy which incorporates the annual 
Investment Strategy was approved by Full Council on 1 March 2010. As an 
overriding principle, the strategies proposed that in the current financial climate 
the Council should continue to seek to reduce the underlying level of borrowing 
and investments.  The Council should seek to make greater use of short term 
variable rate borrowing, whilst at the same time seeking to balance its 
investments across a range of investment instruments.  

 
3.2 The mid year report outlined that in the light of changes made to PWLB 

borrowing rates as part of the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review 
the Council’s borrowing policy for the remainder of the year would be to 
maximise short term borrowing and cashflow balances to finance the Capital 
Programme. 

 
Review of the Council’s Performance 2010/11 

 
4. Treasury Portfolio 
 
4.1 Table 1 shows the Council’s overall Treasury Portfolio at the end of 2010/11 

compared to 2009/10. 
 

Table 1 
31/3/2010 

 £m 
Average 
Interest 

rate 
% 

 31/3/2011 
 £m 

Average 
Interest 

rate 
% 

28.889  
130.000 

0.083 
73.650 

 
5.8084 
4.4202 
3.5574 
0.3685 

External Borrowing Long-term:  
    PWLB 
    Market 
  Bonds 

Temporary Borrowing 

61.315 
130.000 

0.083 
94.985 

 
5.4001 
4.4202 
1.1660 
0.4800 

232.622 3.3095 Total PCC Borrowing 286.383 3.3222 
33.937 5.2395 Devon Debt 0 0 

266.559 3.5552 Total Loan debt 286.383 3.3222 
 

33.156 
 

8.7300 
Long-term liabilities 
   PFI Schemes  

 
31.753 

 
8.7300 

1.954 n/a    Finance leases* 1.441 n/a 
35.110  Total Long term Liabilities 33.194  

301.669  Total External Debt 319.577  
(153.051) 2.1000 Total Investments (165.802) 1.7207 

 
148.618 

 Net Borrowing/(Net Investment) 
Position 

 
153.775 

 

*subject to change in final statutory accounts 
 
 
 

6

Page 108



4.2 The total external debt as shown above includes long term liabilities in respect of 
PFI schemes or finance leases as these liabilities are seen as a credit arrangement 
thus increasing the Council’s total debt and must be taken into account within 
the statutory borrowing limits. The Council has one PFI scheme, the contract 
with Pyramid to build and run the schools at Woodview campus and Riverside. 
The move to producing statutory accounts on an International Financial 
Reporting Standard (IFRS) basis has resulted in a reclassification of a number of 
leases from operating to finance leases. These have been added to the Council’s 
Balance Sheet and previous years Balance Sheets restated as appropriate.  

 
5. Borrowing 

 
5.1 The borrowing strategy for the year, should market conditions allow, was: 

! To manage out the risks inherent in the existing portfolio in terms of the 
proportion of market loans to PWLB 

! To reduce the underlying level of debt 
 

5.2 After considering the risks inherent in the existing portfolio and the outlook for 
interest rates in the short term, the capital financing borrowing requirement for 
2010/11 was to be financed from short-term fixed rate borrowing or variable 
rate borrowing where rates were lower than those available to the Council on 
it’s investments. Where borrowing rates were higher than investment rates 
internal resources would be used in lieu of borrowing with borrowing only taken 
to cover short term cash flow requirements. Capital expenditure levels, market 
conditions and interest rate levels would be monitored during the year in order 
to minimise borrowing costs over the medium to longer term.  

 
5.3 The strategy report in particular outlined the risks to the Council in terms of its 

borrowing levels, highlighting the higher weighting of market loans to PWLB 
debt.  This has been addressed in part during the year as a result of taking the 
Devon debt in-house which required a transfer of an equivalent amount of 
PWLB loan debt. No new long term borrowing has been taken out during the 
year.  

 
5.4 Figure 1 below shows the maturity profile of the long term debt for the Council 

as at 31 March 2011.  
 
5.5 The debt portfolio continues to include £130m of LOBO (market) loans. These 

loans have various option call dates where the banks have the ability to amend 
the loan terms and at which point the Council could choose to repay the loan if 
the terms are changed adversely. This is reflected within the maturity profile 
shown above (in amber) to enable officers to risk manage the Council’s 
cashflows. During the year £49m of LOBO loans entered the period where they 
could have been called, but options were not exercised by the relevant banks.  

 
 
 
 
 

7

Page 109



Figure 1 

Plymouth Risk Maturity Profile

0

10000000

20000000

30000000

40000000

50000000

60000000

70000000

80000000

90000000

20
11

/2
01

2

20
13

/2
01

4

20
15

/2
01

6

20
17

/2
01

8

20
19

/2
02

0

20
21

/2
02

2

20
23

/2
02

4

20
25

/2
02

6

20
27

/2
02

8

20
29

/2
03

0

20
31

/2
03

2

20
33

/2
03

4

20
35

/2
03

6

20
37

/2
03

8

20
39

/2
04

0

20
41

/2
04

2

20
43

/2
04

4

20
45

/2
04

6

20
47

/2
04

8

20
49

/2
05

0

20
51

/2
05

2

20
53

/2
05

4

20
55

/2
05

6

20
57

/2
05

8

20
59

/2
06

0

20
61

/2
06

2

20
63

/2
06

4

20
65

/2
06

6

20
67

/2
06

8

20
69

/2
07

0

20
71

/2
07

2

20
73

/2
07

4

20
75

/2
07

6

20
77

/2
07

8

Financial Year 11/12 - 78/79

M
ax

 M
at

u
ri

ty
 in

 Y
ea

r 
(£

)

Lobo Maturity PWLB Lobo Call

 
5.6 Under Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations 

the Council must determine and keep under review how much it can afford to 
borrow. The Council is required to set two limits:  

 
! The Authorised Limit 
! The Operational Boundary 
 

5.7 The borrowing limits for 2010/11, originally approved by Council in March 2010, 
were as follows: 

 
! Authorised limits               £347m 
! Operational Boundary       £295m 

 
These limits were revised to increase the limits to allow greater flexibility to take 
short-term borrowing to cover cashflow requirements, and approved by Full Council 
as part of the Prudential Indicators on 28 February 2011, The approved updated limits 
were as follows: 

 
! Authorised limits               £349m 
! Operational Boundary       £322m 
 

5.8 The maximum debt outstanding during 2010/11 was £320.817m on 28 March 
2011 (including £33.194m for the PFI and finance lease liabilities). This was within 
both the authorised limit and the operational boundary.   

 

8

Page 110



5.9 Table 2 shows the movement in the borrowing portfolio during the year. 
Although total debt has increased by £19.824m over the year this is due to the 
greater use of short term temporary borrowing to cover cash flow and financing 
of the capital programme at year end. The Council’s long term debt has reduced 
by £1.511m which is in line with the approved strategy.              

 
Table 2                        Movement in Borrowing Portfolio 

 

Balance 
on 

01/04/10 
 £000s 

Debt 
Maturing 

£000s 

Debt 
 Repaid  
£000s 

 
New 

Borrowing 
£000s 

Balance 
on 

31/03/11  
£000s 

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

in 
Borrowing  

Short Term 
Borrowing       73,650 (1,080,735)  

 
  

  1,102,070        94,985 

 
  

21,335 

Long Term 
Borrowing    158,972 

  
(1,239)   

 
 

33,665      191,398 

 
  

32,426 

Devon Debt 33,937  (272) (33,665) 0 

 
 

(33,937) 

Total 
Borrowing     266,559 

  
(1,082,246) 

  
(272) 

 
  

1,102,070 
  

286,383 

 
  

19,824 
 
5.10 The Council’s underlying need to borrow as measured by the Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR) as at 31March 2011 was estimated at £257.493m .   
 
5.11 Devon Debt 
 

During the year, Officers successfully negotiated the transfer of pre LGR debt of 
£33.665m, administered by Devon County Council, to the City Council. As a 
result of the transfer, Plymouth achieved net savings of (£1.122m) in terms of 
interest and loan repayments in 2010/11 and will gain greater flexibility over the 
management of the debt with the option to repay/reschedule the debt at a later 
date when terms become more favourable. 
  

5.12 New borrowing in year 
  
 The use of short-term borrowing has been the most cost effective means of 

financing of capital expenditure and cashflow requirements. Matching short-term 
borrowing with the availability of liquid deposits held in bank call accounts has 
lowered overall treasury risk by allowing flexibility to reduce debt and 
investment levels at short notice should credit conditions deteriorate. 

 
At the start of the year the Council had £73.650m of short term loans. These 
are generally taken for periods of less than 30 days, repaid and replenished with 
new loans as subject to availability and favourable rates during the year. At the 
end of the year the Council had £94.985m of short term loans.  

9

Page 111



The average period of new loans taken in the year was for 27 days at an average 
interest rate of 0.347%. This is below the bank base rate. Short term loans are 
generally taken from other local authorities.  

 

5.13 Debt Repayment 
 

The loan repayments made in the period relate to the Principal on the Devon 
County Debt loans prior to transfer on 25 June 2010. 
 

5.14 Debt Rescheduling 
 

 There has been no debt rescheduling in the period. Officers along with the 
Council’s advisers Arlingclose will continue to monitor PWLB interest rates 
looking for opportunities to repay any debt maximising the savings achieved 
whilst maintaining a balanced maturity profile. 

 

5.15 Overall Debt Performance for the year  
 

The average interest rate on the debt as at 31 March 2011 was 3.3222%, an 
overall reduction over the previous year end position. This is due in part to the 
lower average rate on loans previously administered by Devon after taking these 
in house.   

 

Loan transactions were taken at various times throughout the year and at various 
rates. Taking all the transactions in the year, the overall average borrowing rate 
for 2010/11 was 3.5476% compared with a rate of 4.3092% for 2009/10. 
 

6. Investments  
 

Managing Investment Risk 
 
6.1 The Guidance on Local Government Investments in England gives priority to 

Security and Liquidity of investments and the Council’s aim is to achieve a Yield 
commensurate with these principles.  

 

6.2 Security 
Security of capital remained the Council’s main investment objective.  This was 
maintained by following the Council’s counterparty policy as set out in its 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2010/11 This restricted new 
investments to the following, although as indicated not all of the instruments 
were used during the year:  
! The Debt Management Office 
! Other Local Authorities 
! AAA-rated Stable Net Asset Value Money Market Funds (not used 2010/11) 
! Deposits with UK Banks and Building Societies systemically important to the 

UK banking system and deposits with select non-UK Banks (Australia, 
Canada, Finland, France, Germany, Netherlands, Spain, Switzerland and the 
US).   

! Bonds issued by Multilateral Development Banks, such as the European 
Investment Bank (not used 2010/11). 

10

Page 112



6.3 Table 3 summaries the counter parties available during the year together with 
the approved limits.  The Counter Party list is kept under constant review and 
counter parties removed or limits adjusted as appropriate.  

 
Table 3                    Approved Counter Party Listing in force 31 March 2011 

Financial Asset Category Criteria Maximum 
Investment  

Maximum 
Investment 
Term 

Government Debt Office Central Government Office No Limit 
 

12 Months 
 

UK Banks and Building Societies Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A+ Short-
Term F1 
Moody’s – Long-Term A1 Short-
Term P-1  
S&P – Long-Term A+ Short-Term 
A-1 

£30m  
 

12 Months 
 

Foreign Banks Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A+ Short-
Term F1 
Moody’s – Long-Term A1 Short-
Term P-1  
S&P – Long-Term A+ Short-Term 
A-1 

£10m 
 

12 Months 
 

Local Authorities Unitary Councils 
County Councils 
Metropolitan Councils 
London Borough Councils 

£5m 12 Months 

Money Market Funds AAA with Constant Net Asset 
value investing predominantly in 
Government securities. 
AAA with a Constant Net Asset 
investing in instruments issued 
primarily by financial institutions.  

2.5% of overall 
investment 
portfolio 

Call 

Bonds Issued by Multilateral 
Development banks 

AAA or Government Guaranteed 
Eurosterling Bonds 

Total 
investment 
£20m or 10% 
of investment 
portfolio 

10 years 

 
6.4 Figure 2 below shows the actual split of deposits by country/sector as 31 March 

2011. Table 4 provides more detail on the actual deposits by counter party 
group.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11

Page 113



Figure 2 

PCC DEPOSITS BY COUNTRY/SECTOR AT 31st MARCH 2011 - Total Deposits 
£165,801,756.85

£11,496,780, 7%

£51,605,000, 31%

£89,699,977, 54%

£13,000,000, 8%

Iceland

UK Subsiduaries of Foreign Banks

UK Banks

UK Building Societies

 
 

Table 4 
Group Bank/Institution Total deposits 

£m 
RBS Group Royal Bank of Scotland    25.000 
 Ulster Bank Ireland      5.000 
Total RBS Group    30.000 
Lloyds Banking Group Bank of Scotland   29.700 
Barclays Banking Group Barclays   30.000 
National Australia Bank Group Clydesdale Bank   21.705 
Nationwide Building Society Nationwide Building Society   13.000 
Banco Santander Group Santander UK    29.900 
Iceland deposits Lansbanki Island     4.000 
 Heritable Bank     1.497 
 Glitnir    6.000 
Total Deposits @ 31st March 2011  165.802 

 
6.6 The movement in the investment portfolio during the year was as follows: 
 
Table 5                       Movement in Investment Portfolio 

Investments 
 

Balance on 
31/3/10 

£000 

Investments 
Made 
£000 

Maturities/ 
£000 

Balance on 
31/03/11  

£000 

Avg Rate % 
/ Avg Life 

to maturity 
(days) 

Short Term Investments 
(less than 1 year) 123,051 899,275 (872,524) 149,802 1.3895%/ 

87days 
Long term Investments 
(over 1 year) 30,000 0 (14,000) 16,000 6.485%/ 

192 days 

Total Investments 153,051 899,275 (886,524) 165,802  
 
 

12

Page 114



6.7 The majority of the short term deposits were held in call or short term notice 
accounts. Appendix 3 provides more detail on the new longer term deposit 
investment activity for the year. The maximum approved term for new deposits 
in 2010/11 was 364 days.  

 
6.8 CLG investment guidance which came into effect 1 April 2010 recommended 

that strategies should show details of assessing credit risk.  Counterparty credit 
quality is assessed and monitored with reference to:  

 
! Credit Ratings (Council’s minimum long-term counterparty rating of A+ 

across all three rating agencies, Fitch, S&P and Moody’s);  
! Credit Default Swaps;  
! GDP of the country in which the institution operates;  
! the country’s net debt as a Percentage of GDP;  
! Sovereign Support Mechanisms /potential support from a well-resourced 

parent institution; 
!  Share Price. 
 

6.9 The Council’s treasury advisors, Arlingclose, have developed a matrix to score 
the credit risk of an authority’s investment portfolio. The matrix allocates a 
numerical score based on the credit rating of an institution, with a AAA rated 
institution scoring 1, and a D rated institution scoring 15. This is then weighted 
to reflect both the size of the deposit and the maturity term of the deposit. The 
aim is to achieve an overall score of 5 or lower on both weighted averages to 
reflect an investment approach based on security. The lower the score the 
better the security of the deposit.  
 

6.10 Table 6 shows the rating currently attached to the Council’s portfolio and its 
movement during the year using this matrix.  
 
 
Table 6                                    Credit Risk Matrix 

Date Value 
Weighted 
Average – 
Credit Risk 

Score 

Value 
Weighted 
Average – 

Credit Rating 

Time 
Weighted 
Average – 
Credit Risk 

Score 

Time 
Weighted 
Average – 

Credit Rating 

31/03/2010 4.25 AA- 4.65 A+ 
30/06/2010 4.31 AA- 4.42 A+ 
30/09/2010 4.22 AA- 4.51 A+ 
31/12/2010 4.27 AA- 4.59 A+ 
31/03/2011 4.20 AA- 4.75 A+ 
Note : These scores exclude any deposits with Icelandic banks. 
 
Based on the scoring methodology, the Council’s Counterparty credit quality has 
been maintained through the year. Section 6.15 compares the authorities 
performance with that of other authorities who are clients of Arlingclose.  
 
 

13

Page 115



6.11 Liquidity 
In keeping with the CLG’s Guidance on Investments, the Council maintained a 
sufficient level of liquidity through the use of overnight deposits and the use of 
call accounts.   
 

6.12 The maturity profile of the Councils deposits is represented in figure 3. This 
shows a large proportion of deposits maturing in less than one month reflecting 
the deposits in call accounts giving the liquidity requirement to cover any 
adverse changes in market conditions. The Treasury Management Board has set 
a requirement that at least £15m should remain within callable deposits at all 
times.  
 
Figure 3 

 Plymouth City Council Investment Maturity Profile 31st March 2011 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

< 1 Month 1-3 Months 3-6 months 6-9 Months 9-12 Months > 1 year

Maturity Period

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

 
6.13 Yield- Investment performance for the year 

The Council sought to optimise returns commensurate with its objectives of 
security and liquidity.  The UK Bank Rate was maintained at 0.5% through the 
year.  

 
6.14 During 2010/11 the Council invested for a range of periods from overnight to 

364 days, dependent on the Council’s cash flows, Officer’s interest rate view and 
the interest rates on offer, and the economic climate. The Council’s treasury 
management officers work to a benchmark rate of return, the 7 day London 
Interbank Bid (LIBID) rate – which is the rate which can be achieved on the 
London interbank market for cash deposits of 7 days and is regarded as the 
standard benchmark.  The 7 day rate is calculated on a daily basis and averaged 
for the year. Table 7 below compares the average return achieved by the in-
house team with the benchmark.  An average rate of 1.0708% was achieved for 
new investments in the year against a budget of 1%. 

 
 
 

14

Page 116



Table 7 
 Average 

Investment 
Benchmark 

Rate % 
Actual Return  

% 

Internally Managed 
 
£161.969m 

 
0.50 

 
1.7207 

 
The table shows that the internal performance exceeded the benchmark for the 
year, despite the restricted investment counterparty list. 

 
6.15 During the year, Arlingclose developed a set of benchmarking criteria to enable 

comparisons on investment performance to be made on data provided by all 
their clients. To compare like with like the following graphs compare our 
investment performance with other authorities. This is based on data provided to 
31 March 2011. The results of the benchmarking are discussed at regular strategy 
meetings with the Advisors. The benchmarking has to be taken in the context of 
risk appetite and the legacy investments that the Council has in its portfolio. 
 

6.16 The graphs used for comparison are: 
 
1. Value Weighted Average v Return 
2. Time Weighted Average v Return 
3. Average number of days to Maturity v Return 

 
 
Figure 4            Value Weighted Average V Return 

Arlingclose Client Benchmarking

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6

Average Credit Risk Score - Valued Weighted Average

A
ve

ra
ge

 R
at

e 
of

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

7

Benchmarking Plymouth City Council - 31/03/2011

Higher RiskLower 
Risk

  
As a general rule the aim should be to convert a greater average length of 
portfolio duration into a greater than average return. There should be a positive 
correlation between duration and return, therefore a best fit line sloping upward 
from left to right.  

15

Page 117



However, this chart should not be viewed in isolation from other measured 
parameters and it should be noted that a high Average number of days to 
maturity does not necessarily mean a higher risk, in fact the reverse may be 
considered to be true in some cases. As can be seen from this graph, Plymouth 
City Council are converting duration in into a higher return than many of their 
peer group. 

 
 

Figure 5                  Time Weighted Average V Return

Arlingclose Client Benchmarking

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Average Credit Risk Score - Time Weighted Average

A
ve

ra
ge

 R
at

e 
of

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

Benchmarking Plymouth City Council - 31/03/2011

Lower Risk Higher Risk

 
Longer term investments are inherently more risky. Ideally authorities should 
move towards the top left hand corner of the graph. Therefore it is preferable to 
see risk taken converted into return at a greater than average rate. This should 
be seen as a longer term goal and in some cases portfolios may be adversely 
affected by legacy positions within a portfolio which can exert a negative 
influence for a considerable period.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16

Page 118



Figure 6              Average Number of days to Maturity V Return 

Arlingclose Client Benchmarking

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000 1100 1200 1300

Average Number of Days to Maturity

A
ve

ra
ge

 R
at

e 
of

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

Benchmarking Plymouth City Council - 31/03/2011

 
This graph shows the duration of investments against return. Plymouth is doing 
well compared to other authorities and this reflects the use of call accounts 
earning above bank base rate, and the legacy investments in Ulster Bank, parent 
group RBS, which are high rate but due to mature in the next few months.  

 
7. Icelandic Banks Update   
 
7.1 The latest position on the recoveries of monies invested in the Icelandic banks is 

as follows:   
 
7.2 Heritable Bank £3m  

 
The Council received a further dividends totaling 15.13p in the £ in 2010/11, 
bringing total dividends paid to date to 50.11%. The actual amount recovered 
to 31 March 2011 was £1,503,220.15, plus interest of £76,643.38.  Based on 
current projections from the administrators a total recovery of almost 85% is 
expected with dividends continuing on a quarterly basis until September 2012.   

 
7.3 Glitnir £6m and Landsbanki £4m 
 

Recovery of monies in Glitnir and Landsbanki remain subject to court 
proceedings. However initial hearings have indicated that local authority 
deposits will be granted priority status. Should this be upheld by the Supreme 
Courts the Council could expect to recover the following amounts: 
 
 
! Glitnir                           100% 
! Landsbanki                     94% 
 

17

Page 119



The Council took advantage of a Capitalisation Direction and accounted for 
potential Icelandic bank losses in its accounts for 2009/10. This was a year in 
advance of the requirements under Regulations and has enabled the potential 
losses to be written off over a 20 year period.   
 
The situation with regard to the recovery of monies invested in Glitnir and 
Landsbanki continues to be subject to court hearings as outlined above and the 
Council has therefore decided not to adjust the impairment charge in its 
accounts for 2010/11. The Council, working with the LGA and Bevan Brittan 
remains committed to maximising the recovery of its investments. The cost of 
the continuing external legal advice has been met from the Icelandic bank 
reserve. A sum of £0.052m has been incurred in 2010/11.  

 
8. Revenue Implications of Treasury Management 
 
8.1 The expenditure arising from the Council’s borrowing and lending accrues to 

the revenue accounts. This includes interest payable and receivable, the 
minimum revenue provision (for debt repayment), and premiums and discounts 
written out to revenue from previous debt rescheduling.  Some of the interest 
receivable is passed onto specific accounts where this interest has accrued from 
the investment of surplus balances for these services.  The balance (net cost) is 
met by the General Fund. Table 8 below shows the income and expenditure 
arising from these transactions in 2010/11. The revenue implications are 
reported to Cabinet as part of the quarterly performance and finance 
monitoring reports. Overall Council Officers achieved a favourable variance 
against budget of (£1.437m).  

 
Table 8       Summary of Capital Financing Costs 2010/11  

 2010/11 2010/11 Variance 

 Budget Outturn  
 £000 £000 £000 
External Interest payments   7,556 8,945 1,389 
Interest payable (PFI) 0 2,835 2,835 
External Interest received  (2,821)  (2,802) 19 
Recharged to HRA    0  (159) (159) 
Interest transferred to other accounts   200  215 15 
Premiums / Discounts written out to Revenue     (189)  (186) 3 
Debt Management Expenses  130 147 17 
Treasury Management Cost 4,876     8,995 4,119 
Minimum Revenue Provision  7,150   6.968 (182) 
Minimum Revenue Provision (PFI) 0 703 703 
Devon County Council Residual Debt Charges  3,153  709  (2,444) 
Recharges for unsupported borrowing   (1,822)    (1,762) 60 
Recovered from trading Accounts   (2,758 (2,913) (155) 
PFI Grant 0 (3,538) (3,538) 
Net Cost to General Fund   10,599  9,162 (1,437) 

 
 
 
 

18

Page 120



9. Compliance with Prudential Indicators 
 

Under the arrangements set out in the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities, individual authorities are responsible for deciding the level of 
their affordable borrowing, having regard to the Code, and for establishing a 
range of Prudential Indicators covering borrowing limits and other treasury 
management measures. The Prudential Indicators for 2010/11 were approved by 
Council on 1 March 2010 (borrowing limits updated 28 February 2011). The 
latest position on the indicators is set out in Appendix 4. 

 

10. The MRP Policy 2010/11  
 
10.1 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/414) place a duty on local authorities to make a 
prudent provision for debt redemption.  The Regulations outline MRP options as 
follows: 

Option 1: Regulatory Method 
Option 2: CFR Method 
Option 3: Asset Life Method 
Option 4: Depreciation Method 
 

10.2 The MRP policy for the year is required to be approved by Full Council at the 
start of the year. The MRP policy for 2010/11 was included within the Treasury 
Management Strategy report that was approved at the Council meeting on 1 
March 2010.  

 
10.3 Revisions to the policy are permitted during the year providing these are also 

approved by Full Council. Full Council at its meeting of 28 February 2011 
approved that the policy for 2010/11 be amended to reflect more accurately the 
calculation for supported borrowing.  

 
10.3 The final policy for the year 2010/11 is therefore:  
 

Supported Borrowing  
For borrowing supported by Revenue Support Grant the Council will use the 
Regulatory Method (option 1) to calculate MRP. For the purposes of the 
calculation, an adjustment, referred to as adjustment A, will continue to be made 
to the CFR at the value attributed to it in financial year 2004-05.  

 

Unsupported Borrowing 
For new borrowing under the prudential system for which no Government 
support is being given and is therefore self-financed, MRP will be made in equal 
annual instalments over the life of the asset. 

 

Capitalisation Directions 
For capitalisation directions on expenditure incurred since 1 April 2008 MRP will 
be made in equal annual instalments over 20 years in line with DCLG guidance. 
 
 
 
 

19

Page 121



PFI/Leases 
MRP in respect of PFI and leases brought on Balance Sheet under the 2009 
SORP and IFRS will be based on a charge equal to the amount that has been 
taken to the Balance Sheet to reduce the liability.  

 
10.4 In all cases MRP commences in the financial year following the one in which the 

expenditure is incurred or when the asset becomes operational if this is later.  
 
11. Balanced Budget 
 
11.1 The Council complied with the Balanced Budget requirement. 
 
12. External Service Providers  
 
12.1 Arlingclose is appointed as the Council’s treasury management advisor.  The 

Council is clear as to the services it expects and is provided under the contract.  
The service provision is comprehensively documented.   The Council paid a sum 
of £20,000 in 2010/11 for this service.  

 
12.2 The Council is also clear that overall responsibility for treasury management 

remains with the Council.  
 
13. Training 
 
13.1 CIPFA’s revised Code requires the Director for Corporate Support to ensure 

that all members tasked with treasury management responsibilities, including 
scrutiny of the treasury management function, receive appropriate training 
relevant to their needs and understand fully their roles and responsibilities.  

 
13.2 The CLG’s revised Investment Guidance also recommends that a process is 

adopted for reviewing and addressing the needs of the authority’s treasury 
management staff for training in investment management. 

 
13.3 The Council commissioned a Treasury Management awareness and training 

session from external consultants Griffiths Morley and this was delivered on 22 
January 2010. The Council subsequently provided an updated session for 
members on 10 January 2011.  

 
13.4 During the year, the Council’s treasury management officer has successfully 

completed and been awarded a Certificate in International Treasury 
Management- Public Finance (CERT TM- PF). This is an accredited course for 
treasury management specialists in the Public Sector, supported by CIPFA. 
Officers also attend regular workshops and seminars on treasury management.  

 
13.5 The Council continues to keep its training requirement under review.  
 
 
 

20

Page 122



14. Recommendations 
 
14.1 Audit Committee note the Treasury Management report for 2010/11. 
 
14.2 The report be referred to Full Council as required under the CIPFA Treasury 

Management Code of Practice (TMP note 6). 
 
14.3 Audit Committee approve the changes to the Treasury Management Practices as 

outlined at Appendix 5.

21

Page 123



Appendix 1 

Arlingclose Review of the Economy for 2010/11 
 
Economic Outlook for 2010/11 
At the time of determining the strategy for 2010/11, interest rates were expected to 
remain low in response to the fragile state of the UK economy.  Spending cuts and tax 
increases seemed inevitable post the General Election if the government had a clear 
majority.   The markets had, at the time, viewed a hung parliament as potentially 
disruptive particularly if combined with a failure to articulate a credible plan to bring 
down government borrowing. The outlook for growth was uncertain due to consumers 
and corporates trimming their spending and financial institutions exercising restraint in 
new lending.  

The economy’s two headline indicators moved in opposite directions – growth was 
lacklustre whilst inflation spiked sharply higher. The economy grew by just 1.3% in 
calendar year 2010; the forecast for 2011 was revised down to 1.7% by the Office of 
Budget Responsibility in March.  Higher commodity, energy and food prices and the 
increase in VAT to 20% pushed the February 2011 annual inflation figure to 4.4%.  The 
Bank Rate was held at 0.5% as the economy grappled with uneven growth and the 
austerity measures set out in the coalition government’s Comprehensive Spending 
Review. Significant reductions were made to public expenditure, in particular local 
government funding.  

The US Federal Reserve (the Fed) kept rates on hold at 0.25% following a slowdown in 
American growth. The European Central Bank maintained rates at 1%, with the markets 
expecting a rate rise in early spring.  

The credit crisis migrated from banks to European sovereigns.  The ratings of Ireland 
and Portugal were downgraded to the ‘triple-B’ category whilst the rating of Greece 
was downgraded to sub-investment  grade.  The sovereign rating of Spain was also 
downgraded but remained in the ‘double-A’ category.  The results from the EU Bank 
Stress Tests, co-ordinated by the Committee of European Banking Supervisors, 
highlighted that only 7 out of the 91 institutions failed the ‘adverse scenario’ tests.  The 
tests were a helpful step forward, but there were doubts if they were far-reaching or 
demanding enough. The main UK banks’ (Barclays, HSBC, Lloyds and RBS) Tier 1 ratios 
all remained above 9% under both the ‘benchmark scenario’ and the ‘adverse scenario’ 
stress tests.  The tests will be repeated in the Spring of 2011.  

Gilts benefitted from the decisive Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) plans as well 
as from their relative ‘safe haven’ status  in the face of European sovereign weakness.  5-
year and 10-year gilt yields fells to lows of 1.44% and 2.83% respectively.  However 
yields rose in the final quarter across all gilt maturities on concern that higher inflation 
would become embedded and greatly diminish the real rate of return for fixed income 
investors.  

During the year money market rates increased marginally at the shorter end (overnight 
to 3 months).  6 - 12 month rates increased between 0.25% to 0.30% over the 12 
month period reflecting the expectation that the Bank Rate would be raised later in 
2011. 

22

Page 124



Appendix 2 

Interest rates applicable 2010/11 
The average, low and high rates correspond to the rates during the financial year and rather than those 
in the tables below 
 

Table 1: Bank Rate, Money Market Rates 

Date  Bank 
Rate  O/N 

LIBID 
7-day 
LIBID 

1-
month 
LIBID 

3-
month 
LIBID 

6-
month 
LIBID 

12-
month 
LIBID 

2-yr 
SWAP 

Bid 

3-yr 
SWAP 

Bid 

5-yr 
SWAP 

Bid 
01/04/2010  0.50  0.35 0.35 0.42 0.51 0.81 1.26 1.54 2.07 2.82 
30/04/2010  0.50  0.30 0.30 0.43 0.53 0.83 1.29 1.70 2.23 2.95 
31/05/2010  0.50  0.45 0.50 0.61 0.60 0.85 1.35 1.46 1.89 2.58 
30/06/2010  0.50  0.35 0.35 0.45 0.61 0.94 1.38 1.40 1.79 2.42 
31/07/2010  0.50  0.40 0.40 0.50 0.71 1.01 1.46 1.36 1.75 2.39 
31/08/2010  0.50  0.40 0.55 0.50 0.71 1.00 1.45 1.20 1.47 2.02 
30/09/2010  0.50  0.30 0.25 0.51 0.72 1.01 1.46 1.24 1.51 2.05 
31/10/2010  0.50  0.48 0.40 0.51 0.72 1.01 1.46 1.26 1.53 2.08 
30/11/2010  0.50  0.40 0.51 0.51 0.72 0.88 1.46 1.32 1.66 2.30 
31/12/2010  0.50  0.40 0.40 0.51 0.72 1.01 1.47 1.49 1.94 2.61 
31/01/2011  0.50  0.40 0.55 0.52 0.64 1.04 1.52 1.74 2.21 2.90 
28/02/2011  0.50  0.40 0.54 0.53 0.68 1.09 1.56 1.85 2.29 2.95 
31/03/2011  0.50  0.30 0.50 0.54 0.80 1.11 1.58 1.85 2.31 2.96 

             
Minimum  0.50  0.30 0.25 0.42 0.51 0.75 1.00 1.13 1.37 1.92 
Average  0.50  0.39 0.43 0.50 0.67 0.98 1.44 1.50 1.90 2.54 
Maximum  0.50  0.55 0.55 0.80 0.80 1.11 1.58 1.97 2.49 3.19 

Spread    0.25 0.30 0.38 0.29 0.36 0.58 0.84 1.12 1.26 
 

 
Table 2 : PWLB Borrowing Rates – Fixed Rate, Maturity Loans 

Change 
Date 

Notice 
No 1 year 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

01/04/2010 064/10 0.81 2.84 4.14 4.21 4.60 4.61 4.63 
30/04/2010 089/10 0.85 2.86 4.13 4.20 4.61 4.61 4.60 
28/05/2010 127/10 0.73 2.46 3.76 3.83 4.36 4.38 4.38 
30/06/2010 171/10 0.67 2.27 3.54 3.62 4.22 4.28 4.27 
30/07/2010 217/10 0.70 2.29 3.55 3.62 4.32 4.41 4.40 
31/08/2010 259/10 0.63 1.84 3.05 3.13 3.82 3.93 3.93 
30/09/2010 303/10 0.64 1.88 3.14 3.86 4.00 4.03 4.02 
29/10/2010 346/10 1.58 2.90 4.23 5.06 5.2 5.22 5.2 
30/11/2010 390/10 1.56 3.05 4.40 5.18 5.26 5.25 5.23 
31/12/2010 430/10 1.65 3.33 4.58 5.18 5.23 5.20 5.16 
31/01/2011 040/11 1.79 3.57 4.80 5.40 5.46 5.44 5.40 
28/02/2011 080/11 1.87 3.61 4.75 5.33 5.38 5.35 5.31 
31/03/2011 126/11 1.89 3.57 4.71 5.27 5.30 5.27 5.24 

         
 Low           0.60            1.81            3.05            3.82            3.93            3.93            3.92  
 Average           1.19            2.79            4.05            4.72            4.79            4.78            4.76  
 High           1.99            3.84            5.00            5.50            5.55            5.53            5.48   

 

  

23

Page 125



Appendix 2 

Table 3: PWLB Repayment Rates - Fixed Rate, Maturity Loans 
Change 
Date 

Notice 
No 1 year 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

01/04/2010 064/10 0.56 2.38 3.82 4.35 4.36 4.26 4.19 
30/04/2010 089/10 0.62 2.43 3.83 4.37 4.38 4.33 4.30 
28/05/2010 127/10 0.50 2.04 3.44 4.12 4.15 4.11 4.10 
30/06/2010 171/10 0.44 1.86 3.23 3.98 4.05 4.00 3.97 
30/07/2010 217/10 0.47 1.88 3.23 4.08 4.18 4.13 4.10 
31/08/2010 259/10 0.40 1.45 2.73 3.57 3.70 3.66 3.62 
30/09/2010 303/10 0.41 1.48 2.82 3.62 3.77 3.76 3.73 
29/10/2010 346/10 0.47 1.61 3.03 3.93 4.09 4.07 4.03 
30/11/2010 390/10 0.45 1.75 3.20 4.06 4.15 4.10 4.06 
31/12/2010 430/10 0.54 2.04 3.39 4.07 4.12 4.05 3.99 
31/01/2011 040/11 0.68 2.27 3.62 4.28 4.35 4.29 4.22 
28/02/2011 080/11 0.76 2.32 3.57 4.21 4.26 4.20 4.13 
31/03/2011 126/11 0.78 2.29 3.53 4.15 4.19 4.12 4.07 

         
 Low 0.37 1.40 2.73 3.57 3.70 3.66 3.62 
 Average 0.55 1.97 3.33 4.07 4.15 4.10 4.06 
 High 0.88 2.54 3.94 4.47 4.46 4.38 4.35 

 
 

Table 4: PWLB Borrowing Rates – Fixed Rate, EIP Loans 
Change 

Date 
Notice 

No 1 year 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 
01/04/2010 064/10 -- 1.78 2.94 4.18 4.53 4.60 4.62 
30/04/2010 089/10 -- 1.82 2.96 4.16 4.53 4.61 4.62 
28/05/2010 127/10 -- 1.52 2.55 3.79 4.24 4.36 4.39 
30/06/2010 171/10 -- 1.38 2.36 3.58 4.06 4.23 4.27 
30/07/2010 217/10 -- 1.42 2.38 3.58 4.11 4.33 4.40 
31/08/2010 259/10 -- 1.12 1.92 3.09 3.61 3.82 3.91 
30/09/2010 303/10 -- 1.14 1.96 3.18 3.67 3.87 3.96 
29/10/2010 346/10 -- 2.11 2.98 4.27 4.84 5.07 5.16 
30/11/2010 390/10 -- 2.19 3.14 4.44 4.99 5.19 5.25 
31/12/2010 430/10 -- 2.43 3.42 4.62 5.05 5.19 5.23 
31/01/2011 040/11 -- 2.62 3.66 4.84 5.25 5.40 5.45 
28/02/2011 080/11 -- 2.71 3.69 4.79 5.18 5.33 5.38 
31/03/2011 126/11 -- 2.69 3.65 4.74 5.14 5.28 5.31 

         
 Low  1.10 1.89 3.09 3.61 3.82 3.91 
 Average  1.91 2.87 4.08 4.55 4.72 4.77 
 High  2.88 3.93 5.03 5.38 5.51 5.55  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24

Page 126



Appendix 2 

Table 5: PWLB Repayment Rates - Fixed Rate, EIP Loans 
 

Change 
Date 

Notice 
No 1 year 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

01/04/2010 064/10 -- 1.40 2.59 3.89 4.27 4.35 4.37 
30/04/2010 089/10 -- 1.46 2.63 3.90 4.29 4.38 4.39 
28/05/2010 127/10 -- 1.18 2.23 3.53 4.00 4.13 4.16 
30/06/2010 171/10 -- 1.05 2.04 3.31 3.82 3.99 4.04 
30/07/2010 217/10 -- 1.08 2.06 3.32 3.87 4.09 4.17 
31/08/2010 259/10 -- 0.82 1.61 2.82 3.36 3.59 3.68 
30/09/2010 303/10 -- 0.83 1.65 2.91 3.43 3.63 3.73 
29/10/2010 346/10 -- 0.92 1.79 3.12 3.71 3.95 4.05 
30/11/2010 390/10 -- 0.99 1.94 3.29 3.86 4.07 4.14 
31/12/2010 430/10 -- 1.21 2.22 3.47 3.93 4.07 4.12 
31/01/2011 040/11 -- 1.40 2.46 3.69 4.13 4.29 4.34 
28/02/2011 080/11 -- 1.49 2.50 3.64 4.06 4.22 4.27 
31/03/2011 126/11 -- 1.47 2.46 3.60 4.02 4.16 4.20 

         
 Low  0.75 1.57 2.82 3.36 3.59 3.68 
 Average  1.17 2.15 3.41 3.90 4.08 4.14 
 High  1.65 2.74 4.02 4.40 4.47 4.47 

 
Table 6: PWLB Variable Rates 

 
1-M 
Rate 

3-M 
Rate 

6-M 
Rate 

1-M 
Rate 

3-M 
Rate 

6-M 
Rate 

 
Pre-
CSR 

Pre-
CSR 

Pre-
CSR 

Post-
CSR 

Post-
CSR 

Post-
CSR 

01/04/2010 0.65 0.65 0.70    
30/06/2010 0.65 0.70 0.70    
30/09/2010 0.65 0.70 0.70    
31/12/2010 0.70 0.70 0.75 1.60 1.60 1.65 
31/03/2011 0.67 0.76 0.88 1.57 1.66 1.78 

       
Low 0.65 0.65 0.68 1.55 1.56 1.58 

Average 0.66 0.68 0.73 1.57 1.61 1.68 
High 0.70 0.79 0.90 1.60 1.69 1.80 

25

Page 127



Appendix 3 

Term Deposit Investments made during the year 
 
 
 

Investments are made short term in call/notice accounts to cover cash flow and longer term to 
maximise and guarantee future income. The longer-term deposits made in 2010-11 are detailed in 
the following table. 
 

Counterparty Amount Start Date End Date Term Rate 
    (Days)    % 
Barclays £5M 08/04/10 07/04/11 364 1.55 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 10/05/10   31 0.84 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 09/06/10   61 0.87 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 09/07/10   91 0.94 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 09/08/10 122 1.02 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 09/09/10 153 1.09 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 11/10/10 185 1.18 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 09/11/10 214 1.26 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 09/12/10 244 1.34 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 10/01/11 276 1.41 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 09/02/11 306 1.48 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 09/03/11 334 1.55 
Santander UK £1M 09/04/10 08/04/11 364 1.62 
Nationwide £5M 04/06/10 03/06/11 364 1.37 
Nationwide £5M 22/07/10 21/07/11 364 1.37 
Santander UK £1M 06/09/10 07/03/11 182 1.33 
Bank of Scotland £5M 06/09/10 05/09/11 364 2.00 
Bank of Scotland £5M 12/10/10 11/10/11 364 1.90 
Bank of Scotland £5M 16/11/10 15/11/11 364 1.90 
Bank of Scotland £5M 14/12/10 13/12/11 364 2.00 
Santander UK £1M 08/02/11 09/05/11   90 1.10 
Santander UK £1M 08/02/11 08/06/11 120 1.18 
Santander UK £1M 08/02/11 08/07/11 150 1.29 
Santander UK £1M 08/02/11 08/08/11 181 1.70 
Santander UK £1M 10/03/11 09/09/11 183 1.41 

 
 

26

Page 128



Appendix 4 

Prudential Indicators 2010/11 
 

There is a requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 for local authorities to 
have regard to Cipfa’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the “Cipfa 
Prudential Code”) when setting and reviewing their Prudential Indicators. The Code 
requires a report to Full Council on compliance with the Prudential Indicators set. 
 
The Council’s Prudential Indicators are outlined in Annex 1. The following comments 
explain in more detail the purpose of each indicator.  
 
Estimates of Capital Expenditure: 
 
This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure remains 
within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the impact on Council Tax.  
 
The final spend on the capital programme for 2010/11 was £69.718m.  
 
Capital Financing Requirement 
 
The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s underlying need to 
borrow for a capital purpose.  The calculation of the CFR is taken from the amounts held 
in the Balance Sheet relating to capital expenditure and its financing. It is an aggregation of 
the amounts shown for Non Current Tangible Assets, the Revaluation Reserve and the 
Capital Adjustment Account, and any other balances treated as capital expenditure.  

The Prudential Code provides the following statement as a key indicator of prudence:  “in 
order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital 
purpose, the local authority should ensure that net external borrowing does not, except 
in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding year 
plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next 
two financial years.”    

Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt: 
 
The Council has an integrated treasury management strategy and manages its treasury 
position in accordance with its approved strategy and practice. Overall borrowing will 
therefore arise as a consequence of all the financial transactions of the Council and not 
just those arising from capital spending reflected in the CFR.  There are two borrowing 
limits specified within the Code. 
 
The Authorised Limit 
This is the absolute borrowing limit beyond which any borrowing is prohibited until 
revised by the authority. It is measured on a daily basis against all external borrowing 
items on the Balance Sheet (i.e. long and short term borrowing, overdrawn bank balances 
and long term liabilities. This Prudential Indicator separately identifies borrowing from 
other long term liabilities such as finance leases. It is consistent with the Council’s existing 
commitments, its proposals for capital expenditure and financing and its approved 
treasury management policy statement and practices.   
 

27

Page 129



Appendix 4 

The Authorised Limit is set on the estimate of the most likely, prudent but not worst case 
scenario with sufficient headroom over and above this to allow for unusual cash 
movements.  
 
The Authorised Limit is the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003 (referred to in the legislation as the Affordable Limit). 
 
The Operational Boundary  
This limit is intended to cover the probable borrowing needs of the authority during the 
year.  It is a focus for day to day Treasury Management and a means by which the 
authority manages its external debt within the self imposed Authorised limit.  It is lower 
than the Authorised limit because cash flow variations may lead to the occasional breach 
of this indicator.  
 
Upper Limits for Fixed and Variable Interest Rates  
 
These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is exposed to 
changes in interest rates. This Council calculates these limits as: 
 
! Fixed rate interest rate exposure: net fixed rate debt (fixed rate debt less fixed rate 

investments) as a % of total net debt (total debt less total investments) 
! Variable interest rate exposure: net variable rate debt (variable rate debt less 

variable rate investments) as a % of total net debt (total debt less total investments 
 
The fixed rate indicator generally remains high reflecting historical policy to take long 
term fixed rate debt and short term investments (investments for less than 1 year are 
classified as variable rate).  
 
Borrowing at fixed rates for long periods can give the opportunity to lock into low 
interest rates and provide stability but risks missing possible opportunities to borrow at 
low rates in the medium term, or to convert short term loans into long term if long term 
rates were to fall.  
 
The upper limit for variable rate exposure was set to ensure that the Council is not 
exposed to interest rate rises which could adversely impact on the revenue budget.  The 
limit allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset exposure to changes in short-term 
rates on investments. The updated upper limit of 200% on fixed interest rate exposure 
allowed for periods when short term deposits would exceed variable rate debt due to 
balances/cashflow. 
 
Upper Limit for sums invested over 364 days: 
 
The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that may arise as 
a result of the Council having to seek early repayment of the sums invested. 
 
 
 

28

Page 130



Appendix 4 

Ratio of Financing Costs as a % of Net Revenue Stream:  
 
This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and 
proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget 
required to meet borrowing costs.  
 
The ratio is based on the cost of interest on borrowing and the minimum revenue 
provision, less Interest and Investment income.  

Incremental Effect of Additional Programme on Council Tax 
 
This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment decisions 
on Council Tax.  

During 2010/11 the strategy was to minimise new long term borrowing, with the 
borrowing requirement being met as far as possible from short term loans. Actual 
borrowing undertaken was therefore less than the borrowing assumed in the Formula 
Grant assumptions and has resulted in a negative impact on the Council Tax in 2010/11.  

 
Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing: 
 
This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed rate debt 
needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates and is designed to 
protect against excessive exposures to interest rate changes in any one period, in 
particular in the course of the next ten years.   
 
It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each 
period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate. The maturity of 
borrowing is determined by reference to the earliest date on which the lender can 
require payment. The Council continues to have a high number of Lobo (lenders Option, 
Borrowers Option) loans which may be subject to rate change or repayment at specified 
intervals. On specified dates the Lender has the option to vary the rate. If the option is 
taken the Council (Borrower) has the option to repay the loan. Therefore the loan may 
be subject to repayment on a number of occasions throughout the life of the loan. These 
repayment possibilities are included in the limits set for the maturity of fixed rate 
borrowing. 
 

29

Page 131



Appendix 4 

Annex 1 
 
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 

 
2010/11 

Originally 
Approved 

£m 

Approved 
Update 

£m 

Outturn/ 
Upper limit 

£m 

93.317 77.457 69.718 
   

265.704 261.149 257.493 
 
 

312 
35 

 
 

317 
32 

 
 

288 
33 

347 349 321 
 
 

260 
35 

 
 

290 
32 

 
 

289 
33 

295 322 321 

 
Affordable Borrowing Limits 
 
 
Capital Expenditure 
 
Capital Financing Requirement  As at 31st March 
 
Authorised limit for External Debt 
Borrowing  
Other Long Term Liabilities 
Total 
 
Operational Boundary 
Borrowing 
Other Long Term Liabilities 
Total 
 
Limit for Fixed Rate Exposure 
Net Fixed Rate (borrowing less investments) 
 
Limit for Variable Rate Exposure 
Net variable Rate (borrowing less investments) 
 
Upper limit for sums invested over 364 days 
 

 
 

200% 
 
 

85% 
 

£25m 

 
 

200% 
 
 

85% 
 

£25m 

 
 

161.34% 
 
 

30.88% 
 

£21m 

 
% 

6.11 
1.56 

 
% 

6.12 
0.36 

 
% 

6.68 
0.36 

7.67 6.48 7.04 

 
Capital Financing Cost as a % of Revenue 
Stream 

- Plymouth Debt 
- Devon Managed Debt 

Total 
 
Incremental Effect of Additional Programme on 
Council Tax (Band D p.a.) 

 
 

£0.34 

 
 

-£2.52 

 
 

-£2.61 

30

Page 132



Appendix 4 

Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing

Upper Limit Lower Limit Debt Maturity Limits 2010/11 

Original
Limit Set 

In year upper 
limit reached 

Original
Limit Set 

In year lower limit 
reached

Under 12 months 
12 Months and within 24 months 
24 months and within 5 years 
5 years and within 10 years 
10 years and within 20 years 
20 years and within 30 years 
30 years and within 40 years 
40 years and within 50 years 
50 years and above 

65%
65%
55%
50%
45%
45%
45%
55%
50%

52.60%
33.44%
16.09%
5.48%
2.50%
5.37%
0.72%

21.50%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

29.30%
5.19%
5.19%
1.93%
1.09%
1.25%
0.00%

12.71%
0.00%

 

31

Page 133



Appendix 5 

Summary of Changes to TM practice 11-12 approved by Director for 
Corporate Support on 1st April 2011. 
 

! Schedule 1.1.1. Criteria to be used for creating/ managing approved 
counterparty list/limits 

 
Pages 4 and 5. - Updated in line with 11-12 approved Treasury Management 
strategy to allow deposits up to 2 years – Up to £10m with approved UK banks 
and building societies and up to £5m with approved foreign banks. 
 

! TMP 5 Organisation, clarity and segregation of responsibilities, and 
dealing arrangements 

 
Page 36 5.4.6 Senior Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) 
The responsibilities of this post include: - 
 
Updated to make recommendations for deposits up to 2 years – previously 1 
year. 
 
Page 38 5.6 Dealing Limits 
 
Limit for the Senior Accountant (Corporate Accountancy - Technical) and 
Accountants (Corporate Accountancy -Technical) together with approved cover 
updated to: 
 
Deposit limits up to 2 years subject to the approval of the Treasury Management 
Board and/or the Director for Corporate Support, Assistant Director of 
Finance, Assets & Efficiencies or Head of Finance.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32

Page 134



 
Schedule: 
 
1.1.1. CRITERIA TO BE USED FOR CREATING/ MANAGING APPROVED 
COUNTERPARTY LISTS/LIMITS 
 

4. The approved investment counterparty list is determined by the following criteria: 
Changes are highlighted. 

 
ORGANISATI
ON 

INVESTMENT CRITERIA MAX AMOUNT MAX 
PERIOD 

Government 
Debt Office 

Central Government Office No Limit 
£10m 

12 Months 
2 Years 

UK Banks  Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A+ Short-
Term F1 
Moody’s – Long-Term A1 Short-
Term P-1  
S&P – Long-Term A+ Short-
Term A-1 

£30m  
 
£10m 

12 Months 
 
2 years 

UK Building 
Societies  

Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A+ Short-
Term F1 
Moody’s – Long-Term A1 Short-
Term P-1  
S&P – Long-Term A+ Short-
Term A-1 

£30m  
 
£10m 

12 Months 
 
2 Years 

Foreign Banks Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A+ Short-
Term F1 
Moody’s – Long-Term A1 Short-
Term P-1  
S&P – Long-Term A+ Short-
Term A-1 

£10m 
 
£5m 

12 Months 
 
2 Years 

Local Authorities Unitary Councils 
County Councils 
Metropolitan Councils 
London Borough Councils 

£5m 12 Months 

Money Market 
Funds 

AAA with Constant Net Asset 
value investing predominantly in 
Government securities. 
AAA with a Constant Net Asset 
investing in instruments issued 
primarily by financial institutions.  

2.5% of overall 
investment portfolio 

Call 

33

Page 135



Bonds Issued by 
Multilateral 
Development 
banks 

AAA or Government 
Guaranteed Eurosterling Bonds 

Total investment 
£20m or 10% of 
investment portfolio 

10 years 

 

1. The maximum period of lending is 2 (Two) years for deposits other than in 
EIB/Government bonds where the limit will be 10 years.  

 
 
TMP 5 ORGANISATION, CLARITY AND SEGREGATION OF 
RESPONSIBILITIES, AND DEALING ARRANGEMENTS 
 
 
5.4.6 Senior Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) 
The responsibilities of this post include (changes highlighted): - 
 

! Carrying out or delegating the execution of transactions to the treasury 
management team 

! Adherence to agreed policies and practices on a day-to-day basis. 
! Maintaining relationships with third parties and external service providers and 

reviewing their performance. 
! Supervising treasury management staff. 
! Monitoring performance on a day-to-day basis. 
! Submitting management information reports to the Treasury Management 

Board, Director for Corporate Support, Assistant Director of Finance, Assets & 
Efficiencies, Head of Finance and Corporate Finance & Accountancy Manager. 

! Identifying and recommending opportunities for improved practices. 
! Prepare and update, making recommendations for including counterparties on 

the Council’s lending list following the advice of the Council’s Treasury 
Management advisors.. 

! Authority to borrow for periods up to 1 year and lending up to 1 month.. 
Lending in excess of 1 month subject to the agreement of the Treasury 
Management Board and/or the approval of the Director for Corporate Support 
or Assistant Director of Finance, Assets & Efficiencies.   

! Make recommendations on all lending up to 2 years and borrowing over 1 year 
maturity. 

 
 
5.6 DEALING LIMITS 

The following posts are authorsed to deal:-  
 
Senior Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) (changes 
highlighted) 
No dealing limits for loans up to 1 year. 

34

Page 136



Deposits up to 1 month with unlimited value with the Debt Management Office or 
£5M with an approved Local Authority or £30m with an approved bank or building 
society subject to the limits detailed in the Council’s Annual Investment strategy and 
the approved lending list. 
Deposit limits up to 2 years subject to the approval of the Treasury Management 
Board and/or the Director for Corporate Support, Assistant Director of Finance, 
Assets & Efficiencies or Head of Finance.  
 
Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) 
Deposits up to 15 Days with unlimited value with the Debt Management Office or 
£5M with an approved Local Authority or £30m with an approved bank or building 
society subject to the limits detailed in the Council’s Annual Investment strategy and 
the approved lending list. 
Deposit limits up to 2 years subject to the approval of the Treasury Management 
Board and/or the Director for Corporate Support, Assistant Director of Finance, 
Assets & Efficiencies or Head of Finance.  
Loans overnight only (includes weekend) with maximum value of £15m. 

 

35

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



Ju
n

e 
20

11

��
��

��
��

	

���

	

��

�
��

��
��

���
	�

��
��

�	�
��

	�
��

��
�	

��
	�

��
��

�
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
	�

��
��

��

Agenda Item 13Page 139



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11



��

��
��

�

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
1

1 
 In

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  p
2

2 
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 s
u

m
m

ar
y 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
p

3

3 
 A

u
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

p
4-

6 

4 
 U

p
d

at
e 

o
n

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
   

   
   

p
7-

8

5 
 R

es
u

lt
s 

o
f 

in
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it

 w
o

rk
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  p

9-
11

6 
 IF

R
S

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 r

ev
ie

w
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  p
12

-1
5

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  p
16

-1
8

Page 140



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
2

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

��
��	

��
��

��	
��

��
��

��
	�

��
���

��
��

	��
��

��
��

��
�	

��
	�

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

��
�

 	
��

��
��

��
���

��
�	�

��
	��

	�
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
	�

��
��

��
	��

��
��

	��
	!

�
��

"�
�	�

��
� 

	
��

	#
��

�	�
�	�

�	
��

��
��

	�
�	

��
�	�

��
��

��
�	

��
	$

��
	��

�$
�	�

��
�

	��
�	

��
��

���
	�

�	
��

��
���

	�
��

��	
#

��
$%

U
se

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

��
��	

��
��

��	
��

��
��

�	�
��

	�
�	�

��
	�

��
��

��
	�

���
��

&	
��

��
	�

��
	��

��
���

	#
��

$	
��

�	
��

��
��

	�
��

	"
�	

��
��

	��
�	�

��
	�

��
��

	�
��

��
��

	�
�	"

�	
&�

��
�	

��
	��

���
	�

��
���

�	
#

���
��

�	�
��

	�
���

�	#
���

��
�	

�
��

��
�%	

	'
��

	��
��

��	
��	

��
��	

��
	�

	
��

���
��

�&
	

��
��

�&
��

	"
��

#
��

�	
��

�	



��
�

��	
��

�	
��

��
��

��
�	�

��
	��

��
��

	�
��

	"
�	

��
���

�	
��

��
	��

	�
��

�
�	�

��	
��

��
��

 	�
��

��
�

	�
�	

��
���

�	#
��

$�
��

��
�	�

�	�
��

��
��

��
���

�	
��

�	�
�

��
��

��
��

��
	��

	�
��

�&
��

��
�	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	��
��

	�
�&

��
	�

(�
��

%		

��
�	



��

�
��	

��
��

��
	�

��
��

�	�
��

	#
��

��
	��

��
�

��
��

��
	�

�	�
��

	
��

�
��

��
��

	�
��

	
��

�
�

�
��

��
���

��
	"

��
��

�	
��

�
��

�&
	#

��
��

��
	��

	�


��
�	�

�	�
�

��
��

��
�	�

��
�

 	
��

�$
��

&	
��

��
	�

#
�	

��
�

��
���

�	�
��

�
� 

	�
�	�

��
��

��
��

��
%

)
�	

�
�

��
	�

�	
��

��
��

��"
���

��
	��

	��
�	

��
��

�	�
��

�	�
��

	��
���

	�
��

��
	��

�
��

	
��

��
� 	

��
	��

�"
���

���
� 	

��
	��

��
��

��
	��

��
 	�

�	�
��

�&
� 

	�
�	�

	��
��

��	
��

	��
��

�	�
��

��
&	

��
���

�	
��

	�
��

��
��

&	
�

��
��

��
�	

#
���

��
	��

��	
��

��
��%

�%
	��

��
��

�
���

�

T
h

e 
w

ay
 f

o
rw

ar
d

)
�	

��
��

	��
�	�

��
	�

��
	��

��
��

&�
	�

��
	��

�	
��

��
�

��
��

	��
�

�
�

��
��

���
��

	�
��

	��
	

��
	�

��
��

��
(	

��
	��

��	
��

��
��

%	)
�	

��
��

	�
&�

��
�	

�
���

��
	��

	��
��

��
��

�	�
��

	
��

�
�

�
��

��
���

��
	�

��
�	

#
���

	�
��

��
��

��
��

	

��

�
��	

��
��

�%

A
ck

n
o

w
le

d
g

em
en

ts
)

�	
#

��
��

	��
$�

	��
	��

�
��

	�
��

	�
��

��
�

��
��

�	
��

�	�
��

	�
��

���
��

�
	�

��
	

��
��

��
��

��
�	

��
��

��
��

	��
	�

�	�
��

��
&	

��
�	�

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

"�
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��%

+
��

��
	�

��
��

��
�	

�
,

	-
-�

.�
��

	�
��

�

Page 141



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

�%
	/

(�
�

���
�	

��
�

�
��

�

��
�	

��
"�

�	
"�

��
#

	�
��

��
��

�	�
	��

�
�

��
�	

��
�	�

��
	�

��
��	



��

�
���

��
	�

�	�
��

	#
��

$	
��

��
��

�
��

	��
	�

��
�	

��
�	

��
�	$

��
	��

��
��

&�
%		

��
�	�

��
��

��
	�

��
��

�	�
��

��
	��

	��
�	

��
��

��
��

	��
�

��
�	

#
���

��
	��

��	
��

��
��%

	0
�#

	��
��	

#
��

$	
��

�	"
��

�	
��

��
��

�
��

	��
	�

��
���

��
	��

	��
�	

�
��

��	
�

��
��

�
�	

��
�

��
� 

	�
�	

��
&�

�	1
	��

	2
%

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
3

3
��

��
�	

��
��

	"
��

�	
��

	
��

�&
��

	��
	�

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

��
�

	�
�	�

��
	�

��
	��

	�
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
	�

��
��

��
%

�
��

���
��

�	

�

��

3
��

�	
��

��
�	�

��$
�	#

��
�	

��
���

��
�	

��
	�

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

	�
��

��
��

%		
��

	�
��

� 
	#

�	
��

��
	�

��
	��

��
���

��
�	

��
�	

��
#

	��
�$

�	�
�

��
&	

��
�	



��

�
��%


��
��
��
��
��
�
��

�

3
)

�	
��

��
	�

��
��

��
��

	��
�	

��
��&

�	
��

��
�

��
��

��
�	�

�	�
��

��
��

�	
��

��
��

�	�
��

�	�
��

	��
��

�
��

�	�
��

��
���

&	
��

�
��

�	�
��

��
&�

	�
	

��
"�

��
���

�	
��

��
4�

���
	

��
�	

�"
��

��
��

��
�	

��
�

��
��

��
	�

��
 	#

��
��

	�
��

��
��

��
��

 	�
��

��
�

�	#
��

$�
��

��
&�

�%
3

)
�	

��
��

	��
���

�	
���

�	
��

�
�

�
��

��
���

��
	��

��
	�

��
	��

��
�#

	�
�	

��
��

��
� 	

#
��

�
	�

��
	��

�	�
��

	��
	�

��
��

��
(	

5%


��
��
�
�

���
��
�	
��

��
�


��
	

��

3
)

�	
��

��
	

��
�

��
��

	��
��

	��
�	

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
�

�	
�

��
��

��
�	�

�	
��

��
��

�	
��

	��
��

��
��

��
�	�

��
	��

���
��

�
��

�	
��

��
�

�	
��

	��
�	



��

�
��

��
�	

��
��

	#
�	

�
�	

��
$�

	�
��

��
��

�
	��

��
	��

��
�	#

��
$	

��
	

��
��

�"
��

��
&	

��
	�

�	
��

��
�

��
�	

��
��

��
��

	
��

��
��

	�
��

���
��

��
�	�

�	�
��

	

��

�
��%

3
)

�	
��

��
	��

���
�	

�#
�	

��
�

�
�

��
��

���
��

	��
�	�

��
��

��
	��

��
��

��
��

� 	
#

��
�

	�
��

	��
�	�

��
	��

	�
��

��
��

(	
5%


��
��
�
�

���
��
�	
��

��
��

��
�

3
'

��
	��

��
�#

	��
��

���
��

�	
��

��
	��

�	



��
�

��	
��	

�
�$

��
&	

��
�4

��
��

	�
��

&�
��

�	�
�	

���
	��

��
���

��
�	

��
	��

�
6%

		)
�	

�
$�

�#
��

�&
�	

��
��

	��
��

�	
��	

��
���

	��
�

�	
#

��
$	

"�
��

&	
��

��
��

�$
��

	"
�	

��
�	



��

�
��	

��
	

��
��

��
	�

��
	��

��
�#

	�
��	

��
��

��
��

	��
��

��
��

��
�%

		)
�	

#
���

	��
��

�#
	��

��	
#

��
$	

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
�	

�
�

��
���

&	
��

��
��

�	�
��

��
&	

��
�	

���
��

	�


��
��

�	
��

��
�%

��

�

�	
	�
��

��
��

��
�

	�
��
��

Page 142



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
4

7%
	'

��
	�


��

��
�	�

��
��	

��
��

��
�

A
u

d
it

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 r
em

in
d

er

)
�	

#
���

8

3
#

��
$	

�
��

��
�	

#
���

	��
�	

���
��

�
	��

��
	��

	�
��

��
�	

��
��

	#
�	

�
��

�	�
��

��	
��

��
���

��
	�

��
	

��
��

�
	��

�	
��

��
�	�

��
�

��
��

��
9

3
��

��
	�

��
	�

��
��	

��
	�

�	
��

��
��

��
��

	��
�$

	"
��

��	
��

	��
�	

��
��

�	�
�	�

��
	�

��
�� 

	�
��

	
�&

��
�	

���
��

�"
��

�	#
���

	�
��	

��
��

�	�
��

��
��

�9
3

�
��

��
��

	��
�	

�
��

��
��

���
�	

��
	��

��
��

�
��

��
	#

��
�	

��
��

��
�&

	�
��

	�
��

��	
��

�	
#

��
�	

��
��

���
�&

	�
��

	��
��

��
&�

9	�
��

3
�

��
��

��
	��

	��
��

�#
	�

��
	�

��
��

��
	��

��
"�

$
	�

�	
��

�	
#

��
$	

��
�	



��

�
��	

��
�	

��
��

��
�

��
	��

��
�&

�	
���

	��
��

���
��

�	
��

	��
��

��
��

��
��

�	�
��

��
�

��
	�

��
��

���
&	

6�
��

��
��

�	:
��

�
6;

%	

��
�	

��
&�

��
�

	�
��

��
��	

��
	�

��
	�

��
��

�	�


��
��

�	�
��

�� 
	�

�	�
&�

��
�	

#
���

	��
�	

!
���

�
��

	��
�	


��
��

��
��

	6
��

��
�� 

	�
��

	�
��

��
��

�	
��

	�
��

��
��

(	
�

%

P
la

n
n

in
g

•�
��

��
��

&	
��

�	�
��

��
��

��
��

�&
	�

�	
��

�	



��
�

��	
��

��
�&

�	
��

�
��

���
��

	
#

���
	�

��
�&

��
��

�	�
��

	�
	��

��
�#

	�
�	

��
�	

�
��

�&
��

��
�	�


��

��
�

•�
��

��
#

��
&	

��
�

6	
���

��
���

��
	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

C
o

n
tr

o
l

ev
al

u
at

io
n

3
��

��
�#

��
&	

��
�	

��
��&

�	
��

�	
��

��
��

��
��

���
�	

	�
�	

��
��

��
��

	��
��

�
��

�	
�

��
��

��	
��

�
��

��
&	

��
 	#

��
��

	��
��

	��
��

�
	�

�	
��

�	
���

��
�

��
	

��
��

��
��

��
3

�
��

��
���

&	
��

��
�	�

��$
	�

��
	�

��
��

��
��

&	
��

�	
��

��
��

��
���

&	
��

	
��

��
��

���
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
��

&�
3

�
��

��
���

&	
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

�&
��

��
�	�

��
	


��
��

	

��

�	
��

	�
��

�
�

�

S
u

b
st

an
ti

ve
 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s

3
��

��
��

�
��

&	
��

��
��

�
��

	��
��

�#
3

<�
���

��
�&

	�
��	

�
��

��
��

�	�
�

��
�	

��
�	

�(
��

��
���

��
	�

��
	"

��
��

�
	��

��
�	

�
�

��
�� 

	��
$�

�&
	��

��
	

��
���

��
��

��
�	

#
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
��

�
	��

	
��

��
�

��
��

	�
��

	�
��

��
��

��
��

3
��

��
�#

��
&	

�
��

��
��

�	�
��

��
��

��
	��

��
��

	��
	��

�	
���

��
�

��
	��

��
��

��
��

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

3
��

��
��

�
��

&	
��

	�
��

��
��	

��
��

��
���

�	
��

	��
�	

�
�

��
��

	�
��

	
��

���
�	

��
��

��
��

��
�

3
!

��
��

�
��

��
&	

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

��
�

3
��

��
��

��
&	

��
	��

�	
�

��
��	



��

�
���

��

��
	��

�
�

��
� 	

��
�	�

��
��	

��
��

��
&�

	
��

��
���

�:

Page 143



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
5

7%
	'

��
	�


��

��
�	�

��
��	

��
��

��
�

	:
��

���
��

�;

M
at

er
ia

lit
y

�
�	

���
�

	#
��

��
	"

�	
�

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��
��

�	�
�	

��
�	

���
��

�
��

	��
��

��
��

��
	��

 	
��

��
�&

�	
���

	�
�

���
��

�	
��

	�
��

��
��

��
��

��
 	�

��
	��

��
�

��
�	�

��
��

�
��

��
	#

��
��

	�
�	

��
�&

��
	��

�#
	�

	��
��

	�
�	�

��
�	�

��
#%

=
��

��
��

���
�	

��	
��

�	�
�	�

��
	�

��
��

�	�
�	

��
��

��
�&

	��
	�

��
��

�	
��

��
	�

�	
��

��
��

���
��

	
��

��
�	�

�	
��

��
�	#

��
$	

��	
��

��
��

�%
		�

�	�
�	�

��
�	

��
��

	��
��

�&
��

��
	��

�	
��

��
�	

��
�

��
�	�

�	
��

��
�	�

�	
��

��
��

	��
�	

��
��

�
	�

�	
��

�	
���

�
	�

�	
��

�	
���

��
�

��
	

��
��

��
��

��%
		�

��
	��

��
���

��
�	

��
��

��
	�

�	�
���

��
��

�
�	&

��
��

��
	��

��
	 �
��
��
  

 �
:"

��
�#

	��
��	

��
��

�	#
�	

�
��

��
��

	�
��

��
�	

��
	"

�	
���

��
��

;	#
���

	"
�	

��
�

��
��

	�
�	

�	
�

��
��

��
	�

�	
��

��
��

��
�	�

���
��

��
�

��
��%

	

��
��

�	
��

�	
��

��
��

��
	��

��
��

��
��

��
	�

��
	��

	�
&&

��
&�

��
 	�

��
��

��
�	

#
���

	�
��

	�
��

 	
��

	�
��

	�
�	

��
�	�

�>
��

� 	
��&

��
�	

��
�	

"�
	�

��
	��

	�
��

�	�
��

��
�	�

�	
��

��
��

��
��

���
�	

��
	

��
 	

��
���

�
��

&	
��

��
	�

��
#

	��
��

	��
��

	�
��

	��
�

��
��

��
�	�

�	
��

�	
���

��
�

��
	

��
��

��
��

��%
		)

�	
#

���
	��

��
	

��
���

��
	#

��
�	�

�
��

�
 	�

�	
��

� 	
��

�	�
�>

��
���

&	
��

�	
��

	�
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
��

�%

�
�	

���
�

	�
�	

��
#

	�
��

��
	�

��
	"

�	
>�

�&
��

	�
��

��
��

�	"
�	

���
	�

��
��

� 
	��

�	�
(�

�
��

�	
��

�	
���

�
	��

��
	�

��
�

��
	��

�	
��

�
��

��
��

	�
�	

��
��

�
��

�*	
��

��
��

��
��%

		�
�	

���
�

	�
�	

��
&�

��
	�

��
��

	�
��

	"
�	

>�
�&

��
	�

��
	�

��
��

��
�	�

�	
��	

��
��

	�
��

	�
���

��
�	�

��
	��

��
�	

��
�	

��
���

��
�	�

�	
��

�	
���

��
�

��
	��

��
��

��
��%

In
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

)
�	

#
���

	#
��

$	
#

���
	��

�	
!

��
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
��

��
��

�	
��

	�
��

��
�	

��
�	�

��
��	

��
��

��
�

	��
$�

�	�


��
��

	�
�	

��
�	

���
$�

	��
��

���
��

�	
"�

	��
	�

��
	��

�	
#

��
$	

��	
��

�	
�

��
�

��
�9

	��
">

�
�	�

�	
��

�	�
��

��
#

	�
�	

��
�	

��
��

�
��

��
��

�	�
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
��

�
���

�%

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

IT
 a

n
d

 o
u

ts
o

u
rc

ed
 s

ys
te

m
s

��
�	



��

�
��	

�
�$

�	
�(

��
��

��
�	

��
�	

��
	��

��
��

��
��

�	
��

�
��

��
&�

	:�
�;

	��
	�

��
�

��
	

���
��

�
��

	��
��

��
�

��
��

	�
��

	�
��

��
�

	��
�	�

��
��

�
��

	��
��

��
��

��%
	�


��

��
�&

�� 
	�

��
	

��
��

��
�

	��
4�

���
�	�

	��
��

�#
	�

�	
��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

��
�	

��
���

��	
��

	��
�	

��
	

��
��

��
��

��
�%

)
�	

��
��

	��
��

��
��

	��
	��

�
��

���
�	�

��
�

	�
��

"�
��

	�
��

��
&	

��
�	

��
��

�%	
��

��	
��

��
��

�
	��

	"
��

��
	�

�	
��

�	
�

�
��

�(
���

	�
�	

��
	�

��
�	

��
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

�&
��

��
��

�	
���

��
�

���
�	

�
�

��
	�

��
	�

�
��

��
�	�

��$
	�

��
��

��
��

�%

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

�
��

���
�&

	��
��

��
��

�	�
�4

��
��

	��
��

	#
�	

��
��

��
��

	��
�	

��
��&

�	
��

��
�

��
��

��
�	�

�	
��

��
��

��
	

��
���

��	
��

��
	��

�	
���

��
�

��
	��

��
��

��
&	

��
�

��
�	�

�	
��

��
���

�	
��

��
�	�

�	
#

��
$�

��
�	�

��
�	

��
��

	��
��

	��
	�

��
��

��
�	�

���
��

��
�

��
�%	

�
�	�

	��
��

�� 
	#

�	
��

�
�	�

��
	

�
��

��
�	�

��
��

#
	�

�	
��

�	
��

&�
	��

�$
	�

��
��

	�
�	

��
�	

���
��

�
��

	��
��

��
��

��%

Page 144



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

7%
	'

��
	�


��

��
�	�

��
��	

��
��

��
�

	:
��

���
��

�;

)
�	

��
�	

��
��

	��
4�

���
�	

��
	�

��
��

�	#
��

��
��

	
��

���
��	

��
��

	"
��

�	
��

��
��

��
��

�	
��

	
��

��
��

��
%		

)
�	

��
��

	�
��

�	
��

��	
��

��
�&

�	
�	

�
�

"�
��

���
�	

��
	��

4�
���

	�
��

	�
"�

��
��

���
�	

��
�

��
��

��
	�

��
 	#

��
��

	�
��

��
��

��
��

 	�
��

��
�

�	#
��

$�
��

��
&�

	��
��

�%	
	0

�#
��

��
 	�

��
	

#
��

$	
�

��
��

	"
�	

��
���

�	
��

��
	��

	��
��

���
�	

��
�	�

��
��

�
���

��
	�

�	�
��

��
	��

��
&�

��
���

��
� 	

��
	

��
	��

�
��

�	
��

�	�
��

��"
��

	��
��

��
��

��
��

	��
	��

��
��

��
	

��
���

�	�
��

�	�
	�

��
�	

�(
��

��
��

�	
�

��
��

��	
��

��
�#

	�
(�

�
���

	�
�&

��
	��

��
���

�%

T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 t

o
 In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

(I
F

R
S

)
��

�	
��

�
6

"�
��

�	



��
�	

��
	�

��
�

�
�	

��
	-

�
��

	�
��

��
���

�	
�


��

��
��

&	
��

	��
�	

�
��

��
�	

,
��

&�
��

	:�
��

	

��

�;
	�

��
	�

��
�

�	�
��

�
	�

	�
��

��	
��

��
%		

��
�	

?��
��

���
��

�	
��

��
@	�

�
��

�
6

��	
��

��
��

��
�	

�	
�

��
��	

��
�A

%

��
�	



��

�
��	

��	
��

��
��

��"
��

	��
�	�

��
	�

��
��

��
���

�	
��

	�
	��

��
��

��
	�

��
��

�&
	"

��
��

�
	

��
��

�	�
�	�

�	�
	�

��
��	

��
�A

	��
���

#
��

&	
��

�	
��

���
��

�
��

�	
��

	��
��

��
��

��
��

�	�
��

��
�

��
	

�
��

��
���

&	
6�

��
��

��
�	:

��
�

6;
	�

��
	��

	�


��
��

�
�	

#
���

	��
�	



��

�%

�
��

���
��

	�
�	

��
�	�

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

�
	��

��
���

�&
	��

��
��

��"
���

���
�	�

�	
��

��
�

�	�
�	�

��
��

���
��

	
"�

��
�

��
	�

���
��

&�
	��

��
	#

���
	��

��
	��

�	
��

��
��

&	
"�

��
�

��
	��

�	�
��

	
��

��
��

���
�	

��
���

�%
	

'
��

	#
��

$	
��

	�
��

�	
��

�	�
�$

��
	��

�	
��

��
	�

�	�
�	

��
��

�&
��

��
��

	��
��

�#
	��

��
��

��
	��

	
��

��
��

�	
��

��
"�

$
	�

�	
��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

�
�	

��
	��

��
��

��
��

�	�
��

	��
	�

��
	�

�	
��

��
�	�

�

��
�	

��
��

��
��

	"
��

��
�

	��
��

�	�
�&

��
��

%	!
��

��
��

�	
#

��
$	

��
	��

�	
��

��
��

��
	��

&�
��

�	#
���

	��
$�

	
��

�
�	

��
���

&	
��

�	
��

��
��

�	
���

��
	�


��

��
�	�

��
��%

	�
��

�	�
��

��
��

��
�	�

��
	��

�
��

��
	

��
��

	�
��

��
��

�	"
��

��
�

�	�
���

��
	��

	��
&�

��
	��

	��
��

�	�
��

��
	�

�	�
��

��
�%

)
�	

��
��

	�
��

	��
&�

��
���

	#
���

	��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

��
�

	��
��

	��
	�

��
��

�	�
��

��
�	�

���
��

&	
��

�	
��

	��
��

�#
	�

��
&�

��
�	�

�	
�

�$
��

&	
��

�	
���

��
���

��
	��

	��
�

6%
		)

�	
�

��
��

��
	��

��
	��

�	



��
�

��	
��

�	�
��

�	
��

�4
��

��
	�

��
&�

��
�	�

�	
��

��
��

��
&	

��
�	�

��
	�

��
��

�
��

�	
��

	��
�	

��
��

�
��

	�


��
��

�	�
��

	��
��

��
��

	
��

��
��

���
��

	��
	�


��

��
�

�	
#

���
	��

�	
��

��
��

�	



��
�	

��
	

��
�

��
�%

		�
���

��
&�

	��
�	



��

�
��	

��
��

��
��

	��
	�

��
��

��
	��

��
��

��
	�

��
A�

��
	�


��

��
�	

��
�	�

��
��	

��
	.�

��
��

�	
��

��
 	�

��
��	

#
��

$	
��

��	
"�

��
��

	�
��

��
��

%		



��
��

4�
��

���
	��

�	
��

>�
��

�
��

��
	��

	�
���

�	�
��

�	
��

��
��

���
��

	#
���

	"
�	

��
��

�#
��

	�
�	�

��
�	�

�	�
��

	��
��

�	
�

�
��

��
	�

��
��	

��
	.�

��
	�

��
�%

		

'
��

	#
��

$	
��

	�
��

�	
��

�	�
��

	��
��

���
��

�	
��

��
�	�

�	�
��

�
��

��
��

�
�	

#
���

	��
�	



��

�	
��

�	
��

�	
���

��
�	#

��
�

	�
��

	�
��

	�
���

��
�	

"�
��

	
��

���
��

��
	"

�	
��

�	



��
�

��%

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  
6Page 145



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

1%
	�

��
��

�	
��

	�


��
��

�	�
��

��	
���

$	
��

��
��

�
��

�

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  
7

�
�	�

��
�	�

�	
��

�	�
��

��
��

&	
��

�	
�

��
��

�	�
��

��
��

��
�	

#
��

$	
#

�	
��

��
	��

��
�#

��
	��

�	
��

��
�	

���
��

�	�
��

��
���

��
	��

	�
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
	��

�	�
��

��
��

	�
��

	�
��

�	
��

�	�
��

	"
��

�#
	��

�	
��

�
��

�	
��

	#
��

$	
�

�
��

��
��

	��
	�

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
�	#

��
$	

��
��

��
�%

'
��

	�
��

��
�	

��
	��

�	
��

��
�	�

��
	�

��
��

��
�

	��
�$

�	�
�

��
&	

��
�	



��

�
��	

��
�	�

��
	

��
��

���
��

�	
��

�	
��

#
	��

�$
	�

��
��

%

Is
su

e 
   

   
   

   
A

u
d

it
 a

re
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d
   

   
   

  W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

   
   

   
   

   
F

u
rt

h
er

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
ed

•
)

�	
�

��
��

��
	��

	�
��

��
�	�

��
	��

��
�

��
��

�	
��

�	�
��

	
��

��
��

��
�&

	��
��

��
	#

���
	��

�	
���

��
�

	��
��

%
•

=
��

��
��

�	�
��

��
	��

��
	�

��
	��

��
�

��
	"

�	
��

�	
���

��
���

��
	

��
	��

�
6	

#
���

	"
�	

��
��

�#
��

	��
	�

��
��

�	�
�	�

��
	��

�
�	

��
	

��
�	

���
��

	�


��
��

�	�
��

��%
•

)
�	

#
���

	��
��

�#
	��

�	
	��

��
�	�


��

��
��

&	
��

��
��

�	�
�	

��
�

��
�	�

�	
��

�	
���

��
	�


��

��
�%

)
�	

#
���

	��
��

��
	�

��
	��

��	
���

��
�&

�	�
��

	
��

�
��

��
��

	��
	��

��
�

�	�
�	

��
�

	��
�$

	��
��

���
��

�	
��

	�
��

	�
��

��
�	�

��
��

�	�
�	

��
��

�	



��
�&

��
	#

���
	+

��
��

��
�

�	
:�

6�
	�

2�
;	�

�	
�

�
��

��
��

�	
��

	�
��

	��
��

�	�


��
��

�	�
��

��%

3
)

�	
��

��
	��

��
�#

��
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	
��

�	
��

��
��

��
&	

��
�	

���
��

���
��

	��
	��

�
6%

3
)

�	
��

��
	��

��
�#

��
	��

�	
��

��
�	�


��

��
��

&	
��

��
��

�	
�&

��
��

�	�
��

	��
4�

���
�

��
��

	�
�	

��
�	

��
�

6	



��
�%

3
)

�	
��

��
	

��
���

��
�	

��
	�

��
�	�

�&
��

��
��

	#
���

	��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

��
�

	��
��

�	
��

	�
��

��
��

	��
�

��
�	

��
��

�#
	

��
	�

��
��

��
�	

�
�

��
���

&	
���

��
�

��
�	�

��
��

	��
�

6%

A
ll 

ar
ea

s 
o

f
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

T
h

e 
20

10
-1

1 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
m

ay
 n

o
t 

b
e 

p
re

p
ar

ed
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 

IF
R

S

•
)

�	
�

��
��

��
	��

	��
��

��
	#

���
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

�
	

��
��

	�
�	

��
	�

��
&�

��
&	

"�
���

	��
	�

��
��

�	�
�

��
&�

�&
	

���
��

�	�
��

	��
��

��
�	

��
	��

�
��

�
�	4

��
���

�%

3
)

�	
��

��
	�

��
���

��
�	

��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

&�
��

�	
�&

��
��

�	�
��

	��
�

6	
��

�>
�

�	�
��

�	
��

�	
��

�	
��

���
���

�	
��

��
	

��
�	



��

�
��	

��	
��

	��
�

$	
��

	�
��

��
��

	��
�	�

���
�	�

��
	�

�	
��

�
6	

�
�

��
��

	"
�	

7�
	.�

��
	�

��
�%

A
ll 

ar
ea

s 
o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

T
h

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

in
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
fi

n
an

ce
 

re
so

u
rc

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
st

at
u

to
ry

 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 b
y 

30
 

Ju
n

e 
20

11

Page 146



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
8

1%
	�

��
��

�	
��

	�


��
��

�	�
��

��	
���

$	
��

��
��

�
��

�	:
�

��
��

��
�;

3
)

�	
#

���
	��

��
�#

	��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

��
�

��
	�

��
��

��
��

�
	

��
���

��
	�

��
	��

�	�
�

��
��

�
��

�	�
�	

��
��

�&
�	�

&�
��

��
	�

��
�%

3
'

��
	�

��
��	

#
��

$	
#

���
	�

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

���
$�

	��
	��

��
���

�	
��

	
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�	�
�	

�(
��

��
���

��
	�

��
	��

�	
��

�	
��

	
��

��
��

��
%

3
)

�	
#

���
	��

��
�#

	�
��

	�
��

��
���

��
	�

��
��

��
$�

�	
��

	�
��

��
�	

��
��

	��
��

�	
�

�
��

�	
#

���
	��

�	
��

4�
���

�
��

��
	�

�	
��

�
6 

	
��

��
�

��
��

��
	��

	��
��

���
�	

��
	��

�	
��

��
��

��
�	

��
	�

��
��

�	
"�

��
&	

��
��

��
�

��
	��

	�
��

��
��

%

3
)

�	
��

��
	��

��
�#

��
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

�
��

	
��

��
��

�
��

�
	��

�	�
��

	�
��

�	�
&�

��
��

	��
�	�

&�
��

�	
"�

�&
��

 	�
��

��
&	

�	
��

��
�

��
	�

��
��

��
��

	�
�	

B�
�C

 �
��

%
3

)
�	

��
��

	��
��

�#
��

	��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

��
&�

�
��

��
	��

	
�

��
��

�	
��

��
��

�	
��

��
�&

�	�
��

��
&�

	��
�	

*�
��

�
��

	��
	

��
�*	

��
�>

�
�%

3
)

�	
��

��
	�

��
��

��
�	

��
��

��
��

�	�
�	

��
�

��
���

�	
��

��
��

	
��

	�
��

��
�	

��
�	

�
��

&�
���

��
��

�	
��

�	
��

��
��

��
��

	�
��

	
��

��
��

���
��

%

P
ro

p
er

ty
, p

la
n

t 
an

d
 

eq
u

ip
m

en
t

A
ll 

ar
ea

s 
o

f 
th

e
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

P
re

ss
u

re
s 

o
ve

r 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ay
 

af
fe

ct
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 
ab

ili
ty

 t
o

 d
el

iv
er

 it
s 

b
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic

R
ev

al
u

at
io

n
 o

f 
fi

xe
d

 
as

se
ts

 a
re

 n
o

t 
co

rr
ec

tl
y 

ac
co

u
n

te
d

 
fo

r

Is
su

e 
   

   
   

   
A

u
d

it
 a

re
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d
   

   
   

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

   
   

   
   

   
F

u
rt

h
er

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
ed

Page 147



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

1

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
��

	��
��

��
��

�	�
	4

��
���

�	
��

��
��

�
�	

��
�

��
�	�

�	
��

�
��

��
��

��
	

��
��

��
�

�	
#

���
	��

�	
��

��
�	�

��
��

�% © 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
9

C%
	�

��
��

��
	�

�	�
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
#

��
$

S
co

p
e

�
�	�

��
�	�

�	�
��

	��
��

���
	�

��
�� 

	�
��

	��
	�

��
��

�
	�

�	�
��

	��
��

�	�


��
��

�	�
��

��	
��

���
 	#

�	
�

��
��

��
��

8
•

��
�	

��
��

�
��

��
��

�	�
�	�

��
	��

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

��
�

���
�9

•
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��*

�	#
��

$	
��

	��
�	



��

�
��*

�	$
��

	��
��

�
��

�	�
��

��
�

�9
•

��
�	

�
��

��
��	

��
��

	$
��

	��
��

��
�	�

��
��

��
�	�

�	
��

�	�


��
��

�	�
��$

�9	
��

�
•

��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

��
�

��
��

�	
��

�
��

��
&�

	
��

���
��%

��
�	

���
��

�&
�	�

��
�

	�
��

	#
��

$	
��

�	
��

�	�
��

	��
	��

��	
��

�
��

�	
��

	�
��

	��
��

��	
��

	�
�	

�(
�

��
��

�	
"�

���
%		

)
�	

��
��

	��
�

��
��

	��
�

�
�

��
��

���
��

	��
��

���
��

�	
"�

	�
��

	
#

��
$	

��
	��

�	
��

��
��

�(
	5

	��
	��

��	
��

��
��%

	)
�	

��
��

	�
&�

��
�	

�
���

��
	��

	
��

��
��

��
�	�

��
	��

�
�

�
��

��
���

��
	#

���
	��

�	
���

��
�

	��
��

%

T
h

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

u
d

it
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
)

�	
��

��
�#

	��
��

��
��

	�
��

��*
�	�

��
��

��	
��

��
�&

��
��

��
	�

&�
��

��
	��

�	
��

�2
	


��
��

	
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

6�
��

��
��

�%	
	)

��
��

	��
�	

��
��

�&
��

��
��

	�
��

	�
��

�
��

	��
	"

�	
��

�4
��

��
 	#

�	
�

�	
&�

��
	�

��
��

��
�

	��
��

	��
�	

��
��

��
�	#

��
$	

��
��

���
$�

�	
"�

	
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

��
�	

�
�	

�
�

��
��

	��
��

	��
�	

��
��

�
�	

���
��

�	�
�	

��
���

"�
���

&	
��

���
��

��
�	

��
	��

�	
��

��
��

��
	

��
���

�	�
��

���
��

��
�	�

��
	�

��
��

��	
&�

��
��

��
�

	
��

��
�&

��
��

��
	#

���
��

	��
�	



��

�
��%

'
��

��
�� 

	#
�	

��
��

	
��

�
��

��
	��

��
	��

�	
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

�
�	

�
��

��
��

�	�
�	

��
��

��
�	

��
	��

��
��

��
��

�	�
��

	��
���

��
�

��
�	

��
��

�
�	

��
	��

�	



��
�

��	
��

�	
��

��
	

#
�	

�
�	

��
$�

	�
��

��
��

�
	��

��
	��

��
�	#

��
$	

��
	

��
���

"�
���

&	
��

	�
�	

��
��

�
��

�	
��

��
��

��
	

��
���

�	�
��

���
��

��
�	�

�	�
��

	

��

�
��%

	

0
�#

��
��

 	#
�	

��
��

	��
��

���
��

�	
�	

��
��

�	�
��

"�
�	�

�	
��

��
�	#

��
��

	��
�	

�
��

��
�	

��
��

�&
��

��
��

	
��

��
	"

�	
��

��
�&

��
��

��
	��

��
��

�%	
	'

��
	��

��
�#

	�
��

	�
�&

��
�&

��
��

	
��

��
	�

���
��

&�
	�

�
�	

��
��

�	�
���

	��
	��

">
�

�	�
�	

��
"�

��
	��

��
�#

	"
�	

��
	�

��
��	

�
��

�&
��

 	
��

��
�	

��	
��

	�
��

��
��	

4�
��

���
	�

��
��

��
�

	�
��

�
��

	��
	�

��
�

	��
	�

��
��

�	
��

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

�	
��

�	
�

�
��

��
�&

	#
���

	��
�	

!
��

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

��
��

��
�*

�	�
��

��	
�

��
��

�%	
	�

	
4�

��
���

	��
��

�#
	"

�	
��

��
�	�

��
��

��
��

��
	��

��
�	

#
��

��
	�

��
��

��
	��

�	



��
�

��	
#

���
	

��
��

��
�	�

��
��

��
�

	��
��

	��
�	

#
��

$	
��

	��
�	

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
��

�
���

�	
��	

"�
��

&	
��

���
��

��
	�

��
�

���
��

�%	
	

��
	�

��
��

���
&	

��
�	

��
��

�
��

��
��

�	�
�	

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
#

��
$ 

	#
�	

��
��

�#
��

	�#
�	

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
���

��
	��

	�
��

��
�	

��
��

8
•

��
��

��
�	#

��
�	

��
�4

��
��

��
	�

�
��

��
��

�9
•

$�
�	

�
��

��
��	

��
��

	"
��

�	
��

��
���

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
��

�9
•

$�
�	

�
��

��
��	

��
��

	"
��

�	
��

��
��

9	�
��

•
#

��
$�

��
��

�	�
��

�	
"�

��
	��

��
��

��
	��

	�
��

�&
��

��
�%

)
�	

��
��

	��
��

���
��

�	
��

��
	�

���
��

&�
	��

�	
��

�
��

��
	��

��
�

��
	"

�	
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

��
�	

��
�4

��
��

	
��

��
�&

�	
��

	��
�	

��
���

�	
"�

��
&	

��
��

��
 	�

��
��

	��
	�

�	
>�

��
���

�
���

�	
��

�
��

��
	�

�	
���

�	
��

	��
��

��
�	�

��
	�

��
"�

�	�
�	

���
�

�	�
��

�
��

�%
		�

��
�	

�
��

	��
��

��	
��

	��
�	

��
�

��
��

	��
��

�
��

	"
��

�&
	�

���
��

	��
�	

��
�&

�	
��

	��
�	

��
��

�%

Page 148



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

6



��

�&
��

	��
	��

��
���

�	�
��

��
��	

��
��

��
	"

�	
��

��
��

���
� 

	�
�	�

	�
��

��
��

	
��

��
�#

	�
�	

�
��

&�
�	�

��
�	

��
��

��
	"

�	
��

��
��

�
��

%

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

5

6�
��

�	
�

��
"�

��
	��

��
��

	"
�	

��
�

��
��

�	
��

	��
�	

��
��

	��
	�

��
��

	�
	��

��
��

��
	

��
�

���
���

�	
#

��
�	

��
��

��
&	

�	
>�

��
��

�%	
	


��
��

��
�

�	
#

���
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	

>�
��

��
�	�

��
�

��
��

�	�
��

��
�	

"�
	�

��
���

��
�%

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

4

�
��

��
	#

���
	>�

��
��

�	�


��
�	�

��
��

�	
"�

	�
��

��
��

�
���

	��
��

�#
��

	��
	��

�
��

�	
��

��
�	

#
��

��
	�

��
��

�	�
�	

��
�	�

�
��

��
	�

��
���

&	
>�

��
��

��%

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

3

��
�	



��

�
��	

��
��

��
	�

��
��

�	
��

��
	�

�&
�	

���
$	

>�
��

��
��	

��
�	

��
��

��
���

��
��

	
��

��
��

���
�	

��
��

�	�
�	

"�
��

&	
��

��
��

%	

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

2

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
��

	�
��

��
�	

��
��

	��
�	

>�
��

���
�

���
�	

��
�	�

��
	��

�
��

�	
��D

��
	

��
��

	��
	�

�
��

��
��

�	
��

	��
�	

��
��

�	�
���

%	

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
10

Jo
u

rn
al

 e
n

tr
y 

co
n

tr
o

ls
)

�	
��

��
	��

��
���

��
�	

��
��

	�
��

	��
��

�#
	�

�	>
��

��
��

	
��

���
��	

��
��

	��
�	



��

�
��	

�
��

��
��

�	�
�	

��
��

	�
�	

��
�	

��
��

&�
���

	�
�	�

��
�	�


��

�	
��

���
��	

��
��

��
	��

��
	

��
4�

���
�&

	>�
��

��
��	

��
	"

�	
��

��
��

���
�%

		�
��

�	�
��

��
��

�
�	�

��
	��

�$
	��

��
	��

�
��

�
�	

��
	��

��
��

��
��

	>�
��

��
��	

��
��

��
	��

��
	��

�	
��

�&
��

	�
��

	�
��

	"
�	

��
��

�
��

	

'
��

	��
��

�#
	�

��
	��

��
���

��
�	

�	
��

��
�	�

��
"�

�	�
�	

>�
��

��
��	

#
��

��
	��

��
�	

#
��

	�
�	

��
�

���
���

�	
��

	��
�	

��
��

��
	�

��
	��

��
��

	��
�	�

��
	>�

��
��

� 	
#

��
�

	��
	��

4�
���

�	
"�

	
��

�	



��
�

��*
�	>

��
��

��
	�

��
��

	�
��

�
��

��
�%	

C%
	�

��
��

��
	�

�	�
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
#

��
$	

:
��

���
��

�;

)
�	

��
��

	��
��

�#
��

	��
�	

��
��

�	
�

��
"�

��
	#

���
	�


��

�	�
�	

��
��

	>�
��

��
��	

��
�	

	
��

��
	��

��
	�

��
�	E

�	
��

��
�	#

���
	��

��	
�

�
��

	�
��

�	
��

�	�
��

��
�	

>�
��

��
��	

��
	��

�	
���

��
	��

�	
�

��
��

�	�
�	

��
�	

���
��

�
��

	�
��

�%	
	)

�	
��

��
	�

���
	��

��
���

��
�	

��
��

	��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

6	
�

��
��

��
��

	�
��

	"
��

�	
&�

��
�	

��
��	

��
��

�	�
�	

�
�

��
	�

���
��

&�
	

��
��	

��
�	

��
�	"

��
�	

��
��

	��
	��

�	
��

���
�	

#
�	

��
��

�#
��

%

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 o

f 
su

p
p

lie
r 

m
as

te
rf

ile
�


��

�	�
�	

��
��

�	
��

��
���

�	�
��

��
��	

��
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

�
 	�

�
��

��
�&

	"
��

$	
��

��
���

 	�
�	�

��
���

�
��

	��
	��

�	
�

��
���

��
	��

��
	�

��
	�

��
	

��
�&

��
	�

��
�	

��
�	

��
�

���
��

�
���

	��
&&

��
%		



��

�&
��

	�
�	

��
�	�

�4
��

��
	�

��
��

���
��

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

�	
��	

��
	��

"�
�4

��
��

	��
��

�#
	�

�	
��

�	
��

��
��

��
��

	��
��

	�
��

�	
"�

��
	�

��
�%	

	�
��

�	
�

��
��

�	�
��

	��
�$

	��
��

	
��

��
��

��
���

�	
�

��
&�

�	�
�	

��
��

���
�	�

��
��

�� 
	�

��
��

��
��

��
	"

��
$	

��
��

���
 	�

��
	�

��
	

"�
	�

��
�

��
�%

Page 149



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

7

=
��

�&
��

��
�	�

��
��

�	
��

��
�#

	�


��
�	�

��
��

� 	
��

�
��

��
&	

��
��

�	
#

���
	

��
�

��
���

��
���

�	
�

�
��

	�
�	

�	
��

���
��

	
"�

���
	��

	�
��

��
�	

��
��

	��
��

�	
��

�
��

�	
��

��
��

���
��

%	

C%
	�

��
��

��
	�

�	�
��

��
��

	�
��

��	
#

��
$	

:
��

���
��

�;

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 t
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y 

co
n

tr
o

ls

'
��

	��
��

��
��

��
�	

��
��

��
�	�

��
�

��
���

	�
��

��
��

��
	�

	�
�&

�	
��

��
�	�

��
��

#
	�

�	�
��

	&
��

��
��

	
��

	
��

���
�	�

��
���

��
��

� 	
��

	�
��

�	�
�	�

��
	�

��
��

��	
��

��
�#

	�
�	�

��
	��

��
��

��
	

��
���

��	
��

��
��

 	�
��

	
��

�
��

��
	��

��
 	�

��
�

	��
�	

#
��

$	
��

��
���

$�
�	

��
	�

��
� 

	��
��

�	
��

�	
��

	
�

��
��

��
�	#

��
$�

��
��

�	#
��

�
	�

��
	��

$�
��

	��
	�

��
��

��
��

	��
��

�
	�

�	
��

�	



��
�

��*
�	

���
��

�
��

	��
��

��
��

��
%

)
�	

��
��

 	�
�#

��
��

 	�
��

��
���

��
	�

	�
��

"�
�	�

�	�
��

��
	#

��
��

	��
��

��
��

��
��

	
��

��
	"

�	
�

��
�%

		)
�	

��
	�

��
	

��
���

��
	��

��
�	

��
	�

��
�	

�	
��&

��
��

��
�	�

��$
	��

	��
�	

�
�

��
��

	�
��

	
��

��
	��

��
���

�	
��

��
	��

	�
��

�&
��

��
�	�

��
��

&�
	�

��
	��

��
���

	�
��

��	
��

��
"�

$
	�

��
���

&%
	

��
�	

�
��

�	�
�&

��
��

��
�	�

�	�
��

��
	��

	�
��

��
��

�	
"�

��
#

%

P
ri

o
r 

ye
ar

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

�
�	�

��
�	�

�	�
��

	�
��

��
��

	�
��

&�
��

�
�	

��
	#

��
$ 

	#
�	

��
���

#
��

	�
�	

��
�	

��
�

�
�

��
��

���
��

	�
��

�	
��

	�
��

	�
��

A�
��

	��
��

���
	��

��
��%

		

)
�	

�
��

�	
�#

�	
��

#
	�

���
���

�	
��

�
�

�
��

��
���

��
	��

��
���

&	
��

	��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
�	

��
��

��
� 	

��
�

���
�

���
	��

��
�

�&
	��

�	
�

�
��

�	�
�

$�
��

�	�
��

��
��

��
	�

��
	��

�	
��

��
��

��
��

���
�	

��
	

��
	��

���
���

�	
��

��
�

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
���

�	
��

��
��

%		
��

��
�	

��
�	�

��
	"

��
�	

��
�	

��
�&

��
��

	
��

	�
��

��
��

��
&	

��
��

�	
���

��
�	�

��
	#

�	
��

��
	��

��
���

�	
��

��	
��

	�
��

�&
��

��
�%	

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
11

�
�	�

��
	��

�
�	

��
	�

��
	��

��
�#

	#
�	

�(
��

��
��

	��
�	

��
�

��
���

��
���

�	
�

�
��

��
	��

�	�
�	

#
���

��
	��

�	
*�

�
��

�	
!

���
�

��
�*	

��
	�

�
��

��
��

	#
��

��
��

	��
��

	#
��

�	
��

�
��

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
���

��
	�

��
	#

��
��

��
	��

�
	�


��

��
�	#

��
�	

��
">

�
��

�	
��

	�
��

��
��

	
��

��
�#

%	
)

�	
��

��
	�

��
��

	��
��

	�


��
��

�	#
���

	��
��	

��
��

�	�
�	

�
�

��
	�

��
	�

��
	��

">
�

�	�
�	

��
���

��
	

��
��

�#
	�

��
	��

�	
��

�
"�

�	�
�	

�
�

��
��

	��
�	�

�	
#

���
	�

��
��

	�


��
�	#

��
	

�(
�

��
��

�%	
	�

��
�	

�
��

	��
��

	��
	�

��
��

��
���

��
	�


��

�	�
�	

��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

��
�

�%

Page 150



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

2%
	�

��
��

#
	�

�	�
��

��
&�

�
��

��
	��

�	�
�

��
��

��
��

���
�	

��
	

��
��

��
��

��
��

�	�
��

��
�

��
	�

��
��

���
&	

6�
��

��
��

�	:
��

�
6;

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

-�
�

�	�
��

��
���

��
�	�

��
	��

4�
���

�	
��

	
��

��
�	

#
���

	��
�	



��

�	
��

	�
��

�
�

�	
��

	-
�

��
	

�
��

��
���

�	
�


��

��
��

&	
��

	��
�	

�
��

��
�	

,
��

&�
��

	:�
��

	

��

�;
%	

��
��

	�
��

��
��

	��
��	



��

�	
#

���
	"

�	
"�

��
�	

��
	��

��
��

��
��

��
�	�

��
��

�
��

	�
��

��
���

&	
6�

��
��

��
�	:

��
�

6;
	��

��
��

	
��

��
	�

	�
,

	+
�

�
�

"�
��

�	
6�

��
��

��
�	�

�	�
�

��
�

��
��

�	
��

�
��

�	
:6

'
�

�;
%	

��
�	



��

�	
��

4�
���

�	�
	��

��
��

��
	"

��
��

�
	��

��
�	�

�	�
	�

��
��	

��
�A

 	�
��

��
��

�	
��

�A
��

�	
�

�
��

��
	

��
�	

��
��	

��
"�

���
��

	��
�

6	
�

�
��

��
	��

�	�
��

��
��

%

B
as

is
 o

f 
as

se
ss

m
en

t
��

��	
��

��
��	

��
��

���
	��

�	
���

��
�&

�	�
�	�

��
	��

���
��

	��
��

�#
%		

��
�	�

�
�	

��&
��

��
��

�	"
��

��
�

	
��

��
�	�

��
�

 	#
�	

��
��

	
��

���
��

��
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	�
&�

��
��

	�
�

�	
��

	��
�	

��
���

#
��

&	
4�

��
���

��
8	

•
�

��
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	��
�	�

��
��

���
��

&	
��

�	
��

��
���

�&
	��

��
�	�


��

��
��

&	
��

��
�	

��
�4

��
��

F

•
�

��
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	��
�	�

��
��

���
��

&	
��

�	
��

��
���

�&
	��

��
�	�

�>
��

��
�	

�
,

	+
�

�
�

��
��

��
	�

�	�
	�

��
��	

��
�A

	�
��

	�
	�

��
��	

��
��

	�
��

4�
��

�F

•
�

��
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	��
�	�

��
��

���
&	

��
�

6
��

��
��

	�
��

4�
��

�F

•
�

��
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	��
�	�

��
��

���
&	

��
��

�	�
��

��
	��

	��
�	

"�
��

�
�	

��
��

�	
��

�4
��

��
F

•
�

��
	��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	��
�	�

��
��

���
&	

4�
��

���
	��

��
��

���
&	

#
��

$�
�&

	
��

��
��

	�
��

4�
��

�F
	

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
12

��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

��
&�

�
��

��
	��

�	�
�

�	
���

�	
��

	��
�	

"�
��

�
�	

��
��

�	�
��

�	
"�

��
	�

��
��

��
�	

��
��

&	
�	

��
�G

��
"�

�G
&�

��
�	

��
���

&	
��

��
&	

��
�	

��
���

#
��

&	
��

���
���

��
�8

)
��

��
	��

��
�	�

��
	�

��
��

	�
��

�	
"�

��
	�

��
��

��
�	

��
	�

�
"�

� 	
#

�	
��

��
	�

��
��

��
�	

��
��

�	
#

���
	�

��
�

��
�	�

�	
��

��
��

�	�
��

	�
��

��
��

���
�	

��
	��

��
�	�

��
	�

�	�
��

6	
�

�
��

��
%

�
��

4�
��

�	
��

��
�&

��
��

��
	�

��
��

�	�
�	

"�
	��

	�
��

�
	��

�	�
��

	
"�

��
�

�	
��

��
�	�

��
�	

��
	�

��
��

��
	�

��
	�

��
��

��
���

	�
���

��
��

�	
��

��
��

�	�
��

	��
�	

��
��

��
��

��
�%

�
��
�
�

��
�

�
�
	
�
�

��
�



�
�

�

�

�
��

4�
��

�	
��

��
�&

��
��

��
	�

��
	��

	�
��

�
	��

	��
�

�	
��

��
�

��
	

��
�	�

��
	"

��
��

�
	��

��
�	�

��
�	

��
	�

��
��

��
	�

��
	�

��
��

��
���

	
�

���
��

��
�	

��
��

��
�	�

��
	��

�	
��

��
��

��
��

�%	
��

��
�	

��	
��

��
��

�
	��

��
	��

�	



��
�

��	
��	

��
$�

�&
	��

�#
��

�	
��

��
�	

#
��

��
	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	�
��

�	
��

	"
�	

��
��

�&
��

��
��

%

��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

��
&�

�
��

��
	�

��
	&

��
��

��
��

	��
��

�4
��

��
	

��
	�

��
��

��
	�

��
	�

��
��

��
���

	�
���

��
��

�	
��

��
��

�	�
��

	��
�	

��
��

��
��

��
�%

Page 151



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

2%
	�

��
4�

�
�	

��
	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	�
���

��
�&

�

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
13

!
"
#
$%

�&
%
	�
��

�	�
���

��
��
�&
�
�
'�

	�	
��
��
��

�(


��

�	�
���

�

)
��
��

��
��

��
���
��
�

�
��

�

��
��
��
�


���
��
�

*
!
�%

�
�
+
��
��
��

��

�
��
��
��

��
��


	
���

�
�


��
�

,

	
��
��

��
��

	�
-
��
	�
���
��
��
��
�
��

�

��
��

��
��

 	�
��

��
	H

	
�4

��
��

��
�

A
A

A
A

A
A

��
��

��
�

��
�	�

��
��

��
��

�
G

A
A

A
A

A



��
��

��
	�

��
	�

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
G

A
A

A
A

A

��
��

�	
H

	�
��

��
	

��
�

��
�"

��
�

G
A

A
A

A
A

)
��
��

��
��

��
���
��
�

�
��

�

��
��
��
�


���
��
�

*
!
�%

�
�
+
��
��
��

��

�
��
��
��

��
��


	
���

�
�


��
�

,

	
��
��

��
��

	�
-
��
	�
���
��
��
��
�
��

�

��
��

�	
H

	�
��

��
	

��
��

"�
��

A
A

A
A

A
A



��

��
��

H
	I

��
�

�
��

��
�	"

��
��

#
��

&�
A

A
A

A
A

A

I
��

�
��

��
��

	��
��

�	
H

��
��

�	�
��

�"
��

�
G

A
A

A
A

A

��
��

���
��

�
G

A
A

A
A

A
I

��
�

��
��

��
	�

��
��

	
���

"�
���

��
�

G
A

A
A

A
A

��
(�

��
��

�*
�4

��
��

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
	
��
�
��
�

Page 152



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

2%
	�

��
4�

�
�	

��
	�

��
��

&�
�

��
��

	J
��

"�
�	�

��
��

&�

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
14

�
��
�
�

A
ll 

ar
ea

s


��


	
���

��

�

�*
!
�%

�
�
+
��

��
��


��
��
��
��

�
�	�

��
	��

�
�	

��
	�

��
	��

��
�#

 	�
��

	

��

�
��	

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
��

	��
�	

��
�A

��
�	

�
�

��
��

	�
��

	��
��

��
��

�	
��

�	
��

�
�

���
��

��
�	

"�
�#

��
�	

�
,

	+
�

�
�

��
�	

��
�

6	
��&

��
��

	#
��

	�
��

	
��

��
��

�%

A
ll 

ar
ea

s

��
��


	
���

��
�


��
�

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��

	�
��

	�
��

	"
��

�	
�

�
��

��
��

	�
�	�

��
	��

�
�	

��
	�

��
	��

��
�#

%	

A
ll 

ar
ea

s

+	
��

�	
��
�

��

�

��

	
��
��

��
��

�	
�

��
�	



��

�
��	

��
�	�

��
�	

��
�4

��
��

	�
��

&�
��

�	
��

	
��

��
��

��
&	

#
��

$�
�&

	�
��

��
�	�

�	
��

��
��

�	�
��

	
��

>�
��

�
��

��
	�

��
�	

��
��

	��
��

���
��

�	
��

�	
#

���
	

�
�

��
��

�	
��

��
�	

��
	�

��
�	�

�	
��

�	
��

��
��

��
��

�	
��

	
��

��
��

��
	�


��

��
�%	

�
�>

��
��

��
��

	�
��

�	
��

��
	��

��
���

��
� 

	��
�

��
��

&	
��

>�
��

�
��

��
	

��
��

���
��

�	
��

��
�	�

,
	+

�
�

� 
	#

���
	"

�	
��

��
�#

��
	�

�	�
��

�	�
�	

��
�	

���
��

	�


��
��

�	�
��

��

6�
��

��
���

&	
��

��
�	�

��
	�

��
��

��
��

�	�
�	

"�
	�

��
���

�	
"�

	��
�	



��

�
��	

��
�	

�&
��

��
	��

	��
��

��
���

&	
#

��
$�

�&
	�

��
��

�%

)
��

$�
�&

	�
��

��
�	�

�	
"�

	��
��

���
��

	�
��

	�
��

��
��

��
	��

�	�
��

��	
��

��
&	

#
���

	��
�	

��
��

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
��

	�
��

A�
��

	�


��
��

�%	

B
al

an
ce

 s
h

ee
t 

it
em

   
   

   
   

   
  R

ea
so

n
 f

o
r 

ra
ti

n
g

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 N

ex
t s

te
p

s

M
in

or
ity

 o
f a

re
as

�
��


�
��
��
��
�


���
��
�

!
��

��	
�

�
��

���
&	

��
��

��
�	#

��
�	

��
��

��
��

�	
��

�	
��

��
�#

	��
	.�

��
��

�	
��

��
 	#

���
	�

	�
��

��
���

	�
�	

��
��

�	
��

���
	��

4�
���

�&
	��

��
���

��
��

�%

��
��

�	�


��
��

��
&	

��
��

��
�	�

�	
"�

	��
��

�#
��

	��
��

�&
�	

��
�	�

��
��

	
�

�
��

��
	�

��
��%

Page 153



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

C%
	'

��
��

��	
�

�
��

���
�	

��
�	

��
�

�
�

��
��

���
��

O
ve

ra
ll 

p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
IF

R
S

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
'

��
��

�� 
	#

�	
��

�	
��

���
���

�	
��

��
	��

�	



��
�

��@
�	�

��
��

�
�	

��
	�

��
>�

�
	�

��
��

��
&	

#
��

	
��

��
��

���
��

 	#
���

	�
��

��
��

�	
��

��
�

	�
��

��
��

��
��

	
��

���
�	

��
�	�

�	
��

��
���

�	
��

��
�	�

�	�
��$

%

)
�	

��
��

	��
��

	��
�	

��
��

��
��

��
�	�

��
�

��
	�

��
	��

���
�	

"�
��

��
	�

��
��

��
	�

�	�
	��

��
��	

��
	

#
��

$	
��

4�
���

�	
��

	�
��

��
��

	��
�	

��
��

��
�	

"�
�&

��
	��

���
#

��
&	

��
�	

��
��

��
&	

��
���

��
��

�	
��

�	
��

�(
��

�
��

	��
��

�	�
"�

��
�

%		
�

�	�
	��

��
�� 

	#
�	

#
���

	�
��

��	
"�

��
	��

�	
��

��
��

�	
�

�
��

��
	�

��
	��

�	
���

��
���

��
	�

�>
��

��
��

��
	�

��
�	

��
	��

�	
��

�A
��

�	
�

�
��

��
���

��
	�

�	
��

��	
��

	�
��

	��
��

�	�


��
��

�	�
��

��	
��

	.�
��

	�
��

�%

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

'
��

��
��	

��
	��

��	
��

�&
�	

#
�	

��
�	

��
���

���
�	

��
��

	��
�	

��
�

��
��

�	�
��

��
��

$�
�	

"�
	��

�	



��
�

��	
��

��
	�

��
"�

��
	�

��
�&

��
��

�	�
�	

��
&�

��&
��

	��
�	

�
�

��
���

& 
	�

(�
��

��
��

��
 	�

��
	

��
��

��
��

���
��

�	�
�>

��
��

��
��

	��
4�

���
�	

��
�	�

��
��

��
�

��
�	�

�	
��

�
6%

	6
�&

��
��

��
�	#

��
$	

��
�	"

��
�	

��
4�

���
�	

��
��

&�
��

�	
��

�	
�

��
��

�#
�	

��
�

��
�	�

�	
��

��
�	�

�	
�

�
��

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
��

	
��

��
��

���
��

	�
��

	#
�	

#
���

	
��

���
��

	��
	��

���
	�

��
	��

��
��

	��
��

���
��

�	
��

���
&	

��
�	�

��
��	

#
���

	��
�	



��

�
��*

�	�
��

��
�

	��
��

%

A
ck

n
o

w
le

d
g

em
en

ts
)

�	
#

��
��

	��
$�

	��
	��

�
��

	�
��

	�
��

��
�

��
��

�	
��

�	�
��

	�
��

���
��

�
	�

��
	

��
��

��
��

��
�	

��
��

��
��

	��
	�

�	�
��

��
&	

��
�	�

��
��

#
	"

�	
��

�	



��
�

��*
�	�

��
��

�
	��

��
%

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
15

Page 154



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
16

�
��

��
��

(	
�

	�
-�

&�
��

�
�	

Ti
m

et
ab

le
s 

an
d

 m
ile

st
o

n
es

��
�	

��
���

#
��

&	
��

��
��

��
	��

�
��

�"
��

	�
��

	�
��

��
��

��
	�

��
�	

"�
��

	��
�8

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
te

am
��

	�


��
��

�
�	

#
���

	�
��

	�
��

��	
��

��
	�

��
��

��
	��

��
��

	.�
��

��
�	

��
��

 	�
��

	�
��

�	
��

&�
&�

�
��

�	�
��

�
	��

�	�
��

	�


��
��

�	�
��

��	
#

���
	��

�
��

�8
"
��
��

.
��
�

��
��

���
	�

��
��	

��
�

��
��

&	
��

��
��

��
	

��
��

��
�	

��
��

�#
��

"�
��

��
	H

	
=

��
�

	�
��

�

��
��

���
	�

��
��	

��
��

��
.�

��
	�

��
�



��

�
��

�
	�


��

��
�	�

��
��	

���
��

#
��

$
1	

.�
��

	�
��

�

�
��

��
�	�

��
��

�	�
�	

��
��

�	
�

��
&�

�	
#

���
	&

��
��

��
�

�	
:�

6�
	�

2�
;

6�
��

��
"�

�	�
��

�

�
��

��
�	�

��
��	

-�
���

�
I

��
��

"�
�	�

��
�

��
�	

��
��

�	�
��

�
��

	��
	�

��
��

��
��

��
	"

�	
��

��
�

��
�	

��
�>

�
�	�

��
�&

��
��

�	�
�	

��
��

��
	��

��
	#

�	
�

��
��

��
��

�	
��

�	
��

��
�	

��
�	�

��
��

�
��

	�
��

�
��

��
��

	��
	�

��
�	

��
��

	�
��

��
��

��
%	

��
	��

	��
��

��
��

�	
��

��
��

��
�	�

��
�	#

�	
#

��
$	

�
��

��
�	

#
���

	�
��

�	
��

��
	��

	�
�

��
��

	��
��	

���
��

�"
��

%

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
��

�	
��

��
��

��
��

�	
	�

��
	#

��
$�

�&
	�

��
��

	��
4�

���
�

��
��

	��
��

	#
��

��
	�

��
���

	�
�	�

�	
��

	�
��

�
��

��
	�

��
	��

�
��

�	
��

��
�	�

�	
��

�	
��

��
��

��
	��

��
�

��
�	�

��
��

�
��

��
	�

��
�	

"�
��

	
��

�
��

�
��

��
	��

	��
�	

���
��

�
	��

��
	#

���
��

	�
��

	�
��

��
&�

�
��

��
	-

��
��

� 	
#

��
�

	#
��

	��
��

��
	��

	�
�"

��
��

�	
��

��
%

/
��

�


�
�

0

�

��
��
��
��
��
��

5�
��

��
	=

��
���

/
�&

�&
��

��
�	-

��
�

�8
	�

��
E	

7�
C	

EE
�K

/
8	"

��
���

%�
��

���
L

�$
%&

�%
��

,
��

�	
.�

��
��

��
�

�
��

��	
=

��
�&

��
�8

	�
��

E	
7�

C	
E2

EK
/

8	$
��

�%
>�

��
��

��
�L

�$
%&

�%
��



��

��	
�

��
�

��
�

��
�&

�	
�

��
���

�
�8

	�
��

E	
7�

C	
EE

��
	

/
8	

��
��%

��
�

�L
�$

%&
�%

��

Page 155



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  
17

�
��

��
��

(	
5	

��
�

��
�	

��
��


��

�
/

1


��


�
�
��

��
��


�
+	

�

	�
�2

3
��

��
��

��
��0


�
�
��

��

��
�


��
�'
���
�2
�4

�
��

��
��

��
��
��


��
��

��

�
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

��
	��

��
��

��
�	�

	4
��

���
�	

��
��

��
�

�	
��

�
��

�	
��

	�
��

��
��

��
��

	
��

��
��

�
�	

#
���

	��
�	

��
��

�	�
��

��
�%

3
��

��
�

�
���

��
�	

��
	�

��
�

��
�	

��
#

	��
��

�	�
��

�
��

��
	��

	!
�

�	
�

��
��

	��
��

	�
�

�	
�

��
���

�	�
��

	��
��

�	
#

��
$	

��
��

�#
��

	"
�	

��
��

��
��

�	�
��

�&
��

�	�
�

��
�	�

��
	�

��
��

��
��

��
%	�

��
�	

�
��

��
	�

��
	4

��
���

�	
��

��
��

�
�	

��
�

��
� 	

��
�	

�
�

��
��

�
�	

#
���

	��
�	

��
��

�	�
��

��
� 	

��	
�

��
�	

��
"�

��
	�

�	�
�	�

��
��

��
	��

	&
��

��
��

	
��

���
��

�
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
&	

��
	"

��
�	�

��
�

�
�	

"�
�#

��
�	

��
��

�%	

��
��

��
��

��
�	

=
��

�&
��

��
�	

��
��

��
	�

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

��
	�

��
��

�	
��

��
	��

�	
>�

��
���

�
���

�	
��

�	�
��

	
��

�
��

�	
��D

��
	�

��
�	

��	
��

�
�

��
��

�	
��

	��
�	

��
��

�	�
���

%	
3
��

��
�

�
&�

��
�

6�
�

��
�	

��D
��

	�
��

�	
��

	"
�	

���
$�

"�
��

�	
H

	�
��

��
��

��
��

	��
�	�

�
�	

��
��

�#
 	

#
��

�
	�

��
��

	��
�

�	
��

��
��

�	>
��

&�
�

��
�	�

�	�
�

��
��

��
%	�

��
��

��
	

�
��

��
��

��
��

�	
#

���
	"

�	
&�

��
�	

��
	��

	�
�#

	"
��

�	�
�	

�
�

�
��

���
	"

��
�	

��
�4

��
�

	�
�	�

��
���

&	
��

�	
�

��
	�

��
�

���
��

��
�%

!
�

�	
=

��
�&

��
�

7�
	6

��
�	�

�

7
��

�	



��
�

��	
��

��
��

	�
��

��
�	

��
��

	�
�&

�	
���

$	
>�

��
��

��	
��

�	
��

��
��

���
��

��
	�

��
��

���
��

	�
���

�	�
�	

"�
��

&	
��

��
��

%	
5
��
�

�
&�

��
�	

'
��

�
��

�	
��

���
��

	��
	�

�
��

��
&�

	��
��

�	�
�	

��
��

��
	�

��
��

��
��

&	
��

�
�

��
��

���
�	

��
	>�

��
��

��	
#

��
��

��
�	�

��
��"

��
	�

��
	

��
���

��
	��

��	
��

	
"�

	�
	�

��
�	

�
��

�&
��

"�
�	

��
�	

�
��

	�
��

�
���

�	
�

��
��

�%	
0

�#
��

��
 	

��
��

��
�	#

���
	��

�$
	��

	��
��

�#
	��

�	
��

��
��

��
�	�

�	
��

�	
>�

��
��

�	
��

��
��

���
���

�	
��

	��
�

�	
>�

��
��

��	
"�

��
�	

��
	�

�&
�	

��
��

�G
��

&�
	��

�$
%



��

��
��

��
	�


��

��
��

�
	

��
�	

��
��

�
�	

=
��

�&
��

=
��

�
	�

��
�

1
�

��
��

	#
���

	>�
��

��
�	�


��

�	
��

��
��

	"
�	

��
���

��
�

���
	��

��
�#

��
	��

	
��

�
��

�	
��

��
�	

#
��

��
	�

��
��

�	�
�	

��
�	�

�
��

��
	�

��
���

&	
>�

��
��

��%
3
��

��
�

�
&�

��
�	

�
	��

��
�#

	#
���

	"
�	

��
��

��
�$

��
	�

��
	>�

��
��

�	�


��
�	�

��
��

��
	��

�	�
��

��
	

#
��

	�
�	

��
�	�

��
	��

��	
��

�
���

�%
	�

	�
��

��
��

��
	��

�
�	#

���
	"

�	
��

��
��

�$
��

	
��

	��
�	

�
�

��
	�

�	�
��

��
�	�

��
��

	#
��

	�
��

	"
�	

��
4�

���
�	

��
	��

��
�#

	�
��

	
��

��
��

���
	��

��
��

�
��

��
 	�

�	
��

��
��

	��
��

�	
��	

��
�4

��
��

	�
��

��
��

��
�	

��
	

��
���

�%



��

��
��

��
	�


��

��
��

�
	

��
�	

��
��

�
�	

=
��

�&
��

6�
��

��
"�

�	�
��

�

Page 156



In
te

ri
m

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

© 
 2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll r
ig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
18

�
��

��
��

(	
5	

��
�

��
�	

��
��

	:
��

���
��

�;

��

�
/

1


��


�
�
��

��
��


�
+	

�

	�
�2

3
��

��
��

��
��0


�
�
��

��

��
�


��
�'
���
�2
�4

�
��

��
��

��
��
��


��
��

��

C
6�

��
�	�

��
"�

��
	��

��
��

	"
�	

��
�

��
��

�	
��

	��
�	

��
��

	��
	�

��
��

	�
	

��
��

��
��

	�
��

�
��

���
�	

#
��

�	
��

��
��

&	
�	

>�
��

��
�%	

	

��

��
��

�
�	

#
���

	��
�	



��

�
��*

�	>
��

��
��

	�
��

�
��

��
�	�

��
��

�	
"�

	�
��

���
��

�%

6

�

�
&�

��
�	

'
��

�
��

�	�
�&

��
��

��
	��

�
��

�	
��

��
�	�

�	�
��

	�
��

�	
��

	�
��

��
	�

��
4�

��
�	

��
�

���
���

��
	�

��
	�

���
�

	�
��

��
��

��
&	

��
�

�
��

��
	��

	>�
��

��
��%

	�
��

	
�

��
��

��
�	

�
�

��
��

�
�	

��
��

	�
��

���
�	�

��
	�

��
��

��
	��

��
��

�9	
��

	
��

��
��

	#
���

	
��

���
��

	�


��
�	

��
�

��
��

	��
�	�

��
���

��
��

	�
���

��
%	



��

��
��

��
	�

��
	

�


��
��

��
�

	�
��

��
�

	
=

��
�&

��

'
��

&�
��

&

2



��
�&

��
	��

	��
��

���
�	�

��
��

��	
��

��
��

	"
�	

��
��

��
���

� 
	�

�	�
	

��
���

��
	

��
��

�#
	�

�	
��

�&
��

	�
��

�	
��

��
��

	"
�	

��
��

��
�

��
%

5
��
�

�
&�

��
�

�
��

��
#

��
	�

�	�
��

�		
��

	�
��

	�
��

>�
�

	�
��

	
��

��
��

��
	"

��
�&

	��
��

�#
��

	�
�	

��
��

	�
�	

��
�&

��
�	

�
��

�&
��

��
�	�

��
>�

�
	�

��
	��

�	
��

��
��

�	
��

�
��

��
��

�	6
��

��
��

&	
'

��
��

�	#
���

��
	��

�	



��
��

���
���

�	
:�

��
��

�
��

	
�

�&
�;

	

6�
��

��
&�

	
��

�
��

��
��

�	
=

��
�&

��
	

7�
	6

��
��

�
"�

�	�
��

�

E
=

��
�&

��
��

�	�
��

��
�	

��
��

�#
	�


��

�	
��

��
�� 

	��
�

��
��

&	
��

��
�	

#
���

	�
��

��
���

��
���

�	
�

�
��

	�
�	

�	
��

���
��

	
"�

���
	��

	�
��

��
�	

��
��

	
��

��
�	

��
�

��
�	

��
��

��
���

��
%	

3
��

��
�

�
&�

��
�	

��
�	

��
��

��
�	�

��
��

���
��

���
�	

��
�	"

��
�	

��
��

��
	��

	�

�	

��
	��

�	
��

��
	

��
#

	�
��

��
�%	

��
	��

	�
	��

��
��

��
	�

��
�

��
	��

	��
��

�#
	�

��
	��

�
��	

��
�	

��
�

��
���

��
���

�	
�

�
��

��
	�

�	
�	

�
��

��
��

�&
	"

��
�� 

	#
���

	�
	��

��
��

	
��

��
�#

	�
�	�

��
	�

��
	�

�	�
�

�	
���

��
�

��
	�

��
�%

�

�	

6�
��

��
&�

	H
	

��
�&

��
�

�
�	

=
��

�&
��

'
��

&�
��

&

Page 157



Page 158



� �

20
10

-1
1 

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 u

p
d

at
e 

W
o

rk
 a

re
a 

R
ea

so
n

 
p

er
fo

rm
ed

 
W

o
rk

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e 

D
ra

ft
 t

o
 le

ad
 

o
ff

ic
er

 
P

C
C

 le
ad

 
o

ff
ic

er
 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 t

o
 d

at
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

In
te

rim
 R

ep
or

t &
 U

pd
at

e 
to

 
F

in
an

ci
al

 A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

T
o 

ga
in

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 fr

om
 s

ys
te

m
s 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

co
nt

ro
l f

or
 o

pi
ni

on
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

1 
M

al
co

lm
 C

oe
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

F
in

al
 r

ep
or

t p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
on

 2
7 

Ju
ne

 2
01

1 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t t
o 

T
ho

se
 

C
ha

rg
ed

 w
ith

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

(I
S

A
26

0 
re

po
rt

) 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

T
o 

su
m

m
ar

is
e 

th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

fr
om

 o
ur

 fi
na

l 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 C
od

e 
w

or
k 

th
at

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

ou
r 

op
in

io
n 

an
d 

di
sc

us
s 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 
M

al
co

lm
 C

oe
 

W
or

k 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r 
Ju

ly
 a

nd
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

1,
 w

ith
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

af
te

r 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fin
al

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
au

di
t 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
op

in
io

n 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

A
da

m
 B

ro
om

e 
T

o 
be

 is
su

ed
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

fin
al

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
au

di
t 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 (
V

fM
) 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 

V
fM

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
T

o 
id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 r

is
k 

to
 th

e 
V

fM
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 
an

d 
w

he
re

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
w

or
k 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 
A

da
m

 B
ro

om
e 

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t c
om

pl
et

e 

P
ro

cu
re

 to
 P

ay
 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Lo
ca

l r
is

k 
ba

se
d 

w
or

k 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
M

al
co

lm
 C

oe
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

F
in

al
 r

ep
or

t p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
on

 2
7 

Ju
ne

 2
01

1 

F
in

an
ci

al
 R

es
ili

en
ce

 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
Lo

ca
l r

is
k 

ba
se

d 
w

or
k,

 w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
ke

y 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 b

ud
ge

t p
re

ss
ur

es
 in

 th
e 

M
T

F
S

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ad
ul

t s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 
M

al
co

lm
 C

oe
 

W
or

k 
be

in
g 

sc
op

ed
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f M

T
F

S
 in

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
1 

to
 c

om
m

en
ce

 in
 J

ul
y 

20
11

 

P
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Lo
ca

l r
is

k 
ba

se
d 

w
or

k,
 p

ro
po

se
d 

tr
ac

er
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

Li
fe

 C
en

tr
e,

 w
as

te
 c

on
tr

ac
t a

nd
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 
M

al
co

lm
 C

oe
 

W
or

k 
be

in
g 

sc
op

ed
 to

 c
om

m
en

ce
 in

 J
ul

y 
20

11
 

V
fM

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
V

fM
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 
A

da
m

 B
ro

om
e 

T
o 

be
 fi

na
lis

ed
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 r

is
k-

ba
se

d 
w

or
k 

an
d 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 2

01
0-

11
 a

cc
ou

nt
s.

  T
o 

be
 r

ep
or

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

IS
A

26
0 

re
po

rt
 

O
th

er
 r

ep
o

rt
s 

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
T

o 
su

m
m

ar
is

e 
ke

y 
fin

di
ng

s 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
w

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 u

nd
er

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

11
 

B
ar

ry
 K

ee
l 

T
o 

be
 d

ra
fte

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

is
su

e 
of

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
V

fM
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
W

or
k 

R
ep

or
t 

A
ge

nt
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

T
o 

ce
rt

ify
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 

A
da

m
 B

ro
om

e 
W

or
k 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 fr
om

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

 

�

Agenda Item 14Page 159



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�������	�
����
������

VFM Review of the Procure to Pay Project 

�

��

��� �
�

Agenda Item 15Page 161



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

�

�

�

��������� �	
��

�� ������� ��

�� ��������
����	����	��	�
������� ��

�� ���������	�	
������ ���

�� ��������������	������ ���

����������������������	�� ���

������������� �����!������������� �"�

�

�

Page 162



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 1

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

� ���������

��� ������	
��


������	������	������������������������������������������ � �!����	����!�������������
��������������"�������� � #��������!����!������!�����$�������������!��������������!�����
�	��������%�

�������	�
����
������&�	��
�����'���!�������!(��)�*�������������!������������	���	����
��!���������� ��+�,%��-���!������!������������!���������������������!�����	��
������
	!�������������!��!��������).����������!�������������������������!����!������%��/	���������
����!��&���'����0��������!����������������),�������������	��#����	�!�����	���)1���������������
�����������	����	�!�!��������!�!����������0��%�

/	��
������	!��!�����!�����!����������������2����&��2'#��	�	��!�����!����	�������  ,#�
�	!������������	�������������!����������������!��������	!���!(�����!��!�����!���������
�������#�!���	!����������������������+�����!������	��������������!�����������!���%�

/	��������������!�����������!���������������!��������!������������������	������!���

���������!�����������!���#�!���!��������������	��
����������!�����������������3����!��
�3�������������,%�4�������!�������!��	������!��������%��-���������������!���	!���	��
������
����������	����!������!�������������������������������!����!��!������!��!��������������	��
���(��!����!�������	�������������	���!�����������!��������������������������!���!�������!���
!��!������������������!������!�!����	�������������%�

/	���������0���	!����3����(�����!������	��	���!0����������!�������3������������!	������
�	����	��	��5�������������5����(�����!�#��	�	����������������-������ ��%��/	��!���!��������
�!�����������!������	�����0���!������(�����!���������������������!��������������!�����!��
����	����������
�����!������������������������������!�%�

�����������	!�������������!(���!���!����������� � 6���7!��������8�����&798'�
�������
-�������!�������(�&5�	��
���5'%��/	��
����!������!�����������������!(������������������
!��������(��	!�������������	��798���������%�

������������ ��	��	�	
��	����	��	�	
��	����	��	�	
��	����	��	�	
��	��


/	�����������������(����!��������	���������0���!�����������	�����������:�

• �������	����	��������������!�����������!��������������	��!	�������������	��

�����;�����������������!��!�����!�����&8/9�'�!��������!�������������<�

• ��������	�����������������	����������������������!�������!�#����	��!�����!�����!���
����	��!����!�������0����!�!���������!�����(<�

• �����������	�������������������	��!����!���������������!���!��������!����#����	�
�!�����!�����!������	����!����������������!������!����!���!���<�

• ��������	��
�����;��!����!	�������(��!�!�������������!���������	�������������
�!�����������!���<�!���

Page 163



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 2

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

• ���������!�������������!���������	�������!�����!�!�������!���������!���
!��!�������������	��������������!�����������!���%�
�

=����������������������	����	:�

• !����(����������������������<�
• ��������������	����������������������	���������������	���������0��<�!���
• �������������	���������������������	!��!���!�����������	���������0��%�

�
=�����������������-�������!������� � +��#������������	��-�����
������������>!��!���� ��#�
�	!�����������������!(�����(�������!�����������0����!�!������%��=��	!����������������	���
������������������!���������!���������	��
�����������0����!�!�������!��!��������#�����
	!��������!���!������������������!���������!�������	����!��!��������%��=�������
������!(��!�������������������������	��
�����������0����!�!�������!��!�������������	��
����������� ��%�

������������ ��������������������������������������������


�	��	�������������

/	���������0������!�����������	�����������!������������������������!�����������������%�����
�������!�������	��
�����!������������������������������!��!���������������	��������!�����!��
!������!��������#����!�������	�������������������	���������0��%�

��	�����	��������������������

/	������������!���!��!��������������������!����������������	�����0��������!�����
"�������&��"'����-������ � %��������	!���!����	�����0����!�!����	!��	!�����!������
	!���!��������������(�����!����!��%��=���������	!���	�������!��!(�����!��������!�������	��
�������0������������!���!�����	��	���������!�������������0����!�!����!���!�������(�
����!����!��#��	�������!����(��	!��!����!�������!���������	���!����������#��	�	������
���!������	��������������������!�����!������������������	�����0��%�

 ���	��!�	��������������

/	��
������������!���������!������	���������(��!�!����������!����������	������0��%��/	����
���!����0������(���������������!���	�	�������������������!���#�!��	���	��	���������������
��	!����	���������������	����������#��������!����������$������!������!���������!�����(�
�����%��/	���������!������������������������!���������������������(���	�	������������
!��������!�!���#����������������������	!��������	�������������!����!�������!������������
����!�!�����!��������������������!������������������������������%�

"	#
������	�$�����������	�����

/	��
������	!������	������������!����?
@�����0����!�!����������	���������������#�
�!�	����	!���	��
�����������0����!�!����������������%��/	�����(�����!�������	�����0���
!�������!��������!����������������!����#������	����	!�������!��!(������!��������!�����
!������	��
�����%��/	��!���������!����0���������!�������!�������(�������	!���
��������������!��!(���������������������!(�	���������!������%��/	��!���!���������	��
�!�������!�����!������	���	������!�������������	�����0���	!��������������	!����!���	��

���������������	!��������������%�����8!�	�� ����	���!���������� ��+�������!�������
)�%���������������) %A1��������#�!���!���!������������������������!���������!���	!��������

Page 164



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 3

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

��������������!�	����	!��!���!����������������!�������	�	��	��
�������3��������!���������%��
����!��#��	��
����������������	!���	���!�������!��������,%�4������������������	����	�
��������������������������	������!��������	���!�����������	���
������������������A4�
!���B4%�

%������������	�#����������������	�

/	��
���������������	!���!������������!���!��������!����������	���!�!������	���������
�����!��������	���������0��%��/	��!��!��������������������!����!�!������������������
����������!��!��!����������������#����������	������!��!��!������+���!��!�������������������
��!������!������������%�

��& �	���
��	�


/	��
������	!��!���!��������������������),������������������������!�������	����	����������
���0���������	���	������!�����������!���������-������ ��%����������!���	!���	�������!��������
���������#�!���!�������#�����!�������!��������������������!��������������	����	��

�������!�!�������������������!������%�����������������	!������!����������!����#��!�������!�
�!�������!���������#�������������������������!�����%��/	����!�����(�������������	����	!��
�������������������������>!��!���� � ���������	������(������������$������������������
������������������!�������!���!��������!������	�����!��!��!������+���!��!����������%�

=	��������!������������!���������������	!���������!��!���������!��������!�������������!�
����������!����������������������������������	�
����
����������� � +��#�������������
��$���������!��������	��	��	���������������!��������������!��-������3�-#��	�	������
������������������������� ��+���!��������$����%�

��' "��	��������	��


�������!�������������!������!���������������	�����������	���������#�!�������!���������!��
!�������!�������������-������3�-%�

��(  ���	�����������


=����������(������!(���	�������������������	!�(��	��
���������������������	����!�����!���
�����������������	���������������������%��-����������	������������������������!��
-������3�C%�

��) *��	��!�����	��


/	����������	!�����������!�����������������������	��
������������	!�������������������������
�������	��-�����
����������
���������!����!����	���������������������!�����	���
���������������������	�����!���������	����������������������%��=��!���������
������������������!�����	���������%�

/	������������������������	�����!�������	!��	!��������������!���������!��!������������	��
���(����������%�/	������(�	!��������������������������������!����!�������	!���!�����
�����!�����������������	��
���������������0��%�

#�	���$��������
%	�����&��

Page 165



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 4

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

� ���0���������!���!��!���������

��� $���	�
���	�


/	�����������������	��!�������������	�����0�������	��
�������������!��������������!����	��
���0��;��������!���!��!��������#�����������	��!����!	��!(������	����!���������(�
�!�!������%�

/	��������������	��(�����������!��������������!���������	�����0���!���������������	���!����
�����%�

$	'�������(�)�����������	������������������������������

(�)����������*�������� +	���

�����������!��D�!������������!����#�!�����������E�!�����7!��������
8����� >!��!���� � �

�����������!�����0��������!�����"�������&��"'� -������ � �

C���������+����C��������
!��#�!�����������
�����!���8!�!�������/�!�� �������� � �

��������������������
�����!��������������0���"��������C�!��#�!��������!��
�!	���������

8���	��������
"�������� � �

�

���  ���������	�	��	�������	����������!�+,-�


�	��	�������	������

/	��
��������
�����!�����!��� ��+� �,#��	�	��!����������������	��
!���������9����!���
� ��#�����������	���	!�������������������������������	��
�����;������������	������������	�
� � ��!������%��/	����������������������!������������������#��	�	������!���!����!������(�
�����	�������!3�����������������������������������!����!(��������!�������������%�����!����
����������	!���	��
�����������������������������������������������������������!���
��������������������������!�������������!���!���������������	!��������������!���
��������%�

-���!�������	��������C!�!������	��C�����������!�����	��
������	!��������������	����������
�!(����������������!�����!�����%����������	��
����������	!�������������	��������!��	��
�������0���%��/	��������������������	������0��������������),�������������!����������	���	����
��!����������������� �F+�,#����	��	���������0���������������������!������������� � +
�������	!���!������!�����!�������������-������ ��%��/	��
������������������!(��!�����	���
)1��������������������������!�����!�������	����	�!��������!�!������%�

Page 166



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 5

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 


����$����������������������!�����	!���	���������0�������������	��
������������!���
���������������������!�����������������%�

C�������	��
���������!���������
�����!�����!������� ��+� �,#����	!���,�
�����!���
�����������������������&
���'%��/	���������!��������������	!���������������
����,#�
������������������!�������������#�!����	!���������������	������������������!����������!�����
������������#������������!��������������������������(�%�

+,-�

/	��
�������������	���������������!���������8/9�#������������	������������;�����������
������������������ � �!����	����!����������������!�����������������"�������� � %��
=���������!����	�����������������������!������������������������	!����#�!�����������
������	������-������ ��%��-����	#����	!�����������������	��8/9�#���!�������	!�����������
��!����%��=���������!����	!���	���������������������������������!��������	��	�����������!���
����������%�

2�������������	����������8/9��!����F������������!��#���������	�	�!�������������������
�	��
�����!�������������������!���
���������������������������!�%��/	���������������!���
��������!�����������!������!������0����!���!�������	��C!�!������	��C�����������!���#�
�	�����!�����#�����������#��������!����������!�����!�����������	���������� ��6������
� �F6�,%����������	�����0�������	����	��
�����!�������������������!���
����������������
�����������!��������%�

��� ��	�����	��������������������


�����	����#	���

/	���������0������������������!����0�����!��%��8�����������	����!��#�!��������������	��
������"#�!���!���������:�

• -�����!���"�����������9��!��#�-������!���@����������+�
	!���
• E�!�����7!��������8�����
• E�!������
/���������!�����������������
/�
• ���!����������������8!�!����
• E�!�����9��!���
• ���������!���������E��!�����������
• ���������!���������-�����!���
	����@3�������
• ���������!���������"�����-������!������	���

�
/	��������"����������	�����0�����!��;�������!�:��

• ���������������������	�����0��<�
• 	!��������	�����0�����!��!������0����!�!���<�
• �����������	������������������������	����	�����0��<�
• ��������!����!�!������������������������������<�
• �����������!���!��!�����0������������������	�����0��<�!���
• !��������!����0���!����!����������%�

�

Page 167



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 6

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

���!�������#�������������	�����0�����!���!������!��!���	�����!���!����;������	!�������
!�������������������	�����0���!����������������	���������!����#�!����������������������	��
"��������!���������������������	����	��
�����%�

/	�����0���������������!���
	!��!�#�E�!�����7!��������8�����!���@�������%��=	����	��
���0����!�������!�����	�����0���8!�!�����!��G���=���	������#������������������
8!�!���%��9����������	�������������������	�����!��������������� � ��	�����0���8!�!����
������!����!�����������?���!�-����#��	�����!����!������������������8!�!���%�

/	���������0�����!���	!�������������������!�������	��
�����!��������������0���
"��������C�!��%��/	����������������������������&���'������	���������0������-�!��
C�����#�"�����������
�����!����������#��	�����!����!���������	�����������������0���
�������%��/	���������!������������!������0������������������	��
�����!�����������
�������!��%��/	��
��������!�������������!�����������!������	�������0�����������!���
!	���������������������������#�!�����!��!��������������������������!���!��������#�!���
�	��������������	��
�����!��������������0���"��������C�!��%��

"��	��������	��

/	��������"��	�����������!���������������	�������������0���������!���!��!���������
��������%�

�

������
��
��

=	����	�����0����!�������!����������#�����!��!����������
�����!������������������������
&
��'��,#��������������������!�������������%�������������	!�������������������!���������
����������������!������	�����%������	!����3����(�����!��#�!���������������%�

,���'�������-�
������������������.��.����

�

/	�����������!	����(�����!��!�������!����������	���!���������#�!��������	����(�����!��
��!���!������(�����!�������!���%�

Page 168



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 7

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

$	'��������������/�����	��0���������	��0�������	���������	����

�������/�
����	��

 �	������1+� 2���������������	��
)� $�����	������
�������	��
)�

�.)��������.�� 8!��!��	�����#�
�����������������
8!�!����

?���	!��������
G���=���	������#�
�����������������
8!�!����

/���!�����!����������������
���+��!��!��������#�����!�������
������������!�����������

9����!���� � �+�
-������ ���

?�������!������
��������>����
� ���

2)�������3
	��
������

�!���E!����#�
������!����������
-�!������

?���	!��������
8!�����9���!��#�
�������-����!���

/����������	!��!�������������!���
!���!���������	��
���!��������
��������!��!�����!���!����!��
���������%��/	����!����!����

���!��!�!�����������!���!������
����!��!����!�!�������
������!�����

8!�	�+�>����
� � �

?�������!������
��������8!�	�
� ���

1������
�����	���	�����

�	!����/!����#�
�������9��!��!��
����������������

?���	!��������
>�����88���!�#�
������
8!3����!�����
8!�!����

/���!�����!���������������
��������!�������!�����!���
�����������������������	��

����������������

9����!���� � �+�
8!�	�� ���

4������!�
�����	���
��	����
�
�������

?���!�-����#�
�����������������
8!�!����

/�����!��������������!��
��!������������#�������!���
!���������������!��������
��!�������������

8!�	�+�>����� � �

?�������!������
��������-�����
� ���

�.���	���
�	����

G���=���	������#�
�����������������
8!�!����

?���	!��������
8!�����9���!��#�
�������-����!���

/���������	��������������������
���	!���!���������������	��

�����#������!����������������
!������	��������!����	�����

8!��+�?��������
� � �

5������
�	�	
������

?���!�-����#�
�����������������
8!�!����

/����!���!��!����!�����#�
!�������#������������������
�!����������	������!������������

���������!��������������

9����!���+�-�����
� � �

?�������!������
��������
?��������� ���

�

�������������!����������!(�����!������3����0�����������!�!�����������%��=�����������	��
!����!	��!(�������	��
��������������!���!���%�

Page 169



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 8

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

��	��������������

/	��
�����������0����!�!��������������������������	!���	�����0����!�!�����	�������!�#�
�!�!���!���������!����	�����0�����!�����!��!�+��+�!���!���#�!����	�����0�����!���	�����
���������	����$��������������!����������!����%��/	�����0����!�!���#�?���!�-����#����!����
�����������������	����������!�!����������(�����!��!����	����������������!����!������
����������(�����!�#�!��������������!������!����%���	�����!��������!������������	���!�(������
�	��������	�����0�����!�#�!�������!���!�(�������������!�!�������!����	����������������!��
��!������������%��/	��������������0����!�!���#�G���=���	������#��!��������!����
�����������������	�����	!���!������(�����!�%�

=	����!����������!������������	�������������0����!�!����!��������$�����������������!��
������������	�����0���!�����(�����!����!�#��	�������!����(��	!��!����!��������������
�������#��	�	��!�����!������	������������������������	�����0��%��

"��	��������	��

/	��
�������	�������������	!���	������������������0����!�!����!������(����!����!���
�	������������!������������	���!�����������!�%�

�

���!�������#��������������	�����0���������!���	!���	!�������������	�����������!��������
�	�����0���!��#��	��������������#��	�����������!����!���#�������	!������������!���#����
	!������������!����������������!���!������������	��	!������������	���������0���
������!���!��!��������%��������������(�����!�����	!���	��!���������!���!�����������!���
����!�	����������!���	!��������������!��!(�����!��������!������������!�����������������������
�	���������0��%��/	����!��	!������������������	��!��!��������!�������	���������������	��
���0�������!��#��	�	��	��
������	!�����������%��/	�������!����������������	��������!��
����������!��������>!��!���� � �	!������#����!�����������!��������#�!	�������������������	��
��3����(�����!��#�!��������������!������!����%�

/	���!����������������������	�����0���!�����������!������������	���	������!���������
�����������-������ ��%���������������!���	!��!������������!����������������������������	��
���������	�����0��#�!���!��!(�����!��������������!���������������������!�����!�����������!����
����	��������	����������������!������!������	����3����(�����!��%��C����������!���!��������
�������������	�������������F%F%�

"��	��������	��

/	�����0������������!���������!���!��!����������������������+��������������	������������
������!���#����������!�8����!��������������!�����������������������!���(���
��!(�	��������������������	�����0��%��

�

�����������������!�����������������	��
�����!��������������0���"��������C�!������!�
����	����!����!�������	���C�!���������!�����������!�!������	��
�����!�������������������
!���
���������������������������!�%��9���	������!�������������!����!�!����������
������������������F%F��������������%�

Page 170



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 9

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

��&  ���	��!�	��������������


"���������������������

/	��
�����������(��!�!����������!������ � ���$�������	!�����(��!�!����������������������
�	��
��������������#�������������0����!�!������#��!(�������(��!�!�������!��������!��
�!���������0�����!�����%��/	�����!�������$������!����(�����������������!���!������	�	��	�����
��������������������$����������	�����(�����������#��	���������!�����!��!�����(���	�������
�	�����(#��3��������������������!����������!����!	����(�!�����!�����!��������������!������(�#�
���	������!��������!����!����������������������%��8����������������������(��!�����$���������
���������������	�����!��������(����������!����	����!���������!�+��+�!�����!������!��
����!�������	���������������!����!�����(����������%�

���������������������

����	��
�����������!��������(���������#��	�����(��������������������	���������0���!���
),����������!�����������F���!������!����������	������(�����������8/9�%��/	������$���������
�	������(���������!����������	���������!����!����������������������!�������������#�������!��������
!���	��	��	����������	�	�����1#����	�!�������!�����(������!��������1%��/	������(������	������

�����!�������������������������,#�������������������!�������������#���������	�������������
��������!���#��	�	����!�������������!����������	�����������������������%��=�����������	!���	��
�������0������!�������!�����!�����������	��
�����������!��������(���������%�

�	��	�����
��	����������������������

/	��
��������"����������!������������	�����(������������(�!�!������	��
�����������!�����
�����������!����	�����(�!���������������������!�����0���%��/	��
�����!�����������"�������
��!���������������������!������������������6�����������������������������������������������
�3����!�����	!�����%��/	����!������������	����!��������#����0������!�����#����!�������!������
�����������!���!����(�!���������%��/	���!0������(��������������������������!����������������
�!�������!���!��������!���������!����	������!������!����!����	�������������!�����	!��������
�����������������!����	���!���!�����������!�������!�����������������%�

�����	����������������

/	���������0�����������������	��
�����������(��!�!����������!����#�!����������������
��!���#�!����������!����0������(�����������	�	���������������������������	��
�����!���
��������C�!��%��/	������D�!�����!��������������(������(�#�	����	�����������!��������&�����'�
!���	����	����������������!���%��/	��������"�����������	!��!����(�!�!���������������
�������������	�����0�����!��!���	���������������%��-����0������(������������������!��!���
�!	�����
�����!�����������C�!������������������!�����!���������������	�����������(�����
��%�

E������#��	�����0������(����������������������������!������	��	��
�������������%����������
������!��������������	����������3��������������������!����������!������(��!����	����!�����
!�������	�	���������������������!����������!������(�%��/	����!������	��������!�������	���
�������������������������%��=	����������!�������������!����������������!���!����	!��!�
�����������	����������!������������!���%�%��	����������������	�����	!�������	!���������	��
������%��/	���������������!�������������������������!������������	�����������!�����%�

/	�������������	��
�����!�����������C�!������8!�	�� �����������������(�#����	������	�	�
!���	��	�!��������!���������%��9��������	�����(��	!��������������!���1#��	��	��	����
�������������%��/	����������������!�����������!	����(�!������������!���������	�������!�����

Page 171



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 10

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

������%��/	������������!���!��������!���$�������������	��
�����������(��!�!�������
���!����#������������	��!����!	�!������������	�����!��������(����������!�������������������
��!���%�

������������!����	!���	�����(�!����������������������������#�����������	!���	��
������
�������������������	��!��!��������!��������(��������������������	����$�������������%��
=	����	��	�������!�����(��!�������������#��	��
����������������������	��	��#�!���	��#����
!��������	���%�

=��	!�������������	����������(���	!�������!��������!���	��	��	�������������1����8!�	�� ��#�
!����������!(���	������������������!������������!����������������	�����(�%�

• ���(�+�@����������+�����������!���������������	������������������������!����	��
���0�����!�������!���������������%��/	������(����������!������������!�������������!���	��
�����������+�����������!���������������!����!��!����(%��
�

• ���(�+�"��!��������������������!������������������������������������������������ � +
��%��/	�����������!�����	!��!����	!������������������!�����!������������������������
�	���������8!�	�� ��#��	���!���!���������!��������!������!�	����	!��!�������������!�%��
/	�����������!������!����!���	���������9����!���� ��#��	�	���!����������������	�
�!��!�!��!����������	!���!�����������	������������������%�
�

8����!�������������!�����!�����!��������������!������(���	���������8-�/��%�%�������#�
��!���!���#�!	���!���#���!������!���������%��=	����!������!�����!�����������#��	�������
����!����������������������������	��%�����������������	�����(����������	!��������������	!��������
������!��	����	��
�����������������!����������������	�����(������������%�

/	�����(��������������������������!����(�������!������������������������������!���!����%��
�������F%F�������������������������	!���	��
���������������	!���!������������!���!�������!��
�����!�%��/	��
������	!������������!���!�������������������	����������������������!������
����	!����������!��������������	����	���������������%��=��	�����	��#��	��
�����������������
�������!���������������������	��	����	�����0�����������!(������������������0������%��8!������
�	���������(���	��
������	!��������������!�����!����������������!���!����#��!�	����	!���	���
������!����!�!�������������!�������(%������!�����!�������!�������������!������������	�������
������(�����	�����(������������#������3!����#���������!������	�����(�����!��������!�������(���!��!��
��	�!��������#��!�!�!��������������!���!����%�

"��	��������	�&

/	���������0������(�����������	����������	!������:�

• �����������������������	��	��
�����������(��!�!����������!����#�����������	����
���������������������!��!�����$������!�����#����	������!����!�����������������������
!�������<�

• ������������	��������!�����(�����������!	����(#��	����������!�����(�����!���	��	#�
����������	���������!���!������	��	��#�!���	��#����!��������	�������(�<�

• �������!����������������(��!����������#��!�	����	!��������#������!����������!����	��<�
!���

• �������������	�������������(%�
�

�

Page 172



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 11

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

������
������

���!������������	�����(���������#��	��
������	!�������������������0����!�!���������!����
���������!����0�������������#��	�	����	!��!�����!�������������%��/	����������H��������(�I��	!��
�����������!��������!�!���#�!����	��
�����!�����������C�!�������������!����	!���	��������
���������������!��!��!��������������%�

/	������������������������	!������������!�������	����$�������������!����������������%�����
������������������!����������������!	����(#��	��	����������������������#�!����	��
�����������!����#����������������������:�

• ����������	�����(�����	�����(��������������	�	��	�����������!���<�
• �	���!����	���������!���!�������������<�
• �	�����!������	�������#������3!����������	������(�����!���������0���<�
• �	������������	��!���������!�!����	�������#��	����	���������!��!�������#�!����	���!���

����	����	�������������!������	����������������<����
• �	��	����	��������������(�����!�����!��������	��	���������!�����0��������%�

�
/	������������������!��������������������!��������������������������!�����!������������
�	���!�!�����������	�������%�

"��	��������	�'

/	�������������������	���������������������������	����$�������������!������������%�

�

Page 173



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 12

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

F ���0����!�!�������

��� $���	�
���	�


/	�����������������	���������������	�����0��#�����!�����!�#��	�����������������	��
���������!�������!��!��������������������	�������������!���!��������!����#�!���	������������
����������!������!����!���!���%�

��� "	#
������	�������������	�����


��	��������������

/	��
�����������0����!�!����������������#���������������8!��� � �!������!�������
?��������� � #����������	���������!������	!�������$�������������!���!������	���
������!(����!����0��%���������������	������������!0������0���#��	�	�!����	�������	�!�����
��������)1  #   #�!������������0���#��	�	�!����	�������	�!����������#�����������������
���(��!������!(�����!��!0������0��%�

/	����$�������������!���������!��!0������0����	�������������!��������������������	��
!���!��!����!���!�����������#����!����!����������������	����	�����	�����������	�����0��%��
9������������0�����	����	���������!�������!�������!����%��G������������������:�

• �����!�����0���������!��+�!������(���!����������!��������������������	�����!����
���!�������������������!�������������(%�
�

• 
������!��������!��+����������!���������	�!����0������������!�����!���!������$�����
���������!��������	��	��%�
�

• ���0���@3���������!��+���!������������������!�������������������������	�����0���
"������#��������������	�����0�������#���0�������!������!���������������%�
�

/	��
������	!������������	!���	��������������	!�����������������������������!��#�!��!�
������#��	��!��������������	!�������������������%��/	��
������������������	��
���������!�������������	���������0�������	�����!������"�!��)�F#1  #��3���������!�������%��
/	����������	�����	!���!������(�����!���!����!����!��)1#   #�!�����������!�!�������
!��)�B#1  ��	�	������!���������%��/	��
�����!������������������������������!����!�����	��
�������������������������������������������������������������%��/	��������������!�
�������!������0����	��������$�!���������������!����0����������#�����	!����������
�����!������!����������������������!����!�!���#�!�������	����������������������������!�%�

"��	��������	�(

/	�����������������0�����	��������������������������!����0�����������%�

�

/	���������������������������	�����0����������!	��������	���!�������),����������!�����%��
/	�������#��	�����0����!�!��������������������$����������!0������0���������������������

Page 174



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 13

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

!����������!��!���������0�������	����!����#�!�������	��(������������������������	������
���0�������������3��������������	��������!����!��!0������0��%��=����������������	���!�����
!���!����!���������	�����0����!�!�����������������!���!�������������!�!������0���
�!�!�������������#��	�	������!���������	������������� ��%�

/	���������0�����������	!������������	!�#��	������������������������	��!���!�����0���
�����������������������������	!��)1  #   #��������!��!0������0��������	��
�����%��/	������!�
�����������������������������0��������	�	��	��
������	!������	�������������!�������!���
���0����!�!�������!��!��������%��/	�����������������	��
�����������0����!�!�������
���������#��	�	�����������������������������!���!���!�����0���%�

"��������	!�����������������	!���	��
��������������������������������	��	�����?
@��
���0����!�!����������	�������#����������!���"#�C��������
!��������	����������������
���(�����!�#�!���!����0�����!�%��/	����"��������!�������	����$�������������!����0���
�3���������!�#�!��	���	�����������!�������	�������������!����#�!��	���	#�!������������
!����#��	���3���������!��!���!��������������!�������!�������!���!�����0���%�

=��	!�������������	����	��������(��	!������!���(����!�!��������	��������������������
������������	���������0���!����������(�����!��������!�!�������	��
�����������0���
�!�!����������������%��=	������	���������!������!��������������������	�����!�������0���
�!�!����������������������������#��	�����0�����!���	!�������������	������������	����
(�������������	�	��	�������!�����	�����������������������������	�����0��%�

"��	��������	�)

/	��
�����������0����!�!������������������	����������������#����!��!�����!�����
���	��������0���������!�������!����!������������	�����0�����!��%�

�

��	�����	��
������	�

�������������!���	!���	��
�����������������!����	��(�����!(�	�������!���	������������!������0���#�
!�!�������	����������!�����������!���!�������	��������!�����	!����������������#��	��
���$��������������!����#�!����	����������������������!�!������	��������!����%��
/	�������!�����	��!�����������������������������!����0��#�!����!�!������(������������#���	�!��
��!(�	������������%��=��	�������������������������!�����!�����������!����#��	�������!�
���(��	!���	��
���������������	!������+����������!(�	�������!����	!���	�����0��;�����������
���������!�����������������������%�

������������������	�!�������������!(�	����������	�����������������������	!���	��(���
�������������������	�������������������	�����!����������!����	���������	!��������
��������������������!����%������������!�����	��������!��!(����������	�������	��
�����������	!����#���������!�����������������!�����������	!�����	!�������#�����
�3!��������	����	�����������	������!��������������������	������$���������%�

=��!���������������!���������������!����������	�����������!(���!�������	����	�
����������#�������	���������������������������!���0���%��
����$������#��	������	�������!�
��3������������!�!�����������	���������0���������#��	�������!���!��!������������������������
����	�����0���!����	�����������������������������0������%�

/	���!0��������������������������������	!���	���������	!�����(����!���������������������
�	������0��%�����������������!��!���	�����!��!����!������������	!�������!���������������
��������������	��
����
������!���������������	�����	������!��������	�����!�����%��/	������

Page 175



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 14

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

��������	������������������	!�����!�������!��������!��!���	�������������	�����0���!���
�����������!��!(�����������!�����!�������!����������������������!��!�%�

"��	��������	�.

-����0���������!�������!���	����������������!�������������������!�!���
���!�����	�������	�������!��!����3����!����!(�	������%�

�

��	��������

/	�����0�����!�#��	�	����!��!����	!��#�����������	��	��	+�������!�(����$������������������	���
���0��#��	����!�����!�������!����#���!���!��������	��!����!���!�����������������������!��������
�!	��!�(%��/	��
������	!����!�����	!�����!�����!�������!���������������������������������
�	������!������0�����!�%��/	����!����������	�������!���������������������!���#�!���������
�����������!��!�������������������!(��	��
��������������������	��	�����0��%�

����������������

-��!���!��������#��	���!�������!����������	���������0������),��������������!��	������!��
���������!��������-������ ��%��/	�������!������!��!�����������������!��������).��������#�
�	�	���������)1�������������!��������!�!��������!�����%�

/	�������!������!��������������������	����	���������������3����!���3����������������	��

���������������������3����!����������%�%��3�������!���!��!�����!���������������%��/	������
���������3����!��������	!������������������!��)�*,��������#��	���������	���!��������!������
�����������%,4�����	��%�

���!�������#��	��!��������!�!��������!������!����������!���������	���������������&����
�������������!���!�'��	�	�������������)��*��������#��������������!��!�������!���������%F4%��
-������!(����!���������3���������������������!���!���!�����������#��	��
������	!���
!���!�����	���������!����!���!��������,%�4�������	���	������!��������%�

������������	����!������	��
������	!��������!(���!������������	���!������!	�������������!���
�����	�����!��!��	�������%������������!������	����!����!����������������A4�!���B4��!������
!����	������������������	!��,%�4����!���!�����#�����������#��!����%�������������	!�����������
!����������!����	�����	���������!�����������!�����!�����������������������	���	��	�!������
�!�������!���������������),��������#���	����	!���	�������	������!�����������!�%�

/	���	!���������	���!�����������	���	������!����������������-������ ���	!���!��������������%��
/	��������!����"#�����!�������-������ � #���!�����	�����!���3�������!�����������),*1#   #�
�	�	�����������!������������	���!�����!������!���	!������������!���!���!���%��/	���!�����
�!�������$����������������������!��������	��
�����!������������������������������!�#�
�	�	����	!��������!���������������	����������������������	!�����������	������!����
�����������������������	����������������!��!����!������������%������!����!�������!�����
�����!��!���������������!����F������%�����	!�����������������	!���	���!������������!����#����
�	!���	��!�����!����!��������������!����������	����������	���	������!������������!��),��������%�

Page 176



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 15

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

$	'�������2	��
���	�
�����������������	���2.������2�������������)���	���

��	���	��� �&��3��� �&��3��� �&��3���

?��������� � � ) %A1��������� )�% ��������� ),% ���������

8!�	�� ��� )�%���������� )�%1��������� ),% ���������

�

/	��
������	!����������������������	���!����������!	���!���	����	�����	�����������������
������%��E������#����!���!����	!���	��������������������������	����������!������!	���!�#�
�!�	����	!���	���!��������!�������	�	�	!�������������������!��!	���!��������!	���������!��
��!�%��/	���!���������� ��+����!���������������) %A1������������!������)�%�������������
8!�	�� ��%��-��!���������	�����!������!�������!����������������������������������!���%�

/	��
�������������������	��8!�	�� ���
�����!�����������C�!����������	����	��
),����������!��������!���!����!������	����3����(�����!��%��E��������	����!������������
��������	��!���!���������	���!����������!����!��������������	��
�����!������������������
�����������!�����8!�	�� ��%��-��!�������!���!���!������������!���������������������	������
��������#��	��������������#�!���������!��!����!������������	������!���!����%�

"��	��������	�/

/	�����!�������!�������!����#�!���!���!����������!�#��	����������������	���!��������!������
�	��
�����������!	����#��!�	����	!��������!���������!�%��/	��!���!�����!������	����3�
���0������(�����!����	�����������!���������������	����������!���!����������!�%

�

�����	�������	�����

�����������������!�����������������	��
�����!��������������0���"��������C�!����������	���
�!���#��	���C�!���������!�����������!�!������	��
�����!�������������������!���
��������
�������������������!�%��/	�����������������!����!����������	���!������!	����������!���
!�!������!�����!�������!��!�������!(���������	���!����������!���!������������(��!����������
���!���������	�����0��%�

/	�����������������������	��8!�	�C�!��#������������9����!���� ��#���!�����	������������
���	����	�����������	��������:�

• �����������!�!�����	!��!	�������!���������)�B#1  <�!���
• �����!������������������	!��!	�������!������!���	���������9����!���� ������)*1#   #�

�	���3!������������������$�����������	!����!���	���!��������!������  A���������
	!�����!��!���!���������F4%�
�

-������3�"�����	��������#��	�	������������!������!������������	�����0��#��	�����	!��!�
���!�����)FA#   �����!������!�������!�����������������������	���������� � +���������������
����!�!����%��/	�����������������������	������!����!�������!�����!�������!����	��9����!���
����������������	����������	����!�%�

�!������!	����������!���!���������������!������3�
�����	��������#��	�	�������������
��!�	���	�	��	��:�

Page 177



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 16

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

• ���!������������������������ ��+��#����	�!��!����������	����!�����)A1 #   <�!���
• �����!����������6	�����3����������������������������� ��+��#����	�!��!����������	��

��!�����)�A #   %�
�

C��	���!�	���	����!����������!����	�	���������������	������!����!��������),��������%��/	��
������������������������!���������!�!�����!���!��!������������!�����%�

�����������!����������	!���	�������!������!���������������#�!���!�	!�����!�������������
�������!����������!��#���!�����	��
����������������	���������!����+!�	!�����!����%��
/	�������������������!�������������������	��
�����!���������������������!�����������
���������!���!���������������������	��	���!���������!������������%��/	�����0����	���������
�!������!������������������!���!�!������	������!������������!���#����!������	�����(����
���������������������	!��!��!�����	!�������!	�������	������	!�����%�

"��	��������	��0

������������������	��
�����!���������������������!����	�������!������������������������
�!�����#�!���!�	!����!������+!�	!�����!�������	�����������!�!��������������%

�

��� %������������	�#����������������	���������


-�����������!�!������6��!���!��������!��������������!����0������	�!���!�����(�����
��!���������������%������������:�

• 	������������&!������+��������'���������$�!��������!�����!�����<�
• 	��������������������������������������������������������!�����!(��<�
• 	���C����������!���!�������������!��	������<�!���
• �	�����������������!��������	�����+��+�!���!����3�������������!	���������������%�

�
-�������������������������������������!	���������&!������+�������'�!�����!(�������!���!����#�
�!	�����������$������!��������������������&���������������'%�����!��������������	��
��������������������������	��#������3!����:�

• -����	����!��������!�����J��
• -����	�����������������	���	������������!������0��������������J��
• -���!�������!��������������������������!���!����������������!���!�����J��
• ����	����������!������!���3�����J��
• -����	�����������	!������������!��������!�����	���������J�

�
=���������!����	!���	��
���������������	!�������!�	���������������!���!��������!���������
�	��C!�!������	��C�����������!���#���������������������������	���������0��%��9���	��#�
�	����!���������!�����!�������������������������	��������!��������������	����!������!�����#�
����	����	���!����!����������������������#����!��!����������������!������%��/	��!������
���!��������������!���!��������!����#�������������������!������!����!�������������!����	!��
�	�������!�	��	��������������(��	!���	��
������������������!�����������������������������������
!������������������!������������������������	������������	!����������!�����%�

=���������!���!������������!���!�������!�#������������	��	�����������!�������!�����#����������
����!����!�������������������������	��
�����!������������������������������!������-�����
� ��%�

Page 178



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 17

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

1	�2���!�#��#�������

"�������	�����������������������(�!��������������+!�	!���������������������������#�
��	�!������������!�!�������������!����#�����!���������!������	������!������!����	��
�������������������������	�������!�������!�������������������!������	��
�����%��/	��
�������!�����&�!���A'����������	���������������	�����0���!���������:�

• ����!����������������������
• ����!�����!�������������#�$�!�����!������������
• �����!���������	�!�����	!�������!�����
• �!�!������������������������(�#�������������!���!����!����!�������!��������������������

��������
• ���������#��!�!����!���$�!�����������������!���
• �����!��!���!���������������������������
• �+��������#��������������!������!���!����!����������!��	����!�����
• ���������������!����!�!�������!�����������
• �������������!�������������������!������!�������
• �����!������	�����������������������!���������!��������!��������	��8@��
• ��!���!�����!������������������������#���!��������������������	!���!������������

���������
• �������������	��!���!�������!����!�������	������!���������!���������!���%�

�
�������	�����!�����	!��H!	�������������	��!�������������������������!�������	����	�G���
�������!�������!����������!	��������!��I��%�%����(�����!�%��E������#����	!������������
!����������������	����	�������������	!��������������������	����	���!�����������!�����%�

����	����������������

/���!3�������	��������������������������	�����0�������	�������!������#����������������
������������������!����!�!���%��/	���������������������	�������������������!������!���
�	!���	����$����������������������!����	�������#������	�����0���	!����������������%��=��
�������3�������������!���!��������������!���������!������%�%����������#�G���#���������
�!����!����#�!�����!������������!����!�����#����������������!������	��������������	!��
�������������%�

���!������������	�����!��!���!����������������!����������	�����������������������#��	������
����������!�������!����!���������A%���	!���!������!��������!�����������������������������	��
!	��������������������%������	��������������	�����������!���������:�

• ���������������������������
• ����!������
���$�!�����������������!��	����������!�����������+!�!�����������������
• ���������������+��!��!���!����������������������
• ���������������������!���&�	����	��������!����'�
• ��������������������!��������
• �  4����	!���������������!��������
• .*4������������������������3���������������!�������!�����<�!���
• !��!��������������!���!�!�������������!�����

�
E������#����������	!��������!�����!������&�  4�������	!���������������������!��������
!���.*4������������������������3������������!�������!�����'%��/���!��#�!�������������(���
�������!�������!�����	!��������������������!������!�����!������	!���������������%�

Page 179



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 18

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

/	�����0�����!��������������8!�	�� ����!�����������������������������!�����������+
���!��!����������%��/	���3!���������������	����������!���	�����������������������������
���	����!����	!���������	!�������������4%��/	����!������!������!�����	�	��!����������
����	���������!�����!�������!������!���������������	���������0�����!���������%��/	��������
������������!���	��	����	��
������	!��!	�������	����������������#�����	������!(������	���
���������!�����������������������!��%�

"��	��������	���

/	��
�������	��������������������������������������������!�����!��������������&���!��!��!���
���+���!��!�'�������	���������0��#����������	����!	��������������������!�����#�!����	��
�����!����������!��������!	��������#�������������������������������!��������������!���!����%

�

�

Page 180



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 19

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

, ��	����������!������

&�� $���	�
���	�


/	�������������������������������������������!(�	��������������������	������������
���!���������	�������������������(�����!�#��	�����	�������������������������������������	��
������������������������������%�

&�� �
����	��	
�


/	��
�����������������	!�������F* �!��	�����������������������!�����������!������	��

������!����	����!��������������!����!���������0�������	������������	����	����2%��/	�������
����	������������!������������������	!���������������������������������	��
��������
���!��������!������������	�����	���������������)A1#   %��C������!������������������
�����������������������!�����!���������	������������������-������ ��%�

�����������	�	��		�������������

/	��������!��������������!�������������$�������������!������	��������������!�������
���	!�������������%��-��������������������!�����������������!��������������	���3������	!��
�	�������!����	!���������������������!�������%�


�������������!��������!���������������������������������������������������!���������	��
���������	��������#��!�����!�������!�������	����(�������������	��
���������������%��=��
�������!������������������!������������������!��������������!���������������(��������������
���������	������������������%��/	��
�����������������	������������!���!���������������
������������������(�������������	�����������%�

"��	��������	���

/	����2������������!����������!��������!(�	��������	�������������������������������
������!������������	!��������������������������	��%�

�

-���!���!����������������������������������������������	��������������������	����������
����������!����#�������+��!��!��%��/	����������������������	!�#��	����!�������!��#��	����2�
	!��!�������!���������������(�!���������������������	��%��/	������������������!��	!��
����������	!��. 4������������!��!���	�����������������������	������������#����	������� 4�
	!�����!�����!�����!��!����������	�	�!���!���������������	�����!����������������
8!�!����!��������!������������!��%��/	����!���!���������������������!�����������!���������
�	!��!�����!����������������������#��!�	����	!��!��������������	!��!�����!����������	!��!�
���!�����������!����%�

/	����2����������������!������	��������������������	���!�����!���	!���	��!��!���������
�����������������!����������������������!����	�������	�!����!�����������!�����!�������!�

Page 181



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 20

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

����������������������%�������������!��!�(����!�������	���������������������	�	�
������������������������	�������������������	�����$����%�

"��	��������	���

/	��
�������	�����������������������	!�������!����������!�������������������������
��������!����������	�����������������	��������������%��=	����������!������!�������
����!���������������	�������	�!����!�����������!����#����������	������������������	!�#�
�	����!�������!��#��	�������������������!��������������	������������!������	��������!����%�

�

�
����

"�������	�����������������������������	���!(�	�������������������#������������������������
���!�������������������������������!���������������!����������	��������������	�	��	���!���
!������%��/	�����������:�

• ����������������������!����������#����!������!���!���	!�����!���!��!�����!����������
������������������<�!���
�

• !�(����������������!�(��	���	���������#�����	!���	���!���	���!���������	!��������!���
��������!�������#�!����������!����	�������!���������������	����������������������#����
������������!���%�
�

=���������!����	!����������������������������������������!������	������$����������!���!���
����	��������������������!���������	�������������������(�����!�%�

3!	�������	�����

/	��
������������(��������������	�����!���������������!����������%��=	�������������
������!����������#����	!��������!��������	!����������!��������������������������!���
$�!����%��/	�������!������������	!��������������������������������!����������������	��
	�!�����������%�

������������(�	!��������������	!����������������	!���	�����#�����!����������������������������
�	���	�������������&=D
'��������������������%��9����3!����#��	����������$�������������
������������	��!�����!���������#����	����	!���������������������#�����������	��	�������
!�����!������$������������	��!������������!�!��!��������!���������������%��G��������	�����!��
������!�����!������������������������������������������!��%�

-���������������������������������������	!���	����������������!��������������	�!�������
���������������	�	�!������������!������	��	�!�����!�!��!�������	!���������%�%��!(��=D
�
�����!����%��/	�������!������������	!���	�������������������������	��������#�����	!����������
�������������!������������������������������3������������������	�����	���������!����	������
!�!��+��+!����!�������	��	����2%��=��	!��������������!�����������	!�������������������
���������	��=D
������������������!��������������	!���%�

/	�����������������	��
����������	���������=D
#������	��	�!��������	!�������%��/	��
=D
����������!������������	���������������������#�����������	!���	����������������������	��
������������������%��/	����!�#�����!�����#����������	�������������	!���	��	�!����������
������������������	�����������������	�����������%�

Page 182



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 21

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

"��	��������	��&

/	���	����������������������!������������	�������������������!������������������
�������������������%�

�

-
��!������#���

=��	!�������������	��
���������	�����	������!����������!(�������	����!(�	������
����������������������(#�!���!�������	������������������%��=�������������	������!�����
�����!(��������������	�	�����������$������������������-�����
��������%������������������
�	��
��������������������������������������!�������!��!���������������!�������!�����
�	��
������������������	��������0������%�

�

Page 183



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
P

2P
 p

ro
je

ct
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
22

 

©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

-
��

��
��
3�
-
:��
-
�
��
��
��
!�
�

�
��
���

�
�
�
��
�!
���

��
�!
��
���

�
�
!�
���

��
��
��	

��
��
���

�
��
��
!
���

��
��
!�
%��

6
�7
�

4
��
��

�
��
�	
���
��

�
��
��
��)
�

%
	�
	

��

��
���
��
��
��
��

4
��
��
��
�'
��
��
!!�
��
�

	�
��
�	
�

��
��
	�
��

��
�
��
��
1+
�

/	
��
��

��
��
"
��	

��
��
��
��
��

�!
��
��
��
���

���
�
��	

��
��
��
��
��

��
�0
�
���

��
��
�!
�
��
!�
�!
��

��
��
��
���
��
�
��
�%�

8
��
��
�
�

-
��
��
��

��
��
��
"
��
���
��
��
��

�!
��
��
��
���

���
�
��	

��
��

��
�!
��
��
��

��
��
��

��
!�
��


!�
��
��
��
8
!�
!�
��

��
�%�

�!
��
�

	!
��

!�
�

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
	

��
�	
��
��
��
/�
��
��
	�

���
	�
��

/	
��


��

�
���
�	
��

��
��
��
��
��
�	
!�
��	

��
��
��
���

���
��

��
��
0�
�
�

�
!�
!�
��
�!
��

��
��
(�
��
�!
�
���
!�
���

	�
��
��
��

���
��
!�
���

��
��
��
�

�	
��
�!
�
��
��
��
��
��

!�
%�

E
��
	�

-
��
��
��

=
��
(�
��
��
!�

���
!�
��!

��
��
��
0�
�
�8

!�
!�
��
���

��
��	

!�
��
��
��
�

!�
��
!
��
��
��
���

�!
�!
��
���

��
��
��

!�
�%�

�!
��
�

	!
��

!�
�

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

F�
2�
�.
��
.�
��
	�
��

�
�
��
	�
��
�

/	
��
��
�0
�
���
���

�
��
��
!�
��
��

��
��
!�
�
�!
��
!�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
+�
��
��
��
���

���
�	

���
��

��
��
��
�
��

��
��
!�
�
�#�

��
�
��

��
��
!�
8
��

��
!�
��

�
��
���

��
��
�!
��

��
��
��

��
��
���
���
���

��
!�
��(

��
���
!(
�	
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
���

��	
��
��
�0
�
�%�

E
��
	�

-
��
��
��

��
��
!�
�!
	
��
%��
?
��

��
��
0�
�
���
��
�
��
�6
��

��
��
!�
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
�
��
��
�>�

���
��
��
���

���
�
��	

��
��

��
�!
��
��
��

��
��
��

��
!�
��


!�
��
��
��
8
!�
!�
��

��
�%�

�!
��
�

	!
��

!�
�

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

Page 184



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
P

2P
 p

ro
je

ct
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
23

 

©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

6
�7
�

4
��
��

�
��
�	
���
��

�
��
��
��)
�

%
	�
	

��

��
���
��
��
��
��

4
��
��
��
�'
��
��
!!�
��
�

	�
��
�	
�

��
��
	�
��

,�
�
��
��
��
���
�/
���

�
��
��
�

/	
��
��

��
��
�0
�
���
��(

���
��
��
��
��	

��
��
��
��
��
	!
�
��
��
�:�

•
��
��
���

��
���
�
�
��
��
���

��	
��	

��


��

�
���
���

��(
�

�
!�
!�
��

��
���
��!

��
��
#��

���
��
��
��	

��
��
��
��

��
��
�
��
��
���

��
��
�!
�
�!
��

���
$�

���
��
!
���

��
#��

��	
���
�
��
!
��
��!

��
�

��
��
��

���
��
��
��
�
��
��!

��
��
��
�<
�

•
��

�
�
��
���

��
�	
��
��
���

�!
���
��(

��
��
��
��
���

!
	�
���
(#
�

�
	�
��
���

���
�!
���
��(

���
��

!�
��
	�
�	

#��
�
���
��

���
	�

��
��
��
�

�
!�
��
!�
���

��
	�
�	
��
#�!
��

�	
��

#��
��
!�
��
��
���
	�
��
���
�(
�<�

•
�
��
��
�
�!
���

���
��
���
��
���
(�
�!
��

�
��

��
��
�#�
�!
�	
��
��	

!�
�

��
�
��
�#�
��
��
�!
�
���

��
���
�!
��
��	

��
<�!
��

�
•

��
��
���
��
��

��	
��
��
��
��
���
��(

%�
�

8
��
��
�
�

-
��
��
��

�
��(

���
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��

�!
��
��
!�
��
��
	!
�
��
�!
���

��
�
��
��
��
	�
��

��
��
��

��
�!
���

!�
���

���
	�
�

!�
��
��
��
8
!�
!�
��

��
��!

��
��
��

��
��
0�
�
�

�
�
��
�!
���

�%
�

?
�
��
!�
-
���
�6

G
��

�
=
��
�	
��
��
��

�

F�
�>�

��
��
 �
��

1�
�
��
���
�.
��
���
��
�

/	
��
��

��
���

��
���
���
��	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
���
	�
�

��
$�

���
�
��
��
��
��!

��
���

��
���
��

%�

E
��
	�

-
��
��
��

��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��

���
��
��

��
���

��
��
��
��
���
�
��
��
��	

��
��
$�

���
�
��
��
��
��!

��
���

��
���
��

%�

?
�
��
!�
-
���
�6

G
��

�
=
��
�	
��
��
��

�

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

*�
�
��
��
��
�'
.�

�
���

�

/	
��
��
���
�
��
��
���

��
0�
�
���

	�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
���
��
!�

��
�0
�
��

��
�
��
�
��

%�

8
��
��
�
�

-
��
��
��

9�
���
�
��
���
��
��
��

��
��
��
�3
���

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
���
��
!�
�
��
!�
��
!�
��	

��
��
�0
�
��	

!�
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��	

��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
!�
���

��
��
�
%��


��

��
$�

��
���

!�
��
�!
��
��
���
��
�	
��


��

�
���
���

�	
��
��
��
��
��
�%�

�!
��
�

	!
��

!�
6?

�
��
!�

-
���
��

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

Page 185



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
P

2P
 p

ro
je

ct
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
24

 

©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

6
�7
�

4
��
��

�
��
�	
���
��

�
��
��
��)
�

%
	�
	

��

��
���
��
��
��
��

4
��
��
��
�'
��
��
!!�
��
�

	�
��
�	
�

��
��
	�
��

A�
�
��
��
��
��
	�
	

��

��
���
��
��
�.
��
��
��

��
�	
��
��

/	
��


��

�
���
���

��
0�
�
��

!�
!�
��

��
���

��
�
��

��
���

	�
��
��
��
�

��
���

�
��
#��

��!
��
!�
��
��
!�
��
��
�
��
	�

��
��
��
�0�

��
���
��
�!
��

�
��
��

!�
��
�!
��

��
��
��
��
��	

��
��
�0
�
���

�!
��
%�

D�
�
�

-
��
��
��



��
��
��
��
#��
	�
�

��

�
���
��

��
�	
!�
��
��
0�
�
��

!�
!�
��

��
��

��
�
��
��
��
���

��
��
!�
��
��
��
��
�

!�
��!
���

��
0�
�
�%�
�?

��
��
	�
��
��
#��
	�
�

��
��
�
��
��
���

�
!�
��
�	
��
�!
�
��
��
��	

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��
��


!�
��!
��

��
�0
�
���

!�
!�
��

��
��!
��
��
��
��

�!
��

���
��
��
��
��

�!
��

�

!�
��
��
��

8
!�
!�
��

��
��!

��!
��

��
��
�!
��
%�

�!
��
�

	!
��

!�
�

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

B�
�
��

�
.�
��
	�
��
��
��
�	
��

-
��
��
0�
�
�
��

�
��

�
!�
��
��
��
!�
��	

��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
�!
��

�
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
��

!�
!�
��
��
�!�
��
��
	�
��
��
��	

���
��
��
!�
�!
��

�
�3
��
��
!�
���
!(
�	
��
��
��
%�

E
��
	�

-
��
��
��

��
��

��
!�
���
���

���
��

�!
��

�

!�
��
��
��
8
!�
!�
��

��
���
��
	!
��
�!
�0�

��
��



��

�
���

�!
��
�
��
��
�>�

��
��
 �
�%
�

�!
��
�

	!
��

!�
�

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

.�
2	
�
�

��
�	
�

��
�

/	
��
��
�!
���

��
��!

��
��

���
!�
��
�#�
!�
��
!�
��
!
���

��
��
��
�!
�#�

�	
��

��
���

��
��
��
���
	�
��
!�
��
��
���

!�
��
��
��	

��


��

�
���
�
��
��

!
	�
��
�#
��!

�	
��
��	

!�
��
��
��

�!
��
��

��
���

!�
%��
/	

��
!�
��
!
���

��
!
��
��
��	

��
��3

��
��
0�
�
��
��
(�
��
��
!�

���
	�

��
��
��
��
��

!�
��
���

�
��
���

�
��	

��
��
��
��
��
!�
��
!
���

��
��
��
�!
�%�

8
��
��
�
�

?
��
�!
��
��
��

/�
�!
���

��
��!

��
��

���
!�
��
��
���

��
��
��
��0
��
���

!�
���

���
	�
��
��
�!
���

��
�
��
��

��
���
!�
��
��
��!

��
��
���

	�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��	

�

!�
��
��
��

8
!�
!�
��

��
�%�
�/
	�
��
��
��

���
��
��
���
��
�
��
	!
��
�-
��
���
	�
�



!�
��
��
��
8
!�
!�
��

��
���

��
0�
�
��
���
���

��
���
��
��
��

��
�
��
��!

��
�

���
!�
�
!�
��!

��
��

���
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
���

��
�!
��%
���
��
��
���

��
���
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
��
	�
��

��
!�
��


!�
��
��
��
8
!�
!�
��

��
���

��
��
�>�

��
��
 �
�#
�

��
�
��

��
��
��
�!
��
��
���

���
�!
��

��
%�

8
!�
�
��

�

��
6�

!�
��



	!
��

!�
�

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

� 
�

�
��
���
��
��
��

�

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��	

��


��
��

�!
��
��
��

��
���
��
��
�
��
��
�!
��
�

�	
��

��
�
��
!�
��
���

���
�
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
�!
��
��

�#�
!�
��
!
�	
!�
��
�

!�
��
��

�+
!
�	
!�
��
��!

��
��

���
	�

��
��
��
���

�!
�!
��
��
��

��
���

��
�%
�

8
��
��
�
�

-
��
��
��

C�
�	
��
��

+
!�
	!
��
��
��
��

��
�
��
���

!�
��
!�
��
!
�	
!�
��
���

��
��

��
�!
��
��

��!
��
��
��
��

���
��

��
��
���

��	
��


��
��

�!
��
��
��

��
���

��
��

�!
�
�
��
C�

!�
��
!�
��
���

�
��
��
��
"
���

�
��
�

��
��

�!
��
��
��

��
��
��

8
!�
�
��

�

��
6�

!�
��



	!
��

!�
�

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

Page 186



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
P

2P
 p

ro
je

ct
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
25

 

©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

6
�7
�

4
��
��

�
��
�	
���
��

�
��
��
��)
�

%
	�
	

��

��
���
��
��
��
��

4
��
��
��
�'
��
��
!!�
��
�

	�
��
�	
�

��
��
	�
��

��
�

�
��
�!
���
���
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
�	
��

)
�

/	
��


��

�
���
�	
��

��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
���
��
��
���
��
���

��
!�
���

�!
��

��
��
��
��
���
�&�
��
!�
�
!�
�!
��

��
��

+�
��
!�
�
!�
'��
��
�
��	

��
��

��
��
�0
�
�#�
��
�
��

��
��
	�

�
��
!
	�
��
��
���
���
���

��
��

�
�!
��
��
�#
�!
��

��	
��
���

��
!
��
���

��
���

!�
���
��

��
!
	�
��
��
���
#��
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
���

��
�
��

���
���

��
!�
��
��
��
���
���

�!
���
!�
��
�%
�

E
��
	�

-
��
��
��

/	
��


��

�
���
��

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�	
!�
��
!�
��
��
���
���

!�
��!

���
��

��
��
��
��
	�
���
	!
��
��
�
���

��
��

��	
��
���

!�
�
!�
��
��
��
���
���

��
��

��
!�
���

�%
��/

	�
���
��!

��
��
��
��

�
��
���
	!
���
���

�
��

��
��
��
!�
��
��
��
��

!�
��
�
���
���

!�
��
��
!�
�!
���
!�
��
��

�!
��

���
��
��

��
�!
���

��
��
��

��
���

��
�	
��
��
��
��
�7
98

��
��
��
!�

�
�%�

8
!�
�
��

�

��
6�

!�
��



	!
��

!�
�

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

��
�

2�
��
�!)
��

�

�
��
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�

/	
��
��

2
��
��
��
���

�
��
!�
��
�
��

�
��

�
!�
��
��
���
!(
�	
��
��
��
�

�	
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
�
���
��
��
�
���

��
��
��

��
��!

��
���

��
�
��
��	

!�
�

��
��
��
��
���
��
��
�
��
���

���
	�
�
%�

D�
�
�

-
��
��
��

/	
���
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
!(
��
��	

��
��
	�
�	
��


��

�
��

�
!�
��
��
��
�!
��

��
���
	�
�

!�
��
��
��
8
!�
!�
��

��
���

��
0�
�
�

�!
��
�

	!
��

!�
6>
!�
��

G
��
��
��

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

�F
�

2�
��
�	
���
��

��
��
�	
��
��
��
�
��
��

/	
��


��

�
���
�	
��

��
�
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
	!
���
���

�!
��
��
��

��
�
�!
���
���

��
��
��
���

��
��
�
���
��
��
��
��
�
�!
���
��
��
���
	�

��
�

��
��

��
��
���

��	
��
���

��
�
��
�
��
�%�
�=

	�
��
���

�
���
!
���

��
�!
��
�

��
���

��
�
!�
���
���
��

���
���
	�

��
��
��	

�!
��
��
!�
��
��
��
�
���
!
���

�#
�

��
��
�
��
��	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��	

!�
#��

	�
��
�!
��

��
��
�!
��
#��
	�
�

��
��
���

���
���

��
��!

���
��

���
���
��
�	
��
��
��
�
��
��
�!
��
��
��	

��
��
�
���
!
���

�%
�

D�
�
�

-
��
��
��

/	
���
�
���
��
��
��
���
�!
��
��
�	
��
��
	�
�	
��


!�
��
��
��
8
!�
!�
��

��
��

��
�0
�
�%�

>!
��
�G

��
��
�6
?
�
��
!�

-
���
��

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

�,
�

8
��
��
���
!�
��
��
���

�
�!
�

��
��
�	
��
��
��
�
��
��

/	
��
�
	�

��
���
��
�
��
���

���
��

��
�!
��

���
��
�
��
��	

��
��
��
��

��
��
��

��
��
�!
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
��

��
��
�
��
�
��
���

�
���
��

�%�

8
��
��
�
�

-
��
��
��

/	
��
9�
�!
�
�!
��8

!�
!�
��

��
��/

�!
�
�	
!�
��
��
��
�!
�
��
��
��
��
�!
��
��

��
��	

��


!�
��
��
��
�
!�
!�
��

��
���

��
0�
�
�!
��

��
���
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
�

��
���
	�
�
!�
�
�!
���

��
!�
��
��
��

���
��

��
���

	�
��
���
��
�
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
�
��
�
��
���

�
���
��

�%�

"
!�
��
�?

��
�	
��
6�

!�
��



	!
��

!�
�

��
>�
��
��
 �
��

Page 187



Plymouth City Council - Review of P2P project 26

-������3�C:��D��������������������

/	�������������������������������������	��������!�������!�������	���������#�!������������
��(������!(���	�������������������	!�(��	��������	���������!��������������:�

6	��� ���������

8!�����
��� 
�����!�����������+�-�����!���"����������9��!��#�-������!���
@����������

�!���
	!��!�� 
�����!�����������+�E�!�����7!��������8�����!���@��������

������E��������� 
	����@3��������������+�/�!������!����!��
	!���������!����8!�!����

?�(�9�!�� 
�����!�����������+�9��!���+�������-����!���


�!���8
!����� -��������!��
!���+�
�������������8!�!����6�������������������
8!�!����


����������� "�����������!����������!�����+�
��!�����!���9!��������8!�!����

D���"���� "�����������!����������!�����+�
��!�����!��9!��������/�!����������

���(��

G���=���	������� 
�����!�����������+����!����������������+������������������8!�!����

?�(�>����� "�����������!����������!�����+�E�!����������������#�=!����!���
��������!����!�(���������

?�(�8!(��� "�����������!����������!�����+�����!������8!�!����!���"�������!�(��
8!�!����

���!����!����� "�����������!����������!�����+�-�����!���"��������������!�����E�������


!��������� "�����������!����������!�����+�E�������C����������������8!�!����


�!����!��!�� 
	�������!���K������������+�E�!������������#��������!���!���L�!�����

Page 188



�

�

�
�

 ���������2�!	���	���	�
�
� M�� �����!���/	�������2G�DD�%�-������	�����������%�

 

5��!���/	������5���!�����!���/	�������2G�DD�#�!�����������!��������!������	��%�
�

��!���/	�������2G�DD�����!����������������	�����!���/	�������������!����!��D���&���!���/	�������
������!����!��'%���!���/	�������������!����!��!����	���������������!�������!������������!������	��%��
��������!�����������������	����������������������������%�
 

/	��������!�����	!�����������!���������!��!������%�?�����������������!�����!���������������������
�!����������!����������!������������!�����������!�����!��!�����������!����!����!������	��������!�����

Page 189



Page 190

This page is intentionally left blank



   

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
27 June 2011 

 
 

 
 
 
Diversion of Children from Care - Efficiency Theme 
  
We are currently developing a strong project plan for making efficiencies through diverting more 
children from care. It is built around four work streams: improving shared safeguarding intelligence; 
early intervention and child protection; intensive adolescent support services and placements, where 
we have a good recent track record in making efficiencies. A project team is in place with key work 
leads and risks have been assessed in accordance with the council's corporate approach, in what is a 
challenging working environment.   
 
In terms of alternative efficiency options, as a statutory service our room for manoeuvre is not as 
elastic as some areas, with the non statutory activity tending to be around preventative work - which 
is of course extremely important for reducing the likelihood of children becoming at risk. We are, 
however, reasonably confident that we can make the required efficiencies over the next three years. 

 
 
Mairead MacNeil 
Assistant Director, Children’s Social Care 
Services for Children and Young People 

 

June 2011  Not protectively marked 
 

Agenda Item 17Page 191



Page 192

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2011/12 

 
 

  2011 2012 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M 

 
Internal Audit Annual Report 
 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Sue Watts) 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            
 
Statement of Accounts 2010/11 
 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Sandra Wilson) 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            
 
Operational Risk Management  - 
Update Report 
 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 27 

  

 

  

16 

  

 

            

Risk Management Annual Report Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

Annual Governance Statement Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            
 
Strategic Risk Register Monitoring 
Report 
 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking)  

  

16 

  

 

  

16 

            

A
genda Item

 18
P

age 193



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2011/12 

 
 

  2011 2012 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M 

 
Six Month Internal Audit Progress 
Report 
 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Sue Watts)  

  

 

  

16 

  

 

            

Internal Audit Annual Plan Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Sue Watts)  

  
 

  
 

  
16 

            

Interim Report and Update to 
Financial Audit Plan 2010/2011 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

Review of Procure to Pay Project External Auditor 
Grant Thornton 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            
Annual Report to Those Charged 
with Governance (ISA260 Report) 
2010/2011 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
16 

  
 

  
 

            

Financial Resilience Review External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
16 

  
 

  
 

            

P
age 194



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2011/12 

 
 

  2011 2012 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M 

Project Management Review External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
16 

  
 

  
 

            

Annual Audit Letter 2010/2011 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
16 

  
 

            

Certification Work Report 
2010/2011 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
16 

  
 

            

Audit Plan 2011/2012 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
16 

            

Audit Fee Letter 2012/2013 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
16 

            
 

P
age 195



P
age 196

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	7 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11
	App 1- Progress against plan 10-11 - monitoring
	App 2 V1 Schools progress against plan 10-11
	App 3  3a Summary of Reviews Opinions  Opinions Defns Mar11
	App 4v2  Summary of Audit Opinion
	App 5v4 Fund Weaknesses Corp Inf Mgt
	App 6 Added Value

	8 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2010/11
	Annual Governance Statement brief

	9 OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE REPORT
	10 RISK MANAGEMENT - ANNUAL REPORT
	11 ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES FOR 2010/11
	13 INTERIM REPORT AND UPDATE TO FINANCIAL AUDIT PLAN 2010/2011
	14 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS REPORT
	15 VFM REVIEW OF THE PROCURE TO PAY PROJECT
	17 POSITION STATEMENT - DIVISION OF CHILDREN FROM CARE - EFFICIENCY THEME
	18 AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PLAN 2011/12

